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Power and Process

% 2007 divisional revenues
B8 50% Process
"' 25% Power
8 25% Nuclear

N

We design, deliver, enhance and rmaintain
electricity and gas infrastructure in the
UK, and industrial plant and power
facilities in the UK and Americas.

AMEC has leading positions in the supply
of engineering services to the gas
transmission and storage and electricity
transmissicn sectors in the UK and
selected segments of the North
American industrial process market
le.g. cement).

Nuclear

AMEC is one of the leading providers
of technical consultancy, engineering
services and programme and asset
management to the nuclear industry.

We are well pesitioned in the UK and
Canada, and also provide services in the
Americas, Central and Eastern Europe
and South Alfrica.

fransportation Aventis Crop Science AWE  BIOX Corporation BP
WPhiflips CSXT De Beers EDF Enbridge Eskom  ExxonMobil
PetroChina
letalsCorp. Total TXI USAirForce USArmy US National Guard

National Grid Ontario Power Generation

Earth and Environmental

% 2007 divisional revenues

B 40%
Environmental

To13%
Geotechnical
10% Materials

O &% Water

25% Government
Program
Management

M &% Infrastructure

We pravide consultancy, engineering
and project management services for
public and private sector custemers,
primarily in the Americas.

AMEC has a leading position in the
Canadian market for environmental
services anc is a major supplier to
the US Air Force in locations around
the world.

AMEC

% 2007 group revenues*

B 44% Natural
Resources

44% Power
and Process

N B 12% Earthand
Environmental

% 2007 group EBITA®

B 51% Natural
Resources

25% Power
and Process

B 14% Earth and
Environmental

% 2007 group average employees**

W 48% Natural
Resources

34% Power
and Process

B 18%Earthand
Environmental

* Excluding the Investrnents and other
activities division
* Full-time equivatents including agency staff

British Energy  Bruce Power Canadian Department of National

Fairfield Energy FEMA GE Imperial Oil Kimberly-Clark
PotashCorp SABIC Scoitish Power Sellafield Shell Southern Company
Wales and West Utilities  Woodside Energy




AMEC at a glance

Aboutus
AMEC is a FTSE 100 company, whose shares are traded on the London Stock Exchange,
where the companyis listed in the Oil Equipment and Services sector [LSE: AMEC L.

With annual revenues of over £2.3 billion, the company is a focused supplier of high-value
consultancy, engineering and project management services to the world’s energy, power
and process industries.

Our services

We provide total life of asset services including the design, delivery and maintenance of
strategic and complex assets, ranging from oil and gas production facilities to nuclear
power stations.

CAPITAL EXPENDITURE OPERATING EXPENDITURE

 J i,

>CONSUH ‘ ENGINEER  PROCURE > CDNSTRUCT> DPERATE> MAINTAIN Decomrsso>
/ / ,
L ;

[ PROJECT MANAGEMENT B

T T 8lue chacing senctes AMEC focus

We have major operations in the UK and Americas and work internationally for
customers from the Arctic to Australia, ernptoying approximately 20,000 people in more
than 30 countries worldwide.

Geaographical analysis
ofregvenpueZOUT ’s

B 40% UK
_. 26%Canada

k 24%US

B 10% Restof world

Our customers range from national and {ocat governments to blue chip companies on both sides
of the Atlantic, with our largest customer accounting for some 10 per cent of total revenues.

For further details of aur activities, visit aur website at www.amec.com

Natural Resources

% 2007 divisional revenues
FE] 67% Oil and Gas

Services
[ . 18% Ol Sands
\ M 15% Mineralsand
& Metals Mining

Qil and Gas lincluding 0il Sands)
We design, manage delivery of,
maintain and upgrade production
assets for a broad range of oiland gas
companies worldwide.

With strong, long-term customer
relationships, we are a leading supplier
in the UK North Sea and upstream
Canadian oil sands and have strong
positions in frontier regions including
the Caspian.

Minerals and Metals Mining
We advise on, design and manage
delivery of mining infrastructure for
custorners, mainly in the Americas.

We have a ieading position in North
America, where we have strong, long-
term relationships with customers that
value our experience warking on large
scale projects, often in extreme
climatic conditions.

Albian Sands Energy  Arizona Department of
Defence Cargill Chevron CMPC Conc.
Koch [Geargia Pacific]  Kuwait Oil Campany

Suncor Syncrude TeckCominco Terranek




AMEC’svisionistobe a
leading supplier of high-value
consultancy, engineering and
project management services
to the world's energy, power
and process industries

believing in people, teamwork and diversity
delivering in a safe and sustainable way
acting with integrity and respect
aspiring to excellence: passionate about Success
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Highlights

Strong performance by the group's three core divisions

Adjusted pre-tax profit* £126.5 million, up 59%

O
O
O Profit for the year £344.4 million (2006: £219.2 million)
O 51% EBITA margin** (2006: 4.1%]; on track to deliver 2008 margin target of 6%
0 Diluted earnings per share” from continuing operations 28.0 pence, up 69%

O Dividends per share up 10% to 13.4 pence

O Average net cash 2007 £435 million; 2008 expected to be ¢.£600 million*#

2007 2006
£ million £ million
Continuing operations:
Revenue 2,356.2 21216 +11%
Profit before intangible amortisation,
exceptional items and income tax* 126.5 797 +59%
Profit/(loss] before incorne tax 151.6 (27.0) nm
Profit from discontinued operations -
including profit on disposals 2229 2614 -15%
| Diluted earnings per share from continuing
operations before intangible amortisation
and exceptional items 28.0p 16.6p +69%
Diluted earnings/lloss) per share - continuing operations ~ 36.1p (13.3pl nm
Dividends per share ' 13.4p 12.2p +10%

nen Not meaningful.

* For continuing operations before intangible amortisation of £2.5 millian [2006: £3.6 million] and pre-tax exceptional income
of £28.2 million [2006: charges of £102.8 million] but including jeint venture profit befere tax of €18 million [2004: £0.2 mitlion),
** For continuing operations before ~et financing incame/[costsl, intangible amortisation, pre-tax exceptional items and
£12.4 million one-off costs of STEP Change [2006: £nil) but including joint venture profit before tax, as a percentage of revenue.
* For continuing operations before intangible amortisation and exceptional itemns.
* Before acquisitions and share buybacks.

Any forward loaking statements made in this document represent management’s best judgement as to what may occur
in the future. However, the group’s actual results for the current and future fiscal periods and corporate developments
will depend on a number of economic, competitive and other factors, some of which will be outside the control of the
group, Such factors could cause the group’s actual results for future periods to differ materially from those expressed
in any forward looking statements made in this document.
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Chairman’s statement

A transformational year, with
record results, record levels
of cash, and inclusion in the
FTSE 100 index.

hrrirrrirrrrrrErrrrrrr b rrrrern e

10%

growth

in dividends
per share




Ontrack

to deliver our 2008
margin target of 6%

Twelve months ago, | said that we expected to see the new AMEC well
established by the end of 2007. We set out to achieve a transformation
of the company and | am pleased to report that we have delivered,
exceeding our own expectations.

AMEC achieved record results in 2007, and following the successful
divestrment of our non-core businesses, we now have a record cash
balance available to fund future growth.

Our market capitalisation has increased by more than £1 billion since
January 2007, to £2.5 bilkion. | am particularly proud that this success
was marked by AMEC s inclusion in the FTSE 100 index in December
2007. This is a tribute to the hard work of Samir Brikha, his management
team and AMEC's 20,000 employees around the world.

The board is recommending a final dividend of 8.8 pence per share
{2006: 8.0 pencel, which resultsin a total dividend of 13.4 pence per
share (2006: 12.2 pencel, a 10 per cent increase on 2004 At 2.1 times
dividend cover, this achieves our stated aim of having a sustainable
dividend cover of more than two times.

During the year, James Dallas and John Early retired from the board,
Jamesin Mayand John in July. Both have been long-serving board
mernbers and their support over the years has been much appreciated.

Creating a successful, sustainable company is about more than just
improving the results. AMEC has a presence in more than 30 countries
and in many more communities within those countries. Qur employees
are enthusiastic contributors te their local neighbourhoods, giving their
time and raising money to support local initiatives. In 2007, for the fourth
year running, AMEC was awarded number one position in our sector

in the Dow Jones Sustainability Index. We continue to be ranked in the
Top 100 ‘Companies that Count’ index, published annually in the UK's
Sunday Times.

2007 was a transformational year for AMEC, and one of outstanding
financial performance. The identity of the company has been
successfully changed to that of a major force in the world of energy,
power and process. | am proud of our achievernents and have
enormous confidence in the management team.

AMEC’s prospects have never been better. The outloak in our end
markets continues {0 be strong and | remain confident that we will achieve
our stated margin targets of six per cent in 2008 and eight per cent in 2010.

11 March 2008

Adjusted pre-tax profit up 59%to

J

il
2

mitlion

Stuart Siddall, Finance Director, resigned on 17 March 2008 and will step
down from the board after the annual general meeting. Stuart has seen
many changes since he first joined AMEC in 2000 and will leave with the
company well positioned for an exciting future. The board is grateful to
Stuart for his considerable contribution to the company.
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Chief Executive’s review

Building an army of the best
engineers, project managers and
consultants in the world; we aspire
to excellence in everything we do.

Record

results and cash position

Samir Brikho
Chief Executive




2007 was a year in which AMEC achieved outstanding success, both
in terms of transforming the business and in delivering record results.

Strong growth in both the Natural Resources and Power and Process
divisions drove underlying growth of 21 per cent in revenues®, this being
almost entirely organic. Adjusted pre-tax profitwas up 59 per cent at
arecord level of £126.5 million, with our year-end net cash position
standing at £733 million, also a record. By any measure, these are
outstanding results.

After ayear in which we delivered on and exceeded the promises we
made in late 2006, AMEC is now a company with a clear vision, a
common sense of direction and a culture of perfermance and delivery.
AMEC employees understand what we need te do to achieve our
performance improvement targets and create a truly world class
company. We are united in our desire to achieve our goals.

AMEC's people are our most important
asset. [tis the skills of our people that
ourcusterners value; in particular, our
ability to deliver complax projects safely,
on time, and on budget. We need to
create the best army of engineersin

the world; the best army of project
managers and the best army of consultants. We need to make sure they
are provided with the skills and tools they need to deliver outstanding
performance. We want AMEC to set the standards against which
performance is measured in our industry. That is what our Operational
Excellence programme is alt about.

Ayear of outstanding

SUccess

Operational Excellence was launched in September 2007 and is a

two to three year programme which will be a major contributor to the
achievement of our eight per cent EBITA margin target in 2010. Taking
agood company and turning it into a great company is about much more
than merely short-term profitimprovernent. We want to operate to the
highest standards in every area of our business and for continugus
irnprovement to become a way of life for everyone at AMEC.
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So what does this mean to the way in which we run our business?

We want to be the supplier of choice to our selected customers and
the customer of choice to our selected suppliers. AMEC's end markets
waere strong in 2007 and we expect them to remain so in 2008. Our
cusiomers are increasing their capital expenditure plans and continue
to look to AMEC to support them in achieving their growth. Operational
Excellence is helping us choose the markets in which we should
operate, the customers we should be working with and the projects
on which we can add the greatest value. We are also reviewing our
processes and procedures, ensuring they are efficient and effective

in support of our goals.

We want to attract, retain and develop the best people in the business.
We continue ta work with schools and universities to develop the next
generation of world class engineers and also took more widely into aur
local communities to attract the best employees. Through Operational
Excellence, we are looking at new ways to train and develop our
employees, providing them with the skills and experience they need

to do their job and advance their careers. Providing a healthy and safe
working enviranment for our employees is of parameunt importance
10 AMEC, just as the safe delivery of projects is important to our
custormers. Despite achieving an improvernent in lest time injuries
during 2007, tragically, an AMEC employee was killed foliowing a fall
from height. No accident is acceptable to us and we will continue to
strive for excellence in safety.

We want to create a business which is sustainabte for the long term.

In 2007, we took the first crucial steps in transforming AMEC into a
world class company. | have been humbled by what AMEC employees
achieved, setting stretching goals and exceeding them. Geing farward,
we are aspiring io excellence in everything we do, seeking to raise the
bar of best in class performance in ourindustry and ensure a safe,
successful and sustainabte {uture for AMEC.

11 March 2008

.

* Continuing revenues excluding it and gas lump-sum contracting inow ceased),
and the Investments and other activities division [where various businesses were
sold or closed during 2007).
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Left to right: Nick Wallters, Maintenance
Manager, AMEC; Baren Smih, UK
Maintenance Services Manager, SABIC




AMEC has a three year contract with SABIC [Saudi Basic industries Corporation) for the
maintenance of three major chemical process plants on Teesside, north east England.
The contract commenced on 1 January 2007,
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"AMEC’s first year of operations has been an
overwhelming success, with continued safety
performance improvement and minimal disruption
to ongoing maintenance service delivery. Avery
promising start to what | trust will be a long and
mutually beneficial relationship.”

Daren Smith, UK Maintenance Services Manager, SABIC
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Our people

AMEC is nothing without its people. We are not big spenders on heavy machinery or proprietary
technology. Instead, we have highly qualified, highly experienced consultants, engineers and
project managers. Their knowledge and expertise is valued by our customers and our ability to
attract, develop and retain such exceptional talent underpins our success. Here, we share with
you some of the energy and enthusiasm from our people around the world...

R "I uess the thing I'm most proud of in the

B way AMEC works is the fact that they don't

: compromise on anything. They've got set core

values and principles and those are fairly fixed in
the way that we do our business and the way we
do ourwork, and those principles aren't dropped
when we go into a new country or a new region.
Those core values are seen throughout the whale
of the business, which is really, really important
in terms of a company that you can trust and
= a company that you're proud to work for. Avery
trustworthy and reliable corpany which has

iy
'

4

::; values and principles.
=, — = What excites me about my job is that it varies day
—_— - to day. | deal with a whole host of different people

from different countries and different cultures
and that’s a really exciting thing to do.”

{1

Frances Allan, Sustainability Programme Manager,
Natural Resources.

Honours degree in Chernistry with Environmental Science
[University of Kent at Canterbury, 19%6); Diploma in
Environmental Managernent [British Safety Council, 2000).
Since joining AMEC in 2000, Frances has been supported
in gaining her Masters in Sustainable Development
[Staffordshire University, 2004).

£€ 1t's much more fun
being part of Manchester
United than a team

that's in relegation 77

Frances Allan
Sustainability Programme Manager



&€ Every one of us has
an opportunity to make
a difference in AMEC ??

Examination Board in Occupationat Safety and Health.

“One of the things that I'm proud of about the
way AMEC works is the way that we go about

our business in terms of bistening to stakeholders
and custormers, and then delivering our projects
and services, meeting and exceeding cusiomer
expectations. Strong delivery like that builds our
track record and that's something to be proud of”

Andrew Pennington, Business Development Manager,
Power and Process Nuclear.

Since joining AMEC in 1991 as a graduate [Mechanicat
Engineering B. Eng. [Hons), University of Surreyl, Andrew
has been supperted in becoming a Chartered Engineer
(Institution of Mechanical Engineers, 1995} and has also
been sponsored by AMEC through an Executive MBA

at Cranfietd School of Management.

€€ I'm part of

a motivated

team of people o
that's making =
it happen 93 s

“Clients require and demand competent, qualified people on their projects. Within Azerbaijan, AMEC
is recognised as a company that puts the development and professional growth of local employees
first. AMEC, from my experience, is a company that provides opportunities for people and cares about
people, their development, growth and competency. Certainly for me that makes it a good company
towaork for: It's an opportunity that | have to make a difference and change, improve health and safety
inthe warkplace... It's being able to contribute to the overall success of the project and operation.”

Sevil Ismailova, Caspian Health and Safety and Environmental Manager, Natural Resources.

Graduate of Azerbaijan Baku Institute of Political Science, Faculty of Department of International Relations.

Since joining AMEC in August 2000, Sevil has been supported in becoming a chartered member of the UK's Institution
of Occupational Safety and Health (2008], as well as gaining Diptoma Parts 1 (2004} and 2 (2005) from the National

“The quality of the expertise that we have

is very good. It has to be, because of the type
of projects that we deliver. They are cornplex
projects, and therefore to carry out this type

of work you have to have good people, across
the company, whether it's in engineering or
it's in project management.”

Ted Barker, Project Manager, Power and Process

UK and Europe. ]
First joined AMEC in 1973 as atrainee, and after leaving
in 1991 rejoined in 1995, Ted was supported by AMEC in
gaining Higher National Certificate {Darlington College

of Technology, 19771 and a Master of Science degree at
UMIST University in 2003. |

AMEC plc annual report 2007 9




World class engineering

We employ approximately 20,000 people across the wortd, providing high-value consultancy,

engineering and project management services. We have long-term relationships with our

custorners, who value our skills and ability to deliver projects safely, on time and on budget.

They recognise our expertise in working on complex assets, in often harsh conditions.

Here, we take a look at just some of the things that make AMEC a leading force in engineering...

Natural Resources

In 2007, AMEC celebrated ten years of being
in Baku, Azerbaijan. We are proud of the
story of our involvernent in the country,
where we have worked with local
companies and transferred technology
and skills to the local workforce to deliver
long-term benefits to the lacal economy.

In September 2007, AMEC celebrated the
sail-away, ahead of schedule, of the
Azerbaijan International Oil Company's
12,700 tonne process, compression,
water injection and utilities facility.
Azerbaijanis an emerging market, ina
remote location with limited resources,
and extreme climate. By bringing together
ourinternational expertise with the local
capabilities that we have developed with
joint venture partners, we are able to
achieve world class standards in build
quality and project managernent. We have
helped to develop a sustainable ol and gas
services business in Azerbaijan, whichin
future will be able to supply engineering
services and skilled resources to oil
companies thraughout this growth region.

10 AMEC plc annual repart 2007

Power and Process

AMEC has been providing engineering
support to the UK's nuclear reactor
programme over the last 40years. Many
of these reactors have now exceeded their
original design lives. It is both of national
interest and good business practice that
these reactors continue safely to generate
glectricity into the future and we are proud
that our world class skills in reactor
services are making an important
contribution.

Forirreplaceable compenents such as

the graphite cores, we have developed
analytical models to substantiate continued
safe functionality, validated by extensive test
work in our facilities.

During 2007, we developed a world class
strateqgy for life extension and lifetime
planning for the advanced gas cooled
reactors [AGRs] owned and operated

by British Energy. This has apptied the
guidelines developed by the US Electric
Power Research Institute [mainly for light
water reactors] to the specifics of the
AGR technology. Through the alliance
with AMEC, British Energy expects to see
year on year measurable improvement

in AGR performance.

Earth and Environmental

AMEC has been selected to perform
environmental impact analyses (ElAs] in
same of the most challenging and sensitive
areas of the world. Examples during 2007
include a liguefied natural gas deepwater
port proposed 30 miles off the Seuthern
California coast; a propesed tungsten and
molybdenum mining aperation in South
Korea and an unprecedented 17 state
environmental impact staternent for a
proposed 17.000 mile network of natural
gas pipelines in the US.

AMEC has also provided werld class
consultancy services to enable the clean up
of former military firing ranges in difficult
and dangerous locations. In Hawaii, our
work has resulted in the removal of around
13tonnes of lead from ranges located in the
crater of Diamond Head volcane, whilst at
Brown's Island, a saltwaler marshland on
the North Carolina coast, developmental
aerial technigues have been employed to
identify locations most likely containing
surface or buried unexploded ordnance
[UXO'). This methodology alsa can be

used to safely survey areas littered with
landmines to guide reacquisition ground
crews, thereby reducing risk to UX0
technicians and the public.



“It's how we put those project management skills, those
engineering skills to use that makes us different. The people that
we have working for us, the skills, the knowledge that's been built
up over the years is second to none.”

Neil Wem, Operational Excetlence Programme Director, based inthe UK.
Joined AMEC 1978.

“| think AMEC's expertise is with its people and its professionalism,
its experience and track record, its ability to deliver and deliver
consistently and reliably to custorners.”

Nick Walters, Operations Manager, based in the UK.
Joined AMEC 1997.

“Clients aren't expecting us to be perfect. What they're expecting
though is competency, consistency, honesty, an ethical approach
and if we do happen to make mistakes, which everybody does,
we don't run from them, we turn them intowins.”

Michael Davies, Vice President, based in Canada.
Joined AMEC 1998.

“We have one client who still speaks our praises for one of our
projects, and | think he's the best salesman we have.”

- Isabel Cellis, Graduate Engineer, based in Canada.

Joined AMEC 2004.

NeillWem
Operational Excellence Programme Director
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Operational Excellence

We want AMEC to be a successful, sustainable company for the long term: one that
our employees are proud to work for; that our customers and suppliers want to
partner with; that local communities welcome; that shareholders want to invest in...

What is Operational Excellence?

Operational Excellence is about tackting continuous improvement in a
cansistent way and having consistent practices and procedures towork
from. Across AMEC, we want to have world class operating systerns
and procedures. We want to wark for the right customers and with the
right suppliers - as the supplier of cheice to our chosen customers, and
the custorner of choice to our chosen suppliers. We want to employ and
retain the best people - people that want to develop their skills for the
future. We want our culture to be one of delivery and performance.

The Operational Excellence programme will have an effect right across
AMEC over the next couple of years and will become a way of life for
AMEC employees thereafter.

Operational Excellence will be a major contributor to delivering our
margin target of eight per cent by 2010.

“You need to think excellence to deliver excellence. |'ve seen
what a lot of really excellent people weve got in the business.

. #fwe canunlock their potential and get everybody working to the
high standards of the best, we'll be head and shoulders above
our competition. I've learnt through my career that overcoming
challenges is extrernely rewarding. | get excited by challenge now
rather than afraid of challenge. And | think that when AMEC and
its employees come together to overcome challenges for our
customers, we really deliver: | think that we shoutdn't be fightened
of challenges, we should look forward to challenge and we should
embrace challenge.”

Meil Wem, Operational Excellence Programme Director.

Garry Dryburgh
Operational Excellence Director, Natural Resources



b Making a good company great

"' hugely excited to be part of the
Operational Excellence programme.

We're working really hard to equip
ourselves to meet the needs of
customers into the future and the
combination of employee development
plans and our recently developed project
academyy are going to make us an
employer of choice.

| think the thing I'm most proud of in the
way AMEC works is our honesty when

it comes to discussing performance

and our steely commitment to do

better tomorrow than we do today,.

We knowwe're not perfect, and there’s
a concerted effort and a professional will
to do something constructive about it.

Operational Excellence has been
fundamental to us: creating a culture
of high value delivery for the long term,
sustainably; meeting our eight per cent
margin for 2010; attracting, developing

k€ [fwe're
successful,

our customers
are successful
and vice versa 77

and retaining the best people; creating
waorld class operating systems and
procedures; and becoming the supplier
of choice to our chosen customers.

it's also about embedding a performance
based culture and there's nothing

there that is not going to benefit our
future delwery on our projects and
contracts. Will it be tough? Yes. Will it
require the engagement of thousands
of cur people? You bet. Will it have the
commitment from the top? Absolutely,
and that's demonstrable now: Will it
help us manage a scarce resource

and become the project management
and engineering services employer of
choice? | have every confidence it will
propel us a long way down that path.

Will we ever be finished? | certainly hope
not because continuous improvernent’s
going to become the way we do things
around here.”

Garry Dryburgh
Dperational Excellence Director, Natural Resources.

€€ Itslike
each one of
the tools in
our toolbox is
a little better
tuned 73

“| think Operational Excellence is about
hening our capabilities to take the
organisation forward to an excellent
future, It's about strengthening an
organisation to work at a higher level to
deliver the levels of performance that we
want and expect to achieve in the future.
That can only be good for our employees;
they get a consistent message, they see
a consistency ta the way we do things,
and new employees quickly feel part

of the organisation.”

Nina Schofield, Security, Safety, Health,
Environment, and Quality Director for

Natural Resources; Head of Safety, Health
and Environmental.

k€ You need to think
excellence to deliver
excellence 17
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“Cortez Gold Mines and the people at AMEC have 'enjoyed a
strong working relationship for more than a decade. Cortez is

grateful for the professionalism, technical acumen, and positive
service-oriented attitude of the AMEC people that work with us,
and we look forward to working with them in the future.”
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Leltlonght Michael Rupe, Heap Leach General

Sapensor and Project Manager, Barnick Contoz
told Mines, Paul Kaptan, Client Manager, AMEC,
Mg Anderson, HR Coordinator, Cortes







Business and financial review

Introduction

This business and financial review sets out descriptions of each of the
group’'s business segments, their markets, strategy, significant factors
affecting performance for the year ended 31 December 2007 including
comments on movernents in the income statement, balance sheet and
cash flow statement and on matters that may have animpact on the
group's future financial performance.

Tha review provides a broader perspective of AMEC's businesses to
enable a more informed judgernent to be made of the group's financial
performance and prespects. Certain forward-looking statements with
respect to the financial condition, operations and results of AMEC's
businesses are contzined in the review. These staternents involve

risk and uncertainty because they relate to events and depend upon
circumstances that will occurin the future. There are a number of
factors that could cause actual performance or developments to

differ materially from those expressed or implied by these forward-
looking statements.

FYTYLIVIIVE

FIIVLTININ

The review is provided solely to provide additional information to assist
in the assessment of the group's strategy and future prospects. !t should
not be relied on for any other purpose.

Strategy

AMEC'svision is to be a leading supplier of high-value consultancy,
engineering and project management services to the world's energy.
power and process industries.

Services are focused on consulting, designing, managing the delivery
of, and maintaining strategic and complex assets such as offshore cil
and gas production facilities, mineral or metals mines, or power

infrastructure.
Diluted earnings per share
from continuing operations™
28.0p 90/
*before intangible amortisation and exceptional stems
Stuart Siddall

Finance Director




The group’s core divisions comprise:

Qil and Gas Services

Qil Sands [project management,
engineering and infrastructure]
Minerals and Metals Mining

O Natural Resources:

Power
Process
Nuclear

O Powerand Process:

O Earth and Envirgnmental.

Important goals for AMEC are adjusted EBITA margin* targets of
six per cent in 2008 and eight per cent in 2010.

Investment opportunities have been identified which would grow and
develop the core divisions, details of which are set out in the segmental
review on pages 19 to 44. A number of acquisitions consistent with these
opportunities have been made over the last 15 months, details of which
are set out on pages 66 to 67 of the report of the directors.

STEP Change

STEP Change, a programme of change in the structure and culture
of the company, was completed ahead of schedule in September 2007
and exceeded original expectations. Net savings of £11 million were
delivered in 2007, and with further incremental savings of at least

£29 million in 2008, recurring net benefits of £40 million per annum
are expected cormpared with the 2004 baseline.

The total cost of the programime in 2007 was £12 million, compared
with the original estimate of £18 million.

Operationat Excellence
Following the successful completion of STEP Change, AMEC
is proceeding with ‘Operational Excellence’, a two to three year

programme to radically improve the group’s operating performance.

The programme is packaged into 12 focus areas identified as those
most important to achieving high performance across AMEC:
O Business controls

O Cash management

O Commercial management

O Employee developrment

1 Engineering

O Health and safety

8 Information technolegy

O Project management

0O Strategic marketing

O Strategic relationship management and business acquisition
[ Supply chain management

O Sustainability.

Time based management is being used as a tool to co-ordinate

these activities and achieve common and optimised processes
and procedures.

Expected average
net cash’ for 2008

mitlion

“elore acquisitions and share buybacks

* Prafit for continuing operations before net financing income/costs, intangible

arnortisation, pre-tax exceptional items, but including joint venture profit before
tax, as & percentage of revenues.
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Business review

Through Operational Exceltence,
AMEC intends to improve the
quality of the business portiolio
and service delivery to customers;
and to simplify and optimise
internal controls and processes.

Strong
EBITA
growth

Operational Excellence will be a
major contributor to AMEC
delivering its target EBITA margin

inall three core divisions of eight per cent in 2010. Target
margins for 2008 and 2010 are
summarised below:

Actual EBITAmargin EBITA margin target range
2007 2008 2010
Natural Resources 9.46% 9-10% 10-11%
Power and Process 4.3%* 5-6% 5-7%
Earth and Environmental 74% 8-9% 9-10%
Group margin® 5.1%" &% 8%

Operational Excellence is expected to incur costs of up to £10 million
in 2008. Further costs, both revenue and capital expenditure, are
expected in 2009.

Results

Revenue for the year increased by 11 per cent to £2,356.2 million (2004
£2,121.6 millionl, reflecting strong growth in both the Natural Resources
and Power and Process divisions. Underlying growth in revenues,
excluding cil and gas lump-sum contractirig Inow ceasedl, and the
Investments and other activities division {where various businesses
were sold or closed during the 2007) was 21 per cent in 2007, being
almost entirely organic.

Adjusted pre-tax profit™ of £124.5 million was up £46.8 millian (2006:
£79.7 miltion], with all core divisions performing strongly.

18 AMEC plec annual report 2007

There was pre-tax exceptional incorme of £28.2 million (2004: charge of
£102.8 million), intangtble amertisation of £2.5 million {2004: £3.6 million)
and jeint venture tax of £0.4 million (200é: £0.3 million), resulting in a
pre-tax profit of £151.6 million [2006: loss of £27.0 million).

Profit for the year (including profit on disposal of discontinued
businesses] was £344.4 million [2006: £219.2 million).

Basis of preparation and discontinued activities

The business and financial review is based on the reported results

for continuing operations before intangible amortisation and pre-tax
exceptional itemns but including joint venture profit before tax. The resutis
as presented in the business and financial review are reconciled on
pages 51 to 53 of this review to those presented in note 2to the
consolidated accounts.

As previously disclosed, the Built Environment businesses, now sold,
have been treated as discontinued operations in the 2007 accounts.
The comparative segmental results for the year ended 31 December
2006 have been restated to reflect this change and some minor
business restructuring. These restatements are consistent with those
disclosed on 25 June 2007, except for a change in classification of the
Wind Developments business, which has been transferred out of the
Power and Process division and into the Investments and other
activities segment.

In accordance with IFRS 5**, the post-tax results of discontinued
operations are disclosed separately in the consolidated incorme
statement, with the 2004 consolidated income staternent being restated
for the same presentation.

The cash flows of discontinued businesses are fully consolidated within
AMEC up to the date of sate and the assets and liabilities of discontinued
operations that have not been sold at the year end are shown separately
on the consolidated balance sheet.

* Before one-off costs of STEP Change.

t EBITA margin after corporate costs.

* For continuing cperations before intangible amortisation of £2.5 miltion (2006: £3.4 million]
and pre-tax excepticnal income of £28.2 million [2004: charges of £102.8 millien] but
including joint venture profit before tax of £1.8 million (2004: £0.2 million}.

** Internaticnal Financial Reporting Standard § "Mon-current assets held for sale and

discontinued operations’.

|



In accordance with IFRS 5, the consolidated balance sheet for 2006 has
not been restated to exclude discontinued operations. The consolidated
cash flow has also not been restated.

As noted above, this review is based on continuing operations only and
reconciliations to the reported results are provided where appropriate.

The table below analyses the results for the year ended 31 December
2007 between continuing and discontinued operations. Discontinued
operations generated a post-tax toss of £4.7 million in 2007 (2006: profit
of £0.5 million].

Year ended 31 December 2007
Continuing Discontinued Total
operations operations group
£ million £million £ mitlion
Pre-tax profitflloss] before
intangible amortisation
andjoint venture tax* - 1265 14.5)
Joint venture tax [0.6) -
Income tax (30.9} (0.21 1311
Post-tax profit/lloss) before
intangible amortisation* 95.0 14.7) 90.3
Intangible amortisation (2.5 -
Post-tax profit/[loss]* 92.5 8.7 878
Exceptionalitems 25.0 2274 2585
Profit for the year 1215 2229 3444
Year ended 31 December 2006
Continuing Discontinued Total
operations aperations group
£ million £ million £ million
Pre-tax profit before
intangible amortisation
and joint venture tax* 797 9.2 889
Joint venture tax ‘ (0.3) - 10.3]
Income tax (225 (6. (28.4]
Post-tax profit before :
intangible amortisation* 569 31 400
Intangible amortisation 3.6} [2.4) 16.21
Post-tax profit* 53.3 05 538
Exceptional items [95.5] 2609 165.4
[Lossl/profit for the year [42.2) . 2614 219.2

* Prafit/|loss] is stated before excepticnal itemns.

Segmental review

Segmental analysis is provided for the group’s continuing activities in the
Natural Resources, Power and Pracess and Earth and Environmental
divisions. The Investments and other activities division includes past
activities in Rail [now sold], Hang Kong [now substantially reduced), US
Construction Management [all projects now cormpleted) and a plant hire
business [sold in February 2008}, together with two ongoing PPP activities
in Korea and the UK. It also now includes the Wind Developmenits
business (formerly reported in the Power and Process division).

Commentary far each of AMEC's divisions is set out on pages 22 to 44
of this review. Amounts and percentage movements relating to
continuing segmental earnings before net financing income/costs,
tax and intangible amortisation { EBITA) are stated before corporate
costs of £36.5 million (2006: £21.4 million] and pre-tax exceptional
proﬂts of £28.2 million (2006: charges of £102.8 miltion), but including

122
(0. 6] joint venture profit before tax of £1.8 million (2004: £0.2 million).

The average number of employees for the years ended 31 December
2007 and 31 December 2006 stated in this review include agency staff.

(2.5) A reconciliation of this position to the employee numbers included in

note 6 to the consolidated accounts is included on page 53 of this review.

Amounts relating to segmental net assets / (liabilities) are stated before
intangible assets and net cash, but including interests in joint ventures
and associates.

Dividend cover

rebuilt to over two times
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AMEC is the Integrated Project Management Team
contractor for the management of health, safety and

environment ' HSE') and guality assurance and control on
Petrochina's Dushanzi Refinery and Ethylene Technical
Reformation project, western China.
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"AMEC has helped ensure Dushanzi’s excellent safety
levels, with the project having passed the 30 million man
hours safety record, a world class achievement. The
project is a great example of HSE management, which
both AMEC and Petrochina are determined to continue
for along time to come.”

Li Kunsheng, HSE Director, PetroChina Dushanzi Petrochemical Company -
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Natural Resources

Description of business

Principal activities: Natural Resources comprises AMEC's activities

in Oil and Gas Services, Oil Sands (project management, engineering
and infrastructure] and Minerals and Metals Mining. Asset development
[Capex] and asset support [Opex| services are provided in the
upstream sector, which accounts for some 85 per cent of revenues,
with the balance being in the midstream and downstream sectors.
EBITA margins vary accerding to the nature of activities, ranging from
around six per cent on average for Opex services in mature markets

to 12 per cent or more with good performance on Capex contracts with
performance incentives. Sorme 50 per cent of revenues in 2007 were
generated by each of Capex and Opex services.

Principat locations: Aberdeen, London [UK]; Aksai (Kazakhstan;
Baku [Azerbaijan); Calgary, Vancouver [Canadal; Houston [US);
Kuala Lumpur [Malaysia); Kuwait; Perth [Australial; Shanghai [Chinal.

Customers include: BP, Chevron, ConocoPhillips, De Beers,
ExxonMobil, Fairfield Energy, Imperial Oil, Kuwait Oil Company,
PetroChina, PatashCorp, Shell, Suncor, Syncrude, Teck Cominco,
Total, Woodside Energy.

Significant contracts in 2007 included: ConocoPhillips Australia:

15 manth extension to the joint venture operations and maintenance
contract on the Bayu-Undan development in the Timor Sea; Kuwait
National Petroleum Company: refurbishment and madifications on
Kuwait's three existing refineries; PotashCorp, Canada: engineering,
procurement and construction management services on the Cory
mine expansion and Ficadilly project; Shenhua Ningxia Coat Group,
China: initial engineering design on a coal-to-chemical production
complex in northwest China.

| Neil Bruce
Chief Operating Officer, Natural Resources




% 2007 group EBITA"

i ¢1% Naturat
Resources

*Excluding the Investments and other actwties dvision.

£ miltion
Revenue
EBITA

EBITA margin
Net assets

Order book

Average number of employees** 9,715

Increasing proportion of

higher value

Services

Principal activities

% 2007 divisicnal revenues

M 57% citand
Gas Services

2 18% 0il Sands’

I 15% Minerals
[ and Metals

Mini

'0il Sands Engineening and Inf-astructure. _

2007 2006 Change
1,014.8 818.0* +24%
95.5 59.1* +62%
9.4% 7.2%"* +31%
288 nas -60%
£1.21bn  £1.03bn +17%
8317 +17%

* Excluding lump-sum fabrication, now ceased [2007: revenye and EBITA £nil, 2004: revenue £102.9 rn:llic'nn,

EBITA Enil),
** Full time equivalents, including agency staff.

Oiland Gas Services
AMEC offers a range of Capex and Opex services to Internationat Oil

Companies [10Cs), Mational Oil Companies [NOCs'] and independent
operaters in Europe, Americas and frontier regions around the world:

Services Facilities
Capex O Construction management 0 Ofishore fixed platforms
a Consultancy O Ofishore floating
O Design engineering production units
O Front end engineering a Onshore booster stations,
gathering centres,
0O Hook upand commissioning tank farms, gas-oil
O Installation separation plants
Opex DO Brownfield engineering 1 Offshore platforms

and project management
O Duty holder
O Facilities engineering

O Operations and
maintenance support

O Production operations

and infrastructure

O Onshere oil and gas fields

Leading market
p@gﬂ{t@ng in mature

markets, frontier regions and
unconventional oit
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Natural Resources continued

Demand far AMEC's services is linked to the level of spending on new
production facilities, together with operations, maintenance, extending the
life and increasing production from existing infrastructure. The business
does not operate in early cycle exploration, drilling or sub-sea sectors.

AMEC completed all lump-sum fabrication activity in this area of Natural
Resources during 2006, with oil and gas services contracts now being
cost reimbursable or cost plus and often performance-based. Contracts
in oil sands infrasiructure include fixed price elements. Being targely
services-based, capital employed reflects mainly current trading assets.

With centres of excellence in Aberdeen and London (UK], Calgary and
Vancouver [Canadal, Houston [US], and Kuala Lumpur [Malaysial, the
division is supported by a growing network of high-value engineering
centres around the world. Strategic investments in Kazakhstan and
Malaysia in 2008 have provided an increase in resources, together with
improved access to customers in these regions.

AMEC has global experience of delivering large and complex projects,
with capabilities in deep water and hostila conditions including Arctic
environments and earthquake-prone regions. It has developed a strong
position in frontier regions including the Caspian, South East Asia and
West Africa. In the Opex arena, AMEC is a leading international asset
support provider, servicing more than 200 facilities daity. It is the market
leader in UK North Sea brownfield services and is developing its
position as a provider of duty holder services to new entrant operators
in the region.

Markets

A major study carried out during the year by the National Patroleum
Councilin the US found that "pewering the world's growing population
and economy could require 50 per cent to 40 per cent more energy by
the year 2030. That means more use of fossil fuels, biomass, nuclear
power and alternative energy.”

Over half of the world's cil today comes from mature assets requiring
facilities upgrades, life extensions and exiended oil recovery applications
and technology {source: Oil & Maney Conference, October 2007]. New
discoveries are increasingly found in harsh environments such as the
Arctic, deep water areas and in reservoirs with high temperatures

and pressures.
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High oil prices in 2007 maintained strong levels of exploration drilling,
with, for the second year in succession, more than 100,000 wells drilled.
Several significant discoveries have been made, resulting inan
overallincrease in global oil and gas resérves (source: World OIL,
Septernber 2007).

Research by investment banks has found that the major oil and gas
exploration players plan toincrease spending by 11 per cent to an
estimated LIS$369 billion in 2008, driven by continued spending on
exploration and related services [source: Lehman Brothers].

With leading market positions in mature markets and {rontier regions,
AMEC expects to see continued strong organic growth in this business
in 2008 and beyond.

Strategy .

O Build on AMEC’s position as a leading supplier of asset development
and asset support services to targeted customers [I0Cs, NOCs and
independents] in selected geographies

O Focus on complex solutions and frontier regions
O Maintain balanced portfolio of services [margin, risk, volume]

O Build capabitity organically, through alliances and by acquisitions.



Oil Sands

AMEC is the market leader in project management, engineering
services and the provision of infrastructure to the upstream surface
mining oil sands sector. From helping to build the world's first oil sands
plant in 1967 to the world's largest plant in 1978, AMEC's operations
have matured along with the industry, with participation in 12 out of 15
recent (surface mining) oit sand developrments. In early 2008, AMEC

is working on various stages of seven major oil sands projects.

The large number and size of oil sands projects have placed huge
demands on technical resources acrgss North America, These
demands provide significant opportunities for 'distributed engineering'
inwhich multiple offices combine to meet the needs of the industry.
For example, the Kearl Qit Sands Project in Canada is being run from
AMEC's Calgary offices, with significant contributions fram Vancouver,
Toronto and Houston engineering resources and expertise.

Services in 2007 were provided on a reimbursable basis other than
for some activities within the Oil Sands Infrastructure business.

Markets

The Canadian oil sands represent the world's second largest reserves
of ail after Saudi Arabia. The oil sands deposits contain approximately
1.7 trillion barrels of biturnen in-place, of which 173 billion barrels are
proven reserves that can be removed using current technology
[source: Alberta Energy and Utilities Board - now the Atberta Energy
Resources Conservation Board). )

Development of the cil sands has been historically tied to oil prices. With
high current and projected oil prices, large scale, geographical proximity
to the majer US market, security af supply and more efficient extraction
methods, the region is undergoing rapid development.

The oil sands continue to be viewed as one of the hest ail opportunities in
the world, with fereign companies buying into the sector during 2007,
Exarnples include Marathon Oil Corp’s acquisition of Western Qil Sands,
and BP's entry into the sector through the acquisition of a half share in
Husky Energy’s Sunrise field.

Oil sands production
1980-2020
5500
5,000 -——— Dil sands production Actual | Forecast
4,500 ———— 2006 = 1.1million b/d
4,000 ~+—— 2015=3.0-3.4 mm bl'd
. 2500 —— 2020=3.8-4.4 mm b/d
z 3000
& 2500
3 om0
§ 5w
2 1.000
I s
S
1980 1985 950 1995 2000 2005 2010 2015 X0

Il Western Canadian conventional oit [l Oil sands (] Ottshore

Source: Canadian Associatien of Petreleum Producers
- Canadian Cil Sands Qutlock 12 Sep 2007

Two rmain extraction techniques are used in the oil sands: surface
mining, which currently accounts for same 65 per cent of productien,
and in-situ, which is expected toincrease its share of the market over
the next 10 years. Mineable bitumen extraction plants receive ore from
the mine and separate the bitumen from the sands, through water
separation, before it is transferred to the upgrader. The extraction plants
have five principal areas; crushing and conveying, hydrotransport,
extraction and tailings, froth treatment and supperting infrastructure
and utilities. In-situ methods, used tc extract deeper reserves, utilise
steam injected into reservoirs to mabilise the oil. Development of the
oil sands creates environmental challenges, and here, AMEC's Earth
and Environmental division is well equipped to provide customers

with solutions.

Strategy
O Maintain AMEC's leading position in the surface mining sector,
expand capability in froth treatment

O Acgquire further in-situ mining capability

O Strengthen construction management capabitities and expand
EPCM* service

0 Expand the customer base.

* Engineering, Procurement and Construction Management,
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Natural Resources continued

Minerals and Metals Mining

AMEC offers mining censultancy (including ore resource estimation
and feasibility studies], design and project management services to

customers producing commadities including gold, diamonds, base

metals, potash and uranium.

The business operates from strategic mining locations including
Saskatoon, Toronto and Vancouver (Canada) and Santiago [Chile].

It has a strong track record in the exacution of large and complex
projects and is a recognised leader in northern and Arctic ervironments
where projects have significant logistical challenges associated with
remate location and difficult access. AMEC occupies a top-tier position
in international consulting; a leading position in the North American
EPCM market and is develaping its position in South America.

AMEC has provided EPCM services at some of the most prestigious
mining projects in the world, including Andacollo Copper and BHP
Billiton's Escondida project in Chile; Snap Lake and Victor, De Beers'first
two diamond mines in Canada; PotashCorp's Cory and Picadilly potash
mills in Canada; Barrick's Donlin Creek property in Alaska, and the

New Afton copper project in Canada.

Markets

Increasing demand for raw materials from countries including China
and India have driven sharp increases in mineral commodity prices
in recent years as the diagram above right shows.

in design and project management
services in the oil sands surface
mining sector
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Strength of global dermand has driven exploration for new deposits,
new mine devetopment and redevelopment of older mines worldwide.
As exploration and production ramp up, environmentally responsible
remediation is becorning increasingly critical to the industry's
sustainability.

Strategy
O Maintain AMEC's top tier position in consulting [globalty) and
as EPCM contractor in North America

O Strengthen this leadership position by increasing market share
organically, through the addiion of consulting and EPCM personnel
and capabilities in North American offices

O Increase market share in South America by adding EPCM personnel
and capahilities

O Acquire a presence in the fast growing market in Austratasia.

Resource constraints

Natural Resources operates int a resource constrained environment
and all parts of the business suffer from some degree of overheating.
This is most pranounced in the Canadian oil sands, where double-digit
labour cost inflation was evident during 2007. AMEC's contracting model
for engineering services takes this into account.




wec IS leading

the only two diamond mines
currently under construction
in Canada, the Snap Lake and
Victor mines for De Beers

AMEC has a well developed strategy to recruit, develop and retain
engineers from a wide range of sources around the world, and as

a result was able to increase the average number of employees in
Natural Resources by 17 per cent in 2007. AMEC's strategic resourcing
programme includes the following initiatives:

0 AMEC Project Academy
QO Apprentice partnerships
O Graduate recruitment
O Industry initiatives

O Internal development
D Schools partnering

O Technician trainees

O University ligison.

in addition, AMEC has successfully developed, in locations such as Baku
[Azerbaijanl, a sustainable approach to business through working with
local stakeholders and supply chains which it is able to adopt in new
areas of operation around the world.

Financial performance 2007

Natural Resources performance in 2007 was strong in each of its principal
areas of activity but was strongest in North America (Oit and Gas Services,
Canadian Qil Sands Infrastructure and Minerals and Metals Mining].

Revenues in 2006 included £102.9 million in respect of lump-sum
fabrication activities in the Oil and Gas Services business fromwhich
AMEC has now withdrawn. Cornmentary betow excludes this activity
from the comparative data.

Revenue for the period was £1,014.8 million (2006: £818.0 million) with
the 24 per cent increase for the year being entirety organic. EBITA
increased by 42 per cent to £95.5 million (2006: £59.1 million). EBITA
margin of 9.4 per cent {2006: 7.2 per cent) comfortably exceeded the 2008
target range of seven to eight per cent originally set in Decernber 2006
and reflected strength in Natural Resources end markets tlogether with
improvernents in both Capex and Opex margins during the year.

The Natural Resources order book increased despite strong growth
in revenues during 2007, and at £1.21 billionwas 17 per cent up on the
position at the end of 2004.

During the year, new awards included a five year consultancy and
engineering services contract with the Kuwait National Petroleum
Company covering upgrades, refurbishment and medifications on
Kuwait's three existing refineries; front-end engineering design and
management of the winter drilling programme for Imperial il at their
Kearl Oil sands project in Canada and centracts from PotashCorp for
engineering, procurement and construction management services an
the Cory ming expansion and Picadilly project in Canada.

In January 2008, AMEC announced major contracts, awarded in
Dacember 2007, in the UK North Sea and Nigeria. in the North Sea,
AMEC was awarded a contract by Fairfield Energy to be the duty holder
on the Dunlin cluster of oilfield production facilities. The contract will
run for the life of the field, which is estimated to be between 10 and
15years. In Nigeria, Mobil Nigeria awarded AMEC a contract for
project/construction management services on the "Major Integrity
Prajects programme.

Outlook 2008

Natural Resources end markets remain buoyant and the board expects
the division to make strong progress in 2008,

_ InOiland Gas Services, activity levels are expected to rernain high in

allregions. Inthe UK North Sea, existing brownfield and operations
and maintenance services will be augmentad by increasing levels of
higher margin duty holder activity, which represents a growth
opportunity for AMEC.

The Canadian oil sands market fer engineering and infrastructure
services is expected to remain particularly strong, being driven by
continued high levels of investrment. During 2008, AMEC expects to
expand its activities in the in-situ sector through acquisition.

The Minerals and Metals Mining business is expected to remain strong,
with ramping up of contracts in South America and continued high
levels of activity in Canada.

Given the strength of bath margin perforrmance in 2007 and the outlook
for 2008, the margin target range for Natural Resources in 2008 was
increased to 9-10 per cent in Decernber 2007. The division is targeting
an EBITAmargin of 10-11 per centin 2010.
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Left ta nght: Kelly Horvath, Ervironmental
Engineer, AMEC; Neil Van Krotsenburg,
Vice President, Projects, BIOX Corporation




AMEC has provided BIOX Corporation with permitting, site assessment and
cormpliance services to support the construction and operation of the first
commercial biodiesel production facility in Canada. BIOX will cantinue to rely
on AMEC's due diligence expertise as it builds and operates additional biodiesel
facilities throughout the world.

-

“AMEC has gone above and beyond expectations by providing
BIOX with the tools and information required to become a
strong contender in the biodiesel market. These are values
we at BIOX treasure and look forward to in working with
AMEC on future projects.”

Neil Van Knotsenburg, Vice President, Projecis, BIOX Corporation
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Power and Process

Description of business

Principal activities: This division is focused on the power and process
markets, principally in the UK and the Americas, and the nuclear market
globally, The business designs, delivers, enhances and maintains
infrastructure for a broad range of custorners in the public and private
sectors. 20-30 per cent of Power and Process revenues in 2007 were
generated by fixed price contracting wark. Lump-surn Engineer Procure
Construct [EPC’) contracts are only entered into in selected markets
where the balance of risk and reward is acceptable.

Principat locations: Atlanta [US]; Darlington, Knutsford (UK]; Santiago
(Chilel; Toronto, Vancouver {Canadal.

Customersinclude: AWE, BIOX Corporation, British Energy, Bruce
Power, Cargill, CMPC, EDF, Enbridge, Kimberly-Clark, Koch [Georgia
Pacific), National Grid, Ontario Power Generation, RWE, SABIC, Scottish
Power, Southern Company, TXI, and Wales and West Utilities.

Significant contracts in 2007 included: Long-term contracts with
National Grid for replacement of UK gas and electricity infrastructure
and with Bruce Power, Canada, for nuclear reactor restarts; installation
of clean-air systems on coal-fired power plants for both Southern
Company and Nevada Power in the US and Scottish Powerand RWE in
the UK; engineering and project management services on three nuclear
power plants in the UK for British Energy; and a long-term framework
contract for turnaround management for SABIC in the UK.

Didier Pfleger
Chief Operating Officer, Power and Process




Focus

on margin
improverment
- hot revenues
% 2007 group EBITA* . Principalactivities
' % 2007 divisional revenues
M 25% Power W 50% Process
and Process
{1 25% Power
W 25% Nuclear
*Excluding the Investments and other actmties division,
£ mitlion " 2007 2006 Change
Revenue 1,0090 7947 ¥27%
EBITA 38.9 228 7%
EBITA margin* 4.3% 2.9% +48%
Net liabilities (5700 '(55.4) -3%
Order book €1.36bn  E140bn -3%
Average number of employegs** 6,753 5,764 +17%

* Extludes one-off costs of STEP Change of £4.6 million (2008 €nil).
** Full time equivalents, including agency staff

Leading market
positions

on both sides of the Atlantic

Power

This sector comprises the generation of electricity from all sources
other than nuclear, tegether with electricity transmissicn and
distribution.Here, AMEC provides consulting and feasibility studies
through to detailed engineering, project management, canstruction,
EPC contracting and commissioning services.

These services are performed in the following segments:

O Fossil fuet power generation, including clear-up of emissions

" O Renewables power generation, including wind and hydro

O High voltage power transmission services, mcludmg refurblshment
of aging infrastructure

O Lowvaltage power distribution services, including sub-staticn
design, installation and inter-connections.

The majority of services are performed for regulated utilities and
industrial companies, primarily in the UK and Americas. Custormers
value AMEC's familiarity with their assets and the ability to provide
innavative solutions.

The UK business is based in Darlington and has locations across the UK.
In the Americas, AMEC operates from over a dozen offices across North
and Scuth America. Arange of projects are entered into, from low risk
reimbursable through to higher risk lump-sum. The business is focused
on pursuing growth through lower risk projects, with fixed price work
being undertaken on a selective basis, where the overall balance of risk
and return is attractive.
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Power and Process continued

Markets

Higher spending over the period 2007-2012 is anticipated in fossil and
renewable power generation and electricity transmission. As indicated
in the chart below, annual growth rates range from 10 per cent in power
generation and air quality control systems [AQCS] and 12 per cent in
power transmission, to five per cent in the power distribution market.

Power: accessible market

CAGR*
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3,000

r10%
2,000

1,000

£ million
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[ pistribution

0
2007 2008
M Generation and AQCS lair quality control systems)

2009 2010

B Transmission

*Compeund annual growth rate

Source: AMEC
This investment in power infrastructure reflects:

3 Overall demand growth for electricity and shifts between
generation fuel types

O Aged assets/safety concerns

O Adrive to meet national and international emissions controls
and pollution control legislation

O Increasing grid interconnection and the requirement to connect
new renewable generation assets.

2 AMEC plc annual report 2007

In 2008, the total accessible market in AMEC's chosen power sectors
is estimated to be £4.4 billion, principally in the UK and the Americas
[source: AMEC estimates]. AMEC has leading market positicns in
certain segmants such as the high voltage transmission line and AQCS
market in the UK, the Canadianwind engineering and construction
market, and AQCS regionally in the Americas.

Strategy
Power and Process strategy in the power sector over the next twoyears
will focus on the following actions:

O Substantially expand activities in the renewables segmeant of power
generation |particularly wind farms), and other higher growth
markets such as AQCS and transmission

O Expand service offerings with exisling power customers and
partners through dedicated key account management

O ieverage environmental and feasibility studies into the execution
phases of projects.

Process

Process covers a broad range of industries, but principally gas
processing and transmission, pulp ang paper, petrochemicals, cement
and biofuels. «

Tha business has major locations in Atlanta and Minneapalis [US],
Darlington (UK), St John's, Toronto and Vancouver [Canadal, Santiago
[Chile) and operates from over a dozen offices across North and South
America and locations across the UK. Mast contracts are based either
on framework, cost plus or target price. Lump-sum EPC contracts
are only entered into for selected customers as part of a broader
portfolio of services.

Gas

The gas sector includes AMEC's activities in high pressure gas import
terminals, storage and transmission, and low pressure gas distribution.
AMEC is the UK market leader in high pressure gas transmission

and storage services, and occupies a top three position in low prassure
ges distribution.




in
UK high pressure
gas transmission
and storage

AMEC’s centre of excellence for gas is in Darlington, UK, with project
offices throughout the country. Services include front-end as well
detailed engineering, project and programme managernent and
construction management.

The outlook for the gas sectoris strong, driven primarily by the issues
of security of supply and the drive to increase UK storage capacity in line
with EU counterparts.

The prime growth strategy is to expand the gas storage business in the
EUwith selected custorners.

Pulp and paper

The pulp and paper sector covers various grades of printing and writing
paper, tissue, boxboard, container board, and other specialty preducts.
AMEC is a market leader in the Americas for consulting and design
services, and has a strong position in the canstruction and EPC segment
in the US as well as in South America.

Distributed engineering centres include Vancouver (Canadal, Greenville
(US), Santiago [Chile] white Atlanta [US] is the company's centre of
excellence for construction and projects. Services include economic
feasibility studies, detailed engineering, project managernent and full
project compietion services.

The market outlook for South America is strong, influenced by the
pricing cycle of the commodity pulp business and mill expansions.
North America remains a mature market, however tissue and new
paper plani conversicns continue to support levels of spending.

AMEC's strategy is to expand in the high growth regions, using the
Santiago office as a springboard far expansion in Peru and Brazil.

Other processes
AMEC is active in a variety of sectors and services including:

O refinery shutdown and maintenance

O cement, biofuels and pharmaceutical plant design, project
management and construction.

In downstream process AMEC has ateading position in the UK for
turnaround projects, managing complicated shutdowns of
petrochemical and refinery plants. The company's capability to manage
the full scope of such prajects is recognised by major ol and gas
companies such as SABIC, BP and Shell. The strategyin this sectar

is to continue expanding internationally, particularly in Europe.

The cernent sector for AMEC includes both large brownfield {expansion)
as well as greenfield projects, primarily in North America. Detailed
engineering and project management/construction management
services are provided to this sector, and, with partners, AMEC can
provide up to full EPC services. AMEC is a leader in cement plant design
and construction, where our customers’ levels of capital expenditure
are expected to remain high,

The strategy for this part of the business is to retain market position
while being selective in new contracts taken on.

Capital spending in AMEC's targeted segments is expected to show
steady growth over the next five years, as shown in the diagram below:

Process: accessible market

0
2007 2008 2009 2010 2014 032
m Pulp and paper

[ other process B Gastransmission [ Gas distribution

*Compound annual growth rate

Source: AMEC
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Power and Process continued

Nuclear

AMEC is a leading private sector supplier of project managernent,
consultancy and engineering services to the nuclear industry in the
UK and Canada. and also provides services in the Americas, Central
and Eastern Europe and South Africa. Principal activities in 2007
were focused on:

O Reactor support

- Improving operational efficiency to increase output

- Safely extending the operational life of reactors

O Cleanup
- Decommissioning and remediation of nuclear liabilities
- Ervironmental restoration

- Solutions to legacy waste disposal

0O Newbuild
- Bruce 1&2 Reactor restarts in Canada

- General design assessment and technical support to EDF
togetherwith AREVA for the next generation of UK nuclear
power plants.

The Nuclear business has principatl locations at Knutsford and West
Cumbria, (UK] and Toronto, (Canadal. as well as regionat offices in
Eastern Europe and South Africa. Major customers include: British
Energy, EDF, Seltafield, AWE (all UK), Bruce Power [Canadal, Eskomn
(South Africal and Ontario Power Generation [Canadal,

In Canada and UK, AMEC has a leading positien in the consultancy
business, as well as providing project management, specialist
engineering, technical and safety support services.

AMEC continues to develop its strong technical, programme and asset
management capability. The focus of the business is to continuously
strengthen existing client relationships and build new ones across the
nuclear life cycle, from new power generation and reactor restart,
through operational reactor support, i clean up.

34 AMEC pkc annual repart 2007

Markets
Nuclear: accessible market

2500 CAGR*

£ mdlion
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M Reactor support I New build O cleanup

*Compound annual growth rate

Source: AMEC

Whilst the graph indicates the accessible market over the next five
years, even higher market growth rates are likely in the period 2012 to
2020. The longevity of the nuclear market is a key attribute and AMEC is
targeting to be a major player. For example, the lang-term UK market
for decommissioning is valued at over £73 billion (source: National Avdit
Qfiice Report, January 2008].

AMEC has forred two strategic partnerships to target opportunities for
long-term Parent Bady Organisation [ PBQ’] contracts being competed
by UK Nuclear Decommissioning Authority [NDA). In January 2008,
AMEC formed an alliance with the UKAEA and CHZM HILL, to help
imprave performance at the UKAEA's decommissioning sites and
prepare for the upcoming NDA PBO competitions. This alliance has
made a significant contribution to the improved performance at the
NDA's Dounreay, Harwell and Winfrith sites,

In March 2007, AMEC announced that a joint venture comprising
AMEC, Washington Group and AREVA is bidding to become the NDA
PBO for the Sellafietd Site Licence Company in Cumbria, UK. AMEC
is also supporting major decornmissioning work in Central and
Eastern Europe.




The UK Government has announced its intention to replace the current
UK fleet of nuclear power stations with a new build programme. Over
the next 15 years, AMEC will be actively supporting EDF in the UK to
build a number of nuclear power plants, the first of which is expected
to be commissioned by 2017,

Strategy
Life cycle asset management:

0 New build

- Establish AMEC as the utilities' independent nuclear technology
partner to assure the licensing, delivery and safe operation
of the reactor and associated systems

[ Reactor support

- Strengthen AMEC's leading position as the independent nuclear
expert for the existing reactors in current geographic markets

O Cleanup

- Establish AMEC as a major (Tier 1] UK nuctear clean up
contractor and long-term partner to the NDA. Pursue
international growth priorities.

Financial performance 2007

Performance in the Power and Process division was strong, reflecting
strength of end markets and the ramp-up of rmajor contracts in the
UK. As a result of the continued strength in trading during 2007 and
increased selectivity in new work taken on, the division has increased
its minimum gross margin an all new contracts ta nine per cent, from
eight per cent.

Revenue for the period was £1,009.1 million {2006: £794.7 million), with
the 27 per cent increase for the year being almost entirely organic. The
UK and Americas Power and Process businesses reported strong
growth in 2007. During the year, activity increased on long-term
contracts to improve gas and electricity infrastructure in the UK, whilst
in North America, activity levels in the power generation, cement and
alternative fuels rmarkets were particularly high.

In Nuclear, activity levels remained high on the major project to restart
two reactors for Bruce Power in Canada, whilst in the UK, a five year
contract was awarded by British Energy for engineering and project
managerment services on three of its fleet of nuclear power planis.

EBITAIin 2007 increased by 71 per cent to £38.9 million (2006:

£22.8 millionl, principally reflecting strength of end markets and greater
management focus an higher margin contracts. EBITA margin, before
one-off costs of STEP Change, showed strong improvement, being up
by 48 per cent at 4.3 per cent (2006: 2.9 per cent). '

The Power and Process order book declined by three per cent to
£1.36 billion as at 31 December 2007 (2004: £1.40 billion], reflecting
increased selectivity in this division during the course of 2007,

Outlook 2008

The focus for this division in 2008 rermains margin improvement,
Although the business is operating in a strong market erwironment,
itis being more selective in newwark taken on and revenue growth is
not a priority for 2008. The STEP Change and Operational Excellence
programmes are expected toimprove performance during 2008

and beyond.

In 2007, the UK businesses achieved an EBITA margin within the five to
six per cent range targeted for the Power and Pracess division in 2008.
The Americas business is expected to achieve the margin target in 2008.

The quality of the order book was improved during 2007, with a higher
gross margin threshald on all new contracts, as described above, This,
coupled with higher profit-take on contracts as they pass key milestones,
is expected to lead to improved margin performance in 2008.

The board is confident that performance will be comfortably within
the revised [as at December 2007] 2008 margin target range of five
to six per cent. The Power and Process division is targeting an EBITA
margin of six to seven per cent in 2010.
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"AMEC’s knowledge and expertise in geotechnical and dam engineering have been
extremely valuable to the design team and project stakeholders. Their persennel have
been very responsive and a pleasure to work with throughout the project.”

Jim Windsor, P.E. - Resident Engineer, Arizona Department of Transportation

— e — ——

Left te nght. JimWindsor, Professicnal Engineer [FE.,
Resident Engineer, Arizona Department of Transpertation;
Brett Howey, P.E., Uit Manager - Geotechnical Services,
AMEC: Gary Meliia, PE.. Senior Project Manager,

Stanley Consultanis: Damel Fréchette, Ph.0., PE.,

Senior Geotechnical Engineer, AMEC



AMEC has provided geotechnical investigation and design services for the
ehabilitation of the existing Spook Hill Flaed Retarding Structure and construction
Bithe Red Mountain Freeway Levee Dam, Maricopa County, Arizona, US.




Earth and Environmental

Description of business

Principal activities: Earth and Environmental provides specialist
enviranmental. geotechnical, programme management and
consultancy services io a broad range of clients in the public and private
sectors. This business operates from a regional network and is
characterised by a large number of small value contracts.

Locations: Over 100 locations, mainly across North America but
including Afghanistan, Chile, Germany, Iraq, ltaly, Peru, Romania,
Russia, and the UK.

Customersinclude: Albian Sands Energy, Arizona Department of
Transportation, Aventis Crop Science, Canadian Department of National
Defence, CSXT, De Beers, ExxanMobil, FEMA, GE, National Grid,
Suncor, Syncrude, Terrane Metals Corp., US Air Force, US Army,

US National Guard.

Significant contracts in 2007 included: Flood Control District of
Maricopa County, US: two-year dam safety geotechnical services
contract; Imperial Oil: geotechnicat engineering work on the Kearl Oil
Sands project, Canada; National Grid, Grain LNG Terminal, UK:
geotechnical investigations and environmental impacts assessment;
US Air Force Center for Environmental Exceltence: multiple projects

at bases in countries including Irag, Afghanistan, Guam and the UK;

LS Fish and Wildlife Service: environmental impact staternent covering
17 states inthe US.

Strong growth

in EBITA and margin

Roger Jinks
President, Earth and Envirenmental
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% 2007 group EBITA? Principal activities Services
’ Earth and Erwironmental operates a ‘seller-doer’ business madel
% 2007 divisional Wi ) iali 1 in fields includi . .
B 1% Earth and revenues Environmental employmg specialist consultants in fields including engineening,
Environmental Tla% biology, toxicolagy. sociology, chemistry, meteorology and planning.
Geotechnical . . .
1% Materials The following are examples of services provided by Earth and
] e water Environmental, principally in North America:
O gp;?gm: 0 Clean up planning O Oceanographyand
i Management and exacution metecrology
LT ————— T e -
O Ecological studies 0 Programme management
€ million 2007 2006 Change
D Engineering design &3 Socio-ecanemic studies
Revenue 288.4 304.4 -5%
EBITA 21.2 17.7 +20% O Environmental and O Waste managernent
. geatechnical site )
EBITA margin 7.6% 2.8% +28% characterisation 0O Water and air quality
Net assets 33.2 19.0 - +75%
O Environmentalimpact 0 Water management,
Average number of employees* 3,576 7 3ne +15% studies and permitting development and protection.

*Full time equivalents, including agency staff.
O Materiats and
environmental testing

rragmented market

provides continued opportunities for acquisitions
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Earth and Environmental continued

Earth and Envirenmental works for customers cornmon to the Natural — Market drivers for this division include growth in environmental
Resources and Power and Process divisions, providing services from legislation; increasing corporate social responsbility; increasing use
environmental impact assessments at the earliest stages of the of brownfield sites and exploration of increasingly environmentally
project life cycle right through to advising on clean up following sensitive regions by natural resources companies.

decornmissioning.
Earth and Erwironmental has rmany small contracts with some fixed

i i i t of in fed ivities.
Markets price commitrents in respect of certain federal activities

Earth and Enwvironrnental operates in a large and highly fragmented

market. In 2007, the North American environmental consulting and Strategy _ »

engineering market segment was valued in excess of US$50 billion 0O Continued growth in selected sectors both organically, and by way
(source: AMEC). Whilst AMEC's overall market share is small, due to the of acquisitions which will enhance capabilities and facilitate selective
nature of the market, the business has strong positions in certain end regional expansion

market sectors, notably natural resources, water, and defence. AMEC
provides services including environmental consulting and construction
ta the US Federal Government, which is the largest procurer of
environmental services in the world. Other major market segments
include waste, air/noise, remediation, and industrial services.

1) Continued development of the Federal business, balancing the
broader requiremenits of defence custarmers to complement
AMEC’s environmental and engingering activities.

The European market for environmental services is smaller thanin
North America, and is also fragmented. The market is faster growing
than the more mature market in North America, being driven by
increasing regulatory pressures.

AMEC regutarly helps clients to

protect _
threatened species

such as the red-legged frog, Delhi Sands fly and
the desert tortoise
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Financial performance 2007

Undertying revenues before currency fluctuations were up around four
per cent during the year. Increased revenues in both Canada and the US
were offset by reduced US Federal activities outside North America and
weakness of the US dollar.

During the year, significant contracts included the preparation of a
major environmental impact statement covering 17 states for the

US Fish and Wildlife Service, a two year dam safety geotechnical
services contract from the Flood Control District of Maricopa County
{US] and environmental services for clients in the Canadian cil sands
including Imperial Oit.

EBITA increased by 20 per cent to £21.2 million [2006: £17.7 million),
with growth principally reflecting strong end markets in Canada.
EBITA margin increased to 7.4 per cent (2006: 5.8 per cent].

AMECisa

leading pmvﬁder

in the US of flood-hazard identification and
mapping, multi-hazard mitigation, and post
disaster recovery services to state and local
governments and FEMA

Outlook 2008
Earth and Environmental end markets are expected to remain strong,
with the division expected to make further progress in 2008.

Given the strength of margin performance in 2007, the margin target
range for Earth and Environmental in 2008 was increased to eight to
nine per cent in Decerber 2007, up from the six to eight per cent range
setin Decermnber 2006. The division is targeting an EBITA margin of
nine to ten per cent in 2010.
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AMEC is devetoping four wind farms totalling some 350 MW of electricity generating
capacity on the Forest Enterprise Scotland [ FES] estate. AMEC works closely with FES
to design and create the most appropriate wind farm at each tocation. The work is diverse
and dermanding; it requires AMEC to have a clear understanding of 3l the relevant

-

engineering, environmental and forestry issues. N :

) ;T h
g b P
e, T el | Sl

“AMEC has been working with Forestry Commission Scotland on
renewable energy proposals since 2000. We have enjoyed working
closely with AMEC’s people on exciting and challenging sites such as
Aultmore in Moray. We've often worked quite visibly as AMEC’s
partners, which\has helped to buitd credibility with local communities.”

1—|__q_gb\lnsley, Chief Executive, Forest Enterprise Scotland !

*

Leftio nght: Dr. Robert East, Development
A . Director, AMEC; Hugh Insley, Chief Executive,
Forest Enterprise Scotland
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Investments and other activities

£ million 2007 2006 change
Revenue b4.4 125.7 -49%
EBITA 1.0 8.5 nrm

nm Not meaningful.

Description of business

This division includes past activities in Rail [now sold], Hong Kong (now
substantially reduced), US Construction Management (all projects now
comgleted] and a plant hire business [solg in February 2008), together
with two ongeing PPP activities in Korea and the UK. It 8lso now
includes the Wind Developments business [formerly reported in the
Pawer and Process division).

Wind Developments

AMEC has a full service wind development company in the UK that
undertakes wark for customers as well as supporting AMEC's own
development project pertfolio consisting of onshere developments of
over 1,000MW. Here, capabilities include identifying sites, undertaking
anvircnmental studies and developing planning applications, site
engineering and desigr, wind resource assessment, economic
modelling, stakeholder management, pracurement, construction
management, aperation and maintenance services and
decomrnissicning.

AMEC remains committed towind as a source of renewable energy

and continues to invest in the Wind Cevelopments business. The relative
shortage of new capacity in the market, coupled with UK Government
targets for renewatle energy and investors keen to participate in the
sector gives confidence that, overall, the prognosis for value and
marketability of successful wind projects rernains good.

in early 2008, AMEC received planning consent for the 23MW
development at Edinbane, Scotland. AMEC anticipates building out
the development at a cost of c.£40 million.

f14 AMEC plc annual report 2007

Financial performance 2007

Revenues in this division declined by 49 per cent to £44.4 million
{2006: £125.7 million) reflecting the lower level of activities following
business disposals. 2007 revenues primarily reflected the last
remaining construction management project in the US, successfully
completed in the latter part of the year.

The loss of £11.0 miltion in 2007 stems largely from the costs of
developing the group's Wind Devetopments portfolio, where a loss
of £6.7 million was reperted (2004: £4.3 million) and the result of a
realignment of profit-take policies for the retained PPP portfolio.

Outlook 2008

The Wind Developments business is expected to make progress in
2008, but will continue to incur costs of progressing development
opportunities. The UK PPP project is fully operational and the business
will be working to optimise the value of this investment during 2008,
AMEC is a sharehelder and project manager of the Incheon Bridge
preject in Korea, which is scheduled to open in late 2009.

The averall outcome for the division in 2008 is expected to be a small
loss, assuming that the Edinbane wind development is built-cut.




Financial review

Divestments

The divestment of the Built Environrent businesses was completed

during the year.

Five peripheral non-core businesses were also divested during 2007,
being AMEC SPIE Ratl, Dynamic Structures, AMEC SPIE Capag, Buchan

Cencrete Selutions and Midwest Pipelines.

Additionally, in February 2008, the AMEC UK Logistics and Support
Services business was sold to Speedy Hire Plc for £12.5 million.

In total, the divestments of the Built Envirenment and peripheral

businesses generated overall cash proceeds in 2007 of £279.2 million

before tax and a post-tax gain of £243.3 million,

Acquisitions
AMEC made several acquisitions during the period, including
Cade-ldepe, based in Santiago, one of the largest independent

Chilean engineering services companies, from its owner-managers

for £12 million.

The Earth and Environmental division acquired four small
environmental consultancy businesses during 2007.

For further details on changes arising from corporate activity please

Changes arising from corporate activity
|

|

‘ refer to the directors’ report on pages 66 and 47,
I

Basis of preparation of the accounts

The 2007 annual report and accounts have been prepared in accordance
wilh International Financial Reporting Standards [IFRS') as adopted for
use in the EU (‘adopted IFRSs ) as at 31 December 2007,

The directors have identified the pelicies for accounting for construction
contracts, retirement benefits and provisions for litigation matters and
liabilities related to the sale of businesses, as the most critical because
they involve high levels of judgement and estimatian.

Construction and services contracts

Asignificant amount of the group’'s activities is undertaken via long-term
contracts. These contracts are accounted for in accordance with IAS 11
‘Construction contracts and IAS 18 ‘Revenue’ which require estimates
to be made for contract costs and revenues.

Management base their judgements of contract costs and revenues
onthe latest available information, which includes detailed contract
valuations. In many cases the results reflect the expected outcome
of long-term contractual obligations which span more than one
reparting period.

Contract costs and revenues are affected by a variety of uncertainiies
that depend on the outcome of future events and often need to be
revised as events unfold and uncertainties are resolved. The estimates
are updated regularly and significant changes are highlighted through
established internal review procedures. In particular, the internal
reviews focus on the age and recoverability of any unagreed income
from variations to the contract scope or ¢laims. The impact of the
changes in these accounting estimates is then reflected in the

ongoing results.
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Financial review continued

Retirement benefits Target 2007 2006
Defined benefit pension schernes are accounted for in accordance with — Safety [continuing operations)
the advice of independent qualified actuaries but significant judgements ~ Number of fatalities at work 2008:0 1 0
are required in retation to the assumptions for future salary and pension ~ Lost time incident frequency rate
increases, inflation, investrent returns and member longevity that [per 200,000 exposure hours| 2008:0.16 018 032
underpin their valuations. For AMEC, these assumnptions are important I}Eéla’l??&%%aeb;g gsajfef[\%%lig]ncy rate 2008: 104 - 108
given the relative size of the scheme that remains open. )
Operationat
During 2007 IFRIC 14 on defined benefit pension schemne assetswas ~ Orderintakeasa
. .. . ) percentage of revenue 100%
issued. This lnterpret?ltion is effecu_ve from _1 J.anuary 2008, but h:as yet Natural Resources . 18% 105%
to be adopted for use in the EU. In view of this it has not been applied by Power and Process 6% 151%
the group in the conselidated accounts. On adoption this is not expected  Kgiicted margin - group 2008: 6%; 2010:8%
to have an impact on the group's consolidated accounts as, following Natural Resources 2008: 9-10% 9.4% 72%
areview of the basis of recoverability, the surplus has been recognised Power and Process* 2008: 5-6% 4.3% 29%
net of deferred tax on the balance sheet in 2007, Earth and Environmental . 2008:8-9% T.4% 58%
Balance sheet
Provisions for litigation matters and liabilities related to the sale Profit to cash conversion** 100% 123% nm
of businesses Days sales in stock/wip and receivables®*** 2008 - 72 82
. . o . average  Average
When accounting for provisions for litigation and other items the group .70 .80
has taken internal and external advice in considering known legal claims Average net debt: EBITDA™ 2 Netcash n

and actions made by or agatnst the group. It carefully assesses the
likelihood of success of a claim or action, Appropriate provisions are
made for legal claims or actions against the group on the basis of likely
outcome, but no provisions are made for those which in the view of

management are unlikely to succeed.

Key performance indicators

The board and executive rmanagerment monitor a range of financial and

nm Not meaningful.

Results

Revenue for the year increased by 11 per cent to £2,356.2 million (2006:
£2,121.6 million], reflecting strong growth in both the Natural Resources
and Power and Process divisions.

Underlying growth in revenues, excluding Oil and Gas lump-sum

non-financial performance indicators, reported periodically, to measure  contracting [now ceased], and the fnvestmenis and other activities

the group’s performance over time. Of these, the key performance
indicators { KPIs] are showa in the table above, right.

O Safety KPls show how successful AMEC has been in protecting its

employees from harm

O Operational KPls indicate the volume of wark for which orders have
been received and the profitability of activity undertaken

division [where various businesses were sold or closed during 2007,
was 21 per cent in 2007, being almost entirely organic.

Adjusted pre-tax profit of £126.5 million was up £46.8 miltion (2006:
£79.7 million), with all core divisions perforring strongly.

O Balance sheet indicators focus on the financial efficiency and balance

sheet strength of the business.
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* 2007 excludes one-off costs of STEP Change of £4.6 milien.

** Cash flow from operations for the continuing businesses as a percentage of profit before
net financing incame [befare gain on disposals for continuing businesses).

*** Including discontinued operations in 2006.




There was pre-tax exceptional income of £28.2 million (2006: charge

£102.8 million), intangible amoartisation of £2.5 million (2006: £3.6 million)

and joint venture tax of £0.6 million [2006: £0.3 millien}, resultingina
pre-tax profit of £151.4 million [2004; loss £27.0 million).

Profit for the year (including profit on disposal of discontinued
businesses] was £344 4 million [2006: £219,2 million).

Diluted earnings per share fram continuing operations, before intangible

amortisation and exceptional items were 11.4 pence higher than in
2006 at 28.0 pence (2006: 16.6 pence). Basic earnings per share from
continuing aperations, before intangible amortisation and exceptional
iterns, were 28.7 pence [2006: 171 pencel.

The board is recommending a final dividend of 8.8 pence per share
(2006: 8.0 pencel which, together with the interirm dividend of 4.6 pence
per share (2006: 4.2 pence), results in a total dividend of 13.4 pence per
share (2006: 12.2 pence), an increase of 10 per cent, This represents a
dividend cover* of 2.1 times and is in line with the board's stated policy
of rebuilding sustainable dividend cover to a level of over two times.

Geograpical analysis

Some 40 per cent of 2007 revenues were generated outside the UK, with
the groug's largest overseas market being Canada, driven by Minerals
and Metals Mining and Oil Sands. '

The board's expectations for 2008 reflect current Sterling rates of
exchange with principal currencies, being Canadian dollars and
USdollars.

Administrative expenses

Administrative expenses increased by £32.0 million to £203.7 miltion
[2006: £171.7 million). During 2007, there was an increased charge for
share-based payments, together with a reduction in sales generated by
activities which have now ceased and where averheads were minimalin
both 2006 and 2007 [US Canstruction Managernent and Oil and Gas
lump-sum fabrication]. After taking these factors into account,
administrative costs declined to 89 per cent of revenue in 2007 from

9.4 per cent in 2006.

Corporate costs, which represent the costs of operating the head
office of AMEC and certain regional overheads, were £36.5 million
[2006: £21.4 million}. Costs for 2007 included increased year onyear
share-based payment charges [£6 million), and one-off costs of

STEP Change [£5 million). Corporate costs for 2008, including share-
based payments, are expected to be c.£30 million. This includes some
costs previously reflected within the operating divisions.

Net financing income/costs

The group’s net cash balances have increased throughout 2007 upon
the divestment of non-core and specialist businesses, with the weekly
average level of net cash being £435 million (1 August - 31 December
2004: £190 million). Consequently, the net financing income for the year
increased by £25.4 milkion to £18.4 million [2006: charge £7.0 millien).

Net financing incorne in 2008 will benefit from the expected increase
in average net cash for the year.

Taxation

Continuing cperations

The group’s effective tax rate in 2007 for the continuing businesses
before exceptional items (including tax attributable to joint venture
interests| was 25.4 per cent 2006: 30.0 per cent). After excluding
intangible amartisation, the underlying tax rate was 25.4 per cent
[2006: 28.6 per cent). The reduction in overall tax rate is due to the use
of overseas tax losses and the recognition of a deferred tax asset in
respect of overseas tax losses and short-term timing differences on
provisions which are now expected to generate a current tax benefit
in future periods.

The underlying tax rate in 2008 is expected to be ¢. 34 per cent.
This would reduce to ¢. 31 per cent if the group is able to make use
of tax attributes brought forward which have not been reftected
within the deferred tax asset.

* Based on adjusted diluted earnings per share befora intangible amertisation and

exceptional items.
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Atotal net tax credit of £0.8 million [2006: credit £7.3 million) is
attributable to total exceptional income of £28.2 miltion [200é: charges
£102.8 million] in respect of continuing activities. There are twe parts

to this net credit. The first is the net £1.0 million tax credit on exceptional
profits from litigation and separation costs of £4.5 million. This arises
on the recognition of a deferred tax asset in respect of short-term timing
differences on US provisions, which are expected to generate a current
tax benefit in future periods. The second is a £0.2 million tax charge on
exceptional profits of £23.7 million on exiting businesses and markets.
This is kow due to the benefit of capital losses and tax exernptions on

the sale of trading companies.

Discontinued operations

Atax charge of £67.8 million (2006: credit £20.1 million] is attributable to
profits of £290.7 millign [2006: £241.3 million] from discontinued operations.
Included within this tax charge is a credit for the release of consortium
relief payable and a charge for the write-of{ of deferred tax balances both
of which are no longer required. The overall tax charge also reflects the
benefit of capital losses and tax exernptions on sale of trading companies.

Beferred tax

At 31 December 2007, the group had deferred tax assets of £58.9 miltion
(2006: £14.4 million) primarily arising from employee share schemes,
overseas tax losses and short-term timing differences. At year end

the continuing businesses had c. £43.0 million of carried forward tax
losses in respect of which a deferred tax asset of £1.5 million had

been recognised.

The group also had a deferred tax liability of £86.7 millin which in 2007
had been retted against the pension scheme surplus towhich it relates.

The 2006 comparatives include deferred tax assets and liabilities
relating to the discontinued Built Environment operations which were
released/written oif in 2007.

Intangible amortisation

[ntangible amortisation relates to capitalised software and intangible
assets acquired as part of the acquisitions of NNC and Paragon in 2005,
The 2007 charge of £2.5 million is £1.1 million lower than in 2004 with the
reduction being due to the timing of the write off of certain assets related
to the acquisition of Paragon.
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In line with 1AS 36 'Impairment of assets’ annual impairment reviews have
been performed on the goodwill carried an the balance sheet. The results
of these reviews confirmed that no impairment charge is necessary.

Exceptionalitems

Divestments

Divestment of the four non-core Built Environment businesses was
successiully completed during the fourth quarter of 2007. This,
combined with the profit on disposal of peripheral businesses in the first
half of the year, resulted in an aggregate post-tax exceptional gain of
£243.3 million, slightly above the board's expectations.

Legacy issues

in Decernber 2006. AMEC announced that following a review of prajects
where it was involved in litigation and/or where material final account
settlernents were outstanding, the board had decided to change its
strategy and seek to settle the disputes where reasonable to do so.

During 2007, AMEC has made good progress in seitling disputes,
where reasonable to do so. In its 2006 accounts, AMEC noted six major
contingent liabilities. The following significant progress has been made:

1 Settlement reached on the Jordan Magnesia Company Lid. {Jordan),
and Thelwall Viaduct [UK] disputes during the first half of 2007,
Settlernent was within the provisions previously made

O Settlernent on the San Francisco Jail case agreed, subject to
documentation, and within the provisions previously made

O Major issues resolved on the Florida Project (US]

. O There have been a number of court hearings on the Courthouses

[US] dispute but there remains no immediate conclusion to this
long-running case

O As previously indicated, the World Trade Center (US] remains
a contingent Lability.

No new significant contingent liabilities were added in 2007,

Provisions currently held for future costs of litigation total £71.5 million
(2006: £85.3 mittion]. Given the progress made, the board’s confidence
has increased in the averall level of provisioning for these items. A net

pre-tax exceptional release of £13.3 million has been made during the

year in respect of exceptional iterns arising from litigation issues.




Details of material legal actions are set out in note 28 to the accounts
on page 113, The balance sheet inciudes no debtors or work in progress
related to these contracts.

Balance sheet highlights

In line with IFRS 5, the 2006 balance sheet is not restated to exclude
discontinued operations, accordingly, movements in balance sheet
captions need additional explanations.

Key movements in the balance sheet are discussed below:

Fixed assets

The fallin net book value of fixed assets as at 31 December 2007 to
£57.6 million (2006: £73.3 million) reflects mainly the sale of nan-core
businesses.

Additions of £18.8 million were stightly below the depreciation charge
for the year of £21.7 million.

Intangible assets

The net book value of intangible assets as at 31 December 2007 is
£223.8 million (2006: £i97.6 million], including goodwill £215.4 million,
software £1.7 million and other intangibles £6.7 million.

The increase in goodwill relates to the impact of foreign exchange and
acquisitions during the year. Other intangibles and software have
reduced from £9.7 million as at 3t December 2006 to £8.4 million
reflecting amortisation of £2.5 million, partially offset by the impact

of acquisitions during the year.

Interests in joint ventures and associates
Interests in joint ventures at £22.7 million are significantly below 2006
[£85.2 million) as a result of the divestment of non-core businesses,

Working capital
Days sales in stock/wip and receivables are as follows:
2007 2006*
. Days Days
Group 72 82

* Including discentinued operations.

Days sales in stock/wip and receivables have continued to dectine in 2007,
as contract settlements have been secured and cash management has
been strengthened.

Derivative financial instruments

As at 31 December 2007 there were derivative financial instruments
with a net value of £2.2 million liability on the balance sheet, This net
liability represents the fair value of foreign exchange contracts used to
hedge the cash flows of foreign currency contracts, and ¢ross currency
swaps used to hedge the net investment in overseas subsidiaries.

Distributable reserves

As at 31 December 2007, distributable reserves of AMEC plc stood
at £575.0 million [2004: £454.6 million), an increase of £120.4 million.
The increase in reserves mainly reflects the profit on disposal of
nen-core businesses:

E million
As at 1 January 2007 454.6
Profit on disposal of non-core businesses 144.6
Dwidends received frem subsidiaries on disposal
of nen-core businesses 66.0
Dividends approved during 2007 {41.3)
Acquisition of treasury shares [21.5]
Impairment provision (15.00
Other movements (12.4)
As at 31 December 2007 575.0

The impairment provision reflects the full write down of the investment
in a UK substdiary.

Pensions

The 14519 pre-tax surplus of principal UK pension schemes at the

end of 2007 of £248.0 million was higher than in 2006 [£105.6 million]
reflecting additional contributions made by the company, the curtailment
gain on disposals and actuarial gains in the year.

During the yeat:, the trustees reduced the schemes’ level of equity
investments from ¢.50 per cent to ¢.35 per cent, in favour of bonds.
This change will reduce the expected investrent return on the assets
inthe principal UK pension schemes in 2008 and beyond.

AMEC plc annual report 2007 49



Financial review continued

The regular triennial valuation of the UK schemes tock place during
2005, and at that time updated mortality assumptions, which’
incorporate an allowance for additional longevity improvementsin
future, were agreed with the schemes’ trustees. These assumptions
were chosen with regard to the latest avaitable tables, adjusted where
appropriate to reflect the experience of the schermes’ membership.
For the main UK pension plans, the tables adopted are part of the
PA92 series of tables, taking into account each member’s year of birth
adjusted by an age rating of +3 years, and allowing for medium cohort’
improvements in longevity. For a male/fernale aged 60 in 2005, these
tables show a life expectancy of 23.8/26.8 years. For a male/female aged
40in 2005, the tables show a life expectancy from age 40 of 25.0/27.8
years. In association with the Trustees of the Schernes, AMEC will
continue to monitor scheme mortality experience and will revise
assumptions as approprizte.

Since the year-end, equity markets have fallen. The board estimates that
as at 31 January 2008, this would have resulted in the pre-tax surplus of
the schemes declining by ¢.£50 million under an IAS 19 valuation.

Recent gu:dance from the Pensions Regutator regarding longevity
statistics suggests that further strengthening of mortality assumptions
may be appropriate, and specifically alludes to the adoption of the ‘long-
cohort’ rate of improvement as a benchrmark for occupational scheme
mortality going forward. The mortality experience of the AMEC
schemes will be reviewed in detail at the next actuarial valuation, due as
at 1 April 2008. A move to long-cohort assumptions would reduce the
current funding surplus [pre-tax) by ¢.£60 million or approximately five
per cent of liabilities. Even after taking into account beth the recent fall
in equity markets and the potential move to long-cohort assumpticns,
the schemes would remain in a strong position.

The surplus has been presented net of deferred tax on the balance sheet
in 2007, following a review of the basis of recoverability.

Company contributions of £36.4 million were paid during the year
[2008: £31.4 million]. This included special cantributions agreed with
the schemes’ trustees of £8.4 million (2004: £4.5 million]. The principal
financial assumptions are set out in nate 14 of the accounts, on page 97.
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Provisions

Provisions held at 31 December 2007 were £199.4 million [31 Decernber
2006: £173 8 miltion]. The increase during 2007 reflects the net impact
of the sale of Built Environment businesses, offset by settlement of
litigation issues. Provisions are analysed as follows:

As at 31 December 2007 £ million
Litigation provisions 71.5
Indemnities grar)ted to buyers/retained obligations

ondisposed businesses 789
Insurance and other 490
Total 199.4

Anoutflow of £30-40 million is expected in each of 2008 and 2009.
Further outflows can be expected over the longer term.

Cash flow and current liquidity

At 31 December 2007, AMEC had net cash of £733.2 million {2004
£354.9 million, excluding amounts held for satel. The group focuses
on the weekly average level of net cash throughout the year, with the
increase in 2007 reflecting business divestments, strength of trading
and ongoing good cash management.

During 2008, the directors expect weekly average net cash to be around
£600 million [2007: £435 million), before the impact of the share buy
back programme and acquisitions. Around £100 million is expected to
be spent on acquisitions in the first half of 2008.

Fottowing completion of the divestment programme, the profit
conversion metric for the group has been rebased to reflect cantinuing
operations from 1 January 2007. Cash flow from operations for the
continuing businesses of £140.1 million in 2007 was 23 per cent ahead
of profit before net financing income (befare gain on disposals for
continuing businesses, £17.7 million) of £114.3 million.

Given the impending maturity of our committed facilities in 2009,

the group is evaluating the timing for the renewal and tevel of facilities
required. As the group has significant cash resources, it may defer
renewal of the committed facilities into 2009. However, appropriate
facilities will be maintained to meet ongaing requirements for
performance related bonding and letters of credit.

Share buy backs

In 2008, the group may continue the share buy back programme,
for up to £80 miltion, on an opportunistic basis.




Reconciliations of adjusted profit for continuing operations,

. netassets and employee numbers

The business and financial reviewis based on the reported results for
cantinuing businesses before joint venture tax, intangible amortisation
and pre-tax exceptional items, but including joint venture profit before
tax. The results, net assets and employee numbers as presented in the
review are reconciled in the tables below to those presented in notes 2

and 6 to the consolidated accounts.

Reconciliation of adjusted pre-tax profit for continuing operations - Class of business

Year ended 31 December 2007
Pre-tax results Taxonresults

Adjusted profit Exceptional tntangible of joint ventures of joint ventures Profit

before tax items amortisation and assaciates and associates before tax

£million £ million £ million £ million £ million £ million

Natural Resources 955 - (0.8) 1.2) - 93.7
Power and Process 38.9 15 1.5] (0.5) - 48.4
Earth and Environmental 21.2 - [0.3) - - 209
Investments and other activities (11.0) 16.7 (0.1) (A} - 5.5
144.6 28.2 (2.5) (1.8 - 1685
Cerporate costs (38,51 - - - - (36.51
Profit/{loss) befare net financing income " 1084 28.2 (2.5] 1.8 - 132.0
Net financing income 18.4 - - - - 18.4

Share of post-tax results of joint ventures

and associates - - - 1.8 (0.6 1.2
1265 28.2 (2.5) - (0.6) 151.6

Year ended 31 December 2004

Natural Resources 591 (7.8} [1.8] . {0.4) - 489
Pawer and Process 228 [17.6] (.01 1.2 - 30
Earth and Environmental 177 - [0.5] - - 172
Investrments and other activities 85 [774]) [0.3) 1.6 - [67.8]
108.1 [102.8) [3.6) 0.2 - 15

Corporate costs (21.4] - - - - 21.4]
Profit/lloss] before net financing costs 867 [102.8) [3.6) 0.2 - (199
Net financing costs (701 - - - - (70!

Share of post-tax results of joint ventures

and assaciates - - - 0.2 0.3) (0.i)
797 {102.8) (3.6) - {0.3] {27.0)
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Reconciliation of adjusted pre-tax profit for continuing operations — Geographical origin

Year ended 31 December 2007

Pre-tax results Taxonresults

Adjusted profit Exceptional Intangible of joint ventures of joint ventures Profit

before tax items amartisation and associates and assaciates before tax

. £ million £ million £ million £ million £ million £ million

United Kingdom 56.2 14.2 0.9 0.5 - 700
Rest of Europe 8.5 - - 0.2) - 6.4
Americas 85.2 7.0 [.8) (1.3) - 89.3
Rest of the world (3.4 7.0 - {0.8) - 28
144.6 28.2 (2.5] (1.8) - 168.5
Corporate costs [36.5) - - - - (36.5)
Profit/lloss] before net financing income 108.1 28.2 (2.5] 1.8] - 132.0
Net financing income 18.4 - - - - 18.4

Share of post-tax resuits of joint ventures

and associates - - - 1.8 (0.8) 1.2
1265 282 (2.5) - (0.5) 151.6

Year ended 31 Decemnber 2006

United Kingdom 306 (1.5 09 0.2 - 284
Rest of Europe 52 09 - 15 - 76
Americas 574 [84.9) 127 n.2) - [33.4)
Rest of the world 149 [15.3) - 07 - (1.

108 [02.8) (3.6} 0.2 - 15

Corporate costs (21.4) - - - - (21.4)
Profit/[loss) before net financing costs 867 (102.8) (3.4) 02 - 119.9)
Net financing costs (7.0 - = - - (7.0)

Share of post-tax results of joint ventures

and associates - - - 0.2 (0.3) [0.1)
797 102.8] [3.4) - (0.3) (270
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Reconciliation of adjusted net assets - Class of business

31 December 2007
Adjusted Interestsin joint

netassets/ ventures and Intangible Netassets/

[liabilities) associates assets [tiabilities)

£ million £ million Emillion € million

Natural Resources 288 0.2 0.8 298
Power and Process (57.0) 10.5) 8.1 (51.5)

Earth and Enwvironmental 33.2 [0.2) 1.5 345
Investments and other activities (185.2) (22.1) - (207.3)
(180.2) (22.71 8.4 (194.5)

Goodwill 215.4 - - 215.4

Intangible assets 8.4 - (8.4) -

Interests in joint ventures and associates - 227 - 227

Net cash 733.2 - - 733.2

Unallocated net assets 103.0 - - 103.0

Assets and liabilities held for sale 13.6 - - 13.6

893.4 - - 893.4

31 December 20046

Natural Resources 713 0.6 21 740
Power and Process [55.4) 1 6.3 (50.2)

Earth and Environmental 190 [0.2] 08 196
Investments and other activities 1109.2) {21.8) 0.5 [1305)
Discontinued businesses [60.0] 162.7) - 122.7)
134.3] (85.2) 97 (209.8)

Goadwill 1879 - - 1879

Intangible assets 9.7 - {97 -

Interests in joint ventures and associates - 85.2 - 85.2

Net cash 3549 - - 3549

Unallocated net assets 390 - - 390

Assets and liabilities held for sale 376 - - 376

4948 - - 4948

Reconciliation of emptoyee numbers

Average FTEs* for year ended 31 December 2007

Average FTEs* foryear ended 31 December 20046

Total Direct Total Direct

Emptoyees Agency staff employees Employees Agency staff employees

Number Number Number MNurnber Number Number

Natural Resources 9,715 (2,024) 7,691 8317 (1,550] 6,767
Power and Process 6,753 01,014) 5,739 5764 (5071 4,859
Earth and Environmentzl 3,576 (291 3,547 3ng - 319
Investments and other activities 398 (7) 391 642 (8] 636
Total continuing businesses 20,442 {3,074) 17,368 17844 [2.463] 15,381

*Fulltime equivalents.
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Business risks and opportunities

AMEC plc is a focused supplier of high-value consultancy, engineering
and project management services to customers in the energy, power
and process industry sectors.

The maintenance of high standards of safety and service rernain
important in securing repeat business from customers.

Principal business opportunities include continued high oil and gas and
cornmodity prices, which would result in continued strength in AMEC’s
core businesses.

AMEC remains focused on progressing its Wind Developments
portfolio, where it is seeking consents for developments with an
overall capacity of over 1,000MW. Should the major projects receive
planning approval this business is expected to begin to make a
cantribution to the group.

The price of il and gas, commodity prices and levels of business
canfidence across power and process markets are key drivers for
AMEC’s businesses. A sustained and significant reduction in oit and
gas or commodity prices and/or a reduction in business confidence
could have an adverse impact on the level of client spending in
AMEC's markets.

The Built Environment businesses were disposed of in 2007 as part

of the divestiment programme, as summarised in the report of the
directors on pages 66 and 67. Ateam has been established in order

to manage the legacy risk associated with the disposed businesses.

In this regard, AMEC has made provisions for the legacy issues which
are believed to be adequate and AMEC is not aware of any current issues
relating to the disposed businesses which are likely to have a material
impact on the company.

in the US, AMEC has exited certain construction management activities.
The company is involved in ongoing litigation relating to these former
activities and other construction related activities and has made
provisions which are believed to be adequate. The outcome of litigation
is not certain, as summarised in note 28 on page 113.

In recent years, AMEC has moved away from lump-sum fabrication
activities and the level of lump-sum at risk work across the company
in general has been significantly reduced but not eliminated.
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AMEC operates in more than 30 couniries globally, serving a broad
range of markets and custorners. As such, the company is subject to
certain general and industry-specific risks. Where practicable, the
company seeks to mitigate exposure to all forms of risk through effective
risk management and risk transfer practices. AMEC uses a risk
management process which is described in the Corporate Governance
section of the report of the directors on pages 68 and &9.

Specific risks faced by AMEC are as set out below.

Geopolitical and economic conditions

AMEC operates predeminately in the UK and North America and is
therefore particularly affected by political and economnic conditions in
those markets. The company is not, hawever, dependent on any one
area of economic activity, Where AMEC works outside these markets in
territories which are considered to represent a significant potitical risk,
it seeks to mitigate exposure to pelitical risk through insurance where
possible and cost-effective.

Changes in general economic conditions may influence customers’
decisions on capital investment and/or asset maintenance, which could
lead to volatility in the development of AMEC s order intake. The risk
associated with economic conditions resulting in a downturn and
affecting the demand far AMEC's services is addressed, as far as
practicable, by seeking to maintain a balanced business portfolio.

Environmental and social risk

This area of risk management is growing in influence as the threat of
climate change becomes more tangible through more extreme adverse
weather conditions, flooding and water stress. In addition, AMEC's
operations are subject to numerous local, national and international

environmental regulations and human rights conventions.
y

Breaches of, or changes in environmental or social standards, laws or
regulations could expose AMEC to claims for financial compensation
and adverse regulatory consequences, as well as damaging
corperate reputation,




AMEC takes a pragmatic, integrated approach to managing
environmental and social risks utilising existing business management
systems to identify and mitigate such risks. For example employment
processes protect the human rights of the workforce, and the Safety,
Health and Ervironment [SHE'] Management systemn defines a
standard for environmental management.

AMEC tracks over 40 environmental and social KPls, including
enviranmental regulatory performance and community investment.
Further details are available in the annual sustainability report [available
on line at www.amec.corn,

Customer concentraticn

AMEC’s largest custormer is Shell, which in 2007 accounted for around
10 per cent of continuing revenues. Were dependence on key customers
to increase significantly, this could have direct consequences on AMEC's
financial development.

Bidding risk

AMEC addresses the risk associated with bidding by a tender review
process which addresses the threats and opportunities associated with
each tender subrnitted. In 2007, the Delegated Authorities relating to
tender submission were amended in order to place greater emphasis
on the level of risk associated with tenders. The tender review process is
kept under ongoing review in order {o ensure that it continues to address
the risk assoctated with bidding.

Business continuity

Given the broad spread and scope of its operations, AMEC's risk from
natural catastrophe and terrorist action is varied, and considerable
disruption could be caused to AMEC's operations as a result of the
associated business interruption. These risks are mitigated through
business continuity planning, which is being imptemented throughout
the group and is being verified through an ongoing audit process.

tn addition, the risk of increased cost of working in relation to UK

and North America properties as a reslt of business disruption

is transferred via insurance.

Infermation technology 1T')

AMEC is exposed to the risk that the IT systems upon which it relies fail.
AMEC has appropriate controls in place in order to mitigate the risk of
systemns failure, including systerns back up procedures and disaster
recovery plans. ’

Security of employees

The personal security and the safety of employees and contractors can
be compromised due to their either being based, or travelling extensivety
on business, in potentially hazardous locations. AMEC regards the safety
and security of its personnel as being of paramount importance, and

this risk is mitigated by keeping security in relevant locations under
continuai review and the hiring of a local specialist security company
where appropriate.

Safety

AMEC is involved in activities which have the potential to cause injury

to personnel. In order to control risk and prevent harm to people,
AMEC is committed to the highest standards of health and safety
management. This is achieved through the setting of an effective health
and safety policy and ensuring effective leadership and organisational
arrangements are in place to deliver this policy. Performance is
regularly reviewed against agreed targets with the cbjective of
facilitating continuous improvement.

Credit

AMEC is exposed to credit risk particularly in relation to customers.

The credit risk associated with customers is addressed initially via
contract payrment terms, and, where appropriate, payment security.
Credit control practices are applied thereafter during the project
execution phase. Where appropriate, credit risk insurance is considered
in relation to specific customers and jurisdictions.
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Treasuryrisks

The group’s treasury department manages funding, liquidity and

the risks arising from interest rate and foreign currency movements
within a framework of policies ang guidelines approved by the board.
Derivatives and conventional financial instruments are used with the
ain of imiting financial risk. The treasury department does not aperate
as a profit centre and the undertaking of speculative transactions is

not permitted.

Funding and tiquidity risk

The group will finance operations and growth from existing cash
resources and committed borrowing facilities provided by a syndicate
of relatienship banks. Following the sale of the non-core businesses,

a portion of the commilted facilities were cancelled by agreement.

At 31 December 2007 committed facilities totalled £315 million [2006:
£465 million] with an average duration of 16 months (2006: 28 months).
Headroom under these facilities at 31 December 2007 was £291 million
[2006: £439 million). The group’s policy aims to ensure the constant
availability of an appropriate amount of reasonably priced funding to
meet both current and future forecast requirements consistent with
the group's budget and strategic plans. Borrawings under these facilities
can be used for general corporate purposes and are unsecured.

Interest rate risk

The group remained in a net cash position throughout the year. This
position is considered to be temporary as the group intends to invest

in the businesses and has the ongoing share buy back programme.

As a result long-term interest rate hedging [for periods beyond three to
six months) is not considered appropriate. Group treasury monitor the
interest rate outlook, however, AMEC would suffer a reduction ininterest
income on surplus cash if interest rates fall. For example, a one per cent
movement in rates on the 2007 average cash balance of £435 million
would impact interest income by £4.4 million.
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Foreign exchange risk

The greup publishes its consolidated financial statements in Sterling.

It conducts business in a range of foreign currencies, including Canadian
and US dollars and currencies linked to the US doltar. As a result, the
group is exposed to foreign exchange risks, which will affect transaction
costs and the translation of the results and value of underlying assets

of its foreign subsidiaries.

Transaction exposures

Asignificant proportion of the group’s trading income is denorninated in
the local currency of the business operations which provides a natural
hedge against the currency of its cost base. Where commercial
contracts are undertaken which are denominated in foreign currencies,
the group seeks to mitigate the foreign exchange risk, when the cash
flow giving rise to such exposure becomes certain or highly probable,
through the use of forward currency arrangerments, which may include
the purchase of currency options.

As stated earlier, contract costs and revenues are affected by a variety
of uncertainties that depend on the outcome of future events. This can
give rise to exposures if cash flows are denominated in foreign currency.
Hedging decisions are based on the latest available forecasts at the time
the decision is taken which are subsequently updated regularly. There
are currently no material transaction exposures which have been
identified and remain unhedged. AMEC recognises that, having taken
out forward contracts in respect of underlying commercial transactions,
an exposure would arise if the forward contracts had to be unwound as
a consequence of the anticipated cash flows under such contacis being
cancetled or otherwise not being received. The total gross nominal value
of all outstanding forward contracts at 31 December 2007 is £116 million
[2006: £137 million). At 31 December 2007 the mark-to-market value of
these contracts that were out of the money was a liability of £1.2 million
[2006: liabitity of £2 million) and of these contracts that were in the
money was an asset of £3.1 miltion [2006: £0.8 million). AMEC has na
reason to believe that any material cutstanding forward contract will

not be able to be settled from the undertying commercial transactions.




Translation exposures

A portion of the group’s earnings is generated in non-Sterling
currencies. Such overseas profits are translated into Sterling at the
average exchange rate prevailing throughout the year. There is currently
no hedging in place for profits generated in non-Sterling currencies but
the impact on group profits 1s monitored on an ongoing basis.

In addition, the group has various assets denominated in foreign
currencies, principally US dollars and Canadian dollars. Consistent
with the group’s policy, a proportion of these assets, including
unamortised goodwill, have been hedged by using cross currency
swaps. At 31 December 2007, these net investment hedges amounted
to £138 million {2004: £120 million| covering approximately 40 per cent
of overseas assets [2006: 40 per cent).

Counterparty risk management

The group holds significant net cash balances following the disposal
of AMEC SPIE, the Built Environment businesses and other peripheral
businesses during 2006 and 2007. The group intends to reinvest

these monies into the core activities and return up to £B0 million to
shareholders via the previously announced share buy back.

Cash deposits and financial transactions give rise to credit risk in the
event that counterparties fail to perferm under the contract. AMEC
manages these risks by ensuring that surplus funds are placed with
counterparties up to a pre-approved limit. These limits are set at
prudent levels by the board, are based primarily on credit ratings set by
Moady's, Standard & Poors and Fitch and have been reviewed in light of
the recent market turbulence.

Credit ratings are monitored continuously by group treasury.

Group treasury manitors counterparty exposure on a global basis
to avoid an over concentration of exposure te any one counterparty.
As a consequence of these controls the probability of material loss
is considered to be remote.

Litigation

AMEC is subject to litigation from time to time in the ordinary course
of business and makes provision for the expected cosis based on
appropriate professional advice.

The outcome of tegal action is at times uncertain and there is a risk that
it may prove more costly and time consuming than expected. Thereis a
risk that additional litigation could be instigated in the future which could
have a material impact on the company, although full risk management
controls remain in place to deal with such matters.

Pensions

AMEC operates a number of defined benefit pension schemes, where
careful judgement is required in determining the assumptions for future
salary and pension increases, inflation, investment returns and mermber
longevity. There is a risk of underestimating this tiability and the pension
schemes falling into deficit. This risk is mitigated by:

O Maintaining a relatively strong funding position over time

0 Taking advice from independent qualified actuaries and other
professional advisers

O Agreeing appropriate investment policies with the schemes’ trustees

O Close monitoring of changes in the funding position, with
reparatory action agreed with the trustees in the event that
asustained deficit emerges.

Project execution risk

One of AMEC s significant risks is the risk of losses arising during the
execution phase of projects. Various measures are in place in order
to address the project execution risk, including the risk management
process, project reviews, internal audit of projects, and the
implementation of peer reviews.
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Sustainability

Growing influence of sustainability

Sustainability can be defined as AMEC's ability to generate shareholder
value today without compromising its ability to deliver in the long term.
The marketplace is evolving to reflect goods and services which offer
more sustainable solutions in design, delivery and support. AMEC must
be well positioned to support current and future customers in delivering
their sustainable goals.

Many more customers are asking about how AMEC manages and can
help them to manage sustainability issues such as ethical conduct,
community investment and carbon management. There is an increasing
emphasis on the wider sacial and environmental impact of projects with
which AMEC is associated.

During the year, the international and potitical sustainability agenda has
been dominated by the threat of climate change and global attention is
turning to look at how best to respond to the warming climate.

In Noverber 2007, the Intergovernmental Panel on Climate Change
fourth global assessment report highlighted that there is now
unequivocal evidence that the climate is warming and that this is directly
attributable to man-made emissions. In December 2007, the UN
Climate Change conference took place in Bali to discuss what the world
must do to mitigate climate change and to negotiate a new strategy post
Kyoto protocol which is due to expire in 2012.

AMEC has engaged with the climate change agenda, taking partin the
annual Carbon Disclosure Project and contributing to the Prince of Wales
May Day Business Summit on Climate Change for example, but also by
looking to future markets. These markets, however, will be highly reliant
on global leaders agreeing on a long-term strategy which allows business
to make sensible, long-term investment in low carbon technologies.

Climate change management is AMEC's business

AMEC is both helping to conserve finite natural resources, designing
efficient, safe oit and gas technologies which seek to reduce pollution
and minimise harmful emissions, as well as locking towards
tororrow’s energy sources. The cantinued rise in cil price coupled with
the threat of energy security has provided an increased incentive for
clients toinvest in alternative fuel sources.
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With AMEC's range of skills, technical ability and knowledge, it is well
placed to succeed in the growth of climate change and sustainable
energy related business and has significant capability in both its Nuclear
and Wind Developments businesses. AMEC is also at the forefront of
number of innovative climate change related businesses.

In October 2007, AMEC was awarded a contract by Baard Energy to '
provide engineering and project ranagement services for the front-end
engineering and design phase of the US$5 billion Ohio River Clean Fuels
project in Wellsville, Ohio (US). The project is being undertaken in
response to growing demand for mere environmentally-friendly fuels.

AMEC continues to devetop carbon capture, storage and transport tech-
nology using its existing experience in gas capture, storage, comprassian
and pipeline transmission which is likely to become a key tool in reducing
carbon emission from industrial processes. AMEC is already working with
Progressive Energy to design their carbon dioxide pipeline on Teesside (UK),
avital part of their planned clean coal power station with carbon capture.

Adapting to climate change is also a significant challenge to business
and industry and AMEC has been working with the European Space
Agency to develop satellite remote sensing capahility as a taol for use

in advanced floodplain management applications. AMEC is also looking
at sateltite technology for use in calculating biomass from a carbon
sequestration perspective. ‘

There is a growing opportunity to develop and market climate change
managernent services and AMEC will continue to work with clients to
develop these areas.

Sustainability in the workplace

AMEC is committed to operating in a more sustainable mannerin
addition to the provision of sustainable services. The company manages
and monitors the impact of business activities through its company-
wide sustainabyility programme, which continued to evolve throughout
the year. For a full account of AMEC's sustainability managemant and
performance please refer ta the on-line sustainability report which will
be posted onwww.amec.com later this year.

Board commitment and leadership

The board receives regutar updates and briefings on significant
sustainability issues such as safety, health, environmental management
and human resources. Performance is monitored and action taken as
necessary. Samir Brikho, Chief Executive, has responsibility for leading
and driving the sustainability programme throughout the business.




Sustainability management

AMEC’s minimum requirement is to ensure the effective management
of its sustainability impacts by integrating sustainability into day-to-day
business processes. n addition to this, each business is required to
define and deliver improvernent programmes, known as AMEC Agenda
21s. These programmes are a direct response to the UN Agenda 21 call
fer business and industry to implement action within their sphere of
influence to address sustainable development pricrities (UN Agenda 21
Chapter 30, paragraph 30.1).

Operational sustainability performance summary

AMEC has over 40 corporate sustainability indicators across the
business. A full and detailed performance report will be contained in
the on-line sustainability report including an analysis of performance,
targets and objectives.

At the beginning of the year, AMEC set company-wide health and safety
performance targets designed to drive dewn accidents in the workplace
and prevent people from being injured. Targets were set for 2007, based
on a 10 per cent improvernent on best recorded performance.
Improvement was made in the number of people suffering a lost time
injury and the 10 per cent improvement target was exceeded.
Improvement was also made in the nurmber of recorded accidents
although the improvement target was not met. Figures recorded include
data for the Built Environment businesses, up until the time of divestmeant.

Tragically, in Septernber 2007, an AMEC employee sustained fatal head
injuries following a fall from height. Immediate action, following this
incident, included a review and reinforcement of safe working at height
practices across the whole o AMEC.

Benchmarking AMEC performance

Taking part in sustainability performance surveys provides AMEC with
excellent learning opportunities through benchmarking its performance
and engaging with its peers. The surveys in which AMEC participates
provide an in-depth analysis of its sustainability performance.

Dow Jones Sustainability Index ['DJSI')

DJSI results influence the investrment decisions of asset managers

in 15 countries for a variety of sustainability-driven portfolios, including
mutual funds, segregated accounts, structured products, as well as
two exchange traded funds.

During 2007, AMEC achieved a strong performance in both the World
and Pan-European Dow Janes Sustainability Indices, AMEC was listed

as the support services sector leader in both. This is AMEC's fourth year
as a participant of the index and its fourth year as a sector leader.

Business in the Community

For the last four years, AMEC has been ranked in the Sunday Times
Top 100 Coempanies That Count” index, published annually, and has
achieved year-on-year improvement in its management score.

In 2007, AMEC continued to pariicipate in the Corporate Responsibitity,
Environment and Community indices and all results and feedback will
be included in the on-line sustainability report.

Future priorities

Inyears to corme, the only truly successful businesses will be those that
achieve a sustainable balance between their own interests, and those of
society and the natural world. It is only passible to achieve this through
wholly integrating sustainability into the way AMEC performs on a daily
basis, upholding its principles and striving for improvernent across the
‘triple bottom line’.

AMEC recognises that sustainable development is essential to the future
of the business and this is reflected in the fact that sustainability is a

key focus area of AMEC's Operational Excellence pregramme. One of
AMEC’s key challenges for 2008 will be to plan, develop and implement
AMEC's Sustainability Operational Excellence programme. The focus

of the programme will be on three key challenges:

O Carben management
O Global sustainability performance standards
O Stakeholder engagement programme.

Operational Excellence will build on the best practice within the business
and focus on taking a leadership position on key sustainability issues.

Verification procedure

Statements relating to sustainability made cn pages 58 and 59 of this
report have been verified by an external, independent team from
Enviros. All data used has been checked for reliability and subjected
to audit via an internat team of auditors.

The opinion of Enviros is set out in the footnote below.

Enviros has verified the Sustainability section of the AMEC annual report 2007, This
involved reviewing quantitative and gualitative information that supports the staternents
made. Enviros is satisfied that this section of the report is an accurate representation of
the sustainability performance and related business practices within AMEC.

The information presented in this Sustainability section has been tailored to the interests
of the report’s audience and is a sub-set taken from AMEC’s mare detailed Sustainability
Performance Report 2007, which Enviros also verifies,
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“How many time;slhave we heard our goal is to have
a quality project that is on time and within budget?
Well this one is such a p_roject... | personally betieve
that the results % ay have been very differef;)t if we
had not worked W|th AMEC using the team[

partnering concept.”

Lisa Ruane, Constriction Engineer, MCDOT

I

R L T R e

Leftionght Lisa Ruane, Construcien Engmeer,
Marwop. 1 Counly Department of Transportabon, Greg
Boswwor th, Projoc | Manage:, C5&W Contrar tor s, Jay
Guer tin, Assislant Branch Manager [Phoemx), AMEC




AMEC worked in partfiershipwjth Maricopa County
Departmentof Transportation IMCDOT), CSAW
Contractors, and other entties on the Eltsworth Road
Impravemeqts project, City of Mesa, Maricopa County,
Arizona {US]% to detiverthe prejéct nearly six weeks early.
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Our board of directors
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1 Jock Green-Armytage 23

Age 62, was appointed a non-executive director in
June 1994 and became non-executive Chairman in
January 2004. He is the Chairman of the nominations
committee. He is Chairman of JZ International Limited
and adirector of JZ Equity Partners plc and several
other companies.

2 SamirBrikho 3

Age 4%, was appointed Chief Executive in October 2006.
He was previousty a member of the ABB Executive
Cemmittee, heading the Power Systerns division.
Hewas also Chairman of ABB Lummus Global,
ABB'sinternational projects and services business.
He is also a director of United Kingdom-Japan

21st Century Group.

3 Stuart Siddall

Age 54, was appointed Finance Directorin June 2000.
He was previously Finance Director of Alpha Airports
Group PLC and of MANWES plc. On 17 March 2008, he
tendered his resignation and will cease to be a director
following the annual general meeting on 14 May 2008.

4 LizAirey 123

Age 49 was appointed a non-executive director in May
1999. She is the senior independent director. She was
previously the Finance Director of Monument Qil and
Gas ple. She is currently Chairman of Zetex plcand a
non-executive director of Tate & Lyle PLC. In addition,
she is Chairman of a European investment trust and

a non-executive director of another investment trust
specialising in private equity.

5 Peter Byrom 13

Age 43, was appointed a non-executive director in
February 2005. He is Chairman of the audit committee.
He is Chairman of Domino Printing Sciences plc

and Mclins PLC and a non-executive director of
Rolls-Royce ple. He was a director of N M Rothschild
from 1977 to 1996.

& TimFaithfull 23

Age 63, was appointed a non-executive director in
February 2005. He is Chairman of the remuneration
committee. He is a non-executive director of Canadian
Pacific Railway, TransAlta Corperation and Shell
Pensions Trust Limited and was President and Chief
Executive of Shell Canada Limited from 1999 to 2003.

7 MarthaHesse 123

Age 65, was appointed a non-executive director in June
2000. She was President of Hesse Gas Company

untit the end of 2003 and is the former Chairman of

the US Federat Energy Regulatory Commission and
Assistant Secretary for management and administration
of the US Department of Energy. She chairs the
compliance and ethics committee and is Chairman

of Enbridge Energy Partners, L.P, Enbridge Energy

Management, L.L.C. and Enbridge Energy Company Inc. -

and a director of Terra Industries Inc. and Mutual Trust
Financial Group, All these entities are based in the US
and Canada.

Key to principal committee

membership

1 Audit

2 Remuneration
3 Nominations
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Our management team

Michael Blacker

Michael Blackeris General
Counsel and is responsibte
for the provision cf legal
services across the
organisation. Michael
joined AMEC in 1999.

RonlLee

Ron Lee is Group Hurman
Resources and Safety
Director. He is also
responsible for the
environment, sustainability
and pensions functions.

He joined AMEC in 1995.
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Roger Jinks

Roger Jinks was appointed
President of the Earth

and Environmental division
in 2000. He joined the
companyin 1987,

Stuart Siddall

Stuart Siddall was
appointed Finance Birector
in 2000. He leaves AMEC

in May 2008.

Samir Brikho

Samir Brikhowas
appointed Chief Executive
of AMEC in Octeber 2006.
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Didier Pfleger

Didier Pfleger joined AMEC
in 2007 as Chief Operating
Qfficer of the Power and
Pracess division.

Neil Bruce

Neil Bruce was appointed
Chief Operating Officer

of the Natural Resources
division in 2004. He joined
AMEC in 1997.

SueScholes

Sue Scholes is Director
of Communications and
also has responsibility
for investor relations.
Sue joined AMEC in 2007,

Frangois-Philippe Champagne
Frangois-Philippe Champagne
joined AMEC in 2008 as Director
of Strategic Development,

with responsibility for mergers
and acquisitions activity, strategy
and supply chain management.
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Report of the directors
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The directors have pleasure in presenting the annual report and
accounts for the year ended 31 December 2007.

Business review

Information fulfilling the requirements of the business review is
contained in the business and financial review on pages 14 to 57, which
includes details of AMEC’s development and performance during the
year, its position at the year end and the outlook for the future, and is
included in this report by reference.

Key events

In October 2006, AMEC launched 'STEP Change’, a programme of
change in the structure and culture of the company. The programme
was completed ahead of schedule in September 2007 and exceeded
original expectations. Compared with the 2006 baseline, benefits

of at least €40 million for the continuing businesses are expected

in 2008, increased from an initial commitment in March 2007 of

£35 million. With all of AMEC's end markets remaining buoyant,

the board remains confident that margin targets of six per centin
2008 and eight per cent in 2010 will be delivered.

Following the successful completion of STEP Change, AMEC is
proceeding with ‘Operational Excellence’, a two to three year programme
designed to radically improve operating performance. Operational
Excellence will be a major contributor to AMEC delivering its target
margin of eight per cent in 2010.

AMEC intends to improve the quality of the business portfolic and
service delivery to customers and to simplify and optimise internal
controls and processes. The Operational Excellence prograrmme is
packaged into 12 workstreams identified as those most important
to achieving high performance across the group:

O Business controls

O Cash management

O Commercial management
1 Employee development

0 Engineering

O Health and safety

O Infoermation technology

0 Project management

0O Strategic marketing

O Strategic relationship management and business acquisition
O Supply chain management
O Sustainability

In June 2007, AMEC and Morgan Sindall plc agreed terms for the
divestment of the Praperty Devetopments and UK Building and Civil
Engineering businesses for a premium of £55 million to the aggregate
net assets as at 30 April 2007. Completion was achieved in July 2007.
AMEC's interest in the Inland Revenue Newcastle Estate PPP project
was subsequently excluded from this transaction and has been retained
by AMEC, reducing the actual premium on disposal to £49 million.

In addition, a joint venture asset was subject to a pre-emption clause
which was duly exercised by the partner which, together with other
adjustrments, reduced the premium achieved to £44.5 million.

in July 2007, AMEC and Land Securities Trillium ['LST'] agreed terms
for the divestment of the management team and nine underlying

PPP assets of the Project Investments business for £163.5 mitlion.
Completion of the sale of eight of these assets to LST was achieved in
Novermnber 2007. The remaining asset, being AMEC plc’s shares in two




PPP road projects, was pre-empted by the fellow shareholders and was
sold to them in March 2008 for £11.1 million. Following the disposal of
the Property Developments and Project Investments businesses, AMEC
has retained three PPP projects, being a completed UK road project
[discontinued operation), the completed Inland Revenue Newcastle
Estate project referred to above and the Incheon Bridge project in Korea
which is under construction.

In July 2007, AMEC announced a proposal to increase its presence

in the Caspian frontier region through the acquisition of a 60 per cent
interest in Kazakh oilfield services company, Batys Kazakhstan Kuat
Service Limited, for ¢. £5 million. The transaction was completed in
January 2008.

In August 2007, AMEC and SPIE S.A. agreed terms for divestment of the
Building and Facilities Services business for £117 million. Completion
took place in September 2007.

Also in August 2007, AMEC and MMC Oil and Gas, a leading Malaysian
oil and gas engineering consultancy organisation, announced the
formation of a new company, MMC AMEC Sdn. Bhd. to deliver project
management and engineering services to oil and gas custorners in
the expanding Malaysian and Asian markets. AMEC holds 49 per cent
of the shares in this company.

In September 2007, AMEC announced the acquisition of Cade-Idepe,
based in Santiago, from its owner-managers for £12 million. AMEC
is now one of the largest engineering companies in Chile, employing
some 900 engineers providing engineering services for Natural
Resources and Power and Process clients in Chite and throughout
South America. Completion took place in October 2007.

Buring the year, AMEC made four small acquisitions in the Earth and
Envirenmental business.

Five peripheral non-core businesses were divested during the first half
of 2007, being AMEC SPIE Rail, Dynamic Structures, AMEC SPIE Capag,
Buchan Concrete Solutions and Midwest Pipelines. This was followed
by the sale of the Logistics and Support Services business which was
completed in February 2008.

In total, the divestments of the Built Environment and peripheral
businesses generated overall cash proceeds of £279.2 million after
costs but before tax and a post-tax gain of £243.3 million.

Details of the good progress made with the settlerment of legacy
disputes are shown on pages 48 and 49.

Dividends

The directors have proposed a final ordinary dividend in respect of

the year ended 31 December 2007 of 8.8 pence per share. This final
dividend will be payable on 1 July 2008 to shareholders on the register
at the close of business on 23 May 2008.

Dividends paid during the year comprised an interim dividend of
4.2 pence per share, and a final dividend of 8.0 pence per share both
in respect of the year ended 31 December 2006.

Share capital

The authorised and issued share capital of the company as at

31 December 2007, movements during the year and the rights attaching
to the shares are set out in note 23 on pages 107 to 109 and the rights
and obligations attaching to the shares are more fully set out in the
articles of association of the company.

A resolution will be proposed at the annual general meeting to extend
the autharity of the directors to make market purchases of up to
10 per cent of the company’s shares within prescribed timits.

On 13 December 2006 the directors announced their intention, pursuant
to the authority granted at the 2006 arnual general meeting, to return
up to £100 mitlion via on-market share repurchases during 2007

As at 31 December 2007, AMEC had as a consequence purchased
3.52 million shares in the market to be held in treasury at a total cost
of £19.5 million*. On 4 September 2007, the board canfirmed that
the balance of up te £80.5 million would be returned to shareholders
in 2007 and beyond. A further 250,000 shares were purchased in the
market after the year end, to be held in treasury, at a total cost of
£1.9 million. There were no further purchases of treasury shares

up to the date of this report.

The directors consider that a share buy back is in the best interests
of shareholders generally and is expected ta result in an increase
in earnings per share. The directors will retain sufficient financial
flexibility to be able to progress AMEC's strategic growth plans in
its core businesses. Repurchased shares will be held in treasury.

During late Decernber 2007 and earty January 2008, AMEC purchased
a further 2.7 million shares in the market to be held in treasury at a total
cost of £22.2 miltion, specifically to satisfy 2007 awards under the UK
and International SAYE schemes previously approved by shareholders.

Authority was granted to the directors at the 2007 annual general
meeting to allot up to £55,938,640 of ordinary share capital of which

up to £8,390,794 could be allotted for cash other than by way of a rights
issue. Resolutions will be proposed at the forthcoming annual general
meeting to extend this autharity to May 2009. The revised Section 80
amount will be £55,154,246 and the revised Section 89 amount will

be £8,273,136.

The directors have no present intention of issuing any shares other
than in respect of the exercise of share options. No issue will be made
which will effectively alter the control of the company without the prior
approval of shareholders in general meeting.

Substantial interests

Pursuant to the FSA Disclosure and Transparency Rules (DTR} 5,
notifications have been received by the company of shareholdings
of 3 per cent or more of the voting rights of the company as at

11 March 2008 and these are as follows:

Number Per cent
Toscafund Limited 37,697,620 11.37
Barclays PLC 14,410,295 4.35
Legal & General
Investment Management Ltd 13,588,869 4.10
ABN-AMRO Bank NV 13,317,635 4.02

The shareholding percentages have been adjusted from thase notified
to reflect the current issued share capital net of treasury shares.

There are no shareholdings which carry special rights relating to
control of the company.

There are no significant agreements in place to which the company
is a party which take effect, alter or terminate upon a change of control
of the company following a takeover bid.

Directors

Details of the directors of the company as at the date of this report,
together with membership of the principal board committees, are set
out on pages 62 and 63.

Non-executive director Mr J A Dallas stepped down as planned from
the board on 16 May 2007 and Mr J D Early retired from the board
on 31 July 2007.

Mr P J Byrom and Mr T W Faithfull retire in accordance with article 85
of the articles of association of the company and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election. Neither Mr Byrom nor Mr Faithfull has

an employment contract with the company.

* The total cost of treasury shares for the year ending 31 Decernber 2007 was £21.5 miltion,
including £2.0 million purchased to satisfy awards under the SAYE scheme.

AMEC plc annual report 2007 &7

T
1]
k=]
=]
-
—-
=]
=
—
=
[
o
3
o
=)
-
=]
=
w




Report of the directors continued

The beneficial interests in the share capital of the company of the
directors holding office as at 31 December 2007 were as follows:

As at As at

31 December 31 December

2007 2006

Number Number

J M Green-Armytage 10,000 10,000
SY Brikho 114,979 52,892
S J Siddall 34,859 30,628
E P Airey 18,120 18,120
M 0 Hesse 16,414 16,414
P J Byrom - -
T W Faithfull 5,000 5,000

Except for interests under share option schemes and the Perfermance
Share Plans, details of which are contained in the directors’
remuneration report on pages 72 to 77, no director as at 31 December
2007 had any ather interests, beneficial or otherwise, in the share
capital of the company or any of its subsidiaries. There were no other
changes in the directors’ interests in the share capital of the company
between 31 December 2007 and 11 March 2008.

No director was materially interested in any contract of significance
to AMEC’s businesses.

As at the date of this report, individual indemnities have been provided
to the directars, under which the company has agreed to indemnify the
directors to the extent permitted by law in respect of all liabilities to
third parties arising out of, or in connection with, the execution of their
powers, duties and responsibilities as directors of the company, any of
its associated companies or any other company that the director serves
as a director at the request of the company. These indemnities are
Quatlifying Third Party Indemnity Provisions as defined in Section 309A-8
of the Companies Act 1985 and copies are available for inspection at the
registered office of the company during business hours on any weekday
except public holidays.

Employees

AMEC employed on average 20,442 people in continuing activities
worldwide in 2007. Details are given on page 53 of the financial review
which reconciles the employee numbers in the business and financial
review [including agency staff] to those in note 6 of the accounts.

On average 5,547 people were employed by discontinued operations.

The development of employees, to ensure that AMEC has the necessary
skills and behaviours to deliver its strategic business ebjectives and to
provide for management succession, is given high priority. In addition,
recognising the importance for the future of bringing new people into
the group, all businesses have well established programmes for
recruiting and developing graduates and other trainees.
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Respect for cultural diversity and equal opportunities are included

_among AMEC’s Guiding Principles which are incorporated into

management policies and processes worldwide. AMEC’s policy is to
recruit from the widest labour market, determining the careers of all
employees solely on merit and making judgements about employees
free from the effects of bias and prejudice.

itis AMEC's policy to consider for employment suitably qualified
disabled people and to assist them in overcoming handicaps at work.
AMEC recognises that special arrangements are necessary, in view
of the nature of its main activities, to ensure that disabled employees
are properly trained for the tasks they perform. AMEC endeavours

to retrain any employee who develops a disability during employrnent,
wherever practicable.

Internal communication is of key importance for AMEC, as employees,
embody AMEC’s knowledge, brand and reputation. AMEC provides
numerous opportunities for employees to raise issues and discuss
matters of concern with management, whether face to face or using
electronic means. '

Employees share knowledge and are kept informed of developments
within AMEC through various means, including a weekly letter from the
chief executive, its intranet AMECnet, internal publications, best practice
groups, news bulletins and announcements. A global conference of

senior managers is normally held each year to discuss developing issues.

The company operates a UK tax authority approved savings related
share option scheme which is open to eligible UK employees and
introduced the International Savings Related Share Option Scheme
in 2005. A further offer to eligible employees under both schemes
was made during Novernber 2007.

The terms of employment of one senior executive who is not a

director provide that the employee’s normal notice period of 12 months
increases to 24 months for the duration of 12 months following a
change of control in the company. This is an histeric arrangement

and it is not the company's intention to extend this provision to other
employees, There are no other agreements with AMEC employees
which contain terms which provide for compensation for loss of office
or employment in the event of a takeover offer being made for AMEC.

Annual general meeting - special business

Resolutions are being proposed at the annual general meeting to
authorise the company to make market purchases of shares in the
company within prescribed limits, to authorise the directors to allot
shares in the company for a further period of one year and to allot
a proportion of those shares for cash.

A resolution is being proposed to amend the articles of association

of the company to incorporate changes consequent upon the further
enactment of the Companies Act 2006. The articles of association may
only be amended by a shareholders’ special resclution.

A resolution relating to the introduction of a ‘new incentive scheme
far senior executives is also being proposed.

Further details of these proposals are outlined in the circular which
accompanies this annual report and accounts.

Corporate governance

The board is responsible to shareholders for the management of the
company and for the protection of its assets. As such, itis ultimately
responsible for implementing AMEC's systemns of internal control

and for reviewing their effectiveness. These systems are designed to
manage, rather than eliminate, the risk of failure to achieve business
objectives and consequently can provide reasonable, but not absolute,
assurance against material mis-statement or loss.

The board, through the committees described below and at its regular
meetings, has a continuous process for identifying, evaluating and




managing significant risks faced by AMEC, including strategy, major
projects to be undertaken, significant acquisitions and disposals, as
well as entry to and exit from different markets. Where appropriate,
business decisions are reached fotlowing a structured and documented
review of potential opportunities and threats, taking steps designed to
manage or mitigate any residual risk exposure. Principal business risks
are set out in the business and financial review on pages 16 to 57.

AMEC uses a risk managernent process which is incorporated into

the AMEC Mandatory Procedures described below. The process involves
the identification of risks at the gross and current level by projects,
businesses and corporate functions, The risks are recorded in risk
registers to enable the net positions to be pro-actively managed.
Following a review of this process in 2007, quarterly risk review
meetings comprising representatives from the businesses and
functions have been instigated. These meetings discuss business and
functional risks; the highest risks in terms of probability and impact are
then elevated to the AMEC ple risk register. The plans for mitigation of
such risks are also reviewed.

The risk management and internal control processes are complemented
by an annual control risk self-assessment exercise carried out by the
principal businesses. This covers major risks, particularly safety, health
and envirenment, legal, commercial and contractual, financial,
information technology and human resources. The results are reviewed
by the board, through both the audit committee and the executive
directors, and as part of the ongoing internal audit process. For 2007,
this self assessment exercise was undertaken for the continuing
businesses; however discontinued businesses were subject to review
and audit until such time as their disposal was concluded.

AMEC Mandatory Procedures and Detegated Authorities

AMEC’s businesses are managed on a decentralised basis, Whilst the
board has retained reserve powers, the day-to-day management has
been passed to the business leaders within defined authority limits.
The management phitosophy is to empower the business leaders

to take the actions necessary to deliver the company’s operational
business objectives within the defined Mandatory Procedures and
Delegated Authorities, which set out the standards AMEC employees
and contracting staff are expected to achieve.

During 2007, AMEC's Mandatory Procedures and Delegated Autharities
were reviewed and updated to reflect the continuing core businesses.
This framework provides for an effective control structure and a clear
link between the levels of risk associated with tenders and delegated
autharity limits.

AMEC has interests in a number of joint ventures, associates and joint
arrangements. Controls within these entities may not be reviewed as
part of AMEC’s formal corporate governance process because of the
joint managernent responsibilities but are reviewed by the joint venture
boards and as part of AMEC’s normal internal audit process.

Consequently, AMEC complied with the Combined Code on Corporate
Governance throughout 2007.

Dialogue with institutional shareholders

Mr Green-Armytage, chairman, wrote to all major shareholders in
April 2007 informing them that he and the senior independent director,
Ms Airey, were available for meetings or telephone calls with them

if required. The chairman attends preliminary and interim results
presentations. Ms Airey is available to attend, if requested, one-on-one
meetings with major shareholders. The chairman had a number of
such meetings with major shareholders during 2007, No meetings
were requested with Ms Airey. :

An in-depth annual perception study of investors’ views, prepared by
an independent third party, is presented to all board members, who
also receive unexpurgated feedback reports fotlowing shareholder

meetings or events together with all material brokers’ research notes
on the company.

The board
The board comprises the non-executive chairman, two executive
directors and four independent non-executive directors.

The company does not combine the role of Chairman and Chief
Executive. The Chairman is responsible for the running of the board,
with the Chief Executive being responsible for running the group and
implementing board strategy and policy. This ensures a clear division

of responsibilities at the head of the company, so that no individual has
unfettered powers of decision. The independent non-executive directors
review the relationship between the Chairman and Chief Executive each
year to ensure that the relationship is working effectively.

The non-executive directors are all considered to be independent

by the board. They are not employed by the company in any capacity,
nor have they been in the past. Ms Airey has acted as the board's senior
independent director since 21 January 2004.

The Company Secretary is responsible for ensuring that board
procedures are followed and all directors have access to his advice
and services.

The board has a schedule of matters reserved for its approval covering
areas such as company strategy, the appointment of key executives,
approval of accounts, approval of the business plan, budget and financial
policies, review of operating results, risk management strategy.
ensuring the effectiveness of governance practices, succession
planning and significant capital expenditure. The board is supplied in a
timely manner with information which enables it to discharge its duties.

An external review of the effectiveness of the board and its committees
was carried out during the year by Spencer Stuart by way of interviews
with individual directors. Findings were considered by the board as
part of its review of both collective and individual board member
performance. No material changes were identified as being necessary
as a result of this exercise. The independent non-executive directors
also met privately both with and without the Chairman present and
also with both the Chairman and Chief Executive together to consider
management performance and succession issues. A formal process
exists for the directors to take independent professicnal advice and
receive appropriate training in the course of their duties, at the
campany's expense, organised by the Company Secretary.

Board committees

Under AMEC’s Management and Policy Framework, the board has
formally delegated specific responsibilities to various board
committees, all of which have written terms of reference.

The remit of each committee is set out below. The quorum is three
directors, save for the audit and remuneration committees where the
quorurn is two directors. Full details of the constitution and remit of the
audit, nominations and remuneration committees can be found under
‘corporate governance’ on www.amec.com (click on ‘About AMEC’ and
follow the links).

The committees chaired by non-executive directors are as follows:

0 Audit committee — Reviews the integrity, including the material
financial reporting judgements, of the company’s accounts, including
the preliminary and interim results, related report and accounts
and Stock Exchange announcements and any other formal
announcements in connection with the company’s financial
performance, and recommends their approval to the board.

It also reviews the company’s internal financial controls and,
in conjunction with the risk review committee, the internal control
and risk management systems,
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The committee has unrestricted access to company documents
and meets with the internal and external auditors, and any other
relevant member of staff, without the executive directors being
prasent, as necessary. The head of internal audit formally reports
to the committee chairman.

It reviews the head of internal audit’s regular reports and carries out
an annual assessment of the internal audit function’s effectiveness.
In 2007, this exercise was carried out on behalf of the committee

by the acting head of internal audit. No material changes were
identified as being necessary as a result of this exercise.

The committee considers the appointment, re-appointment,
removal, remuneration and terms of engagerment of the external
auditor and makes recommendations to the board. It discusses the
scope and planning of the external audit and reviews the outcome of
the external audit and any formal communications from the external
auditor, including internal control reports.

The committee also formally reviews and monitors the external
auditor's independence and objectivity and the effectiveness of the
audit process, taking into consideration relevant UK professional and
regulatory requirements and makes recommendations to the board.
During 2007, a review, co-ordinated on behalf of the committee

by the acting head of internal audit, was carried out. The audit
committee also monitors the implementation of the policy on the
engagement of the external auditor to supply non-audit services.
This policy follows the guidelines set out by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants in England and Wales and clearly defines what work can
and cannot be performed by any group company’s statutory auditor.
It also sets out the necessary approval process for those non-audit
services that are acceptable.

All non-statutory audit or non-compliance tax services provided

by the auditor are reported to the audit committee. During 2007,

the fees paid to the company’s auditor, KPMG Audit Plc and its
associates, for non-audit work were £1.3 million (2006: £1.1 miltion],
which comprised £0.7 million primarily relating to taxation and

£0.6 rnillion for other work [2006: £0.8 million and £0.3 millien).

KPMG also received fees of £2.0 million (2006: £4.9 million} in
respect of corporate finance transactions as follows:

2007 2006
£ million £ million

Divestment of the Built
Environment businesses 20 -
Sale of AMEC SPIE - 33
Potential separation of the group - 1.6
2.0 4.9
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All additional KPMG fees were approved in accordance with AMEC’s
policy covering non-audit services. As a result of the application

of this policy and additional discussions with the external auditor,
the directors do not believe that KPMG's independence has been
compromised as a result of their additional work on behalf of

the company.

O Nominations committee — Makes recommendations to the board

concerning the appointment or termination of a director or the
company secretary and, in the case of a nen-executive director
and the chairman, the extension of an existing appointment.

The committee also regularly reviews board succession planning,
in conjunction with reports from the chief executive and group
human resources director on senior management succession
planning, so as to ensure that an appropriate balance of skills

is maintained both within AMEC and on the board.

O Remuneration committee — Sets, and reviews as necessary, the

overall contractual and remuneration framewark for the chairman,
the executive directors and the company secretary, including pension
rights and annual bonus incentives.

It considers and determines such other matters relating to the
engagement of the chief executive and other executive directors,
including matters relating to the enforcement of their service
contracts and payments on termination, as the chairman and chief
executive respectively refer to the committee.

It agrees the terms to be offered to a proposed new chairman
or executive director.

It reviews the salaries of executive directors annually and the
chairman biennially, or more frequently as is deemed necessary

by the committee chairman, It agrees the performance targets of
executive directors and the levels of bonus to be paid to them under
the annual bonus incentive scheme.

It determines and agrees with the chief executive the remuneration
policy and structure, including annual bonus, for corporate
functional executives and senior operational executives immediately
below board level.

It approves performance targets, participation and level of awards
for any executive share-based incentive scherne.

The following table is a record of the directors’ attendance at board
and principal board committee meetings during the year ended
31 December 2007.

AMEC plc Audit Nominations Remuneration
board committee committee committee

Number of meetings 12 4 2 5
J M Green-Armytage* 12 2 2
5Y Brikho 12 2
J D Early
[up to 31 July) 7
E P Airey n [ 2 5
JADallas
(up to 16 May) 4 2
M 0 Hesse* 1 4 2 2
S J Siddall 12
T W Faithfull 12 2 5
P J Byrom " 4 2

* Joined remuneration committee on the departure of J A Dallas on
16 May 2007,




" O Charities committee — Makes commitments and donations in
support of charitable, educational and cultural causes

0 Compliance and ethics committee — Considers and approves the
codes of business conduct and related compliance arrangements
and takes responsibility for management of investigations of
violations, as necessary

1 Share transaction committee — Provides clearance or denies
permission to relevant employees to deal in AMEC shares

The committees chaired by executive directors are as follows:
O Banking committee

O Corporate transactions committee

O Pensions and retirement benefits committee

O Risk review cornmittee.

Going concern

The directars, having made enquiries, consider that the company and
the group have adequate resources to continue in operational existence
for the foreseeable future and, therefore, it is appropriate to continue

to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the accounts.

Creditor payment policy

Businesses are respensible for agreeing terms and conditions under
which transactions with their suppliers are conducted. It is group policy
that payments to suppliers are generally made in accordance with
these terms and conditions, provided that the supplier complies with
all of its obligations in this regard.

The company had 35 days’ purchases outstanding as at 31 December
2007 (2006: 31 days) based on the average daily amount invoiced by
suppliers during the year.

Donations
Donations te UK charities amounted to £446,000 for the year ended
31 December 2007 (2004: £186,000).

Disclosure of information to auditors

The directors who held office at the date of approval of this directors’
report confirm that, so far as they are each aware, there is no relevant
audit information of which the company’s auditor is unaware; and each
director has taken all the steps that he/she ought to have taken as a
director to make himself/herself aware of any relevant audit information

and to establish that the company’s auditor is aware of that information.

Auditors
A resolution will be proposed at the annual general meeting for the
re-appointment of KPMG Audit Plc as auditor of the company.

By order of the board

P J Holland
Cornpany Secretary
1% March 2008

Since the date of this report, as at 25 March 2008, the latest
practicable date prior te publication of this document, AMEC had
purchased a further 500,000 shares in the market for an aggregate
cost of £3.6 million. All the shares are held in treasury.
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This report covers the rernuneration of executive and nan-executive
directors and related matters, including long-term incentive awards.

Remuneration committee membership and advisers

During the year, the members of the remuneration committee comprised
Mr TW Faithfull {chairman), Ms £ P Airey, Mr J M Green-Armytage [from
16 May 2007), Ms M O Hesse [from 14 May 2007), and Mr J A Dallas
[until his resignation as a director on 14 May 2007]. The committee’s
terms of reference can be found under ‘corporate governance’ on
www.amec.com [click on ‘About AMEC' and follow the links) or on
written request from the Company Secretary.

In considering the matters within its remit, the committee takes
account of recommendations from the Chairman in respect of the
Chief Executive and from the Chief Executive in respect of other
executives and is advised by the group human resources director.

During 2007, New Bridge Street Consultants LLP [ New Bridge Street’]
continued to provide standing advice to the committee in connection
with its responsibilities. New Bridge Street does not carry out

material additional work for the company. The terms of engagement
between the company and New Bridge Street are available from the
Company Secretary.

Remuneration policy

The objective of the remuneration policy, in respect of the executive .
directors and other senior executives, is to offer remuneration
packages that are competitive in the markets in which the executives
are based and which:

O allow AMEC to attract and retain senior executives of high calibre; and

1 incentivise senior executives to achieve superior short-term
performance, increase the medium and long-term value of AMEC
for its shareholders and encourage executives to build and retain
a significant shareholding in AMEC.

More specifically the policy is to set:

O base salaries which broadly equate to the mid-market salary
practices of a relevant group of oil equipment and services and other
engineering and business suppart services companies and ather
companies regarded as comparable by virtue of, amongst other
factors, revenue, employee numbers, market capitalisation and/or
geographic coverage

0O annual bonuses which incentivise the achievernent of stretching
business and individual performance targets and offer the
opportunity to achieve upper quartile annual cash earnings if these
targets are achieved

0 longer term incentives which align the interests of shareholders and
senior executives by offering the latter the opportunity to accumulate
significant capital over'a period but only if stretching financial and
shareholder value targets are met

0 whilst accepting that within this policy there will be occasions when
higher and/or lower levels of remuneration will be appropriate in
particular circumstances.

Relationship between remuneration practice and strategic objectives
In applying the above policy, particularly in relation to setting targets
under the annual and longer term incentive arrangements, the
committee has regard to the need to ensure alignment with the
company’s strategic objectives.

In 2007, the key abjectives which informed this were:
C Delivering improved profitability from ongoing operations
O Reducing the cost base through the STEP Change programme

O Completion of the portfolio restructuring in particular the disposals
of the Built Environment businesses




O Progress on resolving long-standing disputes on legacy contracts.
For 2008, priority will be given to: -

O Delivering a net margin of at least 4 per cent

O Making progress towards a margin of at least 8 per centin 2010

00 Changing the culture and practice in the business to ‘best in class’
through the Operational Excellence programme

O Cash generation from engeing operations.

Executive directors’ base salaries and annual bonuses

The base salaries of executive directors are reviewed annually, having
regard to personal perforrmance, company performance, competitive
market practice as determined by external research and pay levels
more broadly within the company. The following salaries have been
approved from 1 January 2008:

SY Brikho
5 J Siddall

£750,000 +14%
£413,000 +5%

The increase for Mr Brikho is based on a combination of outstanding
performance and the external research indicating that his salary was
somewhat behind the market.

Both executive directors and other senior executives participate in the
AMEC executive annual bonus plan which generates bonus payments
calculated by reference to each of the following:

O The profit achievernent of the group, with a target level of bonus
payable for achieving budget and the maximum pay-out requiring
achievernent of a more stretching target, For both 2007 and 2008, the
targets recognise that achieving budget is in itself a significant stretch
on previous year's performance and that the scope for further upside
is therefore limited. A minimurmn threshold is also set representing the
level below which it would not be appropriate for any bonus to be paid

O The achievernent of other specific business targets, inctuding cash
flow and, where relevant, divisional profit

O Individual performance objectives [for example, in relation to safety,
health and environment, strategy, business development and
organisational issues]. In 2007, the achievement of the STEP Change
plan was the main or onty objective for executives. For 2008, this will
include, where appropriate, the achievement of specific measures
and/or implementation of specific change actions arising out of the
Operational Excellence programme.

A separate amount of bonus attaches to each of these components.
The proportions vary between individuals depending on their specific
executive roles. n every case the profit and other business target
components represent more than half of the patential total.

Further information on the 2007 targets and the performance against
thern is set out in the notes to the table of directors’ remuneration
on page 74.

The maximum potential annual bonus for the Chief Executive is

125 per cent of base salary. For 2008, the maximum potential for

the Finance Director has been increased from 80 to 90 per cent in order
to move towards a package of fixed and variable pay which is better
aligned with the market.

As indicated in last year's report, Mr J D Early's bonus payment for 2007
reflects the achievement of the Built Environment business disposals
in terms acceptable to the board, the price achieved and performance
of the constituent businesses up to disposal.

In the senior management group, no executive has a base salary or
total remuneration higher than any executive director.

Executive directors’ long-term incentives

AMEC’s principal long-term incentive arrangement is the Performance
Share Plan 2002. AMEC's policy is to make annual awards to executive
directors, and to a small number of other senior executives just below
board level, of restricted shares with a value at the time of award of up
to 175 per cent of base salary. In addition, participants are offered a
further award, up to a maximum of 25 per cent of base salary, of five
restricted shares for every three purchased which are held on their
behalf as investment shares for the three year performance period.

To the extent that investrnent shares are withdrawn before the end

of the performance pericd, the matching shares lapse.

Awards are also made to a wider group of executives, with lower levels
of face value to reflect seniority and contribution. Awards are normally
made in April following the publication of the annual result.

These restricted shares will enly vest if pre-determined performance
conditions are met. 30 per cent of the award is based on total
shareholder return and 50 per cent on growth in earnings per share,
both measured over three years.

For the total shareholder return portion, the requirement for full vesting
is for AMEC to be ranked in the top quartile of a comparator group.

No awards will vest if AMEC's performance is below median. If AMEC’'s
performance is at the median, 25 per cent of the award will vest.
Between the median and the upper quartile, the award will vest

on a straight-line basis. In addition, to ensure that AMEC’s underlying
performance is properly reflected, no awards will vest unless there has
been sustained financial growth of the company.

For the 2007 awards, the comparator group comprised the 30 companies,
including AMEC, that, at the tirme of grant, were in the FTSE Business
Support Services, Heavy Construction and Oil Equipment and Services
sub-sectors, and whose market capitalisations lay in the range

£550 million to £5,000 million. For the 2008 awards, taking account of
the sale of the UK construction activities, the Heavy Construction sub-
sector will be replaced with that of Industrial Machinery and the market
capitalisation threshold, for the range spanning that of AMEC, increased
to £750 million. Lists of the comparator companies for the awards that
lapsed during the year and those awards currently subsisting can be
obtained on written request from the Company Secretary.

For the earnings per share growth portion, the intended long-term
policy is that the vesting range will be RP! plus 3 per cent per annum
(25 per cent of that part of the award vests) to RPI plus 10 per cent per
annum (100 per cent of that award vests). However, for the 2007 and
2008 awards, taking account of the plans that are being implemented
to improve the margins and reduge overheads in the ongaing business,
applying this RPI plus 3 to 10 per cent earnings per share growth range
has not been considered to be sufficiently stretching. Consequently the
earnings per share required in 2009 for maximum vesting of the relevant
portion of the 2007 awards is 38p and the level at which 25 per cent of
this portion of the award will vest will be 24p. For the awards being
made in 2008, the earnings per share required in 2010 will be 45p for
any vesting to 53p for full vesting. These targets are consistent with the
cormpany's objective to achieve EBITA margin of at least 8 per cent in 2610.

Earnings per share are calculated on a consistent and normalised
basis by the remuneration committee, having sought appropriate
external advice on the method of calculation and any adjusting and
potentiatly adjusting items. Performance against the total shareholder
return targets is calculated independently and reviewed by the
remuneration committee.

In the event of a change of control, awards will normally vest to the
extent that the performance conditions have been met at the date the
change of control takes place.
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Shares held by the trustee of the Performance Share Plan, BWCI Trust
Company Limited, may be voted at their discretion.

The company has a second scheme in place, the Executive Share
Option Scheme 2002. AMEC's policy is to grant share options under
this scheme anly selectively and in exceptional circumstances such as
recruitment. No awards have been made under this scheme since 2004,

In addition, executive directors may participate in relevant all employee
share plans which provide options, without performance conditions,
related to savings contracts with an aggregate limit of £250 savings
per month.

Transformation Incentive

In order to give additional impetus to the transformation of the company,
itis proposed to introduce a further one-off incentive which would apply
to a small group of selected top executives whose retention is seen as key
through this critical period. This incentive, which requires shareholder
approval, would relate directly to the achievemnent by 2010 of even greater
margin than is envisaged in the current plans and entail significant personal
investment in AMEC shares. Full details are set out in the resolution and
explanatory notes circulated to shareholders with this report.

Share ownership guidelines

During 2007, guidelines have been introduced requiring executive
directors and other senior executives to build up over a three year
period and retain a holding of AMEC shares received from incentive
plans or purchased by them. A level of one times salary is being
targeted for executive directors with lower levels for less senior
executives. The position against these targets is assessed in December
of each year and will be reported on annually following the completion
of the initial three year period at the end of 200%. Details of directors’
interests at the end of 2007 are listed on page 48 of the report of the
directors. Up to date details of current directors’ interests and transactions
are available on www.amec.com [click on ‘Investers’ and follow the links}.

Executive directors’ pensien arrangements

Both executive directors are members of the AMEC Staff Pension
Scherme and have top-up benefits provided through the AMEC Executive
Pension Scheme. The schemes are both defined benefit schermes
registered with the UK tax authority and alse provide for life assurance
cover and dependants’ pensions. These executive directors accrue
pension rights which are linked to the length of pensionable service and
to pensionable salary and have a normal pension age of 60, However
executive directors who remain in employment beyond 60 are able to
continute to accrue further pension rights. Pensicnable salary in respect
of schere membership up to the end of 2007 is based on final salary
and in respect of membership from 2008 onwards is based on career
average revalued earnings.

The benefits of Mr Brikho and Mr Siddall are restricted to a scheme
earnings cap which was set at £120,000 for the 2007/8 tax year [€123,750
for 2008/9) and they receive a taxable supplement to their salaries in
relation to earnings above the cap. Mr Brikho also has the benefit of
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additional life assurance in respect of earnings above the cap. There are
no unregistered pension arrangements in force for executive directors.

Executive directors are able to opt-out of further pension accrual,
particularly if this would provide benefits in excess of the Life Time
Allowance, in which case they will receive a non-bonusable salary
supplement of 20 per cent of basic salary in lieu of further pension
accrual. This applied to Mr Early during the part of 2007 for which
he was employed.

If individuals do accrue benefits in excess of the Life Time Allowance,
the payment of the associated tax liability will be the responsibility
of the individual and not AMEC,

Employment related benefits, principally the provision of a company
car or car allowance, long-term disability and private medical expenses
insurance, are also provided to executive directors. Mr Brikho also
receives a temporary relocation atlowance that reduces over his first
three years of ernployment.

Executive directors’ employment contracts

AMEC's policy is that on appointmment, executive directors will
normally be employed with a notice period of one year. In the event
of employment being terminated with less notice than this, damages
will be deterrnined at the time taking account of the circumstances
leading up to the termination and the individual's duty to mitigate his
loss. Executive directors are required to give six months’ notice of
resignation. Since 1 October 2006, executive directors have a
contractual retirement age of 65.

This policy is followed for Mr Brikho and generally for Mr Siddall.
However, in Mr Siddall's case his employment contract provides

that if the company terminates employment {ather than for gross
misconduct), rather than receiving notice, he will be entitled to one
year's remuneration (less tax) as liquidated damages in full and final
settlement. For this purpose and, as a reasonable estimate of loss,
remuneration is defined as 1.75 times basic annual salary. This
recognises that he previously had a notice period of two years which
was reduced by agreement to one year from 1 January 2003 without
compensation, following the change in policy on notice periods.

Mr Early had a contract which was due to terminate on 31 December
2007. He retired earlier than this on 31 July 2007, by agreement
following the substantial completion of the Built Environment disposals,
with Mr Early receiving compensation for the five months’ balance

of the contract.

Service contracts for executive directors do not provide for extended
notice periods in the event of a change of control. It is not the
remuneration committee’s intention to introduce such provisions.

The service centracts of the executive directors are available for review at
the company’s registered office in accordance with relevant legislation.

External directorships
Executive directors are not permitted to accept external directorships
without the prior approval of the board.

For the period during the year when he was a director of AMEC, Mr Early
was a director of G-Mex Limited for which he received no remuneration.

Chairman

The remuneration committee is responsible for determining the
remuneration and other terms of employment of the Chairman of the
board, The contract of the chairman, Mr Green-Armytage, was renewed
for a further three years from 20 January 2008. 1t may be terminated
earlier than this on six months’ written notice of resignation or with
payment of six months’ fees if the board withdraw their agreement to
his continuing to serve as Chairman, other than for gross misconduct.
The Chairman’s current fee is £225,000 per annum and he is provided
with life assurance cover of four times the pensions earnings cap.




Non-executive directors

The rernuneration of non-executive directors is determined by the
Chairman and the executive directors under delegated authority from
the board. The non-executive directors receive fees for their services
and do not participate in any of the incentive or benefit schemes of
the group. Fees were reviewed with effect from 1 January 2008,

The current fee is £50,000 per annum plus a further £5,000 per annum
in respect of chairing committees of the board other than the audit
committee, where the additional fee is £12,500 per annum, and the
remuneration committee, where the additional fee is £7,500 per
annum. There is an additional fee of £7,500 per annum paid to the
senior independent director. The policy with regard to fee structure

is to reflect time commitment and responsibility of the various roles.

Non-executive directors may also be paid additional fees for other
duties undertaken on behalf of the company. No such fees were
paid in 2007.

The board’s policy is that non-executive director appointrents are
normally for three consecutive three-year terms, subject to review after
the end of each term. The non-executive directors as at 31 December
2007 have fixed-term contracts which run until the dates set out below:
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Date of contract  Service review date

E P Airey 26 May 1999 13 May 2009
M O Hesse 1 June 2000 31 May 200%
P J Byram 10 February 2005 ¢ February 2011
T W Faithfull 10 February 2005 9 February 20N ) |

The contracts of non-executive directors may be terminated by the
individual at any time and there are no specific provisions for
compensation in the event of early termination by the company.

In accordance with the articles of association of AMEC, all directors
are required to seek re-election by shareholders every three years,

Perfermance graph

This graph shows the value, by 31 Decernber 2007, of £100 invested
in AMEC plc on 31 December 2002 compared with the value of £100
invested in the FTSE All Share Support Services Index, the sector

in which AMEC was listed for the majority of 2007 and which the
committee believes is an appropriate comparator of historical
performance. The other points plotted are the values at intervening
financial year-ends.

E00
m

- 7
400 /

300
T A0

Value |£]

100

D L L i1 1 1 1
Oec 02 Oec 03 Dec 04 Dec 05 Dec 06 Oec 07

AMECplt =  ====- FTSE All Share Support Services Index

Source; Thomson Financial

In respect of forward remuneration policy, the committee believes

that the appropriate comparison will be against the FTSE All Share il

Equipment and Services sub-sector index. However since that index is

onty available from 2006 onwards, it is not currently possible to present
& five year comparison.
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Directors’ remuneration report continued

Directors’ remuneration and related matters
The auditors are required to report on the following information on pages 76 to 77 of the directors’ remuneration report.

Individual aspects of remuneration were as follows:

Compensation
Pension Accommodation Benefits for loss 2007 2006
Salary/fee  supplement® altowance BonusH! in kind®! of office™ . Total Total
£000 £000 £000 €000 £000 £000 €000 £000
Executive
5Y Brikho
(frorm 1 October 2006] 657 108 220 a2 37 - 1,843 465
J D Early {to 31 July 2007) 175 35 - 467 9 156 842 428
S J Siddall 393 53 - 34 20 - 782 588
Sir Peter Mason
(to 30 September 2006) - - - - - - - 708
4 A Monville
(to 27 July 20061 - - - - - - - 1,070
Non-executive
J M Green-Armytage ‘ 200 - - - - - 200 200
E P Airey 55 - - - - - i 55 65
JADallas .
(to 15 May 2007) 15 - - - - - 15 b4
M O Hesse 53 - - - - - 53 70
P J Byrom 40 - - - - - 60 64
T W Faithfult 55 - - - - - b5 63
J-P Jacamon [to 31 August 2006) - - - - - - - 45
Total board 1,663 198 220 1,602 b6 156 3,905 3.830
Notes

(i} MrSiddall and Mr Brikho received a taxable supplement of 20 per cent of salary above the pension earnings cap Mr Earty received
a supplement of 20 per cent of total salary in lieu of further pension accrual.

(il The bonuses detailed above represented the following percentages of their base salaries for the year: Mr Brikho 125 per cent, and
Mr Siddall 80 per cent. The level of these awards at maximum reflects the outstanding business performance during the year where all
targets on profit, cash and STEP Change implementation were exceeded. Although not separately targeted for annual bonus purpeses for
these directors, good progress was also made in settling legacy issues.
The bonus figure for Mr Early relates to a special incentive geared to both the proceeds of the sale of the Built Environment businesses,
which were at the upper end of the range of original expectations, and the maintaining of budgeted financial performance up to the point
of sale. This replaced his normal annual bonus for the year.

[ilil The value of benefits in kind received during the year relates principally to the provision of a company car or car allowance, travelling
expenses and private medical expenses insurance.

livl Mr Early received a payment equal to base salary. pension supplement and car allowance for the remaining five months of 2007 following
his retirement, in line with his contractual terms.

The numbers of restricted shares held by executive directors to whom awards had been made under the Performance Share Plan 2002 or,
in the case of Mr Brikho, the Recruitment Plan, were as follows:

As at
31 Decemnber
2007

As at Awarded Market price Vested Lapsed
1 Januar¥ during atdate of during during or date of End of
200 the year Date award the year the year retirement Restricted
Number Number awarded Pence Number Number Number Period
S Y Brikho 87,857 Oct 2006 358.00 87857 - Dec 2007
63,389 Oct 2006 358.00 63,389 Feb 2009
544,693 Oct 2006 358.00 544,693 Sep 2009
246,687 Apr 2007 532.25 246,687 Mar 2010
S J Siddall 98,333 Apr 2004 300.00 98,333 - Mar 2007
97.679 Apr 2005 326.60 97,679 Mar 2008
104,803 Sept 2005 343.50 104,803 Mar 2008
169.615 Sept 20056 323.00 169,615 Aug 2009
22,701 Sept 2006 334.50 22,701 Aug 2009
147,720 Apr 2007 532.25 142,720 Mar 2010
J D Early 87,500 Apr 2004 300.00 87,500 - Mar 2007
80,786 Sept 2005 343.50 6,732 74,054 Mar 2008
130,745 Sept 2006 323.00 41,774 88,97 Aug 2009
21,776 Sept 2006 334.50 21,776 - Aug 2009
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Notes

(il  Farthe performance share awards made in April 2004, AMEC failed to meet the minimum performance conditions and, therefore, the
awards lapsed in April 2007

lil A propartion of Mr Early’s performance share awards lapsed on his retirement to take account of the unexpired portions of the relevant
performance periods.

(i) The awards made to Mr Brikho in October 2006 under the Recruitment Plan are not subject to performance conditions. These replaced
share awards in his former employer which were forfeit on joining AMEC.

{ivi The market price on 8 December 2007, the date of vesting of the second portion of Mr Brikho's awand under the Recruitment Plan, was 753.00 pence,

(v) The terms and conditions of the Performance Share Plan 2002 have not been varied during the year.

[vil The closing price of the shares at 31 December 2007 was 838.50 pence (2006: 421.50 pencel.

(viil The range of the closing prices for the shares during the year was 419.50 pence to 840.50 pence.

fviiil The register of directors’ interests, which is open to inspection at the company’s registered office, contains full details of directors’
shareholdings, share options and awards under the perfermance share plans.

[ix] Had the restricted shares as at 31 December 2007 detaited above vested in full on that date the approximate latent value before appropriate
taxes for each of the current directors would have been: Mr Brikho, €7,167,000; and Mr Siddall, £4,549,000. These hypothetical figures
assume that all relevant performance conditions would have been futly met, which in practice may not transpire.

The options over AMEC plc shares held by the directors under the Executive Share Option Scheme and Savings Related Share Option Scheme*
(together the ‘Option Schemes’] were as follows:

As at Granted ki) Decer:i:: Market price .
1Janua during Exercised/ 2007 or date on date of Exercise period for
Date of 20‘% theyear lapsedduring  of retirement Option price exercise options outstanding on
grant Number Number the year Number Pence Pence 31 December 2007
SY Brikho Dec 2007 1,624* 1,624 591.00 Mar 2011 - Aug 2011
J O Early Oct 2002 101,000 101,000 - 219.75 Lapsed ti)
Sep 2003 946,000 96,000 27425 Sept 2008 - Mar 2009
Oct 2003 3,893 3.893 - 218.00 421.25 i
Sep 2004 82,031 82,031 - 320.00 Lapsed ti)
5 J Siddall Oct 2002 118,500 118,500 - 219.75 Lapsed ti
Sep 2003 119,000 119,000 276.25 Sept 2008 - Sept 2013
Oct 2003 4,231* 4,23 - 218.00 421.25 i
Sep 2004 106,250 106,250 - 320.00 Lapsed )
Dec 2007 t.624* 1,624 591.00 Mar 2011 - Aug 2011

Notes

[l Gains on exercise: Mr Early £7,913 [2006: £Nit], Mr Siddall £8,600 [2004: Nil).

lil Al awards under the Executive Share Option Scheme 2002 are subject to performance conditions which require a minimum tevel of earnings per
share growth for any vesting and a higher level of growth for full vesting. The minimum performance conditions which applied to the awards made
in 2002 and 2004 were not met and these awards therefore lapsed on their respective fifth and third anniversaries from grant. The minimum
performance condition in relation to the awards made in 2003 has also not been met and these awards will lapse on 4 September 2008.

(il The terms and conditions of the Option Schemes have not been varied during the year and all subsisting awards were made at nil cost.

Pension entitlements and benefits
The following directors were members of defined benefit schermnes provided by the company during the year. Pension entitlements and
corresponding transfer values increased as follows during the year:

Gross Increase in Total accrued Value of net Value of Value of

increase in accrued pension at increase Total change accrued pension  accrued pension

accrued pension net 31 December in accrual invatue at31 December at 31 December

pension of inflation 2007 over period during period 2007 2006

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

SY Brikho . 4 4 5 51 . 55 79 12
S J Siddall 6 5 30 89 104 646 530

Notes

(i}  Pension accruals shown are the amounts which would be paid annually on retirement based on service to the end of the year.

lil Transfer values have been calculated in accordance with version 8.1 of guidance note GN11 issued by the actuarial profession.

liiil The value of netincrease represents the incremental value to the director of his service during the year, calculated on the assumption
service terminated at the year-end. It is based on the accrued pension increase after deducting the director’s contribution.

[iv) The change in the transfer value includes the effect of fluctuations in the transfer value due to factors beyond the control of the company
and directors, such as stock market movements. It is calculated after deducting the director’s contribution.

[v] Voluntary contributions paid by directors and resulting benefits are not shown.

T W Faithfull

Chairman, remuneration committee
On behalf of the board

11 March 2008 '

Note

As reported elsewhere, Mr S J Siddall resigned on 17 March 2008 and will leave AMEC by agreement on 31 May 2008. He wil not receive any compensation. He will not be eligible for
a bonus payment in respect of 2008 and the awards made under the Performance Share Plan in 2006 and 2007 will lapse on leaving.
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Consolidated income statement
For the year ended 31 December 2007

2007 2006
Exceptional
items Exceptional
Exceptional arising from  profits/[casts)
profits/lcosts) litigation and of exiting
Exceptional of exiting Before separation businesses
Before items arising businesses exceptional costs  and markets
exceptional fromlitigation  and markets items [note 5) {note 5] Total
items [note 5) Inate 5) Total (Restated) {Restated| [Restated]) [Restated)
Note £ million £ million £ million £ million £ millien £ million £ million £ million
Continuing operations
Revenue 28&3 2,354.2 - - 2,354.2 21216 - - 21214
Cost of sales (2,048.7) 10.2 0.5 (2,038.0) (1,867.0 (17.6] (4.3) (1,888.9)
Gross profit/(toss} 307.5 10.2 0.5 318.2 254.6 (17.6] (4.3) 232.7
Administrative expenses (203.7) - - (203.7) 1717 - - (1M.7
[Loss)/profit on business
disposals and closures - (5.7) 23.2 17.5 - (39.1] (41.8] (80.9)
Profit/[loss) before net
financing income/[costs) 2 & 4 103.8 4.5 23.7 132.0 82.9 156.7) [46.1) {19.9)
Financial income 221 - - 221 9.3 - - 93
Financial expense 3.7 - - (3.7) [16.3) - - {16.3)
Net financing incorne/[costs) 7 18.4 - - 18.4 (7.0} - - (7.0
Share of post-tax results
of joint ventures
and associates 2 1.2 - - 1.2 0.1} - - (0.1)
Profit/(loss) before
income tax 123.4 4.5 23.7 151.6 75.8 {56.7) [46.1) [27.0)
Income tax 8 (30.9) 1.0 (0.2) (30.1) (22.5) 49 2.4 (15.2)
Profit/(lass] for the year
from continuing operations 92.5 5.5 235 121.5 53.3 {51.8} (43.7) [42.2)
{Loss)/profit for the year
from discontinued
operations 9 {4.7) 5.1 222.5 222.9 Q.5 {16.4} 2773 2614
Profit/(loss] for the year 87.8 10.6 246.0 k7 WA 238 T {68.2) 2334 219.2
Attributable to:
Equity holders of the company 4.3 2181
Minaority interests 0.1 1.1
b4 219.2
Basic earnings/[loss)
per share: 10
Continuing operations 36.9p (13.3)p
Discontinued aperations 87.8p 80.2p
104.7p 66.9p
Diluted earnings/[loss)
per share: 10
Continuing operations 36.1p [13.3lp
Discontinued aperations 66.2p 80.2p
102.3p 66.9p

78 AMEC ptc annual report 2007




Consolidated statement of recognised income and expense

For the year ended 31 December 20607

2007 2006
Note £ million £ million
Exchange movements on translation of foreign subsidiaries 32.3 (37.4)
Actuarial gains on defined benefit pension schemes 14 84.1 2.9
Group share of actuarial gains on defined benefit pensian scheme within associate [net of tax] - 1.8
Net [loss)/gain on hedges of net investment in foreign subsidiaries 21 (8.4) 16.4
Cash flow hedges:
Effective portion of changes in fair value 1.8 12.5
Transferred to the income statement 2.1} -
Group share of changes in fair value of cash flow hedges within joint venture entities [net of tax] 2.4 50
Tax in respect of items recognised directly in equity 8 1.9 (6.5)
Net income/lexpense) recognised directly in equity 90.0 [5.3)
Profit for the year . 3444 219.2
Total recognised income and expense for the year 434.4 213.9
Attributable to:
Equity holders of the company 434.3 213
Minority interests 0.1 24
Total recognised income and expense for the year 23 4344 2139
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Consolidated batance sheet
As at 31 December 2007

2007 2006

Note € million £ million
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 1 57.6 733
intangible assets 12 223.8 197.6
Interests in joint ventures and associates 13 22.7 - 852 .
Other investments 13 0.8 0.9
Retirement benefit assets 14 161.3 105.6
Deferred tax assets 15 58.9 16.4
Total non-current assets 525.1 479.0
Current assets
Inventories 16 6.1 L1.7
Trade and other receivables 17 529.4 804.3
Derivative financial instruments 21 31 9.0
Cash and cash equivalents 24 73441 375.4
Assets classified as hetd for sale 18 19.0 1071
Total current assets 1,291.7 1.345.5
Total assets 2 1,816.8 18245
LIABILITIES
Current liahilities
Bank loans and overdrafts 20 (0.8) (13.6)
Trade and other payables 19 {641.5) (1,021.4)
Derivative financial instruments 21 (5.3 {1.9]
Current tax payable (59.4) (19.3)
Liabilities classified as held for sale 18 (5.4) (69.5)
Total current liabilities (712.6) (1,125.7)
Non-current liabilities
Bank loans 20 (0.1 16.9)
Retirement benefit liabilities 14 (11.3) {13.0)
Deferred tax liabilities 15 - (10.3)
Provisions 22 (199.4] (173.8)
Total non-current liabilities (210.8) (204.0)
Total liabilities 2 923.4) 1,329.7)
Net assets 2 893.4 494.8
EQUITY
Share capital 23 168.7 166.8
Share premium account 23 99.5 90.7
Hedging and translation reserves 23 16.8 [20.5)
Capital redemption reserve 23 17.2 17.2
Retained earnings 23 590.4 2389
Amounts recognised in equity relating to assets and liahilities held for sale 23 - 0.9
Total equity attributable to eguity holders of the parent 892.6 4940
Minority interests 23 0.8 08
Total equity 23 893.4 4948

The accounts on pages 78 to 114 were approved by the board of directors on 11 March 2008 and were signed on its behalf by:

SY Brikho
Chief Executive

S J Siddall
Finance Director
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Consolidated cash flow statement
For the year ended 31 December 2007

2007 2006
Note £ million £ million
Cash flow from operating activities
Profit/{loss) before income tax from continuing operations 151.6 (27.0
Profit before income tax from discontinued operations 9 2%0.7 2413
Profit before income tax 442.3 2143
Financial income (24.2) £18.5]
Financial expense 4.2 283
Share of post-tax results of joint ventures and associates (6.0 11.7)
Intangible amortisation 25 6.2
Depreciation 21.7 35.1
Impairment of non-current assets - 7.1
Profit on disposal of businesses (310.1) (301.8)
Profit on disposal of property, plant and equipment 2.3 {1.6)
Equity settled share-based payments 5.3 {2.3)
133.4 (44.9)
Decrease in inventories 7.4 12.7
Decrease in trade and other receivables 36.1 1123
[Decreasel/increase in trade and other payables and provisions (36.7) © 218
Cash generated from operations 140.2 101.7
Interest paid (4.2) (34,81
Tax [paidl/refunds received (38.0 2.5
Net cash flow from operating activities 98.0 744
Cash flow from investing activities
Acquisition of subsidiaries, net of cash acquired 12.7 (15.0)
Acquisition of joint ventures, associates and other investments (6.0 (23.5]
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (18.4) (38.2)
Purchase of intangible assets 0.2) 0.8)
Disposal of businesses [net of cash disposed of] 25631 627.4
Disposal of joint ventures, associates and other investments 19.2 27.2
Disposal of property, plant and equipment 9.7 265
Interest received 22.7 19.0
Dividends received from joint ventures and associates 2.0 3.2
Net cash flow from investing activities 279.4 626.0
Net cash flow before financing activities 377.4 700.4
Cash flow from financing activities
Repayment of loans (4.3) (549.9]
Dividends paid (3.8 (37.5)
Proceeds from shares issued 10.7 1.6
Acquisition of treasury shares [21.5) -
Disposal of shares by trustees of the Performance Share Plan 2002 0.3 2.2
Net cash flow from financing activities 154.6) (583.8)
Increase in cash and cash equivalents 322.8 114.8
Cash and cash equivalents as at the beginning of the year 406.4 3327
Exchange gains/[losses] on cash and cash equivalents 4.2 (2.8
Cash of former subsidiary equity accounted from the beginning of the year - (30.3}
Cash and cash equivalents as at the end of the year 24 7334 406.4
Cash and cash equivalents consist of:
Cash at bank and in hand 720.4 3356.2
Short-term investrments 13.7 39.2
734.1 375.4
Overdrafts 10.7) [1.2)
733.4 374.2
Cash and cash equivalents (including overdrafts] classified as hetd for sate - 32.2
Cash and cash equivalents 24 733.4 408.4
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Notes to the consolidated accounts

1 Significant accounting poticies

AMEC plc is a company domiciled in the United Kingdor.

Statement of comptiance
The group accounts include the accounts of AMEC ple [AMEC’] and all of its subsidiaries made up to 31 December each year, and the group's
share of the profit after interest and tax, and net assets of joint ventures and associates, based on the equity method of accounting.

In accordance with EU law [IAS Regulation EC 1604/2002), the consolidated accounts of the group have been prepared in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards [ IFRS’) adopted for use in the EU as at 31 December 2007 [‘adopted IFRS'). The consolidated
accounts of the group have also been prepared in accerdance with those parts of the Companies Act 1985 applicable to companies reporting
under IFRS, The company has elected to prepare its parent cormpany accounts in accordance with UK Generally Accepted Accounting Principles
'UK GAAP'); these are presented on pages 11510 120,

IFRS 7 Financial instrurnents: disclosure” was adopted during the year. As the standard is concerned only with disclosure, its adoptien had
no impact on either the balance sheet or income statement.

During 2006 IFRIC 12 on service concession arrangements was issued. This interpretation is effective from 1 January 2008, but has yet to be
adopted for use in the EU. In view of this, the directors consider that it remains appropriate to apply the approach set out in Apptication Note F

of the UK Financial Reporting Standard 5 ‘Reporting the substance of transactions’ in determining the accounting model to be applied to AMEC's
PPP activities. This involves applying a ‘risks and rewards’ test to determine whether a non-current asset or finance debtor model should be
followed. The directors do not expect this accounting policy to be significantly different to that under IFRIC 12.

During 2007 IFRIC 14 on defined benefit pension scheme assets was issued. This interpretation is effective from 1 January 2008, but has yet

to be adopted for use in the EU. In view of this it has not been applied by the group in the consolidated accounts. On adoption this is not expected
to have an impact on the group’s consolidated accounts as, following a review of the basis of recoverability, the surplus has been recognised net
of deferred tax on the balance sheet in 2007 .

During 2006 IFRIC 11 on group and treasury share transactions was issued. This interpretation is effective for the group’s 2008 accounts and
is not expected to have 8 material impact on the group’s conselidated accounts.

During 2006 IFRS 8 on segment reporting was issued and is effective from 1 January 2009. IFRS 8 will require disclosure of segment information
based on internal management information.

The accounting paolicies set out below have, unless otherwise stated, been applied consistently to all periods presented in these consolidated accounts.

Basis of preparation
The accounts are presented in Sterting, rounded to the nearest hundred thousand. They are prepared on the historical cost basis except that
derivative financial instruments and retirement benefit assets and liabilities are stated at fair value.

The preparation of accounts in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles requires management to make judgements, estimates
and assurnptions that affect the application of policies and reported amounts of assets and liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates and
associated assumptions are based on historical experience and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making the judgements ahout carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period
in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects
both current and future periods.

Some of these policies require a high level of judgement, and AMEC believes that the most critical accounting policies and significant areas
of judgement and estimation arise fromn the accounting for defined benefit pension schemes under IAS 19 ‘Employee benefits', for tong-term
contracts under IAS 11 ‘Construction contracts’ and for provisions under IAS 37 ‘Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets’.

Defined benefit pension schemes are accounted for in accordance with the advice of independent quatified actuaries but significant judgements
are required in relation to the assumptions for future salary and pension increases, inflation, investrment returns and member longevity that
underpin their valuations.

A significant amount of the group’s activities are undertaken via long-term contracts. These contracts are accounted for in accordance with
tAS 11 which requires estimates to be made for contract costs and revenues.

Management base their judgements of contract costs and revenues on the latest available information, which includes detailed contract
valuations, In many cases the results reflect the expected outcome of long-term contractual obligations which span more than one reporting
period. Contract costs and revenues are affected by a vartety of uncertainties that depend on the outcome of future events and often need to be
revised as events unfold and uncertainties are resolved. The estimates of contract costs and revenues are updated regularly and significant
changes are highlighted through established internal review procedures. In particular, the internal reviews focus on the timing and recognition
of incentive payments and the age and recoverability of any unagreed income from variations to the contract scope or claims. The impact of the
changes in accounting estimates is then reflected in the ongoing results.

When accounting for provisions for litigation and other items the group has taken internal and externat advice in considering known legal claims
and actions made by or against the group. It carefully assesses the likelihood of success of a claim or action. Appropriate provisions are made
for legal claims or actions against the group on the basis of likely cutcome, but no provisions are made for those which in the view of
management are unlikely to succeed.
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1 Significant accounting policies continued

Cash deposits and financial transactions give rise to credit risk in the event that counterparties fail to perform under the contract, AMEC
manages these risks by ensuring that surplus funds are placed with counterparties up to a pre-approved limit. These limits are set at prudent
levels by the board, are based primarity on credit ratings set by Moody’s, Standard & Poors and Fitch and have been reviewed in light of the
recent market turbulence.

The board’s policy is ta maintain a strong capital base. The group has remained in a net cash position throughout the year. This pasition is
considered temporary as the group intends to invest in the businesses and may continue the share buy back programme, for up to £80 milkion,
on an opportunistic basis.

In accordance with IFRS 5, the post-tax results of discontinued operations are disctosed separately in the consolidated income statement,
with the 2006 consolidated income statement and notes 2 to 9 being restated for the same presentation, The results and other disclosures
in respect of discontinued operations are shown in note 9.

The non-core Built Environment businesses were sold during the year and are treated as discontinued operations in 2007. Other discontinued
operations include pipeline construction businesses which were sold during 2006 and 2007, and AMEC SPIE, which was sold in 2006.

The cash flows are fully consolidated within AMEC up to the date aof sale and the assets and liabilities of discontinued operations that have
not been sold at the year end are shown separately on the consolidated balance sheet.

In accordance with IFRS.5, the consolidated balance sheet has not been restated to exctude discontinued operations. The consolidated cash flow
has not been restated to exclude discontinued operations.

Basis of consolidation

A subsidiary is an entity controlled by AMEC. Control is achieved where AMEC has the power to govern the financial and operating policies

of the entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities. The resuits of subsidiaries are included in the consolidated accounts from the date that
control commepces until the date that control ceases.

A joint venture entity is an entity over whose activities AMEC has joint control, established by contractual agreement. An associate is an entity
in which AMEC has significant influence, but not control, over the financial and operating policies. The consolidated accounts include the
group’s share of the total recognised gains and losses of associates and jointly controtled entities on an equity accounted basis. The results
of joint venture entities and associates are included in the consolidated accounts from the date that joint control or significant influence
commences until the date that it ceases.

Losses of a joint venture or an assaciate are recognised only to the extent of the group's interest in the joint venture or associate, unless the
group has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of the joint venture or associate.

Jointly controlled operations and assets where each party has its own separate interest in particular risks and rewards, are accounted for
by including the attributable share of the assets it controls, liabilities and cash flows it incurs and its share of the income measured according
to the terms of the arrangernent,

Bid costs

Bid costs are expensed as incurred until the group is appeinted as the preferred bidder. Subsequent to appointment as preferred bidder,
bid costs are capitalised and held on the balance sheet provided the award of the contract is virtually certain and it is expected to generate
sufficient net cash flow to allow recovery of the hid costs. Where bid costs are reimbursed at financial close, the proceeds are applied first
against the balance of costs included in the balance sheet, with any additional amounts treated as deferred income and released to profit
over the period of the contract.

Business comhbinations and goodwill
The purchase method is used to account for all business combinations.

Goodwill represents the excess of the fair value of the purchase consideration over the fair value of the assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities acquired.

Goodwill arising on acquisitions since 1 January 2004 is capitalised and subject to an impairment review, both annually and when there are
indications that its carrying value may not be recoverable. Goodwill is not amortised.

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash balances and call deposits. Bank overdrafts that are repayable on demand and form an integral part
of AMEC's cash management are included as a component of cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of the statement of cash flows.

Construction and other long-term contracts

As soon as the outcome of a construction or other long-term contract can be estimated reliably, contract revenue and expenses are recognised
in the income staternent in proportion to the stage of completion of the contract. The stage of cormpletion is assessed by reference to surveys

of work performed. When the outcome of a contract cannot be estimated reliably, revenue is recognised only to the extent of contract costs
incurred that it is probable will be recoverable, and contract casts are expensed as incurred. An expected loss on a contract is recognised
immediately in the income statement.

Revenue in respect of variations to the contract scope and claims is recognised when it is probable that it will be received and is capable of being
reliably measured. Incentive payments are recognised when a contract is sufficiently far advanced that it is probable that the required conditions
will be met and the amount of the payment can be reliably measured.

The gross amounts due from customers under construction and other long-term contracts are stated at cost plus recognised profits,
less provision for recognised losses and progress billings. These amounts are reported in trade and other receivables.

Payments on account in excess of the gross amounts due from customers are included in trade and other payables.
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Notes to the consolidated accounts continued

1 Significant accounting policies continued

Discontinued operations and assets and liabilities held for sale

A discontinued aperation is a separate major line of business or geographic area of operations that has either been disposed of or is held for
sale, or is a subsidiary acquired exclusively with a view to resale or is part of a plan to dispose of a major line of business or geographical area.
An operation is classified as a discontinued operation when the above criteria are met, and the comparative income statament is restated to
show the eperation as discontinued from the start of the comparative period.

Non-current assets lor disposal groups comprising assets and liabilities} that are expected to be recovered primarily through sale rather than
thraugh continuing use are classified as held for sale. Immediately before classification as held for sale, the assets (or components of a disposal
group} are remeasured in accordance with the group’s accounting policies. Thereafter generally the assets lor disposal group) are measured at
the lower of their carrying amount and fair value less cost to sell. Any impairment loss on a disposal group first is allocated to goodwilt, and then
to remaining assets and liabilities on pro rata basis, except that no loss is allocated to inventories, financial assets, deferred tax assets, and
retirement benefit assets, which continue to be measured in accordance with the group’s accounting policies, impairment losses an initial
classification as held for sate and subsequent gains or tosses on remeasurement are recognised in profit or loss. Gains are not recognised

in excess of any cumulative impairment loss,

Employee benefits
Defined contribution plans .
Obligations for contributions to defined contribution pension plans are recognised in the income statement as incurred.

Defined benefit plans

The group’s net obligation in respect of defined benefit pension plans is calculated separately for each plan by estimating the amount of future
benefit that employees have earned in return for their service in the current and prior periods; that benefit is discounted to determine its present
value, and the fair value of any plan assets [at bid price] is deducted. The liability discount rate is the yield at the balance sheet date on AA rated
corporate bands that have maturity dates approximating to the terms of the group’s obligations. The calculation is performed by a qualified
actuary using the projected unit credit method.

Actuarial gains and losses are recognised directly in equity in the year in which they arise.
The pension surplus has been presented net of deferred tax in the 2007 balance sheet following a review of the basis of recoverability.

Financial instruments
Financial instruments are initially recorded at fair value. Subsequent valuation depends on the designation of the instrument.

Cash, deposits and short-term investments are held at amortised cost.

Derivative financial instruments are recognised initially and subsequently at fair value. The gain o loss on re-measurement to fair value is
recognised immediately in profit or toss. However, where derivatives qualify for hedge accounting, recognition of any resultant gain or loss
depends on the nature of the item being hedged.

The fair value of derivative financial instruments is determined by reference to market values for similar financial instrumaents or by discaunting
the expected future cash flows at prevailing interest rates.

The sale and purchase of derivative financial instruments are non-speculative,

Cash flow hedges

Where a derivative financial instrument is designated as a hedge against the variability in cash flows of a recognised asset or liability, or a highly
probable forecast transaction, any gain or loss on the effective part of the derivative financial instrument is recognised directly in the hedging
reserve. The gain or loss on any ineffective portion of the hedge is recognised immediately in the income statement.

Hedge accounting is discontinued when the hedging instrument no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting, expires, or is sold, terminated or
exercised. The cumulative gain or loss previously recegnised in the hedging reserve remains there until the forecast transaction occurs. Where the
hedged itern is a non-financial asset, the cumulative gain or loss in the hedging reserve is transferred to the carrying amount of the asset when the
asset is recognised: In other cases the cumulative gain or loss in the hedging reserve is transferred to profit or loss in the same period that the
hedged item affects profit or loss.

Fair value hedges

Where a derivative financial instrument is designated as a hedge against the variability in fair value of a recognised asset or liability or an
unrecognised firm commitment, all changes in the fair value of the derivative are recognised immediately in the income statement. The carrying
value of the hedged itern is adjusted by the change in fair value that is attributable to the risk being hedged [even if it is normally carried at
amortised cost] and any gains or losses on re-measurement are recognised immediately in the income statement.

When hedge accounting ceases, any adjustment made to the carrying amount of the hedged item as a consequence of the fair value hedge
relationship, is recognised in the income statement over the remaining life of the hedged item.

Foreign currencies

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated into Sterling at the rates of exchange ruling at the balance
sheet date. Trading results are translated at average rates for the year. Foreign exchange differences arising on the translation of trading results
and monetary assets and liabilities are recognised in the income statement. Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in terms

of historical cost are translated using the exchange rate at the date of the transaction.

Exchange differences arising on the translation of foreign currency net investments and foreign currency borrowings, or forward contracts used
to hedge those investments, are taken to a translation reserve. They are recycled and recognised as a profit or toss on the disposal or closure
of a business. The cumulative translation difference for all foreign operations was deemed to be zero as at the date of transition to adopted IFRS.
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1 Significant accounting policies continued

Impairment

The carrying values of all of the group’s assets other than inventories, balances on construction contracts and deferred tax assets are reviewed
at each balance sheet date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If there are indications of an impairment in the carrying
value then the recoverable amount is estimated and compared to the carrying amount. For goodwill and assets not yet availabie for use,

the recaverable amount is estimated at each balance sheet date.

Animpairment loss is recognised to the extent that the carrying value of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount.

Intangible assets other than goodwill
Intangible assets acquired by the group, which include software, customer relationships, trademarks and order backlogs are stated at cost less

accumnulated amortisation and impairment losses, The cost of an intangible asset acquired in a business combination is fair value at date of acquisition,

Amortisation is charged to the income staternent on a straight line basis over the estimated useful lives of intangible assets, from the date they
are available for use. ' '

The estimated lives of intangible assets held at 31 December 2007 are as follows:

Software Three ta five years
Customer relationships Three to ten years
Tradenames Five years
Inventories

Inventories, including land held for and in the course of development, are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Development land and work in progress is included at cost less any losses foreseen in completing and disposing of the development.
Cost includes cost of acquisition and development to date, including directly attributable fees and expenses net of rental and other income
attributable to the development.

Leases
Operating lease costs are charged to the income statement on a straight Line basis over the period of the lease.

Net financing income/{costs)
Net financing income/(costs] comprise interest receivable on funds invested, interest payable and foreign exchange gains and lésses. Interagt
income and interest payable are recognised in profit or loss as they accrue, using the effective interest method.

Directly attributable finance costs are capitalised in the cost of purchased and constructed property, plant and equipment, until the relevant '
assets are brought into operational use. The only material projects where this has occurred are those held in the group’s investments in joint
ventures which are involved in PPP projects to finance, design and build assets and operate them on behalf of the client.

Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment is measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. The cost of property, plant and
equipment at 1 January 2004, the date of transition to IFRS, was determined by reference to its fair value at that date.

Depreciation is provided on all property, plant and equipment, with the exception of freehold land, at rates calculated to write-off the cost,
less estimated residual value, of each asset on a straight line basis over its estimated useful life. Reviews are made annually of the
estimated remaining lives and residual values of individual assets.

The estirated lives used are: .
Freehold buildings Up to 50 years

Leasehold land and buildings The shorter of the lease term ar 50 years
Plant and equipment Mainly three to five years

Provisions for litigation and other items

The group has taken internal and external advice in considering known legal claims and actions made by or against the group. it carefully
assesses the likelihood of success of a claim or action. Appropriate provisions are made for legal claims or acticns against the group on the
basis of likely outcorne, but no provisions are made for those, which in the view of management are unlikely to succeed.

Revenue
Revenue is measured at the fair value of consideration received or receivable, excluding vatue added tax, for goods and services supplied
to external customers. It inctudes the group’s share of revenue from work carried out under jointly controlled operations.

Revenue from services and construction contracts is recognised by reference to the stage of completion of the contract, as set out in the
accounting policy for construction and other long-term contracts.

Revenue from developments activities is recognised on completien of a signed sale agreement after all material conditions have been met.

Share-based payments :

There are share-based payment arrangements which atlow AMEC employees to acquire AMEC shares; these awards are granted by AMEC.
The fair value of awards granted is recognised as a cost of employment with a corresponding increase in equity. The fair value is measured at
grant date and spread over the period during which the employees become unconditionally entitled to the award. The fair value of the award is
measured using a valuation model, taking into aceount the terms and conditions upon which the awards were granted. The amount recognised
as an expense is adjusted to reflect the actual number of shares that vest except where non-vesting is due to share prices or total shareholder
return not achieving the threshold for vesting.
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Notes to the consolidated accounts continued

1 Significant accounting policies continued

Taxation
The chargé for taxation is based on the results for the year and comprises current and deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the income staternent
except to the extent that it relates to items recognised directly in equity, in which case it is recognised in equity.

Current tax s the expected tax payable on taxable income for the year, using statutory tax rates, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect
of previous years.

Deferred tax is provided on temporary differences between the carrying amount of assets and liabilities recognised in the accounts and the
amounts used for taxation purposes.

The foltowing temporary differences are not provided for: the initial recognition of assets or liabilities that affect neither accounting nor taxable
profit, and differences relating to investments in subsidiaries to the extent that they will probably not reverse in the foreseeable future.
Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that itis probable that taxable profit will be available against which the asset can be utilised.

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to be applied to the temporary differences when they reverse, based on laws that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date.

2 Segmental analysis of continuing operations - Class of business

As the group’s management and internal reporting are structured by class of business, this is the basis for the group’s primary segment reporting.

The non-core Built Environment businesses are treated as discontinued operations in 2007. Other discontinued activities include pipeline construction
and AMEC SPIE. The segmental results for the year ended 31 Decemnber 2006 have been restated to reflect this change in accounting treatrment and
some minor business restructuring. These restated results are consistent with thase disclosed on 25 June 2007, except for a change in classification of
the Wind Developments business. This has been transferred out of the power and process division and into the investments and other activities segment.

The business and financial review is based on the reported results before joint venture tax, intangible amortisation and pre-tax exceptional items,
but including joint venture profit before tax. The results as presented in the business and financial review are reconciled to those presented in this
note in the tables on pages 51 to 53.

The segmental analysis of discontinued operations is shown in note 9.

Revenue and results
For the year ended 31 December 2007 Investments
Natural Power and Earth and and other
Resources Process Environmental activities Total
£ million £ million £ million £ million £ million
Total revenue ' 1,014.8 1,009.1 2884 64.4 2,376.7
Internal revenue [20.5)
Revenue 2,356.2
Segment result 93.7 48.4 20.9 55 168.5
Corporate costs (36.5)
Profit before net financing income 132.0
Net financing income 18.4
Share of post-tax results
of joint ventures and associates 0.7 0.4 - 0.1 1.2
Income tax (30.1)
Profit for the year from continuing operations ' 121.5
For the year ended 31 December 2006 Investments
Natural Pawer and Earth and and other
Resources Process  Environmental activities Total
£ million E million £ million £ million £ million
Total revenue 920.9 794.7 3044 125.7 2,145.7
Internal revenue {24.1)
Revenue 21214
Segment result 489 30 172 (67.6] 1.5
Corporate costs (21.4)
Loss before net financing costs [19.9]
Net financing costs (7.0)
Share of post-tax results
of joint ventures and associates 0.2 0.9 - (1.2) 0.1
fncome tax {15.2)
Loss for the year from continuing operations {4221

Corporate costs comprise the costs of operating the head office of AMEC. These are not directly related to the activities of the segments. The
financing of the group’s activities is undertaken at a head office level and consequently net financing incorne/[costs| cannot be analysed segmentally.
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2 Segmental analysis of continuing operations - Class of business continued

Assets and liabilities
As at 31 December 2007 Investments
Natural Power and Earth and and other
Resources Process Environmental activities Total
£ million £ million € million £ million £ milllon
Segment assets 273.0 208.7 85.8 343 601.8
Goodwill 215.4
Interests in joint ventures and associates (0.2) 0.6 0.2 221 22.7
Cash and cash equivalents 7341
Unallocated assets 223.8
Assets classified as held for sale - - - 19.0 19.0
Total assets 1.816.8
Segment liabilities (243.2) (260.2) (51.3) (241.8) (794.3)
Bank loans and overdrafts (0.9
Unallocated liabilities : (120.8)
Liabilities classified as held for sale - - - (5.4) (5.4
Total liabilities 923.4)
Net assets 893.4
Net assets
Segment assets less segment liabilities 298 {51.5) 345 {207.3] 1194.5)
Goodwill 215.4
Interests in joint ventures and associates (0.2) 0.6 0.2 221 22.7
Net cash 733.2
Unallocated net assets 103.0
Assets and liabilities classified as held for sale - - - 13.4 13.4
893.4
As at 31 December 2004 Investments
Natural Power and Earth and and other Discontinued
Resources Process  Environmental activities operations Total
E millien £ miltion £ mitlion £ million £ mitlion £ million
Segment assets 267.3 215.0 70.1 108.9 276.6 937.9
Goodwill 187.9
Interests in joint ventures and associates (0.6} 1.1 0.2 218 62.7 85.2
Cash and cash equivalents 375.4
Unallocated assets 131.0
Assets classified as held for sale - 1071 - - - 1071
Total assets 1,824.5
Segment liabilities (193.3] {265.2] £50.5] (239.4] (399.3) (1,147.7)
Bank loans and overdrafts (20.5)
Unallocated liabilities (92.0)
Liabilities classified as held for sale - {69.5] - - - [69.5]
Total liabilities 1,329.7]
Net assets 4948
Net assets
Segment assets less liabilities 74.0 (50.2) 19.6 {130.5) (122.7] (209.8)
Goodwill 187.9
Interests in joint ventures and associates (0.6] . 1.1 0.2 218 62.7 85.2
Net cash 3549
Unallocated net assets 39.0
Assets and liabilities classified as held for sale - 37.6 - - - 374
4948

The unallocated assets and liabilities principally comprise assets relating to the pension schemes and liabilities relating to dividends and
taxation and are not directly related to the activities of the segments.

Goodwill is not directly attributable to business segments and there is no reasonable basis for aliocation of goodwill to business segments,
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2 Segmental analysis of continuing operations - Class of business continued

Other information
For the year ended 31 December 2007

Investments

Natural Power and Earth and and other
Resources Process  Environmental activities Total
£ million £ miltion £ million £ million £ milllon
Capital expenditure:
Property, plant and equipment 5.2 3.5 6.0 41 18.8
Intangible assets - - 0.2 - 0.2
Charges:
Depreciation 4.3 5.1 31 9.2 1.7
Amortisation 0.6 1.5 0.3 0.1 2.5
For the year ended 31 Decernber 2006 Investments
Natural Power and Earth and and other Discontinued
Resources Process  Environrnental activities operatians Total
£ miltion £ miltion £ million £ million E million £ million
Capital expenditure:
Property, plant and equipment 6.2 4.8 - 12.5 121 356
Intangible assets 0.2 0.z2. 0.1 0.1 - 0.6
Charges:
Depreciation 4.0 4.8 25 10.8 13.0 35
Amortisation 18 1.0 05 0.3 2.6 6.2
Impairment of investment - - - - 71 71
Details of depreciation, amortisation and capital expenditure of discontinued operations are given in note 9.
2 Segmental analysis of continuing operations - Geographical origin
Revenue and results
United Kingdom Rest of Europe Americas Rest of the world Total
2007 2006 2007 2004 2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006
€milion  Emillion  E€million  E£million  E€million  Emillion  €mitlion  €million Cmillion £ million
Revenue 950.5 844.5 88.6 554 1,180.9 10184 136.2 2031 2,356.2 21214
Segment result 70.0 28.4 ‘6.4 7.6 89.3 (33.4) 28 (1.1) 168.5 15
Corporate costs (36.5} (21.4)
Profit/(loss) before net
financing income/{costs} 1320 (19.9)
Net financing incomef{costs) 18.4 (7.0
Share of post-tax results of
joint ventures and associates 0.4) 0.3 0.2 (1.5 1.0 1.0 0.4 0.1 1.2 (0.1)
Income tax {30.1) (15.2)
Profit/iloss) for the year
from continuing operations 1215 42.2)
The analysis of total revenue by geographical market is not materially different from that by geographical origin. There is no revenue from
transactions between geographic segments.
Assets and liabilities Discon-
tinued
United Kingdom Rest of Europe Americas Restof the world operations Total
2007 2005 2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2004 2004 2007 2006
Emillion  £million £ million Emilion  Emillion  E£milion  Emillion £ million €million  €million £ million
Segment assets 219.8 269.2 18.0 4.9 308.6 299.2 55.4 880 276.4 &01.8 9379
Segment liabilities (347.6) (342.2) (74.1] (63.8] [324.5) (300.4) [50.1} 4200 {39931 [796.3] (1,147.7
Segment assets less
segment liabilities (127.8) (73.0) (56.1) [58.9) (15.9) 1.2) 5.3 46,0 (12270 (19450  (209.8
Goodwill 28.1 21.7 - - 187.3 160.2 - - - 215.4 187.9
Interests in joint
ventures and associates 0.7 21.2 6.1 0.1 - (0.9) 15.9 2. 62.7 22.7 85.2
Net cash 733.2 354.9
Unallocated net assets 103.0 39.0
Assets and liabilities
classified as held for sale 125 - 1.1 334 - 4.2 - - - 13.6 37.6
Net assets 893.4 494.8
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2 Segmental analysis of continuing operations - Geographical origin continued

Other information

Discon-
tinued
United Kingdom Rest of Europe Americas Rest of the world operations Total
2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006 2004 2007 20056
£ million E£miltion £ million Emillion £ million Emilion  E€million £ million £ million £miltleon £ million
. Capital expenditure:
Property, plant
and equipment 5.7 10.9 0.1 - 12.8 1.5 0.2 1.1 121 18.8 35.6
Intangible assets - - - - 0.2 0.6 - - - 0.2 0.6
3 Revenue
2007 2006
£ millon € million
Construction contracts 451.2 509.6
Services 1,705.0 1,612.0
2,356.2 21216

The revenue from construction contracts shown above is based on the definition of construction contracts inctuded in IAS 11 and includes revenue
from all contracts directly related to the construction of an asset even if AMEC's role is as a service provider, for exarnple project management.

4 Profit/(loss) before net financing income/(costs) - continuing operations

2006
£ million £ million
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 21.7 221
Amaortisation of intangible assets (included in administrative expenses) 25 3.6
Minimum payments under operating leases 67.5 43.0
There are no material receipts from subleases.
2007 2006
£ millien £ million
Fees paid to auditors and their associates:
Audit of these financial statements 0.3 0.3
The audit of subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures pursuant to legislation 1.0 1.0
Other services supplied pursuant to such legislation 0.1 0.1
Other services relating to taxation 0.7 0.8
Services relating to corporate finance transactions 20 49
All other services 0.5 -
4.6 7.1
Services relating to corporate finance transactions in the year include:
2007 2006
£ million £ million
Costs in respect of the divestments of Built Environment 2.0 -
Costs in respect of the sale of AMEC SPIE - 33
Costs in respect of the potential separation of the group - 1.6
2.0 49
Details of amounts charged in arriving at the profit before net financing costs of discontinued operations are given in note 9.
5 Exceptional items
2007 2006
£ million £ million
Natural Resources - (7.8
Power and Process 11.5 {17.6]
Investments and other activities 16.7 {77.4}
Exceptional items of continuing operations 28.2 (102.8}
Taxation on exceptional items of continuing operations 0.8 7.3
Exceptional items of discontinued operations [post-tax] 227.6 260.9
Post-tax exceptional profits 256.6 165.4
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5 Exceptional items continued

Exceptional items further analysed as follows: 2007 2006
Other Other
Gainon exceptional Gain on exceptional
disposals items Total disposals items Total
£ million £ million £ million £ million £ miltion £ million
Continuing aperations 12.7 10.5 28.2 - (102.8) (102.8)
Discontinued operations 292.4 2.8 295.2 301.8 (67.1) 234.7
Profit before tax 3101 13.3 3234 301.8 (169.9) 131.9
Tax i66.8) - 166.8) 9.7 238 335
Profit after tax 2433 13.3 256.6 3115 [146.1) 165.4

Divestment of the group’s four Built Environment businesses was successfully completed during the fourth quarter of 2007. This, combined with
the profit on disposal of peripheral businesses in the first half of the year, resulted in an aggregate pre-tax exceptional gain of £310.1 million
{post-tax: €£243.3 million).

Other exceptional items comprise provision releases of £12.7 million and other releases of £18.2 million in relation to the settlement of several
outstanding matters on projects including Jormag [Jordan Magnesia Company Ltd), Thetwall and several other construction related projects.
In additian provisions were increased by £16.9 million and other liabilities by £0.7 million, to reflect developments on three US and one UK
construction projects.

The post-tax gain on disposal of £311.5 million in 2006 related to the disposal of AMEC SPIE.

In 2004, other exceptional items included provisions of £25 million reflecting settlement of the major finat accounts for upstream fabrication and
the ongoing arbitration on a completed overseas Power and Process project; and provisions totalling £125 million for the costs of withdrawing
from certain loss making construction markets in the UK and US. Additionally, impairment and other provisions of £15 million were made
associated with a concrete segments business, together with costs of £4 million associated with the potential separation of the Energy and
Process activities from the Built Environment activities.

& Staff costs and employee numbers - continuing operations

2007 2006
£ million £ miltion
Wages and salaries 693.5 565.7
Social security costs 85.8 73.5
Equity settled share-based payments 4.1 2.3
Contributions to defined contribution schemes 9.0 58
Defined benefit pension scheme credit (1.9] (1.6)
790.5 6411
The average number of people employed was as follows: 2007 2006
Number Number
Natural Resources 7.6%1 6,767
Power and Process 5,739 4,859
Earth and Environmental 3,547 39
Investrments and other activities ) N 534
17,368 15,381
Staff costs and employee numbers for discontinued operations are analysed in note 9.
Details of directors’ remuneration are provided in the directors’ remuneration report on pages 72 to 77.
7 Net financing income/(costs) - continuing operations
2007 2006
£ million £ mitlion
Financial income:
Interest income on bank deposits 221 6.4
Other investment incorme - 19
Foreign exchange gains - 1.0
221 9.3
Financial expense:
Interest expense on financial liabilities measured at amortised cost (1.7 i16.1)
Foreign exchange losses ) (2.0] [0.2)
(3.7) (16.3]
Net financing income/f{costs) 18.4 7.0
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7 Net financing income/(costs) - continuing operations continued

The above financiat income and expenses include the following in respect of assets/{liabilities] not at fair value through profit or loss:

2007 20045
£ million £ million
Total interest income on financial assets 221 83
Total interest expense on financial liabilities (1.7 16.1]
8 Income tax - continuing operations
2007 2006
£ million £ million
Current tax:
UK corporation tax at 30.0 per cent (2006: 30.0 per cent) 10.3 8.0
Double tax retief (5.0 (1.2]
Overseas tax 29.8 145
Prior year tax 2.2 22
37.3 235
Deferred tax:
UK deferred tax at 28.0 per cent, pension surplus at 35.0 per cent
" (2006: 30.0 per cent] - origination and reversal of temporary differences 6.0 (3.6)
Overseas deferred tax 1.5 (1.6)
Prior year tax 14.7) (3.1)
17.2) 18.3)
Total income tax expense for continuing operations in the income statement 30.1 15.2

Included within the current tax expense is a credit of £0.8 million (2004: £7.3 million) in respect of exceptional items as follows:

2007 2006

£ mitlion E million

Income tax expense on continuing operations before exceptional items 30.9 225
tncome tax creditin respect of exceptional items [0.8] (7.31
income tax expense for continuing operations in the income statemant 30.1 15.2

The tax expense for the year is lower [2004: higher] than the standard rate of corporation tax in the UK and is explained as follows:

2007 2006
£ million £ million
Profit/[loss] before income tax from continuing operations 151.6 (27.0)
Add: tax on joint ventures and associates 0.6 03
Adjusted profit/[loss] before income tax from continuing operations 152.2 126.7}
Tax charge/icredit] at 30.0 per cent {2006: 30.0 per cent) 45.7 18.0)
Non-deductible expenses, non taxable income and other differences [14.5] 31
Impact of providing deferred tax on pension surplus at 35.0 per cent 1.5 -
Impact of change in UK tax rate to 28.0 per cent on deferred tax 13 -
Overseas income and expenses taxed at rates other than 30.0 per cent [2006: 30.0 per cent) 8.6 210
Prior year tax (12.5) (0.9
Total tax expense for the year for continuing cperations 30.1 15.2

Tax recognised directly in equity:

Current tax - 1.7
Deferred tax [note 15) . 219 4.8
Tax expense recognised directly in equity 219 6.5
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9 Profit for the year from discontinued operaftions

The non-core Built Environment businesses, which represent a separate line of business, were held for sale and then disposed of in the year.
As such, they have been reclassified as discontinued operations in 2007. Further details of the dispesal of these businesses are given in the report

of the directors on pages 66 and 67. Other discontinued activities in 2007 inctude pipelines construction. In 2006, AMEC SPIE and pipelines

construction were treated as discontinued operations.

In accordance with IFRS 5, the post-tax results of discontinued operations are disclosed separately in the consolidated incorme staterment,

with the 2006 consolidated incorme staternent being restated for the sarme presentation.

The results of the discontinued operations were as fotlows:

2007 2006
£ million £ million
Revenue 710.7 24316
Cost of sales and net operating expenses (715.2) {2,422.4)
(4.5) 9.2
Intangible amortisation - [2.4]
{Loss)/profit before exceptianal iterms and income tax (4.5 8.6
Attributable tax (0.2) (6.1)
4.7 0.5
Exceptional items 2.8 (67.1}
Attributable tax on exceptional items (0.9 14.5
Profit on disposal 292.4 s
Attributable tax on profit an disposal 166.7) 9.7
Profit for the year from discontinued operations 222.9 2614
Revenue from discontinued operations falls into the following categories:
2007 2006
£ million £ million
Construction contracts 634.5 11827
Services 76.2 1,248.9
710.7 24316
The profit from discontinued operations is stated after charging:
2007 2006
£ million £ million
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment - 13.0
Amortisation of intangible assets [included in administrative expenses) - 2.6
Impairment of investment - 7.1
Minimum payments under operating leases 3.8 993
Fees paid to auditors and their associates:
Statutory audit services - 0.1
Services relating to litigation - 0.2
Total - 03
There are no material receipts from subleases.
The staff costs from discontinued operations were as follows:
2007 2006
£ millien E million
Wages and salaries 1341 548.9
Social security costs 135 149.2
Equity settled share-based payments 1.2 -
Contributions to defined contribution schemes 0.4 0.2
Defined benefit pension scheme expense 7.4 13.4
156.6 7
The average number of people employed by discontinued operations was 5,549 (2006: 31,548).
2007 2006
€ million £ million
Capital expenditure:
Property, plant and equipment 0.6 121
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10 Earnings per share

The calculation of the average number of shares in issue has been made having deducted the shares held by the trustees of the Performance

Share Plans, those held by the qualifying employee share ownership trust and those held in treasury by the company.

2007 2006

Weighted Weighted
average average {tossl/
shares Earnings (Loss)/ shares earnings
Earnings number per share earnings number per share
£ million million pence £ million millian pernce
Basic earnings/{loss] from continuing operations 1214 328.7 349 (43.3) 325.9 (1331
Share options - 25 10.2] - - -
Employee share and incentive schemes - 5.3 (0.6 - - -
Diluted earnings/(loss) from continuing operations 1214 3365 361 (43.3] 325.9 (13.3)
Basic earnings from discontinued eperations 2229 328.7 67.8 2614 325.9 80.2
Share options - 25 (0.5} - - -
Employee share and incentive schemes - 5.3 (1.1) - - -
Diluted earnings from discontinued operations 2229 336.5 66.2 2614 3259 80.2

For the year ended 31 December 2006 loss per share from continuing aperations has been calculated on a loss of £43.3 million, as a result there

are no dilutive ordinary shares.

Basic and diluted loss from continuing operations is calculated as set out below:

2007 2006

£ million £ million

Profit/lloss] for the year from continuing operations 1215 (42.2)
Profit attributable to minority interests (0.1) (1.1
Basic and diluted profit/[loss) from continuing operations 121.4 143.3)

In order to appreciate the effects of exceptional items and intangible amortisation on the reported performance, additional calculations
of earnings/|loss] per share from continuing operations are presented.

2007 2005
Weighted Weighted
average average {Loss)
shares Earnings [Loss)/ shares earnings
Earnings number per share earnings number per share
£ million million pence £ million million pence
Basic earnings/(loss) from continuing operations 121.4 328.7 35.9 [43.3) 325.9 13.3]
Exceptional items [29.0) - 18.8) 95.5 - 29.3
Intangible amortisation lpost tax) 19 - 0.6 3.6 - 11
Basic earnings from continuing operations before
exceptional iterns and intangible amortisation 94.3 328.7 28.7 55.8 325.9 17.1
Share options - 25 0.2 - 4.1 (0.2)
Employee share and incentive schemes - 53 (0.5) - 8.1 (0.3)
Diluted earnings from continuing operations before
exceptional items and intangible amortisation 9.3 3365 28.0 55.8 3361 16.6
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Notes to the consolidated accounts continued

11 Property, plant and equipment

Land and Plant and
buildings equipment Total
£ million £ million £ million
Cost:
As at 1 January 2006 56.4 211.4 2578
Exchange and other movemnents (1.3 i8.5 {9.8]
Acqguired through business combinations 42 7.3 N5
Additions and transfers 18 338 35.6
Disposals and transfers (5.3) {20.0) (25.31
Equity account associates {2.9) (14.2) {17.1
Reclassified as assets held for sale {0.8) (32.9) (33.7
Disposal of subsidiary (21.3) (49.4} {70.7
As at 31 December 2006 308 127.5 158.3
Exchange and other movements (0.1} 0.4 0.5
Acquired through business combinations 0.6 0.6 1.2
Additions 2.6 16.2 18.8
Disposals (5.6] (29.7] {35.3]
Disposal of businesses (5.6] [6.4) (12.0
As at 31 December 2007 227 108.8 131.5
Depreciation:
As at 1 January 2006 1.7 97.8 109.5
Exchange and other movements (0.3) [4.1) (4.4]
Provided during the year 3.2 ne 351
Disposals and transfers (0.8 9.9 10.7]
Eguity account associates [1.2) (6.9 (8.1]
Reclassified as held for sale 0.2 (23.4) (23.6)
Disposal of subsidiary [4.8) (8.2 (12.8]
As at 31 December 2006 78 77.2 850
Exchange and other movements (0.1} (2.00 21
Provided during the year 1.7 200 217
Disposals 31 125.9] i29.01
Disposal of businesses (1.7} - (.7
As at 31 December 2007 4.6 §9.3 7.9
Net book value:
As at 31 December 2007 18.1 39.5 57.6
As at 31 December 2006 230 503 733
As at 1 January 2006 447 113.6 158.3
2007 2006
£ million E miltien
The net book value of land and buildings comprised:
Freehold 15.8 18.7
Long leasehold 2.0 2.2
Short leasehold 0.3 2.1
18.1 230
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12 Intangibte assets

Gaodwill Software Other Total

£ miltion £ million £ miltion E million
Cost:
As at 1 January 2006 467.4 415 13.5 522.4
Exchange and other movements (24.9) (1.5] 0.9 (27.3]
Acquisition of subsidiaries 17.6 - 19 19.5
Additions - 0.6 - 06
Transfers - 0.4 {0.4] -
Disposal of subsidiary {245.2) (34.8) (1.9] (281.9)
As at 31 December 2006 2149 6.2 12.2 2333
Exchange and other movements 231 08 0.2 241
Acquisition of subsidiaries 8.4 - 1.5 9.9
Additions - 02 - 0.2
Disposals - (0.3 - (0.3
Disposal of businesses (1.0) (1.0) (0.9] (2.9
As at 31 December 2007 265.4 5.9 13.0 264.3
Amortisation:
As at 1 January 2006 32.2 12.1 02 44.5
Exchange and other movements [2.0] (0.7) - (2.7)
Provided during the year - 3.7 25 6.2
Transfers - (2.8) 28 -
Disposal of subsidiary (3.2) (9.1) - (12.3)
As at 3t December 2004 270 3.2 5.5 35.7
Exchange and other movements 40 05 - 45
Provided during the year - 1.1 1.4 25
Disposal of businesses (1.0} (0.6} (0.8) (2.2)
As at 31 December 2007 30.0 4.2 6.3 40.5
Net book value:
As at 31 December 2007 215.4 1.7 6.7 2238
As at 31 December 2006 187.9 3.0 6.7 197.6
As at 1 January 2006 435.2 29.4 13.3 4779

After the sale of AMEC SPIE on 27 July 2006, the principal remaining element of unamortised goodwill relates to the acquisition of AGRA Inc

in the Americas [£153.4 million} with further unamortised goodwill relating primarily to the acquisitions of NNC Holdings Limited (£34.2 miltion,

and Paragon Engineering Services Inc [£9.0 million). The recoverable amount of the income generating unit in the Americas has been based on value
in use calculations. The calculations use cash flow projections based on financial budgets approved by managernent covering a two year period and
a pre-tax discount rate of 8.4 per cent [2004: 9.4 per cent]. For the purposes of the calculation of the recoverable amount the cash flow projections

beyond the two year period include no growth.
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Notes to the consolidated accounts continued

13 Interest in joint ventures, associates and other investments

Total of
Joint joint ventures Other
ventures Associates  and associates investments
£, million £ million £ million £ million
Net book value:
As at 1 January 2006 850 - 85.0 45
Equity accounted associates - 264 264 -
Exchange and other movements {0.4) - (0.4) (0.4)
Additions 141 - 144 9.4
Disposals _ {9.5) (17.5] {27.0) (0.2]
Impairment (7.1 - (7.1 -
Disposal of subsidiary (11.8) {5.00 (16.6] (11.5)
Transfers _ {4.6) - [4.6) -
Net movement in share of reserves . 15.0 36 18.6 -
Dividends received {3.2) - 3.2) -
Reclassified as held for sale - - - (0.7
As at 31 December 2006 77.7 75 85.2 0%
Exchange and other movements 0.3 - 0.3 -
Additions . 6.0 - 6.0 -
Disposals (3.21 (7.3] (10.5] -
Disposal of businesses (49.8) - 149.8} (0.1]
Net movement in share of reserves 85 0.2) 8.3 -
Dividends received [2.0) - (2.0] -
Reclassified as held for sale (14.8) - (14.8] -
As at 31 December 2007 22.7 - 22.7 0.8

Principal group companies are listed on page 123.
Other investments are all classified as available-for-sale financial assets.
The impairment charge of £7.1 million in 2006 represented provision made against an underperforming joint venture.

In 2007, the group did not recagnise its share of the net losses of £0.2 million of joint venture companies for which the group has no obligation
to fund. There were no such unrecognised losses in 2004. Cumulative unrecognised net liabilities at 31 December 2007 amount to £5.2 million
(2004: £5.6 million).

An analysis of the group's interests in the assets and liahilities of joint ventures and associates is as follows:

Joint Joint
ventures ventures Associates Associates
2007 2006 2007 2006
£ miltion £ million £ miilion £ million
Current assets 51.2 2428 - 271
Non-current assets . 300.3 738.0 - 2.4
Current liahilities (64.3) (148.5] - (25.0)
Nan-current liabilities 264.5) {754.6) - -
Group share of net assets ‘ 22.7 717 - - 75
An analysis of the group’s share of the revenue and expenses of joint ventures and associates is as follows:
Joint Joint
ventures ventures Associates Associates
2007 2006 2007 2006
£ million £ million £ million £ million
Revenue 401 101.8 10.4 50.6
Expenses {38.2) {101.7) {10.5) (50.5)
Share of profit/(loss) before tax 1% a1 (0.1) A
Tax (0.6 (0.8] - 0.5
Share of post-tax results 13 (0.7] 0.1) 0.6

Guarantees and commitrments in respect of joint ventures and associates are set out in note 28.
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13 Interest in joint ventures, associates and other investments continued

PPP service concessions .
Details of the PPP service concessions are as follows:

Financial Equity Concession Net equity Equity
close stake pericd invested committed
Transport A13 Tharmes Gateway 2000 25% 30 years -* -
Incheon Bridge, Korea 2005 29% J0vyears £15.7m £4.9m

Accommodation  Inland Revenue
Newcastle Estate 1998 50%  25-31years £0.5m -

*The net equity invested in A13 Thames Gateway has been previously written down from £5.9 million to £nil.

14 Retirement benefit assets and liabilities

The group operates a number of pension schemes for UK and overseas employees. Substantially all UK members are in funded defined benefit
schemes, the main schemes being the AMEC Staff Pension Scheme and the AMEC Executive Pension Scheme. The majority of overseas
members are in defined contribution schemes. Contributions by the group into defined contribution schemes are disclosed in note 6.

Defined benefit schemes

The valuations used have been based on the most recent valuations of the two major UK schemes as at 31 December 2004 and 1 Aprit 2005,
and updated by the schemes’ actuaries for the requirement to assess the present value of the liabilities of the schemes as at 31 December 2007.
The assets of the schemes are stated at their aggregate market value as at 31 December.

The principal assumptions made by the actuaries in relation to the main UK schemes are as follows:

2007 2004
Per cent Per cent
Rate of discount 5.7 5.1
Rate of inflation 3.2 3.0
Rate of increase in salaries 4.2 40
Rate of increase in pensions in payment 3.2 3.0
Expected rate of return on scheme assets:
Equities 8.1 7.7
Bonds 5.7 Ld
Property 5.6 6.2
Other ’ 5.5 45
For the main UK pension schemes, the assumed life expectancy is as follows:
Male Female
years years
Member aged 40 [current life expectancyl ’ 238 268
Member aged 40 (life expectancy at 40) 25.0 278

The assumptions used by the actuaries are the best estimates chosen from a range of possible actuarial assumptions, which, due to the
timescale covered, may not necessarily be borne out in practice.

To develop the expected long-term rate of return on assets assumption, the company considered the current level of expected returns on
risk free investments [primarily government bonds), the histarical levet of risk premium associated with the other asset classes in which the
portfolio is invested and the expectations for future returns of each asset class. The expected return for each asset class was then weighted
based on the target asset allocation to develop the expected long-term rate of return on assets for the portfolio.

Since the year-end, equity markets have fallen. The board estimates that as at 31 January 2008, this would have resuited in the pre-tax surplus
of the schemes declining by ¢.£50 million under an 1AS 19 valuation.

Recent guidance from the Pensions Regulator regarding longevity statistics suggests that further strengthening of mortality assumptions
may be appropriate, and specifically alludes to the adoption of the "long-cohort’ rate of improvement as a benchmark for occupational scheme
mortality going forward. The mortality experience of the AMEC schemes will be reviewed in detail at the next actuarial valuation, due as at

1 April 2008. A move to long-cohort assumptions would reduce the current funding surplus (pre-tax) by c.£40 million or approximately five

per cent of liabilities. Even after taking into account both the recent fall in equity markets and the potential move to long-cohort assumptions,
the schemes would remain in a strong position.

The surplus has been presented net of deferred tax on the balance sheet in 2007, following a review of the basis of recoverability.
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Notes to the consolidated accounts continued

14 Retirement benefit assets and liabilities continued

The ameunts recognised in the balance sheet are as follows:

2007 2006

£ million £ million
Retirement benefit assets 248.0 105.6
Deferred tax on retirement benefit assets (86.7) -
Retirement benefit assets net of deferred tax 1861.3 105.6
Retirement benefit liabilities (11.3) {13.0)
Retiremnent benefit net asset : 150.0 924
The retirement benefit liabilities of £11.3 million [2004: £13.0 miltion} reflect primarily the deficit on the overseas schemes.
The major categories of scheme assets as a percentage of total scheme assets are as fotlows: 2007 2006

Per cent Per cem
Equities 32.7 54.0
Bonds 57.8 335
Real estate . 2.3 g5
Other 0.2 30

100.0 100.0
The amounts recognised in the income statement are as follows:
2007 2006

€ mitlion £ million
Current service cost 26.4 315
Interest cost 5%.4 53.1
Expected return on scheme assets (80.3) (72.8]
Total expense included within staff costs [note 6, note 9) 5.5 11.8
Curtailment gain (28.5) -
Total amount recognised in the income statement (23.0} 18
The total amount is recognised in the income statement as follows:
Cost of sales (3.1 0.8]
Administrative expenses 1.2 {0.8)
[Loss)/profit for the year from discontinued operations:
Before exceptional items 7.4 13.4
Profit on disposal (28.5) -
Total amount recognised in the income statement 23.0) 11.8

The curtailment gain arises as a result of active members in the disposed businesses becoming deferred pensioners, releasing the salary
growth reserve held in relation to their accrued pension benefits.

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit liability are as follows:

2007 20046

£ million £ mittion

As at 1 January 1,150.5 1,270.1
Exchange movements 6.2 1.1
Reclassification 26.4 -
Current service cost 26.4 N5
Interest cost 59.4 53.1
Plan participants’ contributions 10.1 10.5
Actuarial (gains)/tosses (90.7) 10
Liabilities of businesses sold ' ' - [47.1]
Liabilities of businesses reclassified as held for sale - (1.7)
Curtailment gain (28.5) -
Benefits paid (68.9) (40.7)
Reclassified as investment in associate - (127.3)
As at 31 December 1,090.9 1,150.5
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14 Retirement benefit assets and liabilities continued

Changes in the fair value of scheme assets are as follows:

2007 2006
£ million £ million
As at 1 January 1,243.1 1,288.4
Exchange movements 4.8 -
Reclassification 264 -
Expected return on plan assets 80.3 728
Actuarial [losses)/gains (4.6) 39
Employer contributions 36.4 3.4
Plan participants’ contributions 10.1 10.5
Benefits paid (68.9 140.7]
Reclassified as investment in associate - {123.4)
As at 31 December - 1,327.6 1,2431
The movement in the scheme net assets during the year is as follows:
2007 2004
£ million £ million
Scheme net asset as at 1 January 92.6 18.5
Exchange movernents (1.4 1.1
Total expense as above (5.5 (1.8l
Employer contributions 384 314
Liabilities of businesses sold - 471
Curtaitment gain 28.5 -
Actuarial gains recognised in reserves 8.1 29
Reclassified to liabilities held for sale - 1.7
Reclassified as investment in associate - 3.9
Scheme net asset as at 31 December 238.7 92.6
Cumulative actuarial gains and losses recognised in equity are as follows:
2007 2006
£ million £ millian
As at 1 January 163.9) (66.8)
Net actuarial gains recognised in the year 86.1 29
As at 31 December 222 [63.9
The actual return on scheme assets is as follows:
2007 2006
€ million £ million
Actual return on scheme assets 75.7 78.7
The history of experience gains and losses has been as follows:
2007 2004 2005 2004
Defined benefit obligation as at 31 December (£ million) (1,090.9] (1,150.5) (1,270.1] (1,094.9]
Fair value of assets as at 31 December {€ million] 1,327.6 1,243.1 1,288.6 1.161.5
Surplus [£ million) 236.7 92.6 18.5 46.6
Difference between expected and actual return on scheme assets [£ million) (4.6) 39 130.8 278
Percentage of scheme assets (0.3) 0.3 10.2 2.4
Experience gains and tosses on scheme liabilities (£ million) 35 - (27.3) 0.7
Percentage of scheme liabilities 0.3 - 2.1 0.1

Contributions

The company expects to contribute £14.1 million to its defined benefit pension schemes in 2008. This includes special contributions of £8.4 miltion.
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Notes to the consolidated accounts continued

15 Deferred tax assets and liabilities

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are attributable to the following:

Recognised deferred tax assets and liabilities Assets - Liabilities Net
2007 2004 2007 2004 2007 2006
€ mitlion £ million £ million E miltien £ miltion E million
Property, plant and equipment 14.2 1.4 {0.4) (0.2) 13.8 11.2
Intangible assets - - {1.9) 29 (1.9 {2.9]
Retirement benefits 4.1 2.9 {0.2) {28.2} 39 [25.3)
Derivative financial instruments 0.9 1.5 (0.3) £1.01 0.6 0.5
Provisions 15.3 18 - - 15.3 1.8
Employee share schemes 17.8 - - - 17.8 -
Other iterns 1.4 213 {a.s) (22.8) 7.9 {15]
Tax losses carried forward 1.5 223 - - 15 22.3
Deferred tax assets/lliabilities) 85.2 41.2 {6.3) (55.1 58.9 6.1
Offset of deferred tax assets and liabilities relating
to income tax levied by the same taxation authority 16.3) (44.8) [ %] 448 - -
Net deferred tax assets/[liabilities) 58.9 16.4 - 10.3) 58.9 6.1
Movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities during the year
As at Exchange Recognised As at
1 Janvary and other  on acquisitions Recognised Recognised  Reclassified as 31 December
200, movements  and transfers Disposals in income in equity held for sale 2006
£ million £ mitlion £ million € million € million £ million £ million E millton
Property, plant and equipment 6.6 - - 08 38 - - 1.2
tntangible assets (2.9) - - - - - - 2.9
Retirement benefits (3.9) 1.5 1.6 (17.4) [5.5) (1.6) - [25.3)
Derivative financial instruments 6.3 (0.6) - 2.7) 1.4 i3.2) (0.4) 0.5
Provisions 18 - - - - - - 1.8
Dther items {4.6) - (2.0] (2.2) 73 - - (1.5]
Tax losses carried forward 20,5 23 - (12.3) 11.8 - - 223
238 3z [0.4) (33.8) 18.5 (4.8] (0.4} 6.1
As at Exchange Reclassified Reclassified As‘at
1 Januar; and other , Recognised Recognised  to retirement asheld  31December
200 movermnents Disposals in incorne in equity benefit asset for sale 2007
£ million £ mitlion £ million £ million E million € million € million € million
Property, plant and equipment 1.2 - - 24 - - - 138
Intangible assets 291 0.1 - 0.9 - - - (1.9
Retirement benefits [25.3] 0.6 0.1 {22.3) (35.9] 86.7 - 3.9
Derivative financial instruments 0.5 - - - 01 - - 0.6
Provisions 1.8 - - 13.5 - - - 15.3
Employee share schernes - - - 4.1 13.7 - - 17.8
Other items [1.5] 0.9 0.4 3.7 0.2 - 4.2 7.9
Tax losses carried forward 223 - - (20.8) - - - 15
6.1 1.6 0.5 18.3] 21.9] 86.7 42 58.9

The deferred tax charge of £18.3 million recognised in income consists of a credit of £7.2 million relating to continuing operations and a charge

of £25.5 million in respect of discontinued operations.

Included within the deferred tax credit relating to continuing operations are a charge of £1.5 million which results from the provision of deferred
tax on the pension surplus at 35 per cent; and a charge of £1.3 million being the impact on deferred tax of the change in UK tax rate to 28 per cent.

The deferred tax charge of £35.9 million in respect of retirement benefit assets and liabilities which was recognised in equity in 2007 consists of
£26.4 million relating to the 2007 actuarial valuation and £9.5 mitlion relating to the change in recognition criteria for retirement benefit assets.
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15 Deferred tax assets and liabilities continued

Unrecognised deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of the following items: 2007 2006
£ million £ million

Deductible temporary differences KT 105
Tax losses 45.8 54.9
80.2 65.4

Tax losses of £8.4 million arising in Canada and the US which are unrecognised by the group expire between 2022 and 2024.

The other tax losses and deductible temporary differences not recognised by the group do not expire under current tax legislation. Deferred tax
assets have not been recognised in respect of these itemns because it is not probable that profit will be available against which the group can

utilise the benefits therefrom.

14 Inventories

2007 2006

£ milion £ million

Development tand and work in progress - 365
Raw materials and consumables 35 13
Other work in progress 25 8.4
Finished goods and goods for resale . 0.1 15
6.1 477

Development land and work in progress at 31 Decernber 2007 included assets to a value of £nil [2006: £17.4 million) expected to be consumed

after more than one year.

The amount of inventories recognised as an expense during 2007 was £2.4 miltion (2006: £9.6 million), all of which related to operations now discontinued.

17 Current trade and other receivables

2007 2006
£ million € million
Amounts expected to be recovered within one year:

Gross amounts due from customers ; 167.7 me
Trada receivabtes 294.5 4153
Amounts owed by jeint ventures and associates 3.2 2.4
Other receivables 19.2 175
Prepayments and accrued income 34.8 391
519.4 786.2

Amounts expected to be recovered after more than one year:
Trade receivables 4.5 18.5
Amounts owed by joint ventures and associates 1.4 08
Other receivables 1.9 0.3
Prepayments and accrued income - 0.4
10.0 20.1
529.4 806.3

Trade receivables expected to be recovered within one year include retentions of £20.9 million {2006: £41.6 million) relating to contracts in
progress. Trade receivables expected to be recovered after more than one year include retentions of £6.5 mitlion {2006: £10.6 million) relating

to contracts in progress.

The aggregate amount of costs incurred plus recognised profits (less recognised losses] for all contracts in progress for continuing businesses

at the batance sheet date was €5,606.4 million 12006: £9.260.4 million).

Trade receivables, amounts owed by joint ventures and associates and other receivables are classified as loans and receivables.

AMEC plc annual report 2007 10



Notes to the consolidated accounts continued

18 Assets and liabilities held for sale

As at 31 December 2007, the following assets and liabilities of AMEC's interests in the Petershogen and RMG joint ventures were classified as
being held for sale. As at 31 December 2006, the assets and liabilities of the pipelines construction businesses were classified as held for sale.

2007 2005
£ million £ million
Assets held for sale
Property, plant and equipment - 101
Interests in joint ventures 14.8 -
Other investments - 0.7
Deferred tax assets - 0.4
Trade and other receivables 4.2 515
Derivative financial instruments - 1.4
Cash and cash equivalents - 33.0
19.0 1071
Liabilities held for sate
Bank and other overdrafts - (0.8)
Trade and other payables 1.2) (66.3})
Tax payable - [0.7)
Retirement benefit liability - 1.7
Deferred tax liabilities ' 14.2) -
(5.4) (69.5]
Net assets held for sale 13.6 3746
19 Current trade and other payables
2007 2006
£ million £ million
Amounts expected to be settled within one year:
Trade payables 3764 6616
Gross amounts due to customers 56.1 149.2
Amounts owed to joint ventures and associates ‘ 0.3 1.5
Other taxation and social security costs 35.2 42.3
Other payables 75.2 59.3
Accruals and deferred income 77.0 85.1
Dividends 15.5 14.0
635.7 1,013.0
Amounts expected to be settled after more than one year:
Trade payables 2.0 0.9
Contract provisions - 4.7
Other payables : 3.7 0.9
Accruals and deferred income 0.1 1.9
5.8 8.4
641.5 1,021.4

Gross amounts due to customers includes advances received of £42.6 million [2006: £46.9 miltion of which £4.4 million related to operations
now discontinued).

Trade payables, amounts owed to joint ventures and associates, other taxation and social security costs, other payables and dividends are
classified as other financial liabilities.
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20 Bank loans and overdrafts

£ million £ million
Current :
Bank loans and overdrafts 0.8 13.6
Non-current
Bank loans 0.1 6.9

All of the group’s borrowings are unsecured. The bank loans and overdrafts are denominated in a number of currencies and bear interest
based on LIBOR.

21 Financial instruments

Details of the group’s financial risk management objectives and policies, together with its policies for hedging are provided in the business and
financial review on pages 56 and 57.

Hedging of interest rate risk

The group helds significant net cash balances following the disposal of AMEC SPIE, the Built Environment and other peripheral businesses
during 2006 and 2007. The group intends to reinvest these monies into the core activities and return up to £80 million to sharehotders via the
previously announced share buy back. Accordingly, the group has decided not to hedge against longer term interest rate fluctuations. This policy
will be kept under review.

Hedaging of foreign currency risk - cash flow hedges

The group looks to mitigate the foreign exchange risk typically arising where contracts are awarded in, or involve costs, in non-local currency.
Forward foreign exchange contracts and foreign exchange swaps are used for this purpose and designated as cash flow hedges. The notional
contract amount, carrying amount and fair values of forward contracts and swaps designated as cash flow hedges are as follows:

2007 2006 2007 2006

Notional Notional Carrying Carrying

contract conlract amount and amount and

amount amount fair value fair value

€ million £ million £ million £ million

Current assets 251 10.7 1.6 0.7
Assets classified as held for sate - 18.3 - 1.4
Current liabilities 12.0 80.2 0.9 (1.8}
371 109.2 0.7 0.3

" The following tables indicate the periods in which the cash tlows associated with the forward foreign exchange contracts designated as cash
flow hedges are expected to occur:

2007
Carrying Expected & months 612 1-2 5 More than
amount cash flows or less months years years Syears
£ million £ million £ milllon £ million £ million £ million £ million
Forward exchange contracts
Assets 1.6 25.1 ‘8.7 7.6 8.8 - -
Liabilities (0.9) 12.0 39 33 35 1.3 -
0.7 371 12.6 10.9 123 1.3 -
2006
Carrying Expected 6 manths 6-12 1-2 2-5 More than
amount cash flows or less manihs years years Syears
£ million £ miltion £ million £ million £ million £ million £ million

Forward exchange contracts

Assets 0.7 10.7 5.9 0.9 1.8 21 -
Liabilities (1.8} 80.2 476 14.5 10.3 78 -
(1.1) 70.9 53.5 15.4 12.1 9.9 -
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21 Financial instruments continued .

The following tables indicate the perieds in which the cash flows associated with the forward foreign exchange contracts designated as cash
flow hedges are expected to impact profit or loss:

2007
Carrying Expected & months 612 1-2 2-5 More than
amount cash flows or less months years years Syears
£ million £ millien £ million € million € million £ million £ million

Forward exchange contracts
Assets 1.6 25.1 8.7 7.6 8.8 - -
Liabilities © (0.9 12.0 3.7 3.3 a5 13 -
0.7 7.1 12.6 10.9 12.3 13 -
2004
Carrying Expected &6 months 612 1-2 25 More than
amount cash flows or less maonths years years Syears
£ million £ million £ million £ million £ million £ million E million

Forward exchange contracts
Assets 0.7 10.7 5.9 09 1.8 21 -
Liabilities (1.8) 80.2 47.6 14,5 10.3 78 -
{1.1) 90.9 535 15.4 12.1 9.9 -

Certain forward foreign exchange contracts and foreign exchange swaps are not designated as cash flow hedges and changes in their fair value
are recognised through the income statement. The notional cantract amount, carrying amount and fair values of these forward contracts and
swaps are as fotlows:

2007 2006 2007 2008

Notional Notional Carrying Carrying

contract contract amount and amount and

amount amount fair value fair value

£ millicn £ million £ million £ million

Current assets 69.4 364 1.5 0.1
Current liabilities 9.7 9.4 (0.3) (0.1)
7941 458 1.2 -

Hedging of foreign currency risk - net investment hedges

The group uses cross currency swaps and, until repayment of substantially all the group’s debt during 2006, foreign currency denominated
borrowings which have been designated as hedges of the net investments in subsidiaries in Canada, the US and formerly in France. The notional
contract amount, carrying amount and fair values of swaps designated as net investment hedges are as follows:

2007 2006 2007 2006

Notional Notional Carrying Carrying

contract contract amount and amount and

amount armount fair value fair value

£ million £ miltion £ million £ miltion

Current assets - 1275 - 8.2
Current liabilities 138.3 - 4.1 -

A net foreign exchange loss for the year of £8.6 million (2006: gain of £16.4 million] was recognised in the translation reserve in respect of these
swaps and borrowings.

Interest rate risk - contractual maturity and effective interest rates
In respect of interest-earning financial assets and interest-bearing financial liabilities, the following table indicates their effective interest
rates at the balance sheet date and the perieds in which they mature:

2007

Effective More

interest & months 4-12 1-2 2-5 than§

rate Total or less menths years years years

Per cent € mitlion L million £ million £ miltion £ millien £ millicn

Cash and cash equivalents 5.3 7341 7341 - - - -
Unsecured bank loans:

Sterling fixed rate loan 5.8 {0.2] {0.2] - - - -

Bank overdrafts
Sterling overdraft 63 0.7) (0.7) - - - -
733.2 733.2 - - - -
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21 Financial instruments continued

2006
Effective More
interest & months 6-12 i-2 2-5 than &
rate Tatal or less months years years years
Per cent £ million £ mitlion £ million £ million £ million £ million
Cash and cash equivalents 3.7 3754 3754 - - - -
Unsecured bank loans:
Sterling floating rate loan 40 [19.3) {7.8) (4.8 (6.9 - -
Bank averdrafts
Sterling overdraft 6.0 (1.2) (1.2] - - - -
354.9 366.6 (4.8} (6.9 - -
Currency risk

The group publishes its consolidated financiat statements in Sterling. It conducts business in a range of currencies, including Canadian and
US dollars and currencies linked to the US dellar. As a result, the group is expesed to foreign exchange risks, which will affect transaction costs
and the translation results and value of underlying assets of its foreign subsidiaries.

The group hedges its material transaction related exposures. With respect to translation exposure, the group does not hedge the profits
generated in non-Sterling currencies but does hedge a proportion of assets denominated in foreign currencies.

The impact of a 10 per cent movement in the average Sterling/Canadian dollar and Sterling/US dollar rates on post-tax profit for 2007 is
£7.0 million. The impact of a 10 per cent movernent in the closing rates on equity for 2007 is £14.0 million.

Credit risk

The maximum exposure to credit risk is represented by the carrying amount of each financiat asset, including derivative financial instruments
recorded in the balance sheet.

The ageing of trade receivables at the year end was:

Gross Gross
receiveables Impairment receivables Impairment
2007 2007 2006 2005
€ milticn £ millicn £ millicn £ million
Not past due ‘ 188.6 {0.5) 287.1 10.6)
Past due 0-30 days 48.1 - 43.9 -
Past due 31-120 days 274 (1.8) 295 (3.2
Past due 121-365 days 121 (5.7 129 (2.6)
More than one year 17.4 (12.0) 28.4 13.7
2936 (20.0) 4018 (20.1)

The above analysis excludes retentions relating to contracts in progress of £20.9 million (2006: £41.6 million] expected to be recovered within ene
year and £6.5 million [2006: £10.6 million] expected to be recovered after one year. Net receivables as at 31 December 2007 include £5.4 mitlion
in respect of amounts overdue by more than one year. The group betieves there is no material exposure in respect of these balances.

The movement in the allowance for impairment in respect of trade receivables during the year was as follows:

2007 2006

€ million £ miltion

As at 1 January (20.1) [49.71
Disposal of businesses 2.6 22.0
[Additionl/reduction in impairment allowance (2.5) 7.6
As at 31 December (20.0) 120.1)

Based on past experience, the group believes that no material impairment allowance is necessary in respect of trade receivables not past due.

Trade receivable exposures are typically with large companies and government backed organisations, and the credit ratings of these

organisations are menitored. Credit risks are minimised through the use of letters of credit, parent company guarantees, insurance instruments
and forward funding where achievable.

The group’s most significant customer is Shéll, which in 2007 accounted for around 10 per cent of continuing revenues.

The group holds significant net cash balances following the disposal of AMEC SPIE, the Built Environment businesses and other peripheral
businesses during 2006 and 2007. The group intends to reinvest these monies into the core activities and return up to €80 million to
shareholders via the previously announced share buy back.

Cash deposits and financial transactions give rise to credit risk in the event that counterparties fail to perform under the contract. AMEC
manages these risks by ensuring that surplus funds are placed with counterparties up to a pre-approved limit. These limits are set at prudent
levels by the board, are based primarily on credit ratings set by Moody's, Standard & Poors and Fitch and have been reviewed in light of the
recent market turbulence. Credit ratings are monitored continuously by group treasury.
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21 Financial instruments continued

Fair values
The fair values together with the carrying amounts shown in the balance sheet are as follows:
Carrying Carrying
amount amount Fair vatue Fair value
2007 2006 2007 2004
£ million £ million £ million £ miltion
Current trade and other receivables 326.9 4549 326.9 4549
Forward foreign exchange contracts and foreign exchange swaps:
Assets 3 %0 31 9.0
Liabilities (5.3) 1.9 15.3) {1.91
Cash and cash eguivalents 734.1 375.4 7343 375.4
Bank overdrafts (0.7 (1.2] 0.7) (1.2
Unsecured bank loans (0.2) (19.3] 0.2) (19.3)
Current trade and other payables (508.3) (780.5] (508.3} (780.51
Assets and liabilities classified as held for sale:
Trade and other receivables 4.2 12.2 4.2 12.2
Forward foreign exchange contracts and foreign exchange swaps - 1.4 - 1.4
Cash and cash equivalents - 33.0 - 33.0
Bank and other averdrafts - (0.8] - (0.8)
Trade and other payables (1.2) [60.0) 1.2) (60.0]

Fair values are determined as follows:
Trade and other receivables and payables are valued at their amortised cost, which are deemed to reflect fair value,

The fair vatue of interest rate swaps is estimated by discounting estimated future cash flows based on the terms and maturity of each contract
and using market interest rates.

The fair value of forward foreign exchange contracts is estimated by discounting the difference between the contractual forward price and the
current forward price for the residual maturity of the contract using a risk free interest rate.

Bank loans and bonds are valued based on discounted expected future principal and interest cash flows.

22 Provisions
tndemnities
granted and
Litigation retained
settlement obligations Onerous
and future on dispesed property
legal costs businesses Insurance contracts Total
mitlion £ mitlion £ millian £ million £ million
As at 1 January 2007 85.3 53.6 258 9.1 173.8
Exchange movements {0.5) 34 - - n
Utilised 17.00 8.3 - - {25.31
Charged/creditedj to the income statement:
Additional provisions 204 35.0 14.1 3.0 72.5
Unused amounts reversed [14.7) {5.0) - (3.0) (2.7}
As at 31 December 2007 7.5 78.9 39.9 9.1 199.4

Provision was made during 2004 and prior for the estimated litigation settlement future legal casts in connection with the group’s ongoing major
litigation - major contingent liabilities are discussed in more detail in note 28,

In 2007 provision has been made for obligations relating to completed projects related to the Built Environment and other peripheral businesses
which have been sald during 2007.

The provision for indemnities retates to the indemnification of the purchasers of SPIE in 2004, purchasers of the Built Environment businesses
and other peripheral businesses in 2007.

The insurance provision relates to the potential liabilities in the group’s captive insurance entity and provisions in relation to risks associated
with insurance clairms.

Future outflows in respect of the enerous property contracts are expected to gccur over the next several years. Due to the nature of the other
liabitities, the timing of any potential future outflows is uncertain.
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23 Share capital and reserves

Amounts
recognised

inequity Total equity
refating to  attributable

Share Capital assets and to equity
Share  premium Hedging Translation redemption Retained liabilities  holders of Minority Total
capital account reserve reserve reserve earnings hetd for sale the company interests equity
£ million £ million £ million £ million £ million £ millien € million £ million £ million £ million

As at 1 January 2006 166.4 89.5 (27.7] 219 17.2 55.3 - 3224 0.3 3229
Total recognised income
and expense - - 12.0 (22.7} - 222.0 - 213 2.6 2139
Dividends - - - - - {38.3] - (38.31 - (38.3]
Shares issued 0.4 1.2 - - - - - 1.6 - 1.6
Equity settted
share-based payments - - - - - {2.3]) - (231 - {2.3]
Disposal of shares by
trustees of the Performance
Share Plan 2002 - - - - - 2.2 - 2.2 - 22
Reclassification - - (0.9] - - - 0.9 - - -
Recognised in profit on disposat - - - 1.5 [4.6) - - - (3.1) (2.1] (5.2)
As at 31 Decernber 2006 166.8 90.7 (15.1) (5.4) 17.2 238.9 0.9 494.0 08 4948
Total recognised income
and expense - - 2.2 235 - 4087 fon 4343 0.1 4344
Dividends - - - - - (41.3) - [41.3] - 41.3]
Shares issued 1.9 88 - - - - - 10.7 - 10.7
Equity settted
share-based payments - - - - - 53 - 5.3 - 53
Disposal of shares by trustees of
the Performance Share Plan 2002 - - - - - 0.3 - 03 - 0.3
Dividend paid to minority interests - - - - - - - - (0.1) {0.1)
Acquisition of treasury shares - - - - - (21.5) - (21.9) - [21.5)
Recognised in profit on disposat - - 1.0 0.6 - - (0.8 10.8 - 10.8
As at 31 December 2007 168.7 99.5 1.9 18.7 17.2 590.4 - 892.6 0.8 893.4

The hedging reserve comprises the effective portion of the cumulative net change in the fair value of cash flow hedging instruments related
to hedged transactions that have not yet occurred.

The translation reserve comprises alk foreign exchange differences arising from the translation of the accounts of foreign operations,
as well as from the translation of liabitities and the cumulative net change in the fair value of instruments that hedge the company’s net
investment in foreign subsidiaries.

The group has acquired 3,768,800 shares during the year which are held in treasury. As at 31 Decernber 2007, £21.5 million had been deducted
from equity in respect of these shares.

A qualifying share ownership trust ['the Quest’) was established on 26 August 1999. The Quest holds shares issued by the company in
connection with the savings related share option scheme. During the year the company allotted 811,773 [2006: 123,437] shares to the Quest
and the Quest transferred 1,689,796 (2004: 186,710} of these shares to employees exercising options.

As at 31 December 2007 the Quest held 259 [2064: 878,282] shares.
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23 Share capita!l and reserves continued

Share capital

The authorised share capital of the company is £350.0 million [2006: £350.0 million). This comprises 700 million (2006: 700 million) ordinary
shares of 50 pence each. All the ordinary shares rank parri passu in all respects. To the company’s knowledge and belief, there are no restrictions
on the transfer of shares in the cormpany or on voting rights between holders of shares.

2007 2006
€ million £ million
Allotted, called up and fully paid ordinary shares of 50 pence each 148.7 166.8
The movernent in issued share capital was as follows:
MNumber £ mitlion
As at 1 January 2006 332,856,732 166.4
Qualifying employee share ownership trust allotments 123,437 0.1
Exercise of executive share options 451,998 0.2
Exercise of savings related share options 178,124 0.1
As at 31 December 2004 333,610,291 166.8
Qualifying employee share ownership trust allotments 811,773 0.4
Exercise of executive share options 24,424 -
Exercise of savings related share options 3,031,797 1.5
As at 31 December 2007 337,478,285 168.7

During the year the company issued 3,867,994 ordinary shares of 50 pence each, for a consideration of £10.7 million, settled in cash,

Share-based payments

Offers are made periodically in certain countries under the UK and International Savings Related Share Option Schemes which are open to all
employees in those countries who meet minimum service criteria. Grants of share options are made to participating employees that entitle
them to buy shares in the company normally after three years at up to 20 per cent discount to the market price of the shares at the time of offer.
In the USA, to conform with the relevant tax rules, options are granted at a maximum discount of 15% to the share price at the time of grant and
are normally exercisable after 2 years.

Under the Executive Share Option Scherne 2002, directors and selected senior employees have been granted share options with a maximum
term of ten years that are subject to a non-market based performance condition. No awards have been made under this scheme since 2004.
The ongoing executive long-term incentive scheme is the Performance Share Plan 2002. Annual awards are made to directors and selected

senior employees of restricted shares that are subject to both market and non-market based conditions calculated over a three-year period.
Detailed terms of this plan are included in the remuneration report on pages 73 and 74.

All of the share-based payment arrangements operated by the group are equity-settied and, other than in defined good leaver circumstances,
require participants to be still in employment with the group at the time of vesting.

The number and weighted average exercise price of share options under the Savings Related Share Option Scherne and the Executive Share
Option Scheme 2002 are as follows:

Weighted Weighted

average avarage
exercise Number exercise Number
price of options price of optigns
2007 2007 2006 2006

pence pence
Outstanding on 1 January ‘ 257 13,617,285 257 17,438,749
Lapsed 270 [4,923,788) 277 (2,998,656)
Exercised 227 14,703,019 192 (822,828)
Granted 601 3,205,555 - -
Outstanding on 31 December a1 7,196,033 257 13,617,285
Exercisable on 31 December 276 1,634,500 218 1,850,545

Options were exercised on a regular basis during the year, and the average share price for the year was 640 pence (2006: 348 pence).

Options outstanding on 31 December 2007 have weighted average remaining contractual lives as follows:

Weighted Weighted

average average
remaining Number remaining Number
contractual life of options  contractual life of options

" 20 2007 2006

years years
100.00 pence to 199.99 pence 0.1 19,543 22 43,967
200.00 pence to 299.99 pence 28 3,970,935 3.0 11,970,515
Qver 300.00 pence 31 3,205,555 78 1.602.803
7,196,033 13,617,285
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23 Share capital and reserves continued

Share awards granted during the year under the Performance Share Plans are as follows:

Weighted Weighted
average Number average Number
fair value of shares fair value of shares
2007 2007 2006 2006
pence pence
Share awards granted during the year 395 1,608,430 181 2,257.91%

The fair value of services received in return for share options granted and shares awarded are measured by reference to the fair value of those
instruments. For grants in either the current or preceding year, the pricing models used and inputs {on a weighted average basis where

appropriate) into those models are as follows:

Savings Related

Share Option Scheme Performance Share Plan 2002

2007 20056 2007 2005

Pricing model used Black-Scholes Black-Scholes Monte Carlo Monte Carlo
Weighted average fair value at measurement date 210p - I%hp 181p
Share price 747p - S32p 334p
Exercise price §01p - N/A N/A
Expected share price volatility 24% - 24% 26%
Optionlife  * * 33years - N/A N/A
Expected dividend yield 2.5% - 2.5% 3%
Risk-free interest rate 4.8% - N/A N/A
Comparator share price volatility N/A - 24% 25%
Correlation between two companies in comparator group N/A - 25% 20%

The expected share price volatility is based on the historical volatitity of the company’s share price.

The performance conditions attaching to the Performance Share Plans involve a comparison of the total shareholder return of the company with
that of its comparators and achievement of targeted earnings per share growth. The former is a market based test and as such is incorporated

into the grant date fair value of the award.

Dividends 2007 20046
f. million £ miltion

Dividends charged to reserves

Final dividend in respect of 2006 of 8.0 pence per share [2006: final dividend in respect

of 2005 of 7.5 pence| per share 26.2 245

Interim dividend in respect of 2007 of 4.6 pence per share (2006: interim dividend

in respect of 2004 of 4.2 pencel per share 15.1 138
41.3 383

Dividends paid

Interim dividend in respect of 2004 of 4.2 pence {2006: interim dividend in respect

of 2005 of 4.0 pence) per share 136 13.0

Final dividend in respect of 2004 of 8.0 pence (2006: final dividend in respect

of 2005 of 7.5 pencel per share 26.2 245
39.8 37.5

The amounts waived by Trustees of the Performance Share Plans in respect of the interim and final dividends was £0.7 million (2006: £0.8 million).

The amounts waived by Trustees of the qualifying employee share ownership trust in respect of the interim and final dividends was Enil million

(2006: £0.1 million).

The directors are proposing a final dividend in respect of the financiat year ending 31 December 2007 of 8.8 pence per share, which will
absorb an estimated £29.2 million of equity. Subject to approval, it will be paid on 1 July 2008 to shareholders on the register of members
on 23 May 2008. The dividend has not been provided for and there are no income tax consequences for the company.
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Notes to the consolidated accounts continued

24 Analysis of cash, cash equivalents and net cash

As at Exchange and Asat
1 January other non-cash 31 December
2007 Cash flow movemnents 2007
£ million £ million £ million Emillion
Cash at bank and in hand 336.2 380.0 42 720.4
Short-term investments : 39.2 [25.5) - 13.7
Cash and cash equivalents disclosed on the balance sheet 375.4 354.5 4.2 7341
Overdrafts (1.2) 0.5 - 10.7)
3742 355.0 4.2 733.4
Cash and cash equivalents [including overdrafts) '
classified as held for sale 322 [32.2) - -
Total cash and cash equivalents 406.4 322.8 4.2 733.4
Current debt (12.4) 12.3 - (0.1}
Non-current debt (6.9 6.8 - (0.1}
Net cash as at the end of the year 387.1 3419 4.2 733.2
Short-term investments comprise short-term bank deposits.
Cash and cash equivalents as at 31 December 2007 include US$8.0 million which has been frozen by the courts [note 28],
Net cash is analysed between the amount disclosed in the balance sheet and amounts classified as held for sale as follows:
2007 2006
£ million £ million
Net cash disclosed on the balance sheet 733.2 354.9
Net cash classified as held for sale - 32.2
Total net cash as at the end of the year 733.2 387.1
25 Acquisitions and disposals
Acquisitions
On 3 Gctober 2007, the group acquired all the shares in Cade-Idepe for £12.6 million in cash and acquired cash of £0.3 million. Cade-ldepe-
is one of the largest independent Chilean engineering services companies and is based in Santiago.
The amaounts recognised in respect of identifiable assets and liabilities relating to the acquisition of Cade-ldepe were as follows:
Fair value Recognised
Book value adjustments value
£ million E million £ million
Property, plant and equipment 08 - 0.8
Intangible assets - 1.5 1.5
Trade and other receivables 6.5 - 6.5
Cash and cash equivalents 0.3 - 03
Trade and other payables (3.1) - 3.1
Net identifiable assets and liabilities 4.5 15 4.0
Goodwill on acquisition b.6
12.6
Consideration
Cash lof which £2.5 million is deferred) 12.3
Cost of acquisition 03
12.6

As Cade-ldepe was acquired on 3 October 2007, its contribution to consolidated revenue and profit in the period from acquisition to 31 Decemnber
2007 were not material to the results of the group. The revenue and profit for the year ending 31 December 2007 for Cade-1depe were not

material te the group.

Goodwill has arisen on the acquisition of Cade-Idepe primarily because of synergies obtained through combining Cade-ldepe’s specialist

engineering expertise and strong customer relationships with AMEC's project management and engineering skills.

A number of other immaterial acquisitions were made in the year ended 31 Decernber 2007 for £3.1 million {2006: £5.5 mitlion) in cash with the
assumption of cash of £0.2 million [2006: overdraft of £9.5 million]. The aggregate fair value of the identifiable net liabilities was £1.1 million
[2006: £2.6 million) excluding overdrafts assumed and the aggregate goodwill arising on the acquisitions was £1.8 million {2006: £17.6 million).

There was no difference between book value and fair value to the group of the assets and liabilities acquired.
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25 Acquisitions and disposals continued

The contributions of the acquired businesses to revenue and profit were not material to the results of the group.

Goodwill has been recognised on these acquisitions as a result of skilled workforces which did not meet the criteria for recognition as intangible
assets at the dates of recognition.

All acquisitions in the year have been accounted for under the purchase method of accounting.

The acquisition cost of joint ventures and ather investments amounted te £6.0 million {2006: £23.5 million) and principally related to investments
in public private partnership projects and development projects.

Disposals
During 2007, the group sold its non-core Built Environment businesses, which are treated as discontinued operations in 2007 as follows:

On 27 July 2007, the divestment of the Property Developments and UK Building and Civil Engineering businesses to Morgan Sindall plc
was completed.

On 14 Septemnber 2007, the divestment of the Building and Facilities Services business to SPIE S.A, was completed.

On 12 November 2007, the divestment of the management team and eight underlying PPP assets of the Project Investments business to Land
Securities Trillium was completed.

Other non-core businesses divested during the year which are treated as discontinued operations include AMEC SPIE Capag. Buchan Concrete
Solutions and Midwest pipelines.

The carrying value of the assets and liabilities sold and the profit on sale in respect of the discontinued operations were as follows:

£ million

Property, plant and equipment 19.9
Intangible assets 0.4
Interests in joint ventures, associates and other investments ' 50.3
Deferred tax (0.3]
Inventories 342
Trade and other receivables 225.0
Cash and cash equivalents 104.8
Loan {15.1)
Current tax (0.8)
Trade and other payables {360.3]
Derivative financial instruments - 13
Net assets sold . 99.4
Amounts provided in respect of indemnities and other liabitities [net of amounts released) 20.9
Pension curtailment gain (28.5)
Amounts recognised in profit on disposal from the hedging and translation reserves 10.8
62.6

Cash consideration received 3915
Costs of disposal [of which £7.5 million was accrued at December 2007) (36.5)
Profit on disposal 2924

Amounts provided in respect of indemnities and other liabilities above includes £35.0 million of indemnities granted and retained obligations
(see note 22J, £13.1 million of other liabilities and onerous lease provisions recorded less £27.2 million of centrally held working capital
provisions relating to the discontinued operations that are no longer required.

In addition to the cash and cash equivalents of £104.8 million, an amount of £15.1 millien previously accounted for as debt was eliminated
on disposal.

The net cash flows attributable to discontinued operations during the year were as follows:

2007 2006

£ million £ million

Net cash flow from operating activities (0.7) (18.2)
Net cash flow from investing activities 2.3) (7.0)
Net cash flow from financing activities - [24.5)
13.0) (49.7)

AMEC SPIE Rail, Dynamic Structures and Monserco Limited were sold for a cash consideration of £24.4 million during the year, [net of costs
of £1.3 million] together with cash sold of £3.1 million, resulting in a profit on disposal of £17.7 million. These businesses were treated
as continuing operations.

Further proceeds of £3.1 million were received, primarily in respect of the repayment of loans by joint venture entities.

In 2006, the only material disposal was the sale of AMEC SPIE for a cash consideration of e1 bitlion [£684 miltion) which was completed
on 27 July 2006.
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25 Acquisitions and disposals continued

The carrying value of the assets and liabilities sold and the profit on sale of AMEC SPIE were as follows:

£ million
Property, plant and equipment 57.9
Intangible assets 269.6
Interests in joint ventures, associates and other investments 28
Deferred tax 338
Inventories 134
Trade and other receivables 8201
Cash and cash equivalents 397
Trade and other payables ’ (903.2]
Derivative financial instruments {3.5)
Retirement benefit liabilities [47.1)
Net assets sold 308.8
Minority interest in net assets sold (2.1]

306.7
Provisions made in respect of indemnities 520
Amounts recognised in profit on disposal from the hedging and translation reserves {3.3)
355.6
Cash consideration received 684.3
Costs of disposal (17.2]
Profit on disposal 3115
24 Capital commitments
2007 2006
£ million £ millien

Contracted but not provided for in the accounts - -

As at 31 December 2007, there was a cornmitment to invest a total of £4.9 million {2006: £56.8 million in various PPP and regeneration partnership
projects] in one PPP. As at 31 Decernber 2007, there are no commitments to purchase land for development projects (2006: £15 million over the
next ten years).

27 Operating leases

The total obligations under non-cancellable operating lease rentals for continuing operations are as follows:
2007 2006
£ million £ million
In ane year or less 27.2 296
Between one and five years 59.2 48.7
Over five years 248 30.0
111.2 128.3

AMEC enters into the following types of lease: shart-term plant hires; leases for motor vehicles and office equipment with lease perieds of two
to five years; and longer term property leases. None of the leases includes any contingent rentals.

28 Contingent liabilities

Guarantees and indemnities
The borrowings of joint ventures are generally without recourse to AMEC,

In the normal course of business, the company and certain subsidiaries have given counter indemnities in respect of performance bends issued
on behalf of group companies and parental guarantees have been given in support of the contractual obligations of group companies, joint
ventures and associates on both a joint and a several basis.

As at 31 December 2007, AMEC has given performance guarantees in respect of Incheon Bridge Company Ltd's overhead costs during
the construction phase and has an obligation to subscribe for additional equity [up to £8.1 million) in certain circumstances. Construction
completion is expected to be achieved in late 2009 and no obligations under either of these undertakings are expected to arise. There is
a separate commitment to invest equity in the Incheon Bridge Company (see note 13).
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28 Contingent liahilities continued

Legal claims and actions

AMEC has taken internal and external legal advice in considering known legal claims and actions made by or against the company.
Consequently, it carefully assesses the likelihood of the success of a ¢laim or action including those identified in this note. AMEC makes an
appropriate provision for these legal claims or actions against the company on the basis of the likely outcome, but makes no provision for those
which are, in its view, untikely to succeed. Provisions of £71.5 million [2004: £85.3 million) are shown in note 22 in respect of these claims.

itis not practicable to quantify the remaining contingent liability because of the range of possible outcomes and the progress of the litigation.

The information below indicates the quantum of claims against AMEC or where we are unable to quantify the claim, an indication of the gross
contract value or the amount in dispute. As the list below involves actions by third parties against AMEC, the timing of settlement cannot

be determined although AMEC is endeavouring to settle as soon as practicable. Due to the litigation, there is no work in progress or other
receivable recognised in respect of these contracts. Whilst AMEC believes that certain claims may be covered by insurance, it is not currently
practicable to assess the extent to which AMEC's insurance policies will respond in the event of a settlement.

- During 1994 and 1995, AMEC Construction Management Inc. [ACMI'], a wholly owned subsidiary of AMEC plc, entered into various contracts
with the United States General Services Administration ['GSA] for the construction of courthouses in Missouri and California and for the
refurbishment and seismic upgrade of a US Customs House in California. The total value of these contracts at point of signing was in the order
of US$290 million. Due, inter alia, to unforeseen site conditions, client delays and numerous design and scope changes, ACMI suffered
significant cost overruns and submitted substantiat recovery claims.

In June 1999, GSA terminated the right of ACMI to complete one contract, which at that stage was 85 per cent complete. ACMI contested
the termination and sued the GSA for recovery of all claims on this contract. The GSA submitted its claim against ACMI for reprocurement
and other costs totalling US$32 million. Buring 2007 the GSA revised and reduced its claim for reprocurement costs to US$17.3 mitlion.

The United States Department of Justice filed a counterclaim alleging false claims on the GSA contracts and sought to argue that, as a result,
ACMI had forfeited its rights to recovery of all claims.

ACMI, upon legal advice, pleaded guilty in December 2000 and Novernber 2001 to two federal felonies and paid two fines totalling approximately
US$1.2 million. AMEC also agreed to introduce additional ethical processes and procedures, both for the North American workforce and

for those staff employed by AMEC, whose respensibilities caused them to have regular business contact with AMEC in the US and thus,

the US Government.

The GSA subsequently filed a motion for summary judgernent seeking an order declaring that ACMI had forfeited its ctaims on all the projects.
ACM| opposed the motion and oral argument was held in February 2004.

Ouring 2005, the US Court of Federal Claims ruled that ACMI had violated the US Anti-Kickback Act. The Court stated that it intended to issue
an order in respect of the Government’s counter claims and the issues relating to the Anti-Kickback Act in April 2004. The court ruled in
January 2007 that ACMI claims must be forfeited and damages in respect of false claims and Anti-Kickback legislation would be payable.
Several hearings have taken place in the US Court of Federal Claims and fines/damages of US$7.3 million sought by the GSA are likely to be
granted by the court. The US Government has apptied for a motion to seize funds relating to another ACMI project. US$8.0 million in funds owed
ta ACMI1 have been frozen by the courts, and could remain frozen whilst the above judgement is appealed. Other matters [the principal
outstanding issue is GSA's claim for reprocurement costs of US$17.3 million] remain to be heard by the US Court of Federal Claims.

The developments in 2007 have been fully reflected in the provisions held in respect of the Courthouses and Custom’s House in California.

In 2000, ACMI entered into a contract with a value of US$115 million to design and build a jail for the City and County of San Francisco [CCSF').
Due to unforeseen conditions, delays and interference with ACMI's design, procurement and execution of the work, ACMI suffered large cost
overruns. In 2005, lawsuits were filed by both parties. CCSF further alleged that ACM! made false claims in connection with the project and
also failed to properly maintain its California contractor’s license throughout the project term. Extensive discovery has been conducted and
dispositive motions were filed. A mediation was conducted, with sessions in the autumn of 2006 and the spring of 2007, and tentative terms

of agreement were reached. In view of the progress toward settlement, the Court vacated the November 2007 date it had earlier set for trial,
The parties are presently working together to complete an agreement on all terms. informed of CCSF's allegations about ACMY's alleged
licensing irregularities, the California Attorney General filed an Accusation in 2007, 'initiating a separate action against ACMI on behalf of

the California State License Board. ACMI is continuing its effarts to have the licensing irregularities resolved without significant penalty but,

if unable to do so, the matter would be submitted to an administrative law judge for a decision.

After the terrorist attacks in Septernber 2001, ACMI was one of four construction managers hired by the City of New York to carry out the clean
up and debris removal work at the World Trade Center site. The client was responsible for procuring insurance to protect the construction
managers and various contractors from lawsuits arising out of the work. The World Trade Center Captive Insurance Company (the 'WTC
Captive’] was formed and was funded with US$1 billion in Federal money to provide coverage for the City, the construction managers and

the contractors who performed the work on site. Pursuant to the insurance potlicy that was issued, the WTC Captive is providing a minimum

of US$1 billion in insurance coverage. This amount can increase depending upon investment returns on the US$1 billion. The WTC Captive

is providing a defence and indemnification for claims against ACMI arising out of this work.

AMEC Group Limited [AGL] is currently the subject of certain ongoing Health and Safety Executive investigations, in respect of: (i) separate
incidents involving fatalities of subcontractors, namely: two separate fatalities to subcontractors at the Leftbank Apartments project in
Manchester in April 2004 and April 2005; and liil a fatal accident on the Clipper platform in the North Sea and (iii] AGL's role in the management
of its subcontractors following an incident in which a crane averturned on an AGL site in Manchester in 2007. If AGL is to be prosecuted in the
Crown Court for any of these cases, it could be Liable to unlimited fines. A prosecution for AGL in relation to fatal accidents in relatively quick
succession [such as those at the Leftbank Apartments) could have an impact on the amount of any penalty.
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Notes to the consolidated accounts continued

29 Related party transactions

During the year there were a number of transactions with the senior management group, joint venture entities and subsidiary companies.

Transactions with the senior management group
Directors of the company and their immediate relatives control 0.1 per cent of the voting rights of the company.

In addition to their salaries, the group and company also provide non-cash benefits to directors and executive officers, and contribute to a
post-employment defined benefit plan on their behalf. Directors and executive officers also receive share awards under the Performance
Share Plans.

Details of the senior management group compensation are as follows:

2007 2006
. £ million £ million
Short-term employee benefits 1.0 0.8
Fost-employment benefits 0.1 0.1
1.1 0.9

The transactions and related balances outstanding with joint venture entities and associates are as follows:
Value of transactions Outstanding balance
inthe year as at 31 December
2007 2006 2007 2006
£ million £ million £ million £ million
Services rendered 71.5 84.2 25 6.0
Services received 29 19 1.6 0.3
Sale of property, plant and equipment - 2.2 - -
Provision of finance - 9.6 - 1.4
Receipt of finance - 7.0 - 15.1

AMEC Developments Limited and AMEC Staff Pensions Trustee Limited entered into an agreement on 23 December 2005 for the sale of

the long leasehold interests forming part of the Newcastle Estate, owned by AMEC Developments Limited, to AMEC Staff Pensions Trustee
Limited, for a price of £25 million. As at 31 December 2005, the agreement was conditional upon various consents being obtained and ancillary
documentation being entered into. The consents were received during 2006 and the sale completed. AMEC Devetopments Limited and AMEC
Staff Pensions Trustee Limited received separate legal and valuation advice in respect of the transaction.

On 5 September 2006, AMEC completed the disposal of US Pipeline Inc. to Dearborn Resources, inc. for £11 million. Dearborn Resources, Inc.
is owned and managed by the previous president of US Pipeline Inc.

30 Post balance sheet events

0n 4 February 2008, the sale was completed of the tool and equipment hire business and related fixed assets, including certain contracts,
of AMEC Logistics and Support Services Limited to Speedy Hire Plc for cash consideration of £12.5 million.

On é March 2008, the sale was completed of AMEC's 25 per cent interest in Road Management Group Limited to AMEC’s former partners in
the joint venture for cash consideration of £11.1 million.
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Company balance sheet
As at 31 December 2007

2007 2006
Note £ million £ miltion

Fixed assets
Tangible assets 3 -39 &7
Investments: 4
Subsidiaries 1,479.3 1,719.3
Joint ventures 7.1 9.0
Other 0.1 0.1

1,486.5 1,728.4

1,490.4 1,733
Current assets
Debters: including amounts falling due after one year of £5.1 million (200é: £2.0 million) 3 20.4 225
Cash at bank and in hand 5141 196.9

5345 219.4

Current liabilities
Creditors: amounts falling due within one year b 199.7 (53.7)
Net current assets 434.8 165.7
Total assets less current liabilities 1,925.2 1,898.8
Creditors: amounts falling due after one year 7 (1,063.8) 11,16%.0)
Provisions for Liabilities and charges 8 (0.5) -
Net assets 860.9 729.8
Capital and reserves
Called up share capital 9,10 168.7 166.8
Share premium account 10 99.5 90.7
Revaluation reserve 10 0.5 0.5
Hedging reserve 10 - -
Capital redemption reserve 10 17.2 17.2
Profit and loss account 10 §75.0 454.6
Equity shareholders’ funds 860.% 729.8

The accounts on pages 115 to 120 were approved by the beard of directars on 11 March 2008 and were signed on its behalf by:

SY Brikho
Chief Executive

S J Siddall
Finance Director
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Notes to the company balance sheet

1 Accounting policies

Basis of accounting
The accounts have been prepared under the historical cost convention, modified to include the revaluation of certain land and buildings
and in accordance with applicable accounting standards and the Companies Act 1985.

The company has not presented its own profit and loss account, as permitted by section 230(4] of the Companies Act 1985,

Cash flow statement
The company is exempt from the requirement of FRS 1 Cash flow statements’ to prepare a cash flow statement as its cash flows are included
within the consolidated cash flow of the group.

Depreciation
Depreciation is provided on all tangible assets, other than freehold land, at rates calculated to write-off the cost or valuation, less estimated
residual value, of each asset on a straight line basis over its estimated useful life, as foltows:

Freehotd buildings S0 years
Leasehold land and buildings  the shorter of the lease term or 50 years
Plant and equipment mainly three to five years

Financial instruments

Financial instruments are initially recorded at fair value. Subsequent vatuation depends on the designation of the instruments. Cash, deposits
and short-term investments are held at amortised cost. Derivative financial instruments are accounted for as described in note 1 to the
consolidated accounts.

The company is exempt from the disclosure requirements of FRS 29 'Financial Instruments: Disclosures’ as the financial instruments
disclosures of IFRS 7 ‘Financial Instruments: disclosure’ are included in the notes to the consolidated accounts.

Finantial guarantee contracts .

Where the company enters into financial guarantee contracts to guarantee the indebtedness of other companies within the group, the company
considers these to be indemnity arrangements, and accounts for them as such. In this respect the company treats the guarantee contract
as a contingent liability until such time as it becomes probable that the company will be required to make a payment under the guarantee.

Foreign currencies

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated into Sterling at rates of exchange ruling at the balance sheet
date. Exchange differences arising an the transtation of foreign currency net investments and foreign currency borrowings, or forward exchange
contracts used to hedge those investments, are taken directly to reserves. Other exchange differences are taken to the profit and loss account
in the year,

[nterest
Interest income and payable is recognised in profit or loss on an accruals basis using the effective interest method.

Leases
Operating lease costs are charged to the profit and loss account on a straight line basis over the period of the lease.

Pensions
Contributions to defined benefit pension schermes in respect of employees of AMEC ple are charged in the profit and loss account as incurred.

Defined benefit pension schemes are operated by the group but the company is unable to separately identify its share of the assets and liabilities
of those schemes or any details of the surplus or deficit in the scheme and the implications of that surplus or deficit for the company.

Details of the disclosures required under FRS 17 ‘Retirement Benefits' can be found in the accounts of AMEC Group Limited, a subsidiary company.

Share-based payments ‘

There are share-based payment arrangernents which allow AMEC employees to acquire AMEC shares; these awards are granted by AMEC.
The fair value of awards granted is recognised as a cost of employment with a corresponding increase in equity. The fair value is measured at
grant date and spread over the period during which the employees becorne unconditionally entitled to the award. The fair value of the award is
measured using a valuation model, taking into account the terms and conditions upon which the awards were granted. The amount recognised
as an expense is adjusted to reflect the actual number of shares that vest except where non-vesting is due only to share prices not achieving the
threshold for vesting.

Taxation
The charge for taxation is based on the results for the year and takes into account taxation deferred because of timing differences between
the treatment of certain items for taxation and accounting purposes.

Deferred tax is recognised, without discounting, in respect of all timing differences between the treatment of certain items for taxation and
accounting purposes which have arisen but not reversed by the balance sheet date, except as otherwise required by FRS 19 ‘Deferred tax’.

.
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2 Staff costs and employee numbers

2007 2006
€ million E million
Wages and salaries 131 1.1
Social security costs 1.5 1.6
Other pension costs 1.5 1.3
16.1 14,0
The average number of people employed was 154 (2004: 168] all in a management or administration capacity.
3 Tangible assets
Land and Ptant and
buildings equipment Total
£ million £ mittion £ million
Cast or valuation:
As at 1 January 2007 5.4 29 83
Additions - 13 1.3
Disposals (2.9) - (2.9]
As at 31 December 2007 2.5 4.2 6.7
Depreciation:
As at 1 January 2007 1.0 2.6 3.6
Provided during the year 03 0.2 05
Disposals (1.3) - {1.3]
As at 31 December 2007 - 2.8 2.8
Net book value:
As at 31 December 2007 2.5 1.4 39
As at 1 January 2007 4.4 0.3 4.7
2007 2006
€ million £ millien
The net book value of land and buildings comprised:
Freehold 25 27
Short leasehold - 1.7
25 4.4
The cost or valuation of land and buildings comprised:
Cost - 3.0
External valuation in 2004 25 24
) 25 5.4

All significant freehold and long leasehold properties were externally valued as at 31 December 2004 by CB Richard Ellis Limited in accordance

with the Appraisal and Valuation Manual of the Royal Institute of Chartered Surveyors.

The basis of revaluation was existing use value for properties occupied by the company and market value for those properties without

company 0ccupancy.

The one remaining property owned by the company is now surplus to réquirements. The open market value of this property as at 31 December
2007 is not materially different from the valuation performed on an existing use basis as at 31 December 2004.

No provision has been made for the tax liability which may arise in the event that this property is disposed of at its revalued amount.
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Notes to the company balance sheet continued

3 Tangible assets continued

The amount of land and buildings included at valuation, determined according to the historicat cost convention, was as follows:

2007 2006
€ million £ million
Cost 33 6.2
Depreciation 1.2) (2.5]
Net book value 21 37
4 Investments (held as fixed assets)
Amounts Total
Shares in owed by investment in Joint Other
subsidiaries subsidiaries subsidiaries - ventures investments Total
£ million £ million £ million £ million £ million £ million
Cost:
As at 1 January 2007 1.638.3 164.0 1,802.3 9.0 01 1,811.4
Additions 1.1 97.3 98.4 0.5 - 98.9
Disposals [251.4) (72.0) (323.4] (2.4} - (325.8)
As at 31 December 2007 1,388.0 189.3 1,577.3 7.1 0.1 1,584.5
Provisions:
As at 1 January 2007 (83.0] - (83.0] - - (83.0)
Provided during the year (15.00 - (15.0) - - {15.0
As at 31 December 2007 (98.0} - i98.0) - - (98.0)
Net book value:
As at 31 December 2007 1,290.0 189.3 1,479.3 7.1 0.1 1,486.5
As at 1 January 2007 1,555.3 164.0 1,719.3 9.0 0.1 1,728.4
Principal group companies are listed on page 123.
5 Debtors
2007 2006
£ miltien £ miltion
Debtors: amounts falling due within one year
Trade debtors 2.9 8.8
Amounts owed by subsidiaries 1.0 1.4
Amounts owed by joint ventures 0.3 20
Derivative financial instruments 0.6 g1
Corporation tax - 6.4
Other debtors 0.1 0.4
Prepayments and acerued income 3.4 1.4
123 205
Debtors: amounts falling due after one year
Deferred tax 5.1 20
20.4 225
The movement in the deferred tax asset is analysed as follows:
€ million
As at 1 January 2007 2.0
Profit and loss account 35
Transfer in from group company (0.4)
As at 31 December 2007 5.1
The deferred tax asset is analysed as follows:
2007 2006
£ million £ million
Difference between accumulated depreciation and capital allowances 0.2 {0.3)
Other timing differences 4.9 2.3
5.1 20
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& Creditors: amounts falling due within one year

2007 2004
€ million £ million
Trade creditors 8.3 g0
Amounts owed to subsidiaries 11 1.9
Amounts owed to joint ventures 0.3 5.2
Derivative financial instruments 0.3 0.1
Corporation tax 25.1 -
Other taxation and social security costs 8.7 13.1
Other creditors 21.2 b4
Accruals and deferred income 19.2 4.0
Dividends 155 14.0
99.7 53.7

7 Creditors: amounts falling due after one year
2007 2006
£ million £ million
Armounts owed to subsidiaries 1,063.8 1,169.0

B Provisions for liabilities and charges

Indemnities granted on
disposal of subsidiary

£ million
As at 1 January 2007 -
Charged to profit and loss 0.5
As at 31 December 2007 0.5
9 Share capital
The autharised share capital of the company is £350.0 million (2006: £350.0 million).
2007 2006
£ mitlion £ million
Allotted, catled up and fully paid ordinary shares of 50 pence each 168.7 166.8
The movement in issued share capital during the year was as follows:
Number £ million
As at 1 January 2007 333,610,291 164.8
Qualifying employee share ownership trust allotments 811,773 0.4
Exercise of executive share options 24,4624 -
Exercise of savings related share options 3,031,797 1.5
As at 31 December 2007 337,478,285 168.7

Share-based payment

Details of share-based payment schemes operated by the company are provided in note 23 to the group accounts.
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Notes to the company balance sheet continued

10 Reserves
Share Capital Profit
Share premium Revaluation redemption and loss
capital account reserve reserve account Total
£ million £ million £ million £ million £ million £ million

As at 1 January 2007 1668 90.7 05 17.2 454.6 7298
Shares issued 19 838 - - - 10.7
Equity settled share-based payments - - - - 23 23
Dividends - - - - {613) (41.3]
Acquisition of treasury shares - - - - (21.5) (21.5)
Profit for the year - - - - 180.9 180.9
As at 31 December 2007 . 168.7 99.5 0.5 17.2 575.0 860.9
Details of dividends paid by the company and proposed during the year are disclosed in note 23 to the group accounts.
11 Lease commitments
The current annuat commitments payable under non-cancellable aperating leases were as follows:

Land and Land and Plantand Plant and

buildings buildings equipment equipment

2007 2386 2007 2004

€ million £ millicn £ million E million

Expiring over five years 0.3 0.4 - -

12 Contingent liabilities

Guarantees and indemnities

Guarantees given by the company in respect of borrowings of subsidiaries amounted to £nil as at 31 December 2007 [2006: £nil).

Details of other contingent liabilities of the company are provided in note 28 to the group accounts.
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Statement of directors’ responsibilities in respect of the annual report

and the accounts

The directors are responsible for preparing the annual report and the
group and parent company accaunts, in accordance with applicable law
and regulations.

Company law requires the directors to prepare group and parent
company accounts for each financial year. Under that law the directors
are required to prepare the group accounts in accordance with IFRS as
adopted by the EU and applicable law and have elected to prepare the
parent company accounts in accordance with UK Accounting Standards.

The group accounts are required by law and IFRSs as adopted by

the EU to present fairly the financial position and performance of the
group; the Cormpanies Act 1985 provides in relation to such accounts
that references in the relevant part of that Act to accounts giving a
true and fair view are references to their achieving a fair presentation,

The parent company accounts are required by law to give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the parent company.

In preparing each of the group and parent company accounts,
the directors are required to:

" select suitable accounting policies and then apply themn consistently
. make judgernents and estimates that are reasonable and prudent

. far the group accounts, state whether they have been prepared
in accordance with IFRS as adopted by the EU

for the parent company accounts, state whether applicable
UK Accounting Standards have been followed, subject to any
material departures disclosed and exptained in the parent
company accounts and

prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless
it is inappropriate to presume that the group and the parent company
will continue in business.

The directors are responsible for keeping proper accounting records
that disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position
of the parent company and enable them to ensure that its accounts
comply with the Companies Act 1985. They have general responsibility
for taking such steps as are reasonably open to them to safeguard the
assets of the group and to prevent and detect fraud and other irregularities.

Under applicable taw and regulations, the directors are also
responsible for preparing a directors’ report, directors remuneration
report and corporate governance statement that comply with

that law and those regulations.

The directors are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of

the corporate and financial information included on the company’s web
site, Legistation in the UK governing the preparation and dissemination
of financial statements may differ from legislation

in other jurisdictions.
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Independent auditors report to the members of AMEC plc

We have audited the group and parent company accounts (the
‘accounts’] of AMEC plc for the year ended 31 Decernber 2007 which
comprise the group income statement, the group and parent company
balance sheets, the group cash flow statement, the group statement of
recagnised incorme and expense and the related notes. These accounts
have been prepared under the accounting policies set out therein.

We have alse audited the information in the directors’ remuneration
report that is described as having been audited.

This report is made solely to the company’s members, as a body,
in accordance with section 235 of the Companies Act 1985. Our audit
work has been undertaken so that we might state to the company’s

members those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor’s

report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law,
we do not accept or assume responsibitity to anyone other than the
company and the company’s members as a body, for our audit work,
for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditors

The directors’ responsibilities for preparing the annual report and the
group accounts in accordance with applicable taw and international
Financiat Reporting Standards ['IFRS’) as adopted by the European
Union, and for preparing the parent company accounts and the
directors’ remuneration report in accordance with applicable law

and United Kingdom Accounting Standards (United Kingdom
Generally Accepted Accounting Practice] are set qut in the statement
of directors’ responsibilities.

Our responsibility is to audit the accounts and the part of the directors’
remuneration report to be audited in accordance with relevant legal
and regulatory requirements and International Standards on Auditing
[UK and Iretand).

We report to you our opinion as to whether the accounts give a true
and fair view and whether the accounts and the part of the directors’
remuneration report to be audited have been properly prepared in
accordance with the Companies Act 1985 and whether, in addition,
the group accounts have been properly prepared in accordance with
Article 4 of the |AS Regulation. We also report to you whether in our
opinion the information given in the directors’ report is consistent with
the accounts. The information given in the directors’ report includes
that specific information presented in the operating and financial
review that is cross referred from the business review section of the
directors’ report.

In addition we report to you if, in our opinion, the company has not kept
proper accounting records, if we have not received all the information
and explanations we require for our audit, or if information specified
by law regarding directors’ remuneration and other transactions is

not disclosed.

We review whether the Corporate Governance Statement reflects the
company’s compliance with the nine provisions of the 20056 Combined
Code specified for our review by the Listing Rules of the Financial
Services Autherity, and we report if it does not. We are not required to
consider whether the board's staternents on internal controt cover all
risks and controls, or form an opinion on the effectiveness of the group’s
corperate governance procedures or its risk and control procedures.
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We read other information contained in the annual repart

and consider whether it is consistent with the audited accounts.
The other information comprises only the chairman’s statement,
the chief executive’s review, the directors’ report, the unaudited
part of the directors’ remuneration report, the operating and financial
review and the corporate governance statement. We consider the
implications for our report if we become aware of any apparent
misstatements or material inconsistencies with the accounts.

Our responsibilities do not extend to any other information,

Basis of audit opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Internationat Standards
on Auditing [UK and Ireland issued by the Auditing Practices Board.
An audit includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant
to the amounts and disclosures in the accounts and the part of

the directors’ remuneration report to be audited. It also includes

an assessment of the significant estimates and judgments made

by the directors in the preparation of the accounts, and of whether
the accounting policies are appropriate to the group’s and company’s
circurnstances, consistently applied and adequately disclosed.

We ptanned and performed our audit so as to obtain all the information
and explanations which we considered necessary in order to provide us

with sufficient evidence to give reasonable assurance that the accounts

and the part of the directors’ remuneration report to be audited are
free from material misstatement, whether caused by fraud or other
irregularity or error, In forming our opinion we also evaluated the
overall adequacy of the presentation of information in the accounts
and the part of the directors’ remuneration report to be audited,
Opinion

In our opinign;

the group accounts give a true and fair view, in accordance
with IFRS as adopted by the EU, of the state of the group’s affairs
as at 31 December 2007 and of its profit for the year then ended

the group accounts have been properly prepared in accordance with
the Companies Act 1985 and Article 4 of the JAS Regulation

the parent company accounts give a true and fair view, in accordance
with UK Generally Accepted Accounting Practice, of the state of the
parent campany’s affairs as at 31 December 2007

the parent company accounts and the part of the directors’
remuneration report to be audited have been properly prepared
in accordance with the Companies Act 1985 and

the information given in the directors’ report is consistent with
the accounts.

KPMG Audit Ple
Chartered Accountants
Registered Auditor
Manchester

11 March 2008




Principal group companies
As at 31 Decernber 2007

The subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates which, in the opinion Joint ventures and associates

of the directors, principally affect group trading results and net assets  Incheon Bridge Co. Ltd (29 per cent) [note 4)

are listed below. Except where indicated, all subsidiaries listed below KIG Immobitien Beteiligungsgesellschaft mbH {Germany] {50 per cent)
are wholly owned, incorporated in Great Britain and carry on their {note 5)

activities principally in their countries of incorporation. Shares are held *Newcastle Estate Partnership Holdings Limited (50 per cent - "A” shares)
by subsidiary companies except where marked with an asterisk, where  [note 6)

they are held directly by the company. Al hotdings are of ordinary *Northern Integrated Services Limited (50 per cent - "B” shares] {note 7)
shares, except where otherwise indicated. A full list of subsidiaries will  *Road Management Group Limited [25 per cent] (note 8)
be filed with the Registrar of Companies with the next annual return. Road Management Services [A13) Holdings Limited (25 per cent] [note 9]
Subsidiaries Notes

. Font 1 Theissued share capital of AMEC Australia Pty Limited is 42,930,601 ordinary
AMEC Amerlc.las erlFeC! [Canadal , shares of A$1 each, 12,500,000 class "A” redeemable preference shares of A1
AMEC Australia Pty Limited [Australial [note 1) each and 2,500 non-cumulative redeemable preterence shares of A$1 each.
AMEC {Bermuda] Limited {Bermuda) 2 Tpaisgz;:ed sr:lare capitat of AMEC Civil LLC is 1,000 common membership interests

L o each.
AMEC BKW Llr‘nlt?d L 3 Theissued share capital of AMEC Services Limited is 50 million ordinary shares
AMEC Capital Projects Limited of 99 pence each and 50 million preference shares of 1 pence each,
AMEC Civil, Inc. [USAJ 4 The issued share capital of Incheon Bridge Co. Ltd is 19,817,252 ordinary shares
R, of KRW 5,000 each.

AMEC Civil LLC [USA] [80 per cent] [note 2) 5  KIG Immabilien Beteiligungsgeseltschaft mbH is a fimited liability partnership.
AMEC Construction Management, Inc. [USA) &  Theissued share capital of Newcastle Estate Partnership Holdings Limited is

500,000 “A” ordinary shares of £1 each, 200,000 “B” ordinary shares of £1 each,

AMEC Earth & Eanronrnental. Inc. [l:‘SA] 250,000 "C" ordinary shares of £1 each and 50,000 "D erdinary shares of £1 each.
AMEC Earth & Environmental [UK] Limited 7  Theissued share capital of Northern Integrated Services Limited is 12,500
; “A” ordinary shares of £1 each and 12,500 “B™ ordinary shares of £1 each.
‘AMEC E.& c Serv!ce_s Inc. USA) 8 The issuec;yshare capital of Road Management Group Limited is 25,335,004
AMEC Finance Limited ordinary shares of £1 each.
AGRA Foundations Limited [Canada) %  Theissued share capital of Road Management Services [A13] Holdings Limited
*AMEC Group Limited is 1,233,754 ordinary shares of £1 each.

AMEC Holdings, Inc. [USA

AMEC inc. {Canadal

AMEC Infrastructure, Inc. [USA)

AMEC Infrastructure Limited (Canadal

AMEC International [Chile] S.A. [Chilel

AMEC International Construction Limited

(operating outside the United Kingdom)

AMEC Kamtech, Inc. {USA}

*AMEC Logistics and Support Services Limited

AMEC Nuclear UK Limited

AMEC NCL Limited [Canada]

AMEC Nuclear Holdings Limited

AMEC Offshore Services Limited

AMEC Paragon, Inc. [USA)

AMEC [Peru) S.A. [Peru)

AMEC Project Investments Limited
*AMEC Property and Overseas Investments Limited
*AMEC Services Limited [note 3)

AMEC Utilities Limited

Atlantic Services Limited [Bermudal)

KL Ingenieurbau GmbH [Germany)

National Ventures, Inc. [USA]

Nuclear Safety Solutions Limited [Canada)

Primat Recruitment Limited

Terra Nova Technologies, Inc. [USA]
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Five year record

2007 2006* 2005 2004° 2003**
£ million £ million £ million £ million £ million
Summarised consolidated results
Continuing operations
Revenue 2,356.2 21216 1,788.5 1.581.5 1,723.8
Adjusted profit before intangible amortisation, exceptional
iterns and taxation but including joint venture profit before tax 126.5 79.7 80.6 44.2 11.8
Amortisation of goodwill and other intangible assets [2.5) (3.6 (6.0 - {9.5}
Joint ventures and associate tax (0.6) 0.3] [1.9] (4.7 2.8
1234 75.8 72.7 39.5 (0.5
Exceptional items arising from:
Litigation and separation 4.5 i56.7) (5.1) - -
Exiting businesses and markets 237 {46.1] [46.5) (31.3) (6.9
Loss on disposal of fixed assets . - - - - {0.1)
28.2 (102.8) (51.6) (31.3} {7.0)
Profit/(loss] before income tax 151.6 (27.0i 211 82 7.5
Income tax (30.1) (15.2} (15.3) {6.5] (3.4}
Profit/(loss) for the year from continuing operations 1215 62.2) 5.8 1.7 10.91
Profit/[loss) for the year from discontinued operations
(net of income tax) 222.9 261.4 2.1) 50.0 7.7
Profit for the year 3444 219.2 7 81.7 60.8
Basic earnings/iloss) per share from continuing operations 36.9p (13.3]p 1.9p 0.3p (4.0)p
Diluted earnings per share from continuing operations*** 28.0p 16.6p 17.8p 10.4p 1.2p
Dividends per share 13.4p 12.2p 11.5p 11.0p 10.5p
Dividend cover*** 2.1x 1.4x 1.5% 0.9x nm
Summarised consolidated balance sheets
Non-current assets 525.1 4790 895.3 819.0 646.2
Net working capitak (167.8) (179.6] (108.3] (29.9) (102.3)
Net cash/(debt] 733.2 3549 [245.5) {283.7) (218.1)
Gther non-current liabilities [(210.7) (197.1) (218.8) ~ [197.8) (57.3)
Net assets classified as held for sale ’ 13.6 37.6 - - -
Net assets 893.4 4948 3229 307.6 268.5
Total attributable to equity holders of the parent 892.6 4940 3224 304.3 2611
Minority interests 0.8 0.8 03 33 7.4
Total equity 893.4 494.8 3229 307.6 2685

*The figures for 2007, 2006, 2005 and 2004 are prepared under adopted IFRS and are stated in accordance with the accounting policies set out
on pages 82 to 86, The figures for 2006, 2005 and 2004 have been restated to present the operations of the Built Environment businesses
as discontinued.

**The figures for 2003 were prepared under UK GAAP and have not been restated, except to present the operations of the Built Environment
businesses as discontinued and to amend the presentation of the group’s share of the results of joint ventures and asscciates to be consistent
with adopted IFRS. If the figures for this year had been restated the main adjustments would have been in respect of share-based payments;
goodwitl amortisation; revaluation of property, plant and equipment; the presentation of loss on disposal of fixed assets; and employee benefits,

***Before amortisation of goodwill and other intangible assets and exceptional items.
nm Not meaningful.

The figures for 2003 through 2006 are presented on a continuing basis and therefore exclude the results of discontinued businesses. No adjustment
has been made to reflect the financing income that would have been earned on the disposal proceeds.

124 AMEC plc annual report 2067




Shareholder information

Financial calendar

March Preliminary announcement for the year ended 31 December.
April Annual report and accounts for the year ended 31 December.
May Annual general meeting.

August Interim results for the hatf year ended 30 June.

Interim and preliminary announcements notified to the London

Stock Exchange are available on the internet at www.amec.com.
Copies of annual reports and accounts are also available upon written
request from AMEC at its registered office.

Payment of dividends

The interim ordinary dividend 2008 will be announced in August and paid
in January 2009.

Final ardinary dividend announced in March and paid in July.

Shareholders who do nat have dividend payments made directly into
their bank or building society accounts through the Bankers Automated
Clearing System [BACS'] may do so by contacting the company’s
registrar, Capita Registrars.

Dividend reinvestment plan

A dividend reinvestment plan ['DRIP’] is available for the convenience
of shareholders who would prefer to use their dividends to buy
additional shares in the company instead of receiving cash dividends.

The DRIP provides for shares to be purchased in the market on, or as
soon as reasonably practicable thereafter, any dividend payment date
at the price then prevailing in the market. Further details of the ORIP
may be obtained from Capita Registrars.

Electronic communications
Electronic shareholder communication

Recent changes in the law mean that it is now much simpler for us
to communicate with our shareholders electronically.

In the past we produced thousands of printed reports which we sent

to our shareholders. However printed documents have a bigger carbon
footprint than electronic ones because of the energy and materials used
to create themn, as well as the energy used to distribute them. We are
keen to help you help us reduce our carbon footprint in any way we can.

As many of you know, we have published our annual and interim
reports on our website (www.amec.com/finvestors) for many years.
From now on, we will publish annual accounts, notices of shareholder
meetings and any other essential shareholder information on our
website too, For shareholders who agree, the company website will
be the main way in which they get their shareholder information.

Following this electronic communication path helps to make us a more
sustainable company, cutting production and distribution costs, reducing

©
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waste and potlution, reducing carben dioxide and other greenhouse
gas emissions. All of which make us a better company to invest in.

Chaosing electronic shareholder information means you will receive
an e-mail every time any new shareholder information is published -
instead of paper decuments in the post. E-mails will refer to AMEC
annual and interim reports, documents relating to our annual general
meeting and any other shareholder communications - and will
normally be from our registrar, Capita Registrars. E-mails will contain
links to the appropriate website where the documents can be viewed.

Electronic shareholder information

AMEC's website has a facility whereby shareholders can link to the
company’s registrar, Capita Registrars, via its website in order to
gain access to general shareholder information as well as personal
shareholding details.

If you wish to register for electronic shareholder cornmunications or
wish to access details of your personal shareholding you will need your
investor code, which is printed in the bottom right-hand corner of your
AMEC share certificates and on your dividend tax vouchers.

To access these services:

1 Select the ‘Investors’ home page at www.amec.com

2 Select ‘'Shareholder information’ from the main menu.

3 Select the ‘Electronic communications’ link [under Shareholder
information).

4 Follow the instructions under the heading "how to register

for electronic communications’.

If you have any questions about electronic comrmunications,
contact Capita Registrars on 0871 664 0391*.

Overseas callers: +44 208 639 33547
Capita Registrars

Narthern House, Woodsome Park, Fenay Bridge,
Huddersfield HD8 0GA

United Kingdom

Tel: 0871 664 0300*

Overseas callers: +44 208 4§39 3399

E-mail: ssd@capitaregistrars.com or visit the website at
www, capitaregistrars.com

*calls cost 10p per minute plus network extras
Registered office

AMEC ple

Booths Park, Chelford Road, Knutsford,
Cheshire WA14 8Q7

United Kingdom

Registered in England No 1475285

This report is printed using vegetable based inks on Revive 100 Uncoated paper made from 100 per cent post
consumer waste and is awarded the 100 per cent FSC recycled label. Revive 100 Uncoated is totally chlorine
free [TCF). Produced at a mill that is certified to the IS0 14001 Environmental Management System standard.

Printed by Taylor Bloxham who are totally committed to reducing the impact printing has on the environment.

The printer is certified to the IS0 14001 Environmental Management Systern standard and is accredited with
FSC [Forest Stewardship Council) certification chain of custody number SA-COC-1487.

Designed by Romanus Odiwe, typeset by The Artwerk Agency with photography by James McMillan, Jiang Feng,
Steve Frost, Alan Hunter, Kenneth Krehbiel and Keith Taylor.
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Highlights

O Record trading performance with continuing strength in energy

end markets
O Adjusted pre-tax profit! £90.4 rillion, up 87%
: 6.0% EBITA margin? (2007: 3.8%; on track te deliver recently upgraded
6.5% margin in 2008
(3 2010 group EBITA margin? target raised to 8.5%
O3 Diluted earnings per share® from continuing operations 18.8 pence, up 84%
C Interim dividend increased 15% to 5.3 pence per share
[ Seven acquisitions announced in the year to date; total cash consideration
£121 million
[C Record average weekly net cash for 2008: expected to remnain in excess of
£600 million after year to date acquisitions and year to date share buybacks
2008 2007
Six months ended 30 June €milion £ million
Continuing operations:
Revenue 1,285.2 11529 +9%
Profit before intangible amortisation,
exceptional items and income tax* 90.4 484 +87%
Profit before income tax 923 669 +38%
Profit from discontinued operations 1.6 1.4 +14%
Diluted eamings per share from continuing cperations
before intangible amortisation and exceptional items 18.8p 10.2p +84%
Diluted earnings per share from continuing operations 20.1p 14.7p +37%
Dividends per share 5.3p 4.6p +15%

1 For continuing operations before intangible amortisation of £2.6 million [2007: £1.2 million] and
pre-1ax exceptional income of £4.7 million (2007: £19.9 million] but including joint venture profit
before tax of £0.5 million (2007: £0.9 million).

2 For continuing aperations befare net financing income, intangible arartisation, pre-1ax
exceptional items, but ineluding joint venture profit before tax, as a percentage of revenue,

3 For continuing operations before intangible amortisation and exceptional items,

Any forward looking statements made in this document represent management’s best judgement as
to what may occur in the future. However, the group's actual results for the current and future fiscal
periods and corporate developments will depend on a number of economic, competitive and other
factors, some of which will be outside the control of the group. Such factors could cause the group’s
actual results far future periods to differ materially from those expressed in any forward looking
statemnents made in this docyment,
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Interim results

“These record results further
demonstrate the strength of our
businesses and the speed with
which AMEC is improving its
performance. With Natural
Resources having already achieved
a 10 per cent margin and our other
core businesses expected to make
strong progress in 2008, we have
raised our group margin target for
2010 from eight to 8.5 per cent.

“Our average net cash position has
never been stronger, and is expected
to stand at over £600 million for the
year. The strength of our balance
sheet in the current credit crisis,
coupled with the attractiveness of
the end markets we serve, confirms
our confidence in the future.”

Samir Brikho, Chief Executive

2 AMEC plc interim report 2008

Revenues across the group’s three core divisions

for the skx months ended 30 June 2008 increased by
11 per cent, with good growth in each of the divisions.
Total group revenues increased by nine per cent to
£1,253 million [2007; £1,153 million].

Pre-tax profit before intangible amortisation and
exceptional items from continuing operations of
£90.4 million was 87 per cent ahead of last year
[2007: £48.4 million) and sets a new record for the
group. Performance was strong in each of the group’s
three core divisions. Results benefited primarily from
£30 million incremental net benefits arising from
improved cost efficiency under the STEP Change
programme, and the £2.8 millicn improvement in

net financing inceme arising on proceeds from the
divestment of non-core businessesin 2007 and from
on-going improvements in cash management.

There were pre-tax exceptional profits of £4.7 million
[2007: £19.9 million], intangible amortisation of

£2.6 mitlion [2007: £1.2 million] and joint venture tax
of £0.2 million 2007: £0.2 million], resulting in pre-tax
profit from continuing operations of £92.3 million
[2007; £66.3 million,

Diluted earnings per share from continuing
operations were 20.1 pence (2007: 14.7 pence).

Past-tax profit before exceptional items from
discontinued aperations was £2.8 million. There were
post-tax exceptional charges of £1.2 million, giving

a total post-tax profit for the period of £1.6 million.

The interim dividend is increased by 15 per cent to
5.3 pence per share [2007: 4.6 pencel.




Outlook
2008

AMEC’s end markets in energy, power and process
are expected to remain strong.

Each of the group’s core businesses is expected to
deliver further performance improvement in the
second half of 2008, putting AMEC well on track to
achieve the recently upgraded EBITA margin of
6.5per cent for the year.

The beard's expectation for the overall outcormne in
2008 remains unchanged from the date of the group’s
interim pre-close update on 3 July 2008,

2010 group margin target

With Natural Resources having achteved a 10 per cent
EBITA margin and the Power and Process and Earth
and Environmental divisions expected to make strong
progress in 2008, the group’s EBITA margin target for
2010 has been raised from eight to 8.5 per cent. There
will be no restatement of divisional targets for 2010.

Acquisitions

AMEC continues to make selective acquisitions
censistent with its strategy of geographic and capacity
expansion, In the year {o date, AMEC has announced
seven acquisitions with an aggregate cash
consideration of £121 million, of which six [aggregate
cash consideration £$10 million] were made in the

six months to June 2008. Up to £90 million of total
consideration will be paid in the current year, with the
balance to be paid in future years.

Natural Resources

. April 2008; Rider Hunt International (UK);
consultancy services in programme and project
manzagement

May 2008; Bower Damberger Rolseth Engineering
Limited [Canada); specialist technicat engineering
services {o the in-situ’ Canadian oil sands market

Power and Process

2 July 2008; AllDeco, s.r.o. [Siovakial; speciatist
nuclear services company

Earth and Environmental

.. January 2008; Marine & Environmental Testing,
Inc. [US); occupational health and safety
consultancy services

{1 January 2008; Steward and Associates (US);
fisheries and watershed management consultancy
services

22 April 2608; Smith Williams Consultants Inc [US);
geotechnical consultancy services

1 June 2008: Geomatrix Consultants, Inc. [US);
specialist environmental, geotechnical and water
resources services

Exceptionalitems

AMEC continues 1o make progress in settling legacy
disputes where it is reasonable to do so. Further
progress is expected later this year on the US
Courthouses disputes,

Two small businesses were divested in the first half,
generating a £5.3 million pre-tax gain on disposal.

Operational Excelience

The Operational Excellence programme is
proceeding as planned. Implementation of all 12 focus
areas is well underway and the programme is now
producing results.

As previously disclosed, Operslional Excellence is
expected to incur costs of up to £10 million during
2008, of which £3 million was incurred during the
first half.
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Interim results continued

Tax

Income tax on the profit before exceptional items and
intangible amortisation for the six menths ended 30
June 2008 is based on an effective rate of 30. per
cent [six months ended 30 June 2007: 29.0 per cent),
which has been calculated by reference to the
projected charge for the full year {2007: 25.4 per cent).
The increase principally reflects the previous
utilisation of overseas tax losses.

Netcash

Net cash as at 30 June 2008 was £600.8 million

[33 December 2007: £733.2 million}, of which advance
cashwas ¢.£20 million, Movernent gver the period
reflects acquisitions, share buybacks, dividends,
unwinding of advance receipts and normal werking
capital movements.

Average weekly net cash for the six months ended
30 June 2008 stocd at a record level of £630.0 million,
as expected.

Group average weekly net cash for 2008 is expected
to remain in excess of £600 million. This figure is after
taking account of year to date acquisitions with an
aggregate cash cost of £121 million lup to £90 million
autflow in 2008], together with share buybacks
announced in the year to date,

Share buybacks

A total of 3,200,000 ordinary shares was purchased
during the first half of 2008 and will be held as
treasury shares. Of these, 2,450,000 were purchased
specifically to satisfy the group’s share plan awards.
750,000 ordinary shares were purchased under the
share buyback programme during the first half of
2008, during which time world stock markets
remained volatile. The group will continue the share
buyback programme, of up to £75 mitlion, on an
opportunistic basis.

4 AMEC plc interim report 2008

Issued share capital

As at 7 August 2008, AMEC had a total of 330,965,107
ordinary shares with voting rights. In addition
6,968,800 shares were held in treasury.

Board changes

Stuart Siddalt, Finance Director, stepped down from
the board following the company’s annual general
meeting on 14 May 2008 and left the company at the
end of May 2008.

On 2 July 2008, AMEC arnounced the appointment
of lan McHoul as a directer and Chief Financial
Officer. Previously Group Finance Director of
Scottish and Newcastle plc, he will jein AMEC

on 8 September 2008.

Segmental review

Amounts and percentage movernents relating

to segmental activities are stated for continuing
operations. The 2007 figures are as restated by the
group on 11 March 2008, with the Wind Developments
business being reparted in the Investments and other
activities division [formerly Power and Process].

Amcunts relating to segmental earnings before
interest, tax and amortisation [EBITA] are stated before
corporate costs of £17.3 million (2007: £21.3 million]
and pre-tax exceptional profits of £4.7 miltion [2007:
£199 million), but including joint venture profit befare
tax of €0.6 rillion (2007: £0.9 millian).

Average numbers of employees reflect full time
equivalents, including agency staff, and are stated for
the six months ended 30 June 2008 and 30 June 2007.

Order book figures are stated at 30 June 2008 and
30 June 2007.

Amounts relating to segmental net assets/{liabilities)
are stated before intangible assets and net cash, but
including interests in joint ventures and associates,
Net assets/(liabilities) are stated as at 30 June 2008
and 31 Decemnber 2007.

Commentary for each of AMEC's principal segments
of activity is set out below.




Natural Resources

Natural Resources comprises AMEC's activities in
Qil and Gas Services [63 per cent of revenues in the
six months ended June 2008], Oil Sands [engineering
and infrastructure, 22 per cent of revenues] and
Minerals and Metals Mining [15 per cent of revenues].
Services include asset development and assel
supportincluding consultancy and engineering
design, project management, commissioning and
operational support.

‘Capex’ activities [those activities related to clients’
capital expenditure) and ‘Opex’ activities [relating

to clients’ operating expenditure) accounted for

55 per cent and 45 per cent respectively of Natural
Resources revenues in the first half. Profit is weighted
towards Capex, which accounted for 70 per cent of
EBITA during the period.

Natural Resources end markets remain buoyant.
Revenue for the peried increased by 13 per cent to
£561.7 million, driven particularly by strengthin the
Canadian Oil Sands business.

£ million . HJ ?008 Hi 2007 B cha_ngf
Revenue 561.7 498.4 +13%
EBITA 56.6 37.2 +52%
EBITA margin 10.1% 75%  +2.4pts
Average employees 10,620 9,495 +12%
QOrder book ___€1.33bn £1.746n0  +17%
Net assets 38.7 288* +34%

*As at 31 Decernber 2007

EBITA increased by 52 per cent to £56.6 million
{2007: £37.2 million). During the period, margins

in both Capex and Opex were increased from the
comparable period in 2007, to 13 per cent and

seven percent from 10 per cent and five per cent
respectively. Capex as a proportion of total divisional
revenues also increased lo 55 per cent [2007: 50 per
cent). As a result, EBITA margin increased strongly
during the period to 10,1 per cent (2007: 75 per cent].
A small improvement is expected in the Natural
Resources EBITA margin in the second half of 2008,
resulting in an EBITA margin in excess of 10 per cen!
for the year.

The Natural Resources order book increased by

17 per cent to £1.33 billion, reflecting new contracts
being awarded by existing and new customers around
the world.

Net assets increased by 34 per cent to £38.7 million,

mainly reflecting normal working capital
requirements in our growing markets.
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Natural Resources continued

In Qil and Gas Services, North Sea operations
continue the shift towards higher value-added
activities. Operations in the Americas remain
strong, whilst frantier regions continue to benefit both
from new contract awards and contract renewals.
On 3 June 2008, BP International Limited announced
that AMEC had been selected as one of three
companies o provide long-term engineering and
project management services for BP's offshore
developments around the world. The agreement
underscores AMEC's leading position in engineering
and project management services in the oit and gas
industry, together with its ability to support
customers worldwide. :

The Canadian oil sands market remains particularly
buoyant, with AMEC's activities seeing continued
strong performance. The acquisition of Bowar
Darnberger Rolseth [BORI has strengthened AMEC's
market pesition in the oil sands. BOR has particular
expertise in thermal recovery of in-situ oil through
Steamn Assisted Gravity-Drainage (SAG-D) methods.
By combining AMEC's leading position in the surface
mining segment and BDR's strong reputation in
in-situ extraction, the business is well positioned to
compete across all oil sands segments,
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The Minerals and Metals Mining business has alse
had a strang first half, with ramping up of projects in
South America and continued high levels of activity
in Canada. The latest major contract for this division
was announced on 20 June 2008, with the award of
a Cdn$150 million engineering, procurement and
construction management coniract by Baffinland
Iron Mines Corporation for the Cdn$4 billion

Mary River Iron Ore project on Baffin island, Canada,
The contract is scheduled to run untit 2014. Further
details on this, and other contract awards, may be
found at www.amec.com/media.




Power and Process

This divisien is focused on the power and process
markets, principally in the UK and the Americas, and
the nuclear market globally. The business designs,
delivers, enhances and maintains infrastructure
for a broad range of customers in the public and
private seclors.

Revenues during the six months ended 30 June 2008
were split between each of the three principal areas
of activity in Power and Process as follows: Process
45 per cent, Power 31 per cent and Nuclear 24 per cent,

Revenue for the period increased by nine per cent
to £535.8 million (2007: £490.0 million}. The division
continues to fecus on margin and not volume, with
growth during the period continuing to reflect the
ramping up of maijor fixed price contracts in the
UK overthe last 12 months. This process is

now complete.

EBITA for the period increased by 37 per cent to
£273 million |2007: £19.9 million). EBITA margin
increased to 5.1 per cent (2007: 4.1 per cent],
reflecting improved management focus, cost and
efliciency gains arising from the STEP Change
programme and a stronger pricing envirpnment.

£ million " H1 2008 ) HI1 2907 7cha_ngf
Revenue 535.8 4900 +9%
EBITA 273 19.9 +37%
EBITA margin 5.1% 4.1%  +1.0pts
Average employees 7,590 7,430 +2%
Order book €1.05bn  £1.27bn -17%
Net liabilities (3.3) [57.01*  +94%

*As at 31 December 2007

Net liabilities reduced by 94 per cent to £3.3 million
131 Decernber 2007: £57.0 million], largely as a result
of the unwinding of advance cash and milestones and
other payment terms on major fixed price projects.
These effects are expected to be temporary.

Power and Process end markets remain strong,
enabling this division 1o be increasingly selective in
newwork taken on. This greater focus is reflected

in the continued decline in the order book during the
first half, In June 2008, the division announced an
increase in the minimum gross margin on new
contracts to 10 per cent, up from nine per cent. Ina
change of contracting strategy, Power and Process
expects to see a reduction in the volume of fixed price
work undertaken in the UK, with the focus being
instead on target price contracts. This change of focus
is expected to result in a stabilisation of revenues for
the division over the next 12 menths, together with

an improvement in margin perfoermance.

Power and Process expects to deliver an EBITA
margin of circa six per cent in 2008. This improved
performance reflects the higher gross margin on
new contracts, delivery of improved margin on the
pre-existing backlog, and the change of focusin
contracting strategy referred to above.
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Power and Process continued

On 11 July 2008, the UK Nuclear Decommissioning
Authority [NDA] announced that Nuclear
Management Partners Limited [NMP] had been
selected as preferred bidder in the competition to
secure a Parent Body Organisation for the Sellafield
Site Licence Company (SLC). NMP is the consortium
comprising AMEC, AREVA_ and URS Washington
Division. The contract is expected to offer business

to the value of ¢.£1.3 billion per annum and associated
dividend epportunities for NMP of ¢.£50 million
perannum, subject to the levet of improved SLC
performance and efficiency achieved. The contract
would be awarded initially for a period of five years
with the potential of further extension periods, subject
to performance, for a total of 17 years.

Subject to contract finalisation, which is expected

in October 2008, AMEC's share of NMP revenues

will relate solely to recharges of casts of AMEC
management working on the contract, whilst
potential annual earnings will reflect AMEC's share of
a dividend of up to £50 mitlion, subject to performance
against targets agreed with the NDA. The impact of
the contract on AMEC group performance in 2008 is
not expecled to be material,
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Dn 22 Juty 2008, AMEC announced the acquisition
of the Slovak specialist nuclear services company
AllDeco, s.r.o. [AllDecal. With a leading market
positionin Central and Eastern Europe, AllDeco
strengthens AMEC's capabilities and improves
its standing as a leading player in nuclear
decommissioning and reactor services in the UK,
Centinental Europe and around the world.




Farth and Environmental

AMEC’s Earth and Environmental business provides
specialist environmental, geotechnical, programme
management and consultancy services to a broad
range of customers in the public and private sectors,
primarily in North America. Earth and Environmental
operates from a regional network and is characterised
by a large number of small value contracts.

Revenue for the period increased by 18 per cent, with
EBITA also up by 18 per cent to £10.5 million 12007:
£8.9 million]. Performance was particularly strong

in the natural resources sector in Western Canada
and Federal in the US, but growth was tempered by
reducing levels of activity in Iraq. EBITA margin was
slightly lower during the peried, with significant
improvement expected in the second half.

i;lzmlpcn_ I_'H_ 2008_ 7 H1 2007 chﬂg
Revenue 145.8 140.1 +18%
EBITA 105 89 +18%
EBITA margin 6.3% 64%  -0.1pts
Average employees 3,575 3175 +13%
Net assets 46.9 B2 +41%

*As at 31 December 2007

Net assets at the period end of £46.% million reflecied
the normal seasenal pattern for the business.

Earth and Environmental continues with its strategy
of making small acquisitions in selected markets or
regions. Since July 2007, the division has made a total
of six small acquisitions in the US, UK and Romania.
In addition, on 4 June 2008, Earth and Environmental
announced a larger transaction with the acquisition
of Geomatrix, a diversified technical consulting

and engineering firm headquartered in Oakland,
Califernia. The comnpany employs sorme 500
engineers, scientists and other professionalsin

18 offices across the US and one office in Canada.

The division is expected to detiver an EBITA margin
of circa eight per cent in 2008.

Investments and other activities

The Invesiments and other activities division includes
two ongoing PPP activities in Korea and the UK,
togesher with activities in Hong Kong (substantially
reduced], US Construction Management [all projects
completed] and a plant hire business [sold in
February 2008). 2007 figures also include past
activites in Rail [sold in 2007]. The division also
includes the UK Wind Developments business, which
is currently the subject of a strategic review that may
lead to the disposal of some or all of that business.

Emilion H12008  Hi 2007 change
Revenue 9.3 335 -72%
EBITA . .2 (1.00 nm

nm: nol meaningful

The level of activities in this division continues to
decline, reflecting non-core business disposals.
Revenues declined by 72 per cent to £9.3 million
[2007: £33.5 million], with the loss of £1.2 million
stemming largely from the retained PPP portfolio.

As previously disclosed, the overall outcorne for this
division in 2008 s expected to be a smalt loss.
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Condensed consolidated income statement

o Six months ended 30 June 2008
Exceptionat
items -
litigation and
Before exit of
exceptional businesses
items [note 3) Total
— . Nete Cmilion  Cmilion  Cmillion
Continuing operations
Revenue 2 1,255.2 - 1,255.2
Costof sales N . hamms - (1,111.5)
Gross profit 143.7 - 143.7
Administrative expenses (71.0] - {Nn.0)
Profit on business disposals and closures L - L7 4.7
Profit before net financing income 72.7 &7 T4
Financial income 159 - 159 |
Financial expense (1.4) T 0.4l
Net financing income 14.5 - 145
Share of post-tax results of joint ventures and associates ‘ 0.4 _ = 04
Profit before income tax 2 B7.6 4.7 92.3
Incometax S - ) I 255
Profit for the period from continuing operations 80.7 6.1 66.9
Profit/(loss) for the period from discontinued operations 5 28 .2 1.6
Profit for the period 63.5 4.9 68.4
Attributable to:
Equity holders of the company 68.5
Minority interests e e - .o e
68.4
Basic earnings per share: [
Continuing operations 20.5p
Discontinued operations L 0.5p
21.0p
Diluted earnings per share: 6
Continuing operations 20.1p
Discontinued operations . 05
20.4p
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Condensed consolidated income statement continued

Six months ended 30 June 2007

— s L freated)
Exceptional
items -
litigation and
Before exit of
exceptional businesses
items {note 3] Total
o o o Note £ million _E_million _7£7m‘i_lﬂﬂ
Continuing operations
Revenue 2 1,152.9 - 11529
Costofsales o o {1,044.7) o8 11,0339)
Gross profit 108.2 10.8 119.0
Administrative expenses (65.6) - (66.6)
Profiton business disposalsand closures - %1 91
Profit before net financing income e 199 85
Financial income i 1.1 - 1m1
Financial expense b led) - l6.4]
Net financing income 47 - 4.7
Share of posi-tax results of joint ventures and associates 0.7 - 07
Profit before income tax 2 47.0 199 66.9
Income tax S o sl _ 32) 7.0
Profit for the period from continuing operations 332 167 499
Profit/lloss} for the period from discontinued operations 5 5.0 (38 14
Profit for the period 38.2 13.1 51.3
Attributable to:
Equity holders of the company 51.3
Minority interests L L ) . -
51.3
Basic earnings per share: b
Continuing operations 15.2p
Discontinued operations L o _ Ddp
15.6p
Diluted earnings per share: &
Continuing operations 14.7p
Discontinued operations e il 0.4p
15.1p

AMEC plc interim report 2008

1



Condensed consolidated income statement continued

Year ended 31 December 2007

. lrestated
Exceptional
items -
litigation and
Befare exit of
exceptional businesses
iterns [note 3] Total
o . o __Ngle ] F.",\il,“on, B ‘E million B £ million
Continuing operations
Revenue 2 23362 - 2,354.2
Costofsales _12118.0) 107 (2.107.3)
Gross profit 238.2 10.7 2489
Administrative expenses (134.4} - (134.4)
Profit on business disposals and closures . R £ I ¥ &
Profit before net financing income o 1038 ) 28.1___ 1320 )
Financial income 221 - 223
Financial expense [7 - BA
Net financing income 18.4 - 18.4
Share of post-tax results of joint ventures and associates 12 - 12
Profit before incormne tax 2 123.4 28.2 151,46
Incometax N o 130.9] 08 130.1)
Profit for the year from continuing operations 925 29.0 1215
(Loss)/profit for the year frem discontinued operations 5 4.7} 2274 2229
Profit for the year 87.8 256.6 3444
Attributable to:
Eguity holders of the company 3443
Minority interests L o . I
344.4
Basic earnings per share: [
Continuing operations 349p
Discontinued operations B _ . L o &78p
104.7p
Diluted earnings per share: &
Continuing operations 36.1p
Discontinued operations _ R _ o b2
102.3p
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Condensed consolidated statement of recognised income

and expense

Six menths Six months Year
ended ended ended
30 June 30 June 31 December
2008 2007 2007
Note £ miltion £ million £ millicn
Exchange differences on translation of foreign subsidiaries (7.8 122 323
Actuarial gains on defined benefit pension schemes - - 861
Net gain/ltoss} on hedges of net investrnent in foreign subsidiaries 0.1 (2.6) (8.6)
Cash flow hedges:
Effective portion of changes in fair value (3.2) 1.8 1.8
Transferred to the income statement - (1.2] (2.1}
Group share of changes in fair value of cash flow hedges
within joint venture entities [net of tax] - 9.8 24
Tax in respect of items recognised directly in equity 2.5 02 (2191
Net [expenselfincome recegnised directly in equity (13.4) 19.8 90.0
Profitfor theperiod o 68.4 513 3444
Totat recognised income and expense for the period 55.0 71.1 4344
Attributable to:
Equity holders of the company 1 55.1 711 434.3
Minority interests o (0.1) - 0.1
Total recognised income and expense for the period 55.0 FAR 434.4
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Condensed consolidated balance sheet

30 June 30 June 31 December
2008 2007 2007

L o o o ,,NPE £ million v_r’Erpilrlion L ranillion
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 51.1 60,3 57.6
Intangible assets 8 a3 2031 2238
Interests in joint ventures and associates 26,2 15.7 227
Other investments 0.6 0.8 0.8
Derivative financial instruments 0.5 - -
Retirement benefit assets 170.8 106 161.3
Delerredtaxassets o ) . 53 %%  5BY
Total non-current. assets i . o 624.8 _ 4004 525.1
Current assets
Inventories 14.2 9.2 5.1
Trade and other receivables 408.4 5691 529.4
Darivative financial instruments 1.2 7.3 an
Cash and cash equivalents 600.9 452.4 7341
Assets classified as held for sale - _ T 5 19.0
Total current assets . 1,224.7 1,504.9 R _2?1 ]_
Totalassets e 1,849.5 ] _1.905.3 _ 18168
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities
Bank loans and overdrafts (0.1) i8.1) 0.8)
Trade and other payables (681.2) {616.21 1641.5)
Derivative financial instruments 4.7 11.9) {5.3)
Current tax payable (45.7) (23.2) (59.4}
Liabilities classified as held forsale - (63321 54
Total current llalgllmes ) o =7 (1,182.6] (712.6
Non-current liabilities
Bank loans - - (0.1
Other payables 9 (22.5) - -
Derivative financial instruments {2.8) -
Retirement benefit liabilities 11.6) N3, 9] (113
Deferred tax liabilities - (0.8 -
Provisions __ o I B 1e78)  [1s8. 5] o 1199.4)
Total nonfcgrfent habll.utles L o (228,71  {1832) (2108
Total liabilities o _ 957.4] ll3£5 78[ R 74X A
Net assets 2 892.1 5395 893.4
EQUITY
Share capital 168.9 168.4 168.7
Share premium account 100.5 98.0 99.5
Hedging and translation reserves 5.8 6.2 168
Capital redemption reserve 17.2 17.2 17.2
Retained earnings 597.6 254.5 590.4
Armounts recognised in equity relating to assets and
liabilities held for sale L - 15.6} -
Total equity attributable to equity holders of the parent 870.0 538.7 892.6
Minority interests o 21 0.8 038
Total equity 8921 539.5 893.4
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Condensed consolidated cash flow statement

Six menths Six months Year
ended ended ended
30 June 30 June 31 December
2008 2007 2007
L L Note £ million __E miliic{n N _E_million
Cash flow from operating activities
Profit before income tax from continuing operations 92.3 669 151.6
Profit before income tax from discontinue operations 5 23 87 2907
Profit before income tax .6 75.6 4423
Financial income (15.9) (14.9) [24.2)
Financial expense 1.4 8.7 4.2
Share of post-tax results of joint ventures and associates (0.4) 14.4) 16.0)
Intangible amortisation 2.6 1.2 25
Depreciation 7.3 11 21.7
Profit on disposal of businesses 15.3) 2.1} {3101}
Profit on disposal of property, plant and equipment (0.8 (1.0} 2.3
Impairment of non current assets - 1.8 -
Equity settled share-based payments e 4.5 54 _ 5.3
880 ARA 133.4
(Increase)/decrease in inventories (4.1 &7 74
[increasel/decrease in trade and other receivables (64.7) [27.4) 36.1
[Decreaselfincrease in trade and other payables and provisions nen 71 167
Cash generated from operations 5.1 55.8 140.2
Interest paid (1.4) (4.1) (4.2)
Tax paid - 142.8) e (38.0)
Net cash flow from operating activities - (39.11 456 980
Cash flow from investing activities
Acquisition of businesses [net of cash acquired) (77.8) - (12.7]
Acquisition of joint ventures and associates 1.3] (6.1] (6.0}
Purchase of property, ptant and equipment (8.1) (7.6 (18.4)
Purchase of intangible assets (1.1) (0.1) l0.2)
Disposal of businesses [net of cash dispased of] 14.0 234 2631
Disposal of joint ventures, associates and other investments 1.2 209 19.2
Disposal of property, plant and equipment 2.6 22 9.7
Interest received 15.9 93 227
Dividends received from joint ventures and assaciates 0y 17 20
Net cash flow from investing activities [445) Wy
Netcashflowbefore financing activities 1834 9.7 3774
Cash flow from financing activities
Repayment of loans (0.2) {4.4) (4.3}
Dividends paid (15.5) (13.9] (39.8
Proceeds from shares issued 1.2 8.9 10.7
Acquisition of treasury shares (25.5] (14.7) (21.5)
lAcr?uisition]/disposal of shares by trustees of the
Performance Share Plan 2002 o g3 - 03
Met cash flow from financing activites (49.3) 2 )
(Decreasel/increase in cash and cash equivalents (132.9) £5.6 3228
X Cash and cash equivalents as at the ber_ﬂnning of the period 7334 406.4 40b6.4
Exchange gains/llosses) on cash and cash equivalents 03 na 4.2
Cash and cash equivalents as at the end of the period 12 600.8 470.4 7334
’ Cash and cash equivalents consist of:
Cash at bank and in hand 122.4 4312 7204
Short-terminvestments ] o o 4788 212 137
600.9 452.4 734.1
Overdrafts _ L 10.1] 81l 0.7)
] ) 600.8 444.3 733.4
Cash and cash equivalents (including overdrafts]
classified as held for sale R, | - 260 -
Cash and cash equivalents 12 400.8 470.4 733.4
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Notes to the accounts

1 Preparation of interim results

This condensed set of financial statements has been prepared in accordance with IAS 34 ‘Interim Financial
Reporting’, as adopted by the EU. As required by the Disclosure and Transparency Rules of the Financial
Services Authority, the condensed set of financial statements has been prepared applying the accounting
poticies and presentation that were applied in the preparation of the company's published consolidated
financial staterments for the year ended 31 December 2007 except for the group's tax measurement basis
(see note 4]. The income statements for year ended 31 December 2007 and for period ending 30 June 2007
have been restated to reflect a change in presentation of cost of sales and administrative expenses. This does
not affect reperted profit before tax.

The preparation of interim financiat statements requires management to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amount of assets and
liabilities, income and expense, Actual results may differ from these estimates.

In preparing these interim financial statements, the significant judgements made by management in applying
the Group’s accounting policies and the key source of estimation uncertainty were the same as those that
applied to the consolidated financial statements as at and for the year ended 31 December 2007. The principal
risks and uncertainties that face the group in the second half of 2008 remain unchanged from those disclosed
in the annual report for the year ended 31 December 2007.

The comparative figures for the year ended 31 December 2007 are not the group's statutery accounts for that
financial year. Those accounts have been reported on by the group’s auditors and delivered to the registrar

of companies, The report of the auditors was unqualified, did not include a reference to any matters to which
the auditors drew attention by way of emphasis without qualifying their report, and did not centain statements
under section 237(2) or (3) of the Companies Act 1985.

The annual accounts for the year ended 31 December 2007 are prepared in line with IFRS as adopted by the EU.

During 2006 IFRIC 12 on service concession arrangements was issued. This interpretation is effective with
effect from 1 January 2008, but this has yet to be adopted for use in the EU. In view of this, the directors
consider that it remains appropriate to apply the approach set out in Appendix Note F of the UK Financial
Reporting Standard 5 ‘Reporting the substance of transactions’ in determining the accounting model to be
applied to AMEC’s PPP activities. This involves applying a ‘risks and rewards’ test to determine whether a
non-current asset or finance debtor model should be followed. The directors do not expect this accounting
policy to be significantly different to that under IFRIC 12,

2 Segmental analysis of continuing operations

Revenue Profit/[loss)
Six months Six months Year Six months Six months Year
ended ended ended ended anded ended
30 June 30June 31 December 30 June 30 June 31 December
2008 2007 2007 2008 2007 007
£ million £ mitlion £ miltion £ million £ million £ million
Class of business:
Natural Resources 561.7 498.4 1,014.8 61.0 34.5 93.7
Power and Process 535.8 490.0 1,009.1 267 238 48.4
Earth and
Environmental 145.8 140.3 288.4 101 88 209
Investments and
other activities 9.3 KER:] 644 (3.1) U 55
1,272.6 1,162.0 2,376.7 4.7 82.8 168.5
Internal revenue 117.4) 9.1 {20.5) - - -
Corporate costs - - - 17.3) 2130 135
1.255.2 1,152.9 2,356.2 T1.4 615 132.0
Net financing income - - - 145 47 18.4
Share of post-tax
results of joint ventures
and associates - - _ - 0.4 07 o 12
1,255.2 1,152.9 2,356.2 92.3 66.9 131.6
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2 Segmental analysis of continuing operations . «fir.od

Net assets/|liabilities)
30 June 30 Jure 31 December
2008 2007 2007
_ . . £ million _E_pji!l_jon £ million
Class of business:
Natural Resources 60.6 59.2 298
Power and Process 2.2 (35.5) (51.5)
Earth and Environmental 57.6 370 345
Investments and other activities o (238.6) _1130.8] [207.3)
(118.2) (70.1) [194.5]
Goodwill 282.0 195.1 215.4
Interests in joint ventures and associates 26,2 15.7 227
Net cash 400.8 444.3 7332
Unallocated net assets 1013 208 103.0
Assets and liabilities classified as held for sale - 166.3) 13.6
892.1 539.5 893.4
e Revenue _ _ ._ . Profiliess)
Six months Six months Year Six months Six months Year
ended ended ended ended ended ended
30 June 30 June 31 December 30 June 30 June 31 December
2008 2007 2007 2008 2007 2007
L € million B g rp@i?n £ million £ million _E Tillion ) £ rnilliog
Geographical origin:
United Kingdom 5365 508.1 950.5 29.2 394 70.0
Rest of Europe 16.6 46.1 88.4 (0.2) 4.2 b4
Americas 593.6 537.4 1,180.9 53.2 38.2 89.3
RestoftheWorld 1098 413 136.2 125 10 28
1,255.2 1,152.9 2.356.2 94.7 828 168.5
Corporate costs - - - (17.3) (213 (3659
1,255.2 1.152.9 23562 7714 51.5 132.0
Net financing income - - - 145 47 18.4
Share of ;Jost—tax
results of joint ventures
and associates - - - 0.4 0.7 1.2
1,265.2 11529 2,356.2 92.3 65.9 151.6
_ Net assats/{ liabilities)
30 Juhe 30 June 31 December
2008 2007 2007
L € million _E_m_i_lﬂon £ million
Geographical origin:
United Kingdom (39.6) 34 (99.7)
Rest of Europe 49.1} 163.0] {56.1)
Americas 255.7 1751 174
Rest of the World (3.2} 95 53
1638 125.0 209
Interests in joint ventures and associates 28.2 15.7 227
Net cash 600.8 444.3 7332
Unallocated net assets 101.3 20.8 103.0
Assets and liabilities classified as held for sale  _ o - teed 136
892.1 539.5 893.4

AMEC plc interim report 2008 17




Notes to the accounts continued

3 Exceptional items - arising from litigation and exit of businesses

Six months Six months Year

ended ended ended

30 June 30 June 31 December

2008 2007 2007

o S €milion _E million £ million
Natural Resources 65 - -
Power and Process 0.1 109 1.5
Investments and other activities L 19l %0 187
Exceptional items of continuing operations 4.7 1%.9 282
Taxation on exceptional items of centinuing operations 1.4 (3.2) 08
Exceptional items of discontinued operations (post-tax) .z [3.8) 2276
Poslt-tax exceptional items 4.9 13.1 256.6

Exceptional items are further analysed as follows:

Six months ended 30 June 2008

Conlinuing operations
Discontinued operations

Profit/[loss) before tax
Tax

Profit after tax

Total arising

Other from litigation

Gainf(loss)  exceptional and exit of

on disposals itemns businesses

o N € million £ million £ million
5.4 (0.7 4.7
o (0.1) [0.4] (0.5)

53 (1.11 4.2

o . 2.2 29 0.7

3.1 1.8 4.9

Two peripheral businesses were sold in the period resulting in exceptional pre-tax gains on disposal of

£5.3 million.

Other exceptional items in 2008 comprise provision and cther adjustments in relation to cutstanding matters

on various legacy projects.

Continuing operations
Discontinued operations
Profit before tax

Tax S

Profit after tax

Gainflloss}
on disposals

16.6
4]

121

24

9.7

£ million

sirx menths ended SkD:June 2007
Total anising

Other  from litigation
exceptional and exit of
items businesses
_Emition___ € milion
33 19.9
4.7*7__7 _ 0.2

80 201

o ldél_ __l7_.0|
34 13.1
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3 Exceptional items - arising from litigation and exit of businesses.  * . |
J’e_ar eﬂded 31 December 2007

T h ViﬁTotal;riising
Other from litigation

Gainon exceptional and exit of

disposals items businesses

e £ million Emillian € million
Continuing operations 17.7 105 28.2
Discontinued operations - Y 22 28 2952
Profit before tax 3101 13.3 3234
Jax. o o (66.8) R - |
Profit alfter tax 243.3 133 256.6

Divestment of the group’s four Built Environment businesses was successfully completed during the fourth
quarter of 2007. This combined with the profit on disposal of peripheral businesses in the first half of 2007,
resulted in an aggregate pre-tax exceptional gain in 2007 of £310.1 million.

4 Income tax

Income tax on the profit before exceptional items and intangible amortisation for the six months ended
30 June 2008 is based on an effective rate of 30.9 per cent, which has been calculated by reference to the
projected charge for the full year.

5 Profit for the period from discontinued operations

Discontinued operations include the non-core Built Environment businesses, pipeline construction activities
and AMEC SPIE.

The results of discontinued operations were as follows:
Six months Sixmonths Year ended

ended ended 31 December

30June 2008 30 June 2007 2007

e ftmilin  Cmilion Emilion
Revenue 0.2 571.7 710.7
Cost of sales and net operating expenses R 26 se320 M52
Profit/{loss) before income tax 28 8.5 (4.5)
Attributabtetax o - B8 (o2
Profit/{loss] after income tax 2.8 5.0 4.7
Exceptional items - litigation and exit of businesses (0.4) 4.7 28
Attributabte tax on exceptional items - (1.4) (0.9
{Loss)/profit on disposal (0.1) 14.5) 292.4
Attributable tax on [loss}/profit on disposal o e (241 {667
Profit for the period from discontinued operations 1.6 1.4 2229

The total profit for the period from discontinued operations is analysed as follows:

Six months Six months Year ended

ended ended 31 December

30June 2008 30 June 2007 2007

o o ) ) L £ million £ mitlion £ million
Profit/lloss] before exceptional items and tax 2.8 8.5 (4.5]
Pre-tax exceptional items - litigation and exit of businesses (0.4) 4.7 28
Pre-tax exceptional [losslprofit ondisposal ~~~~ ____ _ (0.1) (4.5) 2924
Pre-tax profit 23 8.7 290.7
Tax L o o 73 167.8)
Profit for the period from discontinued operations 1.6 1.4 2229
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Notes to the accounts continued

4 Earnings per share

Total basic and diluted earnings per share are shown on the face of the income staternent. The calculation of
the average number of shares in issue has been made having deducted the shares held by the trustees of the
Performance Share Plan 2002, those held by the qualifying employee share ownership trust and those held

in treasury by the company.
o Si}' m?nl_h_s end_ed QOVJyne ZUU_B
Weighted
average
shares Earnings
Earnings number per share
_ ] ) o L imi}_lion million ) pence
Basic earnings from continuing operations 6465 326.6 20,5
Share options - 28 (0.1)
Employee share and incentive schemes o o= 43 (03)
Diluted earnings from continuing operations 66.9 333.7 20.1
Basic earnings from discentinued operations 1.6 3284 0.5
Share options - 2.8 -
Employee share and incentive schemes = &3 -
Diluted earnings from discontinued operations 1.6 333.7 0.5

The basic and diluted profit of £66.9 million for the six months ended 30 June 2008 is the profit for the period
for continuing operations of £66.8 million plus the loss attributable to minority interest of £0.1 million.

Six months ended 30 June ZQU'J'

Year ended 31 Decernber 2007

Weighted Weighted
average average
shares Earnings shares Earnings
Earnings number per share Earnings number per share
£ millior million pence £ million million pence
Basic earnings from
continuing operations 49.9 3288 152 1214 328.7 36.9
Share options - 40 {0.2) - 25 (0.2)
Employee share and
incentive schemes - 59 03 - 5.3 (0.6}
Dituted earnings from
continuing operations 499 3387 14.7 1214 3365 361
Basic earnings from
discontinued operations 1.4 328.8 0.4 2229 328.7 67.8
Share options - 40 - - 25 (0.5
Employee share and
incentive schemes - 5.9 - - 53 (1.1}
Diluted earnings from
discontinued operations 1.4 338.7 0.4 2229 3365 66,2

The basic and diluted profit of £49.9 million for the six manths ended 30 June 2007 is the profit for the period
for continuing operations of £49.9 million. There was no profit or loss attributable to minority interest.

The basic and diluted profit of £121.4 million for the year ended 31 December 2007 is the profit for the year
tor continuing operations of £121.5 million less the profit attributable to minority interest of £0.1 million.

In order to appreciate the effects of the continuing and discontinued operations and exceptional items on the
reported performance, additional calculations of earnings per share are presented.
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6 Earnings per share .. ot

Weighted
average
shares Earnings
Earnings number per share
R - _ —_—— ____ Emilion _ _ mitien  pence
Basic earnings from continuing operations 66.9 326.6 20.5
Exceptional items 6.4} - (1.8)
Intangible amortisation (post-tax) _ %8 - 05
Basic earnings before exceptional items and
intangible amortisation 62.6 326.6 19.2
Share options - 28 (0.2)
Employee share and incentive schemes R S ) _ o2
Diluted earnings before exceptional items and
intangible amortisation 62.6 333.7 18.8
. Sicmanths ended 30 June 2007 Year ended 31 December 2007
Weighted Weighted
average average
shares Earnings shares Earnings
Earnings number per share Earnings number per share
S o _E_rgillign million  pence  £million __million ~ pence
Basic earnings from
continuing operations 499 3288 15.2 121.4 328.7 359
Exceptional items 16.7) - (5.1) 129.0) - (8.8
Intangible amortisation
{post-tax} 12 - s 9 - 04
Basic earnings before
exceptional items and
intangible amortisation 344 3288 105 94.3 328.7 287
Share options - 40 (0.1 - 25 (0.2)
Employee share and
incentive schemes - s w8 53 b3
Diluted earnings before
exceptional items and
intangible amortisation J44 338.7 10.2 94.3 336.5 28.0
7 Dividends

After the balance sheet date the directors declared a dividend of 5.3 pence per share payable on 2 January
2009 to equity holders on the register at the close of business on 28 November 2008, This dividend has not
been provided for and there are no income tax censequences for the company,

Dividends totalling £15.5 mittion were paid during the six months ended 30 June 2008,
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Notes to the accounts continued

Bintangible assets

Goodwilt Software Other Total
e Emillion  Emillion  Emillion £ millian
Cost:
As at 1 January 2007 2149 6.2 122 2313
Exchange and other movements 9.0 (0.8) (.1 81
Additions - 8.3 - 0.1
Disposal of businesses o - s - o5
As at 30 June 2007 LY 50 121 240
As at 1 January 2008 245.4 5.9 13.0 2663
Exchange and other movements [4.9) - (0.4 (5.3)
Acquisition of businesses : 70.8 - 327 103.5
Additions I T LI s\
As at 30 June 2008 311.3 7.0 45.3 363.6
Amortisation:
As at 1 January 2007 270 32 55 35.7
Exchange and other movements 18 {o.1 (0.2) 15
Provided during the period - 0.5 0.7 1.2
Disposal of businesses o - los) - (0.5]
As at 30 June 2007 o 288 A D -1 379
As at 1 January 2008 300 4.2 63 40.5
Exchange and other movements (0.7 - 0.1] (0.8)
Provided during the pericd ) ) - 01 25 28
As at 30 June 2008 293 4.3 8.7 42.3
Net book value:
As at 30 June 2008 282.0 2.7 36.6 321.3
As at 30 June 2007 195.1 1.9 6.1 203.1

% Non-current liabilitics

Other payabtes of £22.5 million (2007: Enit) includes the long term elernent of deferred and contingent

consideration on the acquisitions in the period.

10 Provisions
The nature and measurement bases of the group’s provisions are unchanged from those presented in the last
annual report.
N _ ___Sixmonths ended 30 June 2008
Indemnities
and other Onerous
liabitities property
Litigation  on disposals Insurance contracts Total
) o ) ~____ Emillion ___ Emillion £ million Emillion £ million
As at 1 January 2008 7.5 78.9 39.9 7.1 199.4
Exchange movements - 3.4 - - 34
Utilised 7.7 (311 - [rR]] (1051
Charged/lcredited) to the
income statement:
Additional provisions 11.6 - 3.3 0.2 14.9
_ Unusedamounts reversed ____ [14.6) a8y - = _1o
As at 30 June 2008 60.8 74.8 43.0 9.2 187.8
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10 Provisions

Six months ended 30 Jurge 30_0_7

Inderanities
and other Onerous
liabilities property
Litigation  on disposals Insurance contracts Total
. _ £ m_il_lian £ migcl _ _E_n'li!!ion £ million Hillijn
As at 1 January 2007 85.3 53.6 258 21 1738
Exchange movements (1.0} - - - (1.0}
Utilised (6.51 (3.5) - - {10.0}
Charged/lcredited] to the
income statement:
Additional provisions 4.0 4.0 1.7 - 9.7
Unused amounts reversed (9.7) (5.0 - (1.3) i16.0
Transter from payables 2.7 o S S )
778 491 275 7.8 1622
Reclassified as held for sale (37 - - = N
As at 30 June 2007 74.1 49.1 275 78 158.5
11 Reconciliation of movements in total cquity attributable to the equity holders of the company
Six months Six months Year
ended ended ended
a0 tune 30June 31 December
2008 2007 2007
S _ o - ___ . fEmitlien  Emilion _Emillion
Total recognised income and expense attributable to equity
holders of the company 55.1 nAa 4343
Dividends 28.6) [26.4] {41.3)
Shares issued 1.2 8.9 10.7
Equity settled share-based payments 45 5.4 53
[Acquisition)/disposal of shares by trustees of the
Performance Share Plan 2002 [9.3) - 03
Acquisition of treasury shares (25.5) (4.7 (21.5)
Cumulative gains and losses transferred from the hedging and
translation reserves on disposal of businesses - _ 04 108
Net {decreasel/increase in total equity [2.6) 44,7 398.6
Total equity as at beginning of the period o 8926 4940 4940
Total equity as at end of the period attributable to equity holders
of the company 890.0 538.7 8926
Share Buybacks

Atotal of 3,200,000 ordinary shares was purchased during the six months ended 30 June 2008 and will be held
as treasury shares, Of these, 2,450,000 were purchased specifically to satisfy the group’s share plan awards.

750,000 ordinary shares were purchased under the share buyback programme during the six months ended

30 June 2008.
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Notes to the accounts continued

12 Analysis of net cash
30 June
2008
L e o fmilion
Cash at bank and in hand 1221
Short-term investrents 4788
Cash and cash equwalents disclosed on the balance sheet 600.9
Overdrafis . -l
4008
Cash and cash equivalents {including overdrafts) classified
as held for sale o N =
Total cash and cash ec equlvalents 600.8
Current debt -
Non-current debt =
Debt classified as held for sale o -
Net cash as at the end of the penod 600.8

30 June
2007

£ millian

1.2
2.2

4524

AL4 3

4555

‘_[_8;1_]_ R

31 December
2007
£ million

720.4
13.7

7341
0.7

7334

'733.2

Net cash is analysed between the amount disclosed in the balance sheet and amounts classified as held for

sale as follows:
30 June 30 June 31 December
2008 2007 2007
L __ Emillion £ mittion £ million
Net cash disclosed on the balance sheel 600.8 4443 7332
Net cash classified as held for sale o o = nh2z -
Tatal net cash as at the end of the penod 600.8 455.5 7332
13 Share-based payments
Share awards granted during the period under the Performance Share Plan 2002 are as follows:
Weighted
average Number
fair value of shares
2008 2008
Share awards s granted during the penod _493p ~ 1,094,093

The terms and conditions of the Pedormance Share Ptan 2002 are d:sclosed in lhe consolidated financial

statements as at and for the year ended 31 December 2007.

The fair value of the award was measured using the Monte Carlo model and the inpuls are as follows:

Wenghted aver-age fair value at measurement date

Share price

Expected share price volatility

Expected dividend yield

Comparator share price volatility

Correlation between two companies in comparator group

2008

£93p
718p
26%
2.0%
27%
3%

The basis of measuring fair value is consistent with that disclosed in the consolldaled fmancral staterments as

at and for the year ended 31 December 2007,
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14 Acquisitions

All of the following purchases have been accounted for as acquisitions. Due to the proximity of these
acquisitions to the period end, this initial accounting for these acquisitions has been determined only

provisionally. None of the businesses acquired made a material contribution to consolidated revenue and

profit in the period from their acquisition to 30 June 2008. Their revenue and profit for the six month period

ending 30 June 2008 were also not material to the group. Intangible assets recognised at fair value on the

acquisition of these businesses inctuded brands, trade names, customer relationships, order backlogs and

non-compete agreements.
Rider Hunt International (RH1)

On 2 April 2008, the group acquired all the shares in RHI. RHI is based in the UK and is an international

provider of project services to the oit, gas, chemical, energy and process industries.

The amounts recognised in respect of identifiable assets and liabilities relating to the acquisition of RHI were

as follows:
Fair value Recognised
Book value  adjustments value
o . o 3 ___E_l_-nillion £ [nillion £ millien
Property, plant and equipment 0.2 - 0.2
Intangible assets - 10.2 10.2
Trade and other receivables 6.9 - &9
Cash and cash equivalenis 0.1 - 0.1
Trade and other payables (2.4 - {2.4)
Deferred tax liability . - _ 25 2.9
Net identifiable assets and liabilities 48 73 12.1
Goodwill on acquisition L 13.5
25.6
Consideration
Cash 252
_ Costof acquisitton e _ 0.4
25.6

Goodwill has arisen on the acguisition of RHI primarily because of the synergies obtained through
combining RH1's strang project controls expertise and customer relationships with AMEC's project

management and engineering skills.

AMEC pic interim report 2008

25




Notes to the accounts continued

14 Acquisitions .+

Bower Damberger Rolseth Engineering Limited (BDRI
On 16 May 2008, the group acquired ali the shares in BDR. BDR is based in Calgary, Canada and is a specialist
in-situ oil sands business.

The amounts recognised in respect of identifiable assets and liabilities relating to the acquisition of BDR were

as follows:
Fair value Recognised

Bockvalue  adjustments value

— . L ___Emiltion __Emillion £ million
Property, plant and equipment 0.3 - 0.3
Intangible assets - 104 104
Trade and other receivables 1.2 - 1.2
Cash and cash equivalents 22 - 2.2
Trade and other payables 13.0) 0.7 13.7)
Current tax payable [0.4) - (0.4)
Deferred tox liabitty - ____ k8 128
Net identifiable assets and liabilities 0.3 6.9 7.2
Goodwillon acquision . ____ _  _ ____ 287
369

Cansidecation

Cash - paid on completion 17.6

- deferred 5.0

- contingent 14.1
Costotacquistion . - .. .Gz
369

The contingent consideration is payable in five years time subject to achievement of profit targets over that period.

Goodwill has arisen on the acquisition of BOR primarily because of the synergies obtained through
combining the specialist engineering expertise and strong customer relationships of BOR with AMEC's
capabilities in project management, construction management and engineering on large scale projects
with major customers.

Geomatrix Consultants Inc [Geomatrix)

On 9 June 2008, the group acquired all the shares in Geomatrix. Geomatrix is based in Oakland, US

and is a diversified technical consulting and engineering firm offering specialist environmental, geotechnical
and water resources services to clients in sectors such as oil and gas, industrial, mining and municipal.

The amounts recegnised in respect of identifiable assets and liabilities relating to the acquisition of Geornatrix

were as follows:
Fair value Recognised

Bookvalue  adjustments value
o o L _ _E_rp_iklion £ Eiklian £ m&'.li_of_\
Property, ptant and equipment 1.3 - 1.3
Intangible assets - 9.5 9.5
Trade and other receivables 1460 - 160
Cash and cash equivalents 12 - 12
Trade and other payables 16.41 - [6.4)
Deferred tax liability (0§  (3%8]  [48
Net identifiable assets and liabilities 1.2 5.6 16.8
Goodwill on acqisition o S <1
40.6

Consideration
Cash - paid on completion 323
- deferred 7.7
Cost of acquisition o ~ o o 0.6
40.6
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14 Acquisitiens <" v 10

Goodwill has arisen on the acquisition of Geomatrix primarily as a result of the skilled workforce which did not
meel the criteria for recognition as an intangible asset at the date of recognition.

Other

A number of other immaterial acquisitions were made in the period ended 30 June 2008 for £5.3 million

in cash paid on completion with the assumption of cash of £0.3 million. A further £1.3 millien of conditional
consideration may be paid in respect of one of these acquisitions. The aggregate fair vatue of identifiable net
assets was £3.8 million excluding cash assumed and after recognising minority interests of £1.3 million the
aggregate goodwill arising en acquisitions was £3.8 million. The aggregate book value of net assets acquired
was £1.1 million excluding cash.

Goodwill has been recognised on these acquisitions as a result of skilled workforces which did not rmeet the
criteria for recognition as intangible assets at the dates of recognition.

15 Contingent liabilities

There have been no significant changes to contingent liabilities during the six months ended 30 June 2008.

1& Related party transactions

During the six months ended 30 June 2008 there were a number of transactions with jeint venture entities
and subsidiary companies.

The transactions and related balances outstanding with joint ventures and associates are as follows:
Outstanding balance

Va_lu_e fl‘_ transactions as at 30 June
Six months Six months
ended ended
30 June 2008 30 June 2007 2008 2007
o £ million £ million € miltion £ millio___n
Services rendered 56.6 3.2 8.3 2.3
Services received - 1.0 - 0.2

There have been no significant changes in related party transactions since those described in the last
annual report.

17 Post balance sheet events

On 22 July 2008, AMEC plc anncunced the acquisition of AllDeco, s.r.o. for a total cash consideration
of £11.1 million. £7.8 million was paid at closing, with the balance to be paid over the next three years, subject
to the achievement of agreed performance targets.
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Responsibility statement of the directors
in respect of the half-yearly financial report

We confirm that to the best of our knowledge:

the condensed set of accounts has been prepared
in accordance with |AS 34 “Interim Financial
Reporting’ as adopted by the EU

the interim management report includes a fair
review of the information required by:

* DTR 4.2.7R of the Disclosure and
Transparency Rutes, being an indication of
important events that have occurred during
the first six months of the financial year and
their impact on the condensed set of financial
staternents; and a description of the principal
risks and uncertainties for the remaining six
months of the year; and

i DTR 4.2 8R of the 'Disclosure and
Transparency Rules’, being related party
transactions that have taken place in the first
six menths of the current financial year and
that have materially affected the financial
position or perforrance of the entity during
that period; and any changes in the related
party transactions described in the last annual
report that could do so,

J M Green-Armytage
Chairman

5 Y Brikho
Chief Executive

28 August 2008
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Independent review report by KPMG Audit Plc to AMEC plc

Introduction

We have been engaged by the company to review

the condensed set of accounts in the half-yearly
financial report for the six months ended 30 June

2008 which comprises the condensed consolidated
income Statement, condensed consolidated Statement
of Recognised Income and Expense, condensed
consolidated Balance Sheet, condensed consolidated
Cash Flow Statement and the related exptanatory
notes. We have read the other information contained in
the half-yearly financial report and considered whether
it contains any apparent misstatements or material
inconsistencies with the infermation in the condensed
set of financial statements.

This report is made solely to the company in
accordance with the terms of our engagement to
assist the company in meeting the requirements of
the Disclosure and Transparency Rules (“"the DTR"}
of the UK’s Financial Services Authority ["the UK
FSA"). Qur review has been undertaken so that we
might state to the company those matters we are
required to state to it in this report and for no other
purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we
de not accept or assume responsibility to anyone
other than the company for our review work, for thig
report, or for the conclusions we have reached.

Directors’ responsibilities

The half-yearly financial report is the responsibility
of, and has been approved by, the directors. The
directors are responsible for preparing the half-
yearly financial report in accordance with the DTR
of the UK FSA.

As disctosed in note 1, the annual accounts of the
group are prepared in accordance with IFRSs as
adopted by the EU. The condensed set of financiat
statements included in this half-yearly financial
report has been prepared in accordance with tAS 34
“Interim Financial Reporting” as adopted by the EU,

(-]
Recycled
s e e

www.fscorg Cert no, $G5-COC-0620
© 19% Forest Stewardship Coundl

FSC

Qur responsibility ‘
Our responsibility is to express to the company a

conclusion on the condensed set of accounts in the ‘
half-yearly financial report based on our review. ‘

Scope of review }
We conducted our review in accordance with

International Standard on Review Engagements |
(UK and Ireland) 2410 "Review of Interim |
Financial Information Performed by the

Independent Auditor of the Entity” issued by the

Auditing Practices Board for use in the UK. A

review of interim financial information consists

of making enquiries, primarily of persons

responsible for financial and accounting

matters, and appkying analyticat and other

review procedures. A review is substantially less

in scope than an audit conducted in accordance

with International Standards on Auditing (UK

and freland] and consequently does not enable

us to obtain assurance that we would become

aware of all significant matters that might be !
identified in an audit. Accordingly, we do not

express an audit opinion.

Review conclusion

Based on our review, nothing has come to our
attention that causes us to believe that the
condensed set of accounts in the half-yearly
financial report for the six months ended

30 June 2008 is not prepared, in alt material
respects, in accordance with IAS 34 as adopted
by the EU and the DTR of the UK FSA.

KPMG Audit Plc
Chartered Accountants
Manchester

28 August 2008
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Company Name

AMECPLC
108 oCT 11
s 3F INTER
S GRATE FING
Company Type

Public Limited Company

Company Number

1675285

Information extracted from
Companies House records on

31st May 2007

Ref: 1675285/09/28

> Registered Oifice
Address
if any of the details are
wrong. strike them through
and fill in the correct details
in the "Amended details”
column.

RECEIVED

A

Companies f{ouse

— for the recond ——

A 363s Annual Return

AT

HOE

> Please check the details printed in the “Current details” column.

> |f any details are wrong, strike them through and write the correct details
in the "Amended details" column.

> Please complete in black ink and use capitals.

Section 1: Company details

- el
Sandiway House,Hartford,
Northwich,
Cheshire,
CWS8 2YA.

Address

UK Postcode o

[

Register of Members

If any of the detaiis are
wrong. strike them through
and fill in the correct details
in the "Amended details"
column.

Address where the Register is held
Capita Registrars

The Registry

34 Beckenham Road

Beckenham Kent BR3 4TU

Address

UK Postcode

| S VR U .

Register of Debenture
Holders

If any of the details are
wrong. strike them through
and filt in the correct details
in the "Amended detaifs” ;
column.

Not Applicable

Address

UK Posicode oo

| T

Principal Business
Activities

if any of the details are |
wrong, strike them. through |
and fill in the comrect details
in the "Amended details”
column.

Plgase enter additional

principal activity code(s} in
"Amended details” column. [
See notes for guidance for |
list of activity codes. |

[ 7415

SIC Code  Description

Holding companies inct!

head offices

|
;
|
|
I
|
|
!
|
!
|
i
|

SIC CODE Description




> Company Secretary
if any of the details for this
person are wrong, strike
them through and fill in the
correct details in the
"Amended details" coiumn.

Current details

Name
Peter James HOLLAND

Address
Woodside House

Wynnstay Lane, Marford
Wrexham

Amended details

Name

Tick this box if this address is a service
_l address for the beneficiary of a
Confidentiality Order granted under section 723l
of the Companies Act 1985.

LL12 8LH

Address

Particuiars of a new

Company Secretary must

be notified on form 288a.
UK Postcode _ . . _ e W
Dateofchangen_ Y AU R
Date Peter James HOLLAND
ceased to be secretary (if applicable)

> Director Name Name

if any of the details for this
person are wrong, strke
them through and fill in the
correct details in the
"Amended details” column.

Particulars of a new Director
must be notified on form
288a.

Elisabeth Patricia AIREY

Address
20 St Jamess Waik

Londen
ECIR OAP

Date of birth 28/01/1959
Nationality British

Occupation Co Director

Address

Tick this box if this address is a service
address for the beneficiary of a ;
Confidentiality Order granted under section 723E
of the Companies Act 1985,

UK Postcode o o o o

—

—

Dateofbirth _ _ J _ o J_ — o
Nationality :

Occupation

Dateofchange .. «. / — — Jo— o

Date Elisabeth Patricia AIREY ceased

to be director (if applicable)



> Director Name Name

If any of the details for this Samir Yacoub BRIK{?% CEIVED:
persor are wrong, strike ' .
them fthUQfT é”d fill in the M8 OCT |7 A 9 45 | Tick this box if this address is a service
comect details in “:’9 Address N L address for the beneficiary of a
'‘Amended details” column. Wileustrasse 124 g Ic FL:.';(‘{‘FRII:\'IEQFE';.; AT "Confidentiality Order granted under section 72:
Wilen B Wollerau™ =" 7 T2 T 0 g yhe Gompanies Act 1985,
8832
Switzerland Address

Date of birth 03/05/1958
Nationality Swedish UK Postcode o — — o _ _ o
Particulars of a new Director ) Dateofbith . / o /o v o
must be notified on form Occupation  Director Nationality .
286a. Cccupation
Dateofchange _ _ f _ /o o - = ‘

Date Samir Yacoub BRIKHO ceased to
be director (if applicable)

o f == =
> Director Name Name

if any of the details for this Peter John BYRCM
person are wrong. strike
them thmug‘,h a,nd fill in the | Tick this box if this address is a service \
correct details in the | This is a service address for the address for the beneficiary of a ‘
“Amended details" column. beneficiary of a Confidentiality Order. | Confidentiality Order granted under section 723}

Address of the Companies Act 1985,

65 Buckingham Gate

London Address

{ SW1E 6AT

L UK Postcode o o o o o o

Date of birth 23/06/1944

Particulars of a new Director Dateofbith o/ o - /o o o
must be notified on form | Nationality  British Nationality
288a. i :
; Occupation Company Director Occupation
‘ Dateofchange - — / « o /- — o _ -

I

I

i Date Peter John BYROM ceased to be
i director (if applicable)
I

i




> Director
if any of the details for this
person are wrong, sirke
them through and fill in the
correct details in the
*Amended details” column.

Particutars of a new Director
must be naotified on form
288a.

Name
John Dalton EARLY

Address
Flat 510 Middle Warehouse

Castle Quay Chester Road
Manchester

Lancashire

M15 4NT

Date of birth 08/11/1945
Nationality  British

Occupation Director

Name

Tick this box if this address is a service
address for the beneficiary of a
Confidentiality Order granted under section 723
of the Companies Act 1985. i

Address
2MANFATE PR, O Meese—;

ECHATD I e e @ — A S OHESTER2

UK Postcode MZ 0 2043
Dateofbith  _ _ f o /-«
Nationality

Occupation .

Dateofchange L 51, © 5,200 3

Date John Dalton EARLY ceased to be
director (if applicable)

[EE N S S S [ i S R -

> Director
if any of the details for this
person are wrong, strike
them through and fil in the
correct details in the
"Amended details" column.

Partictiars of a new Director
must be notified on form
288a.

i
|
!

Name
Timothy William FAITHFULL

Address

Chancellor House
1B Norham Gardens
Oxford

0X2 6PS

i Date of birth 06/10/1944

Nationality  British

i Occupation Non Executive Directolr Nationality

UK Postcode

i Occupation
| Dateofchange _ o / « v Jo — = _

.{ Date Timothy Wiliam FAITHFULL

Name

771 Tick this box if this address is a service

| address for the beneficiary of a
Confidentiality Order granted under section 723t
of the Companies Act 1985,

Address

| —_ e -

Date of birth

e f e fo e o

ceased to be director (if applicable)




> Director

if any of the details for this
person are wrong, strike
them through and fill in the
correct details in the
"Amended details” column.

Particulars of a new Director
must be notified on form
288a.

Name
John Mcdonald GREEN

ARMYTAGE

Address

The Cedars
Barnes Common
1l ondon

SW13 OLN

Date of birth 06/06/1945
Nationality Canadian British

Qccupation Director

Name

Tick this box if this address is a service
address for the beneficiary of a
Confidentiality Order granted under section 72.
of the Companies Act 1985,

Address

UK Postcode
Date of birth
Nationality

* i ' f

Occupation

Dateofchange .  / — «— J o — o =

Date John Mcdonald GREEN
ARMYTAGE ceased to be director (if
applicable)

Director

If any of the details for this
person are wrong, strike
them through and iill in the
correct details in the
"Amended details” column.

Particulars of & new Director
must be notified on form
288a.

I
|
|
|
|
|
i
|

Name
Martha Ossian HESSE

Address
4171 Autumn Hitls Dr

Winnemucca
Nevada 89445
United States Of America

Date of birth 14/08/1942
Nationality American

Occupation Director

Name

Tick this box if this address is a service
address for the beneficiary of a
Confidentiality Order granted under section 728
of the Companies Act 1985.

Address

UK Postcode

Dateofbith _ _ 7 _ — /o o«
Nationality
QOccupation
Dateofchange o _ J — o J— — - _

Date Martha Ossian HESSE ceasedto
be director (if applicable)
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> Director
if any of the detalls jor this
person are wrong, strike
them through and fifl in the
correct details in the
"Amended details" colurnn.

Particulars of a new Director
must be notified on form
288a.

Name
Stuart James SIDDALL

Address
The Willows 9C Eimwood Park

Gerrards Cross
Buckinghamshire
SL9 7EP

Date of birth 27/05/1953
Nationality British

Occupation Director

Name

i | Tick this box if this address is a service
address for the beneficiary of a
Confidentiality Order granted under section 723|
of the Companies Act 1985.

Address

UK Postcode o o = o o o o
Dateofbith _ _ /J - — f - v o
Nationality

Occupation

Dateofchange _ _ / — — [/ — = =

Date Stuart James SIDDALL ceasedto
be director (if applicable)




Issued share capital details

Please fill in the Class of Share
details of total share
capital by class (eg. B kil

ordinary, preference
elc) that has been
issued to the
company's

' Nuer f shares ised

A3, 213 , B4

Aggregate Nominal Value of issued shares

£ 50

sharehoiders.
Class of Share

Number of shares issued

Aggregate Nominal Value of issued shares

Class of Share

Number of shares issued

Aggregate Nominal Value of issued shares

Class of Share

Number of shares issued

Aggregate Nominal Value of issued shares

> Please fill in the total
number of issued
shares and their total
nominal value.

Number of shares issued

.33 ., 813 ,REN

Aggregate Nominal Value of issued shares

£ 1R, Lok, S

List of past and present members (Tick appropriate box}

>

Please complate the O

required information on
the attached schedules
or 1 another format
agreed by Companies
House.

REMEMBER:

There were no changes during the period
7 Alist of changes is enciosed
2" A full list of members is enclosed

The tast full list of members was received on: 08/06/2006

Changes to shareholder particulars or details of shares transferred to be completed each year
A full list of shareholders is required with the first and every third Annual Return thereafter

List sharsholders in alphabetical order or provide an index

List joint shareholders consecutively




Shareholders details

Name

shareholiders since the last annual return.

> Please {il! in details of any persons or corporate bodies that have transferred
shares since the last annual return.

> Please use Section 4B to give details of any persons or corporate bodies who
have ceased to be shareholders since the last annual return or, in the case of

first return, since the incorporation of the company.

> Please copy this page if there is not enough space to enter all the company's
current shareholders.

Class and number of Date of

Class and number ghares or amount of registration

of shares or
amount of stock held

of transfer
(tf appropriate)

stock transferred
(If appropriate)

[I—

Address

UK Postcode

Name

L

Address

1

UK Postcode

Name

Address

UK Postcode

Name

Address

L

UK Postcode




> Please fill in details of any persons or corporate bodies who have ceased
io be shareholders at the date of this return. Also, please give the dates
that their shares were transferred.

> Please copy this page if there is not enough space to enter all the
company's former shareholders.

Class and number of Date of

Former shareholders details shares or amount of registration
stock transferred of transfer
Name
Address
UK Postcode [ S T T
Name
Address
UK Postcode _ ke L L [
Name
Address
UK Postcode Lo oo oo o oo —
Name
Address
UK Postcode Lo L o— - oo
Name
Address
UK Postcode O L o o




> When you have checked ali the sections of this form. please
complete this page and sign the declaration below.

> if you want to change the made up date of this annual return,
please complete 2 below.

1. Declaration
{1 Iconfirmthat the details in this annual return are correct as at the made-up-date
{(shownat2b . | enclose the flllng fee of £30

Signature "~ Date
° 15, C ceF

{ D;:eﬁr/ Secretary)

This date must not be earfier than the
return date at 2 below

What to do now
Complete this page then send the whole of the Annual Return and the

declaration to the address shown at 4 below.

2. Date of this return

[/ This AR is made up to If you are making this return up to an earlier date,
a/6/2007 please give the date here
— ke / — b f [ T

Note: The form must be delivered to CH within 28 days of this date

3. Date of next retumn

I If you wish to change your next return to a date earlier than 8th June 2008
please give the new date here:

4. Where to send this form
1 Please return this form to:

Registrar of Companies For members of the Hays Document
Companies House OR Exchange service
Crown Way DX 33050 Cardiff

Cardiff CF14 3UZ

Have you enclosed the filing fee with the company number written on the
reverse of the cheque?

Contact Address

You do not have to give any contact inforrmation below, but if you do, it will help
Companies House to contact you if there is a query on the form. The contact
information that you give will be visible to searchers of the public record.

Contact Name Telephone number inc code
LS = A HiasT> CiEtoE 333D

Address £¥FNEC (21 - DX number if applicable

I A T R T Hows -

HASTFGES, o 2 T Ci DX exchange

CHESHEE S

Postcode L% _2IhH




The Companies Act 2006

Public Company limited by shares

Articles of Association
{Adopted on 1 October 2008 pursuant to a Special Resolution
passed on 14 May 2008)

of

AMEC plc
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1 Table A not to apply

Preliminary

The regutations in Table A in The Companies (Tables A to F) Regulations 1985 and in any Table A
applicable to the Company under any former enaciment relating to companies shall not apply to

the Company.

2 Interpretation

21 In these Articles (if not inconsistent with the subject or context) the words and expressions
set out in the first column below shall bear the meanings set opposite to them respectively:

“in writing”

“month’
"Office”
*Official List
“Operator’

“Operator-instruction”
“paid”

the “Regulations”

“relevant system”

“Seal’

“Securities Seal’

the “Statutes”

the “Stock Exchange”
“these Articles”

“Transfer Office”

Written or produced by any substitute for writing
(including anything in electronic form) or partly cne and
partly ancther.

Calendar month.
The registered office of the company for the time being.
Official List of the UK Listing Authority.

CRESTCo Limited or such other person as may for the
time hbeing be approved by H.M. Treasury as Operator
under the Regulations.

A properly authenticated dematerialised instruction
attributable to the Operator.

Paid or credited as paid.
The Uncertificated Securities Regulations 2001.

A computer-based system, and procedures, which enable
title to units of a security to be evidenced and transferred
without a written instrument pursuant to the Regulations.

The Common Seal of the Company.

The official seal kept by the Company for sealing
securities issued by the Company, or for sealing
documents creating or evidencing securities so issued, as
permitted by the Companies Acts.

The Companies Acts, the Regulations and every other
enactment for the time being in force concerning
companies and affecting the Company.

London Stock Exchange plc.
These Articles of Association as from time to time altered.

The place where the Register of Members is situate for
the time being.

AQ9045029/0.2/26 Feb 2008

11 -



2.2

23

24

2.5

2.6

2.7

2.8

29

210

211

212

213

214

“UK Listing Authority” The Financial Services Authority in its capacity as
competent authority for official listing under Part VI the
Financial Services and Markets Act 2000.

*United Kingdom™ Great Britain and Northern Ireland.
“year” Calendar year.

The expressions “debenture’ and “debenture holder’ shall respectively include
“debenture stock” and "debenture stockholder”.

The expressions “recognised clearing house” and “recognised investment exchange”
shall mean any clearing house or investment exchange (as the case may be) granted
recognition under the Financial Services and Markets Act 2000.

The expression “Secretary” shall include any person appointed by the Directors to perform
any of the duties of the Secretary including, but not limited to, a joint, assistant or deputy
Secretary.

The expression "Companies Acts” shall have the meaning given thereto by Section 2 of
the Companies Act 2006 but sha!l only extend to provisions which are in force at the
relevant date.

The expression "Company Communications Provisions” shall have the same meaning
as in the Companies Acts.

now

The expressions "hard copy form", “electronic form” and “electronic means” shall have
the same respective meanings as in the Company Communications Provisions.

The expression "address” includes any number or address (including, in the case of any
Uncertificated Proxy Instruction permitted under Article 64, an identification number of a
participant in the relevant system) used for the purposes of such communication sending
or receiving notices, documents or information by electronic means.

The expression “General Meeting” shall include any general meeting of the Company,
including any general meeting held as the Company’s annual general meeting in
accordance with Section 360 of the Companies Act 2006 (“Annual General Meeting®).

The expression “officer” shall include a Director, manager and the Secretary, but shall not
include an auditor.

Words denoting the singular shall include the plural and vice versa. Words denoting the
masculine shall include the feminine. Words denoting persons shall include bodies
corporate and unincorporated associations.

References to any statute or statutory provision shall be construed as relating to any
statutory modification or re-enactment thereof for the time being in force {whether coming
into force before or after the adoption of these Articles).

A Special Resolution shall be effective for any purpose for which an Ordinary Resolution is
expressed to be required under any provision of these Articles.

References to a share {or to a holding of shares) being in uncertificated form or in
certificated form are references, respectively, to that share being an uncertificated unit of a
security or a certificated unit of a security for the purposes of the Regulations.
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215

2.16

For the purposes of these Articles, a dematerialised instruction is properly authenticated if
it complies with the specifications referred to in paragraph 5(b) of Schedule 1 to the
Regulations.

Except as provided above any words or expressions defined in the Companies Acts or the
Regulations shall (if not inconsistent with the subject or context) bear the same meanings
in these Articles.

Share Capital

3.1

3.2

33

3.4

Amount, increase, consolidation, subdivision and cancellation of share
capital

As at the date of adoption of these Articles, the authorised share capital of the Company is
£350,000,000 divided into 486,020,779 ordinary shares of 50p each (“ordinary shares”)
and 213,979,221 6.5p cumulative convertible redeemable preference shares of 50p each.

The Company may from time to time by Ordinary Resolution increase its capital by such
sum to be divided into shares of such amounts as the resolution shall prescribe. All new
shares shall be subject to the provisions of the Statutes and of these Articles with reference
to allotment, payment of calls, lien, transfer, transmission, forfeiture and otherwise.

The Company may by Ordinary Resolution:

(a) consolidate and divide all or any of its share capital into shares of larger amount
than its existing shares,

(b) cancel any shares which, at the date of the passing of the resolution, have not
been taken, or agreed to be taken, by any person and diminish the amount of its
capital by the amount of the shares so cancelled;

(c) sub-divide its shares, or any of them, into shares of smaller amount than is fixed by
the Memorandum of Association (subject, nevertheless, to the provisions of the
Statutes), and so that the resolution whereby any share is sub-divided may
determine that, as between the holders of the shares resulting from such sub-
division, one or more of the shares may, as compared with the others, have any
such preferred, deferred or other special rights, or be subject to any such
restrictions, as the Company has power to attach to unissued or new shares.

Whenever as a result of a consolidation or subdivision of shares any members would
become entitled to fractions of a share, the Directors may, on behalf of those members,
sell the shares representing the fractions for the best price reasonably obtainable to any
person (including, subject to the provisions of the Statutes, the Company} and distribute
the net proceeds of sale in due proportion among those members, and the Directors may
authorise some person to transfer the shares to, or in accordance with the directions of,
the purchaser. The transferee shall not be bound to see to the application of the purchase
money nor shall his title to the shares be affected by any irregularity in or invalidity of the
proceedings in reference to the sale. So far as the Statutes allow, the Directors may treat
shares of a member in certificated form and in uncertificated form as separate holdings in
giving effect to subdivisions and/or consolidations and may cause any shares arising on
consolidation or subdivision and representing fractional entilements to be entered in the
Register as shares in certificated form where this is desirable to facilitate the sale thereof.
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7.2

7.3

7.4

7.5

Purchase of own shares

Subject to the provisions of the Statutes, the Company may purchase any of its own
shares (including any redeemable shares). .

Reduction of capital

The Company may reduce its share capital or any capital redemption reserve, share
premium account or other undistributable reserve in any manner and with and subject to
any incident authorised and consent required by law.

Shares

Rights attaching to shares on issue

Without prejudice to any special rights previously conferred on the holders of any shares or
class of shares for the time being issued, any share in the Company may be issued with
such preferred, deferred or other special rights, or subject to such restrictions, whether as
regards dividend, return of capital, voting or otherwise, as the Company may from time to
time by Ordinary Resolution determine (or, in the absence of any such determination, as
the Directors may determine) and subject to the provisions of the Statutes the Company
may issue any shares which are, or at the option of the Company or the member are liable,
to be redeemed.

Directors’ power to allot securities and to sell treasury shares

Subject to the provisions of the Statutes relating to authority, pre-emption rights and
otherwise and of any resolution of the Company in General Meeting passed pursuant
thereto, all unissued shares shall be at the disposal of the Directors and they may allot
(with or without conferring a right of renunciation), grant options over or otherwise dispose
of them to such persons, at such times and on such terms as they think proper.

The Directors shall be generally and unconditionally authorised pursuant to and in
accordance with Section 80 of the Companies Act 1985 to exercise for each prescribed
period all the powers of the Company to allot relevant securities up to an aggregate
nominal amount equal to the Section 80 Amount,

During each prescribed period the Directors shall be empowered to allot equity securities
wholly for cash pursuant to and within the terms of the said authority:

(i) in connection with a rights issue; and

(i) otherwise than in connection with a rights issue, up to an aggregate nominal
amount eqgual to the Section 89 Amount;

as if Section 89(1) of the Companies Act 1985 did not apply to any such allotment.

By such authority and power the Directors may during such period make offers or
agreements which would or might require the allotment of securities after the expiry of
such period.

For the purposes of this Article:
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{(a) “prescribed period” means any period {not exceeding five years on any occasion)
for which the authority and powers conferred by Article 7.2 above are renewed by
an Ordinary Resolution of the Company stating the Section 80 Amount for such
period;

{b) “rights issue” means an offer of equity securities open for acceptance for a period
fixed by the Directors to holders of ardinary shares (for which purpose holdings in
certificated and uncertificated form may be treated as separate holdings) on the
register on a fixed record date in proportion to their respective holdings of such
securities or in accordance with the rights attached thereto (but subject to such
exclusions or other arrangements as the Directors may deem necessary or
expedient in relation to fractional entitlements or legal or practical problems under
the laws of, or the requirements of any recognised regulatory body or any stock
exchange in, any territory);

{c) the “Section 80 Amount” shall be that stated in the relevant Resolution renewing
or extending the authority conferred by Article 7.2 above for such period or any
increased amount fixed by Ordinary Resolution of the Company in General
Meeting;

(d) the “Section 89 Amount” shall be that stated in the relevant Special Resolution
renewing or extending the power conferred by Article 7.3 above for such period or
any increased amount fixed by Special Resolution of the Company in General
Meeting;

(e) the nominal amount of any securities shali be taken to be, in the case of rights to
subscribe for or to convert any securities into shares of the Company the nominal
amount of such shares which may be allotted pursuant to such rights; and

(f) words and expressions defined in or for the purposes of Part IV of the Companies
Act 1985 shall bear the same meanings herein

8 Commissions on issue of shares

The Company may exercise the powers of paying commissions conferred by the Statutes
to the full extent thereby permitted. The Company may also on any issue of shares pay
such brokerage as may be lawful.

9 Renunciation of allotment

The Directors may at any time after the allotment of any share but before any person has
been entered in the Register of Members as the holder recognise a renunciation thereof by
the allottee in favour of some cther person and may accord to any allottee of a share a
right to effect such renunciation upon and subject to such terms and conditions as the
Directors may think fit to impose.

10 Trust etc. interests not recognised

Except as required by law, no person shall be recognised by the Company as holding any
share upon any trust, and the Company shall not be bound by or compelted in any way to
recognise any equitable, contingent, future or partial interest in any share, or any interest in
any fractional part of a share, or (except only as by these Articles or by law otherwise
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11

12
121

12.2

13

provided) any other right in respect of any share, except an absolute right to the entirety
thereof in the registered member.

Evidence of Title to Securities

Nothing in these Articles shall require titte to any securities of the Company to be
evidenced or transferred by a wrilten instruction, the regulations from time to time made
under the Statutes so permitting. The Directors shall have power to implement any
arrangements which they may think fit for such evidencing and transfer which accord with
those regulations.

Variation of Rights

Manner of variation of rights

Whenever the share capital of the Company is divided into different classes of shares, the
special rights attached to any class may, subject to the provisions of the Statutes, be varied
or abrogated:

(a) with the consent in writing of the holders of three-quarters in nominal value of the
issued shares of the class, or

(b) with the sanction of a Special Resolution passed at a separate General Meeting of
the holders of the shares of the class (but not otherwise),

and may be so0 varied or abrogated either whilst the Company is a going concern or during
or in contemplation of a winding-up.

To every such separate General Meeting all the provisions of these Articles relating to
General Meetings of the Company and to the proceedings thereat shall (with any
necessary modifications) apply, except that:

(a) the necessary quorum at such separate meeting shall be two persons at least
holding or representing by proxy at least one-third in nominal value of the issued
shares of the class;

(b) at any adjourned meeting any holder of shares of the class present in persan or by
proxy shall be a quorum;

(c) any holder of shares of the class present in person or by proxy may demand a poll;
and

(d) every such member shall on a poll have one vote for every share of the class held
by him.

Matters not constituting variation of rights

The special rights attached to any class of shares having preferential rights shall not
unless otherwise expressly provided by the terms of issue thereof be deemed to be varied
by the creation or issue of further shares ranking as regards participation in the profits or
assets of the Company in some or all respects equally therewith but in no respect in priority
thereto.
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18.1

18.2

18.3

Share Certificates

Form of share certificate

Every share certificate shall be issued under the Seal (or under a Securities Seal or, in the
case of shares on a branch register, an official seal for use in the relevant territory) and
shall specify the number and class of shares to which it relates and the amount paid up
thereon. No certificate shall be issued representing shares of more than one class. No
certificate shall normally be issued in respect of shares held by a recognised clearing
house or a nominee of a recognised clearing house or of a recognised investment
exchange.

Joint members

In the case of a share held jointly by several persons the Company shall not be bound to
issue more than one certificate therefor and delivery of a certificate to one of the joint
members shall be sufficient delivery to all.

Issue of share certificates

Any person (subject as aforesaid and excluding persons o whom the Company is not
required by law to issue a certificate) whose name is entered in the Register of Members in
respect of any shares of any one class upon the issue or transfer thereof shall be entitled
without payment to a certificate therefor (in the case of issue) within one month (or such
longer period as the terms of issue shall provide} after allotment or (in the case of a
transfer of fully paid shares) within five business days after lodgment of a transfer or (in the
case of a transfer of partly paid shares) within two months after lodgment of a transfer (or
in the case of the surrender of a share warrant for cancellation) within two months of the
surrender of the warrant.

Balance certificate

Where some only of the shares comprised in a share certificate are transferred the old
certificate shall be cancelled and a new certificate for the balance of such shares issued in
lieu without charge.

Replacement of share certificates

Any two or more ceriificates representing shares of any one class held by any member
may at his request be cancelled and a single new certificate for such shares issued in lieu
without charge.

If any member shall surrender for cancellation a share certificate representing shares held
by him and request the Company to issue in lieu two or more share certificates
representing such shares in such proportions as he may specify, the Directors may, if they
think fit, comply with such request.

If a share certificate shall be damaged or defaced or alleged tc have been lost, stolen or
destroyed, a new certificate representing the same shares may be issued to the member
upon request subject to delivery up of the old certificate or (if alleged to have been lost,
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19

20

21
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23

stolen or destroyed) compliance with such conditions as to evidence and indemnity and the
payment of any exceptional out-of-pocket expenses of the Company in connection with the
request as the Directors may think fit.

In the case of shares held jointly by several persons any such request may be made by
any one of the joint members.

Calls on Shares

Power to make calls

The Directors may from time to time make calls upon the members in respect of any
moneys unpaid on their shares (whether on account of the nominal value of the shares or,
when permitted, by way of premium) but subject always to the terms of allotment of such
shares. A call shall be deemed to have been made at the time when the resclution of the
Directors authorising the call was passed and may be made payable by instalments.

Liability for calls

Each member shall (subject to receiving at least 14 days’ notice specifying the time or
times and place of payment) pay to the Company at the time or times and place so
specified the amount called on his shares. Joint members shall be jointly and severally
liable to pay all calls in respect thereof. A call may be revoked or postponed as the
Directors may determine.

Interest on overdue amounts

If a sum called in respect of a share is not paid before or on the day appointed for payment
thereof, the person from whom the sum is due shall pay interest on the sum from the day
appointed for payment thereof to the time of actual payment at such rate (hot exceeding 20
per cent. per annum) as the Directors determine but the Directors shall be at liberty in any
case or cases to waive payment of such interest wholly or in part.

Other sums due on shares

Any sum {whether on account of the nominal value of the share or by way of premium)
which by the terms of allotment of a share becomes payable upon allotment or at any fixed
date shall for all the purposes of these Articles be deemed to be a call duly made and
payable on the date on which by the terms of allotment the same becomes payable. in
case of non-payment all the retevant provisions of these Articles as to payment of interest
and expenses, forfeiture or otherwise shall apply as if such sum had become payable by
virtue of a call duly made and notified.

Power to differentiate between members

The Directors may on the allotment of shares differentiate between the members as to the
amount of calls to be paid and the times of payment.
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24

25
25.1

25.2

26

27

28

Payment of calls in advance

The Directors may if they think fit receive from any member willing to advance the same all
or any part of the moneys (whether on account of the nominal value of the shares or by
way of premium) uncalled and unpaid upon the shares held by him and such payment in
advance of calls shall extinguish to the same extent the liability upon the shares in respect
of which it is made and upon the money so received {until and to the extent that the same
would but for such advance become payable) the Company may pay interest at such rate
(not exceeding 15 per cent. per annum) as the member paying such sum and the Directors
may agree.

Forfeiture and Lien

Notice on failure to pay a call

if a member fails to pay in full any call or instalment of a call on or before the due date for
payment thereof, the Directors may at any time thereafter serve a notice on him requiring
payment of so much of the call or instalment as is unpaid together with any interest which
may have accrued thereon and any expenses incurred by the Company by reason of such
non-payment.

The notice shall name a further day (not being less than seven days from the date of
service of the notice) on or before which and the place where the payment required by the
notice is to be made and shall state that in the event of non-payment in accordance
therewith the shares on which the call has been made will be liable to be forfeited.

Forfeiture for non-compliance

If the requirements of any such notice as aforesaid are not complied with, any share in
respect of which such notice has been given may at any time thereafter, before payment of
all calls and interest and expenses due in respect thereof has been made, be forfeited by a
resolution of the Directors to that effect. Such forfeiture shall include all dividends declared
in respect of the forfeited share and not actually paid before forfeiture. The Directors may
accept a surrender of any share liable to be forfeited hereunder.

Disposal of forfeited shares

A share so forfeited or surrendered shall become the property of the Company and may be
sold, reallotted or otherwise disposed of either to the person who was before such
forfeiture or surrender the holder thereof or entitled thereto or to any other person upon
such terms and in such manner as the Directors shall think fit and at any time before a
sale, reallotment or disposal the forfeiture or surrender may be cancelled on such terms as
the Directors think fit. The Directors may, if necessary, authorise some person to transfer a
forfeited or surrendered share to any such other person as aforesaid.

Member to remain liable despite forfeiture

A member whose shares have been forfeited or surrendered shall cease to be a member
in respect of the shares but shall notwithstanding the forfeiture or surrender remain liable
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30

31

32

to pay to the Company ali moneys which at the date of forfeiture or surrender were
presently payable by him to the Company in respect of the shares with interest thereon at
20 per cent. per annum {or such lower rate as the Directors may determine) from the date
of forfeiture or surrender until payment and the Directors may at their absolute discretion
enforce payment without any allowance for the value of the shares at the time of forfeiture
or surrender or for any consideration received on their disposal or waive payment in whole
or in part.

Lien on partly-paid shares

The Company shall have a first and paramount tien on every share (not being a fully paid
share) for all moneys (whether presently payable or not) called or payable at a fixed time in
respect of such share and the Directors may waive any lien which has arisen and may
resclve that any share shall for some limited period be exempt wholly or partially from the
provisions of this Article.

Sale of shares subject to lien

The Company may sell in such manner as the Directors think fit any share on which the
Company has a lien, but no sale shall be made unless some sum in respect of which the
lien exists is presently payable nor until the expiration of 14 days after a notice in writing
stating and demanding payment of the sum presently payable and giving notice of intention
to sell in default shall have been given to the holder for the time being of the share or the
person entitled thereto by reason of his death or bankruptcy or otherwise by operation of
law.

Proceeds of sale of shares subject to lien

The net proceeds of such sale after payment of the costs of such sale shall be applied in or
towards payment or satisfaction of the amount in respect whereof the lien exists so far as
the same is then payable and any residue shall, upon surrender to the Company for
cancellation of the certificate for the shares sold and subject to a like lien for sums not
presently payable as existed upon the shares prior to the sale, be paid to the person
entitled to the shares at the time of the sale. For the purpose of giving effect to any such
sale the Directors may authorise some person to transfer the shares sold to, or in
accordance with the directions of, the purchaser.

Evidence of forfeiture

A statutory declaration in writing that the declarant is a Director or the Secretary of the
Company and that a share has been duly forfeited or surrendered or sold to satisfy a lien
of the Company on a date stated in the declaration shall be conclusive evidence of the
facts therein stated as against all persons claiming to be entitled to the share. Such
declaration shall (subject to the execution of a transfer if the same be required) constitute a
good title to the share and the person to whom the share is sold, reallotted or disposed of
shall be registered as the holder of the share and shall not be bound to see to the
application of the consideration (if any) nor shall his title to the share be affected by any
irregularity or invalidity in the proceedings relating to the forfeiture, surrender, sale,
reallotment or disposal of the share.
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Transfer of Shares

33 Form of transfer

All transfers of shares which are in certificated form may be effected by transfer in writing
in any usua! or common form or in any other form acceptable to the Directors and may bs
under hand only. The instrument of transfer shall be signed by or on behalf of the
transferor and {except in the case of fully paid shares) by or on behalf of the transferee.
The transferor shall remain the holder of the shares concerned until the name of the
transferee is entered in the Register of Members in respect thereof. All instruments of
transfer which are registered may be retained by the Company.

33.1 Al transfers of shares which are in uncertificated form may be effected by means of a
relevant system.

33.2 The registration of transfers may be suspended at such times and for such periods as the
Directors may from time to time determine and either generally or in respect of any class of
shares. The Register of Members shall not be closed for more than 30 days in any year.

34 Right to refuse registration
341 The Directors may decline to recognise any instrument of transfer unless:
{a) it is in respect of only one class of share;

{b) it is lodged at the Transfer Office accompanied by the relevant share certificate(s),
and

(c) when lodged at the Transfer Office it is accompanied by such other evidence as the
Directors may reasonably require to show the right of the transferor to make the
transfer (or, if the instrument of transfer is executed by some other person on his
behalf, the authority of that person to do so).

In the case of a transfer by a recognised clearing house or a nominee of a recognised
clearing house or of a recognised investment exchange the lodgment of share certificates
will only be necessary if and to the extent that ceriificates have been issued in respect of
the shares in question.

34.2 The Directors may in their absolute discretion refuse to register any transfer of shares (not
being fully paid shares) provided that, where any such shares are admitted to the Official
List, such discretion may not be exercised in such a way as to prevent dealings in the
shares of that class from taking place on an open and proper basis. The Directors may
also refuse to register an allotment or transfer of shares (whether fully paid or not) in favour
of more than four persons jointly.

34.3 If the Directors refuse to register an allotment or transfer they shall as soon as practicable
and in any event within two months after the date on which:

(a) the letter of allotment or instrument of transfer was lodged with the Company in the
case of shares held in certificated form); or

(b) the Operator-instruction was received by the Company (in the case of shares held
in uncertificated form);
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send to the allottee or transferee notice in writing of the refusal giving reasons for the
refusal.

No fee on registration

No fee will be charged by the Company in respect of the registration of any instrument of
transfer or other document relating to or affecting the title to any shares or otherwise for
making any entry in the Register of Members affecting the title to any shares.

Destruction of Documents

Subject to compliance with the rules (as defined in the Regulations) applicable to shares of
the Company in uncertificated form, the Company shall be entitled to destroy:

(a) all instruments of transfer or other documents which have been registered or on the
basis of which registration was made at any time after the expiration of six years
from the date of registration thergof

(b) all dividend mandates and notifications of change of address at any time after the
expiration of two years from the date of recording thereof; and

{c) all share certificates which have been cancelled at any time after the expiration of
one year from the date of the cancellation thereof.

It shall conclusively be presumed in favour of the Company that:

(a) every entry in the Register purporting to have been made on the basis of an
instrument of transfer or other document so destroyed was duly and properly
made;

(b) every instrument of transfer so destroyed was a valid and effective instrument duly
and properly registered;

{(c) every share certificate so destroyed was a valid and effective certificate duly and
properly cancelled; and

(d) every other document hereinbefore mentioned so destroyed was a valid and
effective document in accordance with the recorded particulars thereof in the books
or records of the Company.

For the purposes of this Article:

(a) the provisions aforesaid shall apply only to the destruction of a document in good
faith and without notice of any claim (regardless of the parties thereto) to which the
document might be relevant;

{b) nothing herein contained shall be construed as imposing upon the Company any
liability in respect of the destruction of any such document earlier than as aforesaid
or in any other circumstances which would not attach to the Company in the
absence of this Article; and

(c) references herein to the destruction of any document include references to the
disposal thereof in any manner. '
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Further provisions on shares in uncertificated form

Subject to the Statutes and the rules (as defined in the Regulations), the Directors may
determine that any class of shares may be held in uncertificated form and that title to such
shares may be transferred by means of a relevant system or that shares of any class
should cease to be held and transferred as aforesaid.

The provisions of these Articles shall not apply to shares of any class which are in
uncertificated form to the extent that such Articles are inconsistent with:

(a) the holding of shares of that class in uncertificated form;
(b) the transfer of title to shares of that class by means of a relevant system; or

(c) any provision of the Regulations.

Transmission of Shares

Persons entitled on death

In case of the death of a member, the survivors or survivor where the deceased was a joint
member, and the executors or administrators of the deceased where he was a sole or anly
surviving holder of the shares, shall be the only persons recognised by the Company as
having any title to his interest in the shares, but nothing in this Article shall release the
estate of a deceased member (whether a sole or joint member) from any liability in respect
of any share held by him.

Election by persons entitled by transmission

Any person becoming entitled to a share in consequence of the death or bankruptcy of a
member or otherwise by operation of law may (subject as hereinafter provided) upon
supplying to the Campany such evidence as the Directors may reasonably require to show
his title to the share either be registered himself as holder of the share upon giving to the
Company notice in writing of such his desire or transfer such share to some other person.
All the limitations, restrictions and provisions of these Articles relating to the right to
transfer and the registration of transfers of shares shall be applicable to any such notice or
transfer as aforesaid as if the notice or transfer were a transfer executed by the member
registered as the holder of any such share,

Rights of persons entitled by transmission

Save as otherwise provided by or in accordance with these Articles, a person becoming
entitied to a share in consequence of the death or bankruptcy of a member or otherwise by
operation of law (upon supplying to the Company such evidence as the Directors may
reascnably require to show his title to the share) shall be entitled to the same dividends
and other advantages as those to which be would be entitted if he were the registered
holder of the share except that he shall not he entitied in respect thereof (except with the
authority of the Directors) to exercise any right conferred by membership in relation to
meetings of the Company until he shall have been registered as a member in respect of
the share.
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Untraced Shareholders

Untraced Shareholders

The Company shall be entitled to sell at the best price reasonably obtainable at the time of
sale the shares of a member or the shares to which a person is entitled by virtue of
transmission on death or bankruptcy or otherwise by operation of law if and provided that:

{(a) during the period of 12 years prior to the date of the publication of the
advertisements referred to in Article 41.1(b) below {or, if published on different
dates, the first thereof) no communication has been received by the Company from
the member or the person entitled by transmission and no cheque or warrant sent
by the Company through the post in a prepaid letter addressed to the member or to
the person entitled by transmission to the shares at his address on the Register or
the last known address given by the member or the person entitled by transmission
to which cheques and warrants are to be sent has been cashed and at least three
dividends in respect of the shares in question have become payable and no
dividend in respect of those shares has been claimed; and

{b) the Company shall on expiry of the said period of 12 years have inserted
advertisements in both a leading London daily newspaper and in a newspaper
circulating in the area in which the address referred to in Article 41.1(a) above is
located giving notice of its intention to sell the said shares; and

(c) during the said period of 12 years and the period of three months following the
publication of the said advertisements the Company shall have received no
communication from such member or person; and

{d) notice shall have been given to the Quotations Department of The Stock Exchange
in London of its intention to make such sale.

To give effect to any such sale the Company may appoint any person to execute as
transferor an instrument of transfer of the said shares and such instrument of transfer shall
be as effective as if it had been executed by the registered member or the person entitled
by transmission to such shares and the title of the transferee shall not be affected by any
irregularity or invalidity in the proceedings relating thereto. The net proceeds of sale shall
belong to the Company which shall be obliged to account to the former member or other
person previously entitled as aforesaid for an amount equal to such proceeds and shall
enter the name of such former member or other person in the books of the Company as a
creditor for such amount which shall be a permanent debt of the Company. No trust shall
be created in respect of the debt, no interest shall be payable in respect of the same and
the Company shall not be required to account for any money earned on the net proceeds,
which may be employed in the business of the Company or invested in such investments
(other than shares of the Company or its halding company if any) as the Directors may
from time to time think fit.

In the case of shares in uncertificated form, the foregoing provisions of this Article are
subject to any restrictions applicable under the Regulations.
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General Meetings

42  Annual General Meetings
An Annual General Meeting shall be held in each period of 6 months beginning with the
day following the Company’s accounting reference date, at such place, date and time as
may be determined by the Directors.

43 Convening of General Meetings
The Directors may whenever they think fit, and shall on requisition in accordance with the
Statutes, proceed to convene a General Meeting.

Notice of General Meetings

44 Notice of General Meetings

441 An Annual General Meeting shall be called by notice of at least 21 days.

44.2 Any other General Meeting shall be called by notice of at least 14 days.

44.3 The period of notice shall in either case be exclusive of the day on which it is served or
deemed to be served and of the day on which the meeting is to be held and shall be given
in the manner hereinafter mentioned to all members other than such as are not under the
pravisions of these Articles entitied to receive such notices from the Company.

44.4 A General Meeting, notwithstanding that it has been called by a shorter notice than that
specified above, shall be deemed to have been duly called if it is so agreed:

(a) in the case of an Annual General Meeting by all the members entitled to attend and
vote thereat; and

(b) in the case of any other General Meeting by a majerity in number of the members
having a right to attend and vote thereat, being a majority together holding not less
than 95 per cent. in nominal value of the shares giving that right.

45 Contents of notice of General Meetings

451 Every notice calling a General Meeting shall specify the place, date and time of the
meeting.

45.2 There shall appear with reasonable prominence in every such notice a statement that:

(a) a member is entitied to appoint another person as his proxy to exercise all or any
of his rights to attend and to speak and vote; and
(b} that a proxy need not be a member of the Company.

453 In the case of an Annual General Meeting, the notice shall also specify the mesting as
such,

45.4 For the purposes of determining which persons are entitled to attend or vote at a meeting,
and how many votes such persons may cast, the Company may specify in the notice of the
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46.3

46.4

46.5

47

48

49

meeting a time, not more than 48 hours before the time fixed for the meeting, by which a
person must be entered on the Register in order to have the right to attend or vote at the
meeting.

In the case of any General Meeting at which business other than routine business is to be
transacted, the notice shall specify the general nature of such business; and if any
resolution is to be proposed as a Special Resolution, the notice shall contain a statement
to that effect.

Routine Business

For the purposes of Article 45.5 above, routine business shall mean and include only
business transacted at an Annual General Meeting of the following classes, that is to say:

declaring dividends;

receiving and/or adopting the accounts, the reports of the Directors and Auditors and other
documents required to be attached or annexed to the accounts;

appointing or reappointing Directors to fill vacancies arising at the meeting on retirement
whether by rotation or otherwise;

reappointing the retiring Auditors (unless they were last appointed otherwise than by the
Company in General Meeting); and

fixing the remuneration of the Auditors or determining the manner in which such
remuneration is to be fixed.

Proceedings at General Meetings

Chairman

The Chairman of the Directors, failing whom the Senior Independent Director, shall preside
as chairman at a General Meeting. If neither the Chairman nor the Senior Independent
Director are present within five minutes after the time appointed for holding the meeting or
neither the Chairman nor the Senior Independent Director are willing to act as chairman,
the Directors present shall choose one of their number {or, if no Director be present or if all
the Directors present decline to take the chair, a member may he elected to be the
chairman by an Ordinary Resolution of the Company passed at the meeting.

Quorum

No business shall be transacted at any General Meeting unless a quorum is present at the
time when the meeting proceeds to business. Two members present in person or by proxy
and entitled to vote shall be a quorum for all purposes.

Lack of quorum

If within five minutes from the time appointed for a General Meeting (or such longer interval
as the chairman of the meeting may think fit to allow} a quorum is not present, the meeting,
if convened on the requisition of members, shall be dissolved. In any other case it shall
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stand adjourned to such other day and such time and place as may have been specified
for the purpose in the notice convening the meeting or (if not so specified) as the chairman
of the meeting may determine and in the latter case not less than seven days’ notice of the
adjourned meeting shall be given in like manner as in the case of the original meeting. At
the adjourned meeting two members present in person or by proxy and entitled to vote
shall be a quorum for all purposes.

Adjournment

The chairman of any General Meeting at which a quorum is present may with the consent
of the meeting (and shall if so directed by the meeting) adjourn the meeting from time to
time {or until a time to be fixed at a later date) and from place to place, but no business
shall be transacted at any adjourned meeting except business which might lawfully have
been transacted at the meeting from which the adjournment took place. Where a meeting
is adjourned until a time to be fixed at a later date, the time and place for the adjourned
meeting shall be fixed by the Directors.

Notice of adjourned meeting

When a meeting is adjourned for 30 days or more or until a time to be fixed at a later date,
not less than seven days' notice of the adjourned meeting shall be given in like manner as
in the case of the original meeting. Save as expressly provided in these Articles, it shall not
be necessary to give any notice of an adjournment or of the business to be transacted at
an adjourned meeting.

Amendments to resolutions

If an amendment shall be proposed to any resolution under consideration but shall in good
faith be ruled out of order by the chairman of the meeting the proceedings on the
substantive resolution shall not be invalidated by any error in such ruling. In the case of a
resolution duly proposed as a Special Resolution no amendment thereto (other than a
mere clerical amendment to correct a patent error) may in any event be considered or
voted upon.

Polls

Demand for poll

At any General Meeting a resolution put to the vote of the meeting shall be decided on a
show of hands unless a poll is (before or on the declaration of the result of the show of
hands)} demanded by:

{a) the chairman of the meeting; or
{b) not less than three members present in person or by proxy and entitled to vote; or

{c) a member or members present in person or by proxy and representing not less
than one-tenth of the total voting rights of all the members having the right to vote
at the meeting; or
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{d) a member or members present in person or by proxy and holding shares in the
Company conferring a right to vote at the meeting being shares on which an
aggregate sum has been paid up equal to not less than one-tenth of the total sum
paid up on all the shares conferring that right.

A demand for a poll may be withdrawn only with the approval of the meeting. Unless a poll
is demanded a declaration by the chairman of the meeting that a resolution has been
carried, or carried unanimously, or by a particular majority, or lost, and an entry to that
effect in the minute book, shall be conclusive evidence of that fact without proof of the
number of proportion or the votes recorded for or against such resolution.

Procedure on a poll

If a poll is demanded, it shal! be taken in such manner (including the use of ballot or voting
papers or tickets) as the chairman of the meeting may direct, and the result of the poll shall
be deemed to be the resolution of the meeting at which the poll was demanded. The
chairman of the meeting may (and if so directed by the meeting shall) appoint scrutineers
and may adjourn the meeting to some place and time fixed by him for the purpose of
declaring the resulit of the poll.

Timing of poll

A poll demanded on the choice of a chairman or on a question of adjournment shall be
taken forthwith. A poll demanded on any other question shall be taken either immediately
or at such subsequent time (not being more than 30 days from the date of the meeting)
and place as the chairman may direct. No notice need be given of a poll nor taken
immediately. The demand for a pall shall not prevent the continuance of the meeting for the
transaction of any business other than the question on which the poll has been demanded.

Votes of Members

Votes attaching to shares

Subject to any special rights or restrictions as to voting attached by or in accordance with
these Articles to any class of shares:

(a) on a show of hands every member who is present in person and every proxy
present who has been duly appointed by a member entitted to vote on the
resolution shall have one vote; and

{b) on a poll, every member who is present in person or by proxy shall have one vote
for every share of which he is the holder.

Votes of joint members

In the case of joint members the vote of the senior who tenders a vote, whether in person
or by proxy, shall be accepted to the exclusion of the votes of the other joint members and
for this purpose seniority shall be determined by the order in which the names stand in the
Register of Members in respect of the share.
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58  Voting by guardian

Where in England or elsewhere a receiver or other person (by whatever name called) has
been appointed by any court claiming jurisdiction in that behalf to exercise powers with
respect to the property or affairs of any member on the ground (however formulated) of
mental disorder, the Directors may in their absolute discretion, upon or subject to
production of such evidence of the appointment as the Directors may require, permit such
receiver or other person on behalf of such member to vote in person or by proxy at any
General Meeting or to exercise any other right conferred by membership in relation to
meetings of the Company. '

59 Restriction on voting in particular circumstances

59.1 No member shall, unless the Directors otherwise determine, be entitled in respect of any
share held by him to vote either personally or by proxy at a General Meeting or a meeting
of the holders of any class of shares of the Company or o exercise any other right
conferred by membership in relation to General Meetings of the Company or meetings of
the holders of any class of shares of the Company if any call or other sum presently
payable by him to the Company in respect of that share remains unpaid.

59.2 If any member, or any other person appearing to be interested in shares (within the
meaning of Part 22 of the Companies Act 2006} held by such member, has been duly
served with a notice under Section 793 of the Companies Act 2006 and is in default for the
prescribed period in supplying to the Company the information thereby required, then
{unless the Directors otherwise determine) in respect of:

(a) the shares comprising the shareholding account in the Register of Members which
comprises or includes the shares in relation to which the default occurred (all or the
relevant number as appropriate of such shares being the “default shares” which
expression shall include any further shares which are issued in respect of such
shares after the date of the notice under Section 793 of the Companies Act 2008);
and

(b) any other shares held by the member,

the member shall not {for so long as the default continues) nor shall any transferee to
which any of such shares are transferred other than pursuant to an approved transfer or
pursuant to Article 59.3(b) below be entitled to vote either personally or by proxy at a
General Meeting of the Company or a meeting of the holders of any class of shares of the
Company or to exercise any other right conferred by membership in relation to General
Meetings of the Company or meetings of the holders of any class of shares of the
Company.

59.3 Where the default shares represent at least 0.25 per cent of the issued shares of the class
in question, the Directors may in their absolute discretion by notice (a “direction notice”)
to such member direct that:

(a) any dividend or part thereof or other money which would otherwise be payable in
respect of the default shares shall be retained by the Company without any liability
to pay interest thereon when such money is finally paid to the member and the
member shall not be entitled to elect to receive shares in lieu of dividend; andfor
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{b) no transfer of any of the shares held by such member shall be registered unless
the transfer is an approved transfer or:

(i) the member is not himself in default as regards supplying the information
required; and

{ii) the transfer is of part only of the member’s holding and, when presented for
registration, is accompanied by a certificate by the member in a form
satisfactory to the Directors to the effect that after due and careful enquiry
the member is satisfied that none of the shares the subject of the transfer
are default shares,

provided that, in the case of shares in uncertificated form, the Directors may only
exercise their discretion not to register a transfer if permitted to do so by the
Regulations.

Any direction notice may treat shares of a member in certificated and uncertificated
form as separate holdings and either apply only to the former or to the latter or
make different provision for the former and the latter.

Upon the giving of a direction notice its terms shall apply accordingly.

The Company shall send to each other person appearing to be interested in the shares the
subject of any direction notice a copy of the notice, but the failure or omission by the
Company to do so shall not invalidate such notice.

Save as herein provided any direction notice shall have effect in accordance with its terms
for so long as the default in respect of which the direction notice was issued continues and
shall cease to have effect thereafter upon the Directors so determining (such determination
to be made within a period of one week of the default being duly remedied with written
notice thereof being given forthwith to the member).

Any direction notice shall cease to have effect in relation to any shares which are
transferred by such member by means of any approved transfer or in accordance with
Article 59.3(b) above.

For the purposes of this Article:

(a) a person shall be treated as appearing to be interested in any shares if the
member holding such shares has been served with a notice under the said Section
793 and either:

(i) the member has named such person as being so interested; or

(i) (after taking into account the response of the member to the said notice
and any other relevant information) the Company knows or has reasonable
cause to believe that the person in question is or may be interested in the
shares;

(b) the prescribed period is 28 days from the date of service of the notice under the
said Section 793 except that if the shares in respect of which the said notice is
given represent at teast 0.25 per cent. of the issued shares of that class at the time
of the giving of the relevant notice under the said Section 793, the prescribed
period is 14 days from such date; and

{c) a transfer of shares is an approved transfer if:
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(i) it is a transfer of shares to an offeror by way or in pursuance of acceptance
of a takeover offer for a company (as defined in Section 974 of the
Companies Act 2006); or

{ii) the Directors are satisfied that the transfer is made pursuant to a bona fide
sale of the whole of the beneficial ownership of the shares to a party
unconnected with the member or with any person appearing to be
interested in such shares including any such sale made through The Stock
Exchange or any other recognised investment exchange or any stock
exchange outside the United Kingdom on which the Company’s shares are
normally traded. For the purposes of this sub-paragraph any associate (as
that term is defined in Section 435 of the Insolvency Act 1986) shall be
included amongst the persons who are connected with the member or any
person appearing to be interested in such shares.

The provisions of this Article are in addition and without prejudice to the provisions of the
Companies Acls.

Validity and result of vote

No objection shall be raised as to the admissibility of any vote or the correctness of the
result of any voting upon a resolution except at the meeting or adjourned meeting at which
the vote objected to is or may be given or tendered or the resolution passed and every
vote not disallowed at such meeting and every resolution declared thereat to be passed
shall be valid for all purposes. Any such objection shall be referred to the chairman of the
meeting whose decision shall be final and conclusive.

Proxies and Corporate Representatives

Appointment of proxies

On a poli votes may be given either personally or by proxy and a person entitled to more
than one vote need not use all his votes or cast all the votes he uses in the same way.

A proxy need not be a member of the Company.

Multiple Proxies

A member may appoint more than one proxy in refation to a meeting provided that each
proxy is appointed to exercise the rights attached to a different share or shares held by
him.

Form of proxy

The appointment of a proxy must be in writing in any usual or common form or in any other
form which the Directors may approve and:

{c) in the case of an individual must either be signed by the appointor or his attorney
or authenticated in accordance with Article 132; and
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{d) in the case of a corporation must be either given under its common seal or be
signed on its behalf by an attorney or a duly authorised officer of the corporation or
authenticated in accordance with Article 132.

Any signature on or authentication of such appointment need not be witnessed. Where an
appointment of a proxy is signed or authenticated in accordance with Article 132 on behalf
of the appointor by an attorney, the power of attorney or a copy thereof certified notarially
or in some cther way approved by the Directors must (failing previous registration with the
Company) be submitted to the Company, failing which the appeintment may be treated as
invalid.

Deposit of form of proxy

The appointment of a proxy (together with any supporting documentation required under
Article 63) must be received at the address or one of the addresses (if any) specified for
that purpose in, or by way of note to, or in any document accompanying, the notice
convening the meeting {or if no address is so specified, at the Transfer Office):

{a) in the case of a meeting or adjourned meeting, not less than 48 hours before the
commencement of the meeting or adjourned meeting to which it relates;

{b) in the case of a poll taken following the conclusion of a meeting or adjourned
meeting, but not more than 48 hours after the poll was demanded, not less than 48
hours before the commencement of the meeting or adjourned meeting at which the
poll was demanded; and

{c) in the case of a poll taken more than 48 hours after it was demanded, not less than
24 hours before the time appointed for the taking of the poll;

and in default shall not be treated as valid.

The Directors may at their discretion determine that, in calculating the periods mentioned
in Article 64.1, no account shall be taken of any part of any day that is not a working day
{within the meaning of Section 1173 of the Companies Act 2006).

Without limiting the foregoing, in relation to any shares in uncertificated form the Directors
may permit a proxy to be appointed by electronic means or by means of a website in the
form of an Uncertificated Proxy Instruction (that is, a properly authenticated dematerialised
instruction, and/or other instruction or notification, sent by means of a relevant system to
such participant in that system acting on behalf of the Company as the Directors may
prescribe, in such form and subject to such terms and conditions as may from time to time
be prescribed by the Directors (subject always to the facilities and requirements of the
relevant system)); and may permit any supplement to, or amendment or revocation of, any
such Uncertificated Proxy Instruction to be made by a further Uncertificated Proxy
Instruction. The Directors may in addition prescribe the method of determining the time at
which any such instruction or notification is to be treated as received by the Company. The
Directors may treat any such instruction or notification purporting or expressed to be sent
on behalf of a holder of a share as sufficient evidence of the autherity of the person
sending the instruction to send it on behalf of that member,

The appointment of a proxy shall, unless the contrary is stated thereon, be as valid for any
adjournment of a meeting as it is for the meeting to which it relates. An appointment
relating to more than one meeting (including any adjournment of any such meeting) having
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once been delivered in accordance with this Article 64 for the purposes of any such
meeting does not need to be delivered again for the purposes of any subsequent meeting
to which it relates.

Rights of proxy

A proxy shall have the right to exercise all or any of the rights of his appointor, or (where
more than ane proxy is appointed) all or any of the rights attached to the shares in respect
of which he is appointed the proxy to attend, and to speak and vote, at a meeting of the
Company.

Unless his appointment provides otherwise, a proxy may vote or abstain at his discretion
on any resolution put to the vote at a General Meeting of the Company or a meeting of the
holders of a class of shares in the Company.

Termination of proxy’s authority

Neither the death or insanity of a member who has appointed a proxy, nor the revocation
or termination by a member of the appointment of a proxy {(or of the authority under which
the appointment was made), shall invalidate the proxy or the exercise of any of the rights
of the proxy thereunder, unless notice of such death, insanity, revocation or termination
shall have been received by the Company in accordance with Article 66.2.

Any such notice of death, insanity, revocation or termination must be received at the
address or one of the addresses (if any) specified for receipt of proxies in, or by way of
note to, or in any document accompanying, the notice convening the meeting to which the
appointrment of the proxy relates (or if no address is so specified, at the Transfer Office):

(a) in the case of a meeting or adjourned meeting, not less than one hour hefore the
commencement of the meeting or adjourned meeting to which the proxy
appointment relates:

(b) in the case of a poll taken following the conclusion of a meeting or adjourned
meeting, but not more than 48 hours after it was demanded, not less than one hour
before the commencement of the meeting or adjourned meeting at which the poll
was demanded; or

(c) in the case of a poll taken more than 48 hours after it was demanded, not less than
one hour before the time appointed for the taking of the poll.

Corporations acting by Representatives

Corporations acting by representatives

Subject to the Statutes, any corporation which is a member of the Company may by
resolution of its directors or other governing body authorise a person or persons to act as
its representatives at any General Meeting of the Company or a mesting of the holders of
any class of shares of the Company.
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Directors

Number of Directors

Subject as hereinafter provided the Directors shall not be less than three nor more than 15
in number. The Company may by Crdinary Resolution from time to time vary the minimum
number and/or maximum number of Directors.

Share qualification

A Director shall not be required to hold any shares of the Company by way of qualification.
A Director who is not a member of the Company shall nevertheless be entitled to attend
and speak at General Meetings.

Directors’ fees

The ordinary remuneration of the Directors shall from time to time be determined by the
Directors except that such remuneration shall not exceed £300,000 per annum in
aggregate or such higher amount as may from time to time be determined by Ordinary
Resolution of the Company.

Such ordinary remuneration shall {unless otherwise provided by Ordinary Resolution) be
divisible among the Directors as they may agree, or, failing agreement, equally, except that
any Director who shall hold office for part only of the period in respect of which such
remuneration is payable shall be entitied only to rank in such division for a proportion of
remuneration related to the period during which he has held office.

Other remuneration of Directors

Any Director who holds any executive office (including for this purpose the office of
Chairman or Senior Independent Director whether or not such office is held in an executive
capacity), or who serves on any committee of the Directors, or who otherwise performs
services which in the opinion of the Directors are outside the scope of the ordinary duties
of a Director, may be paid such extra remuneration by way of salary, commission or
otherwise or may receive such other benefits as the Directors may determine.

Directors’ expenses

The Directors may repay to any Director all such reasonable expenses as he may incur in
attending and returning from meetings of the Directors or any committee of the Directors or
General Meetings or otherwise in connection with the business of the Company.

Directors’ pensions and other benefits

The Directors shall have power to pay and agree to pay gratuities, pensions or other
retirement, superannuation, death or disability benefits to {(or to any person in respect of)
any Director or ex-Director and for the purpose of providing any such gratuities, pensions
or other benefits to contribute to any scheme or fund or to pay premiums.
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Appointment of executive Directors

The Directors may from time to time appoint one or more of their body to be the holder of
any executive office on such terms and for such period as they may (subject to the
provisions of the Statutes) determine and, without prejudice to the terms of any contract
entered into in any particular case, may at any time revoke or vary the terms of any such
appointment.

The appointment of any Director to the office of Chairman or Senior Independent Director
or Chief Executive shall automatically determine if he ceases to be a Director but without
prejudice to any claim for damages for breach of any contract of service between him and
the Company.

The appointment of any Director to any other executive office shall not automatically
determine if he ceases from any cause to be a Director, unless the contract or resolution
under which he holds office shall expressly state otherwise, in which event such
determination shall be without prejudice to any claim for damages for breach of any
contract of service between him and the Company.

Powers of executive Directors

The Directors may entrust to and confer upoen any Director holding any executive office any
of the powers exercisable by them as Directors upon such terms and conditions and with
such restrictions as they think fit, and either collaterally with or to the exclusion of their own
powers, and may from time to time revoke, withdraw, alter or vary all or any of such
powers.

Appointment and Retirement of Directors

Vacation of office
The office of a Director shall be vacated in any of the following events, namely:
{a) if he shall become prohibited by law from acting as a Director,;

{b) if he shall resign by writing under his hand left at the Office or if he shall in writing
offer to resign and the Directors shall resolve to accept such offer;

{c) if he shall have a bankruptcy order made against him or shall compound with his
creditors generally or shall apply to the court for an interim order under Section 253
of the Insolvency Act 1986 in connection with a voluntary arrangement under that
Act;

{d) if in any jurisdiction an order shall be made by any court claiming jurisdiction in that
behalf on the ground (however formulated) of mental disorder for his detention or
for the appointment of a guardian or for the appointment of a receiver or other
person {by whatever name called) to exercise powers with respect to his property
or affairs;

(e) if he shall be removed from office by notice in writing served upon him signed by all
his co-Directors, but so that if he holds an appointment to an executive office which
thereby automatically determines such removal shall be deemed an act of the
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Company and shall have effect without prejudice to any claim for damages for
breach of any contract of service between him and the Company;

(F) if he is absent from meetings of the Directors for six months without leave, and the
Directors resolve that his office be vacated;

(9) if he is removed from office pursuant to these presents; or

{h) if, being an Executive Director, his employment with the Company andfor its
subsidiaries terminates for whatsoever cause, unless in any case the Directors
otherwise resolve,

Retirement at Annual General Meetings

At each Annual General Meeting all those Directors who were elected or last re-elected at
or before the Annual General Meeting held in the third calendar year before the current
year shall retire from office by rotation.

A retiring Director shall be eligible for re-election.

Re-election of retiring director

The Company at the meeting at which a Director retires under any provision of these
Articles may by Ordinary Resolution fill the office being vacated by electing thereto the
retiring Director or some other person eligible for appeintment. In default the retiring
Director shall be deemed to have been re-elected except in any of the following cases:

(a) where at such meeting it is expressly resolved not to fill such office or a resolution
for the re-election of such Director is put to the meeting and lost;

{b) where such Director has given notice in writing to the Company that he is unwilling
to be re-elected;

{c) where the default is due to the moving of a resolution in contravention of the next
following Article.

The retirement shall not have effect until the conclusion of the meeling except where a
resolution is passed to elect some other person in the place of the retiring Director or a
resolution for his re-election is put to the meeting and lost and accordingly a retiring
Director who is re-elected or deemed to have been re-elected will continue in office without
a break.

Election of two or more Directors

A resolution for the appointment of two or more persons as Directors by a single resolution
shall not be moved at any General Meeting unless a resolution that it shall be so moved
has first been agreed to by the meeting without any vote being given against it; and any
resolution moved in contravention of this provision shall be void.

Nomination of Director for election

No persan other than a Director retiring at the meeting shall, unless recommended by the
Directors for election, be eligible for appointment as a Director at any General Meaeting
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unless not less than seven nor more than 42 days (inclusive of the date on which the
notice is given) before the date appointed for the meeting there shall have been todged at
the Office:

(a) notice in writing signed or authenticated in accordance with Article 132 by a
member (other than the person to be proposed) duly qualified to attend and vote at
the meeting for which such notice is given of his intention to propose such person
for election; and

(b) notice in writing signed (or sufficiently authenticated to the satisfaction of the
Directors) by the person to be proposed of his willingness to be elected.

Removal of Director

The Company may in accordance with and subject to the provisions of the Statutes by
Ordinary Resolution of which special notice has been given remove any Director from
office (notwithstanding any provision of these Articles or of any agreement between the
Company and such Director, but without prejudice to any claim he may have for damages
for breach of any such agreement) and appoint another person in place of a Director so
removed from office. In default of such appointment the vacancy arising upon the removal
of a Director from office may be filled as a casual vacancy.

Election or appointment of additional Director

The Company may by Ordinary Resolution appoint any person to be a Director either to fill
a casual vacancy or as an additional Director. Without prejudice thereto the Directors shall
have power at any time so to do, but so that the total number of Directors shall not thereby
exceed the maximum number (if any) fixed by or in accordance with these Articles. Any
person so appointed by the Directors shall hold office only until the next Annual General
Meeting and shall then be eligible for election.

Alternate Directors

Any Director may at any time by writing under his hand and deposited at the Office, or
delivered at a meeting of the Directors, appoint any person (including another Director) to
be his alternate Director and may in like manner at any time terminate such appointment.
Such appointment, unless previously approved by the Directors, shall have effect only
upon and subject to being so approved.

The appointment of an alternate Director shall determine on the happening of any event
which if he were a Director would cause him to vacate such office or if his appointor
ceases to be a Director.

An alternate Director shall be entitled to receive notices of meetings of the Directors and
shall be entitled to attend and vote as a Director at any such meeting at which the Director
appointing him is not personally present and generally at such meeting to perform all
functions of his appointor as a Director and for the purposes of the proceedings at such
meeting the provisions of these Articles shall apply as if he (instead of his appcintor) were
a Director. If he shall be himself a Director or shall attend any such meeting as an alternate
for more than one Director, his voting rights shall be cumulative. If his appeintor is
temporarily unable to act through ill health or disability his signature to or approval of any
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resolution in writing of the Directors shall be as effective as the signature of his appointor.
To such extent as the Directors may from time to time determine in relation to any
committees of the Directors the foregoing provisions of this paragraph shall also apply
{with any necessary modifications) to any meeting of any such committee of which his
appointor is a member. An alternate Director shall not (save as aforesaid) have power to
act as a Director nor shall he be deemed to be a Director for the purposes of these Articles.

An alternate Director shall be entitled to contract and be interested in and benefit from
contracts or arrangements or transactions and to be repaid expenses and to be
indemnified to the same extent {(with any necessary modifications) as if he were a Director
but he shall not be entitled to receive from the Company in respect of his appointment as
alternate Director any remuneration except only such part {if any) of the remuneration
otherwise payable to his appointor as such appointor may by notice in writing to the
Company from time to time direct.

Meetings and Proceedings of Directors

Convening of meetings of Directors

Subject to the provisions of these Aricles, the Directors may meet together for the
despatch of business, adjourn and otherwise regulate their meetings as they think fit. At
any time any Director may, and the Secretary on the requisition of a Director shall,
summon a meeting of the Directors. Any Director may waive notice of any meeting and any
such waiver may be retroactive.

The Directors, and any committee of the Directors, shall be deemed to meet together if,
being in separate locations, they are nonetheless linked by conference telephone or other
communication equipment which allows those participating to hear and speak to each
other, and a quorum in that event shall be two persons so linked. Such a meeting shall be
deemed to take place where the largest group of those participating is assembled or, if
there is no such group, where the chairman of the meeting then is.

Quorum

The quorum necessary for the transaction of business of the Directors may be fixed from
time to time by the Directors and unless so fixed at any other number shall be two. A
meeting of the Directors at which a quorum is present shall be competent to exercise all
powers and discretions for the time being exercisable by the Directors.

Casting vote

Questions arising at any meeting of the Directors shall be determined by a majority of
votes. In case of an equality of votes, only the Chairman or Senior Independent Director for
the time being of the Company being the chairman of the mesting shall have a second or
casting vote.
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Number of Directors below minimum

The continuing Directors may act notwithstanding any vacancies, but if and so long as the
number of Directors is reduced below the minimum number fixed by or in accordance with
these Articles the continuing Directors or Director may act for the purpose of filling such
vacancies or of summoning General Meetings, but not for any other purpose. If there be no
Directors or Director able or willing to act, then any two members may summon a General
Meeting for the purpose of appointing Directors.

Chairman

The Directors may elect from their number a Chairman and a Senicr Independent Director
and determine the period for which each is to hold office. If no Chairman or Senior
Independent Director shall have been appointed or if at any meeting of the Directors no
Chairman or Senior Independent Director shall be present within five minutes after the time
appointed for holding the meeting, the Directors present may choose one of their number
to be chairman of the meeting.

Directors’ written resolutions

A Directors’ written resolution is adopted when a majority of the Directors entitled to vote
on such resolution have:

{(a) signed one or more copies of it; or
(b) otherwise indicated their agreement to it in writing.

A Directors' written resolution is not adopted if the number of Directors who have signed it
is less than the quorum for Directors’ meetings.

Once a Directors' written resolution has been adopted, it must be treated as if it had been
a resolution passed at a Directors’ meeting in accordance with the Articles.

Appointment and constitution of committees of Directors

The Directors may delegate any of their powers or discretions (including without prejudice
to the generality of the foregoing all powers and discretions whose exercise involves or
may involve the payment of remuneration to or the conferring of any other benefit on all or
any of the Directors) to committees consisting of one or more members of their body and
(if thought fit) one or more other persons co-opted as hereinafter provided. In so far as any
such power or discretion is delegated to a committee any reference in these Articles to the
exercise by the Directors of the power or discretion so delegated shall be read and
construed as if it were a reference to the exercise by such committee. Any committee so
formed shall in the exercise of the powers so delegated conform to any regulaticns which
may from time to time be imposed by the Directors. Any such regulations may provide for
or authorise the co-option to the committee of persons other than Directors and for such
co-opted members to have voting rights as members of the committee but so that:

(a) the number of co-opted members shall be tess than one-half of the total number of
members of the committee; and
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(b) no resolution of the committee shall be effective unless a majority of the members
of the committee present throughout the meeting are Directors.

Proceedings of committee meetings

The meetings and proceedings of any such committee consisting of two or more persons
shall be governed (with any necessary modifications) by the provisions of these Articles
regulating the meetings and proceedings of the Directors, so far as the same are not
superseded by any regulations made by the Directors under the last preceding Article,

Validity of proceedings

All acts done by any meeting of Directors, or of any such committee, or by any person
acting as a member of any such committee, shall, as regards all persons dealing in good
faith with the Company, notwithstanding that there was some defect in the appointment of
any of the persons acting as aforesaid, or that any such persons were disqualified or had
vacated office, or were not entitled to vote, be as valid as if every such person had been
duly appointed and was qualified and had continued to be a Director or member of the
committee and had been entitled to vote.

Directors Interests

Authorisation of Directors’ interests

For the purposes of Section 175 of the Companies Act 2006, the Directors shall have the
power to authorise any matter which would or might otherwise constitute or give rise to a
breach of the duty of a Director under that Section to avoid a situation in which he has, or
can have, a direct or indirect interest that conflicts, or possibly may conflict, with the
interests of the Company.

Authorisation of a matter under this Article shall be effective only if:

(a) the matter in question shall have been proposed in writing for consideration at a
meeting of the Directors, in accordance with the Board's normal procedures or in
such other manner as the Directors may determine;

{b) any requirement as to the quorum at the meeting of the Directors at which the
matter is considered is met without counting the Director in question and any other
interested Director {together the “Interested Directors”); and

{c) the matter was agreed to without the Interested Directors voting or would have
been agreed to if the votes of the Interested Directors had not been counted.

Any authorisation of a matter under this Article shall extend to any actual or potential
conflict of interest which may reasonably be expected to arise out of the matter so
authorised.

Any authorisation of a matter under this Article shall be subject to such conditions or
limitations as the Directors may determine, whether at the time such authorisation is given
or subsequently, and may be terminated by the Directors at any time. A Director shall
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comply with any obligations imposed on him by the Directors pursuant to any such
authorisation.

A Director shall not, save as otherwise agreed by him, be accountable to the Company for
any benefit which he (or a person connected with him) derives from any matter authorised
by the Directors under this Article and any contract, transaction or arrangement relating
thereto shall not be liable to be avoided on the grounds of any such benefit.

94 Directors may have interests

94.1 Subject to compliance with Article 94.2, a Director, notwithstanding his office, may have an
interest of the following kind:

(a) where a Director (or a person connected with him} is a director or other officer of,
or employed by, or otherwise interested (including by the holding of shares) in, any
Relevant Company,

{(b) where a Director (or a person connected with him) is a party to, or otherwise
interested in, any contract, transaction or arrangement with a Relevant Company,
or in which the Company is otherwise interested;

(c) where the Director (or a person connected with him) acts (or any firm of which he is
a partner, employee or member acts} in a professional capacity for any Relevant
Company {other than as Auditor) whether or not he or it is remunerated therefor;

(d) an interest which cannot reasonably be regarded as likely to give rise to a conflict
of interest;

(e) an interest, or a transaction or arrangement giving rise to an interest, of which the
Director is not aware;

) any matter previously authorised under Article 93.1; or

{9) any other interest authorised by Ordinary Resolution.

No authorisation under Article 93 shall be necessary in respect of any such interest.

94.2 The Director shall declare the nature and extent of any interest permitted under Article
94 .1, and not falling within Article 94.3, at a meeting of the Directors or in the manner set
out in Section 184 or 185 of the Companies Act 2006.

94.3 No declaration of an interest shall be required by a Director in relation to an interest:

{(a) falling within paragraph (d), (e) or (f) of Article 94.1;

{b) if, or to the extent that, the other Directors are already aware of such interest (and
for this purpose the other Directors are treated as aware of anything of which they
ought reasonably to be aware); or

(c) if, or to the extent that, it concerns the terms of his service contract (as defined in
Section 227 of the Companies Act 2006) that have been or are to be considered by
a meeting of the Directors, or by a committee of Directors appointed for the
purpose under these Articles.

94.4 A Director shall not, save as otherwise agreed by him, be accountable to the Company for
any benefit which he {or a person connected with him) derives from any such contract,
transaction or arrangement or from any such office or employment or from any interest in
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any Relevant Company or for such remuneration, each as referred to in Article 94.1, and
no such contract, transaction or arrangement shall be liable to be avoided on the grounds
of any such interest or benefit.

For the purposes of this Article, “Relevant Company” shall mean: .
(a) the Company;
(b) a subsidiary undertaking of the Company;

(c) any holding company of the Company or a subsidiary undertaking of any such
holding company;

(d) any body corporate promoted by the Company; or

(e) any body corporate in which the Company is otherwise interested.

Restrictions on quorum and voting

Save as provided in this Article, and whether or not the interest is one which is authorised
pursuant to Article 93 or permitted under Article 94, a Director shall not be entitled to vote
on any resolution in respect of any contract, transaction or arrangement, or any other
proposal, in which he {or a person connected with him) is interested. Any vote of a Director
in respect of a matter where he is not entitled to vote shall be disregarded.

A Director shall not be counted in the quorum for a meeting of the Directors in relation to
any resolution on which he is not entitled to vote.

Subject to the provisions of the Statutes, a Director shall {in the absence of some other
interest than is set out below) be entitled to vote, and be counted in the quorum, in respect
of any resolution concerning any contract, transaction or arrangement, or any other
proposal:

(a) in which he has an interest of which he is not aware;

(b) in which he has an interest which cannot reasonably be regarded as likely to give
rise to a conflict of interest;

(c) in which he has an interest only by virtue of interests in shares, debentures or other
securities of the Company, or by reason of any other interest in or through the
Company;

(d) which involves the giving of any security, guarantee or indemnity to the Director or
any other person in respect of:

(i) money lent or obligations incurred by him or by any other person at the
request of or for the benefit of the Company or any of its subsidiary
undertakings; or

(ii) a debt or other obligation of the Company or any of its subsidiary
undertakings for which he himself has assumed responsibility in whole or in
part under a guarantee or indemnity or by the giving of security;

{e) concerning an offer of shares or debentures or other securities of or by the
Company or any of its subsidiary undertakings
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95.5

{i) in which offer he is or may be entitled to participate as a holder of
securities; or

ii) in the underwriting or sub-underwriting of which he is to participate;

3 concerning any other body corporate in which he is interested, directly or indirectly
and whether as an officer, shareholder, creditor, employee or otherwise, provided
that he (together with persons connected with him) is not the holder of, or
beneficially interested in, one per cent or more of the issued equity share capital of
any class of such body corporate or of the voting rights available to members of the
relevant body corporate;

() relating to an arrangement for the benefit of the employees or former employees of
the Company or any of its subsidiary undertakings which does not award him any
privilege or benefit not generally awarded to the employees or former employees to
whom such arrangement relates;

{n) concerning the purchase or maintenance by the Company of insurance for any
liability for the benefit of Directors or for the benefit of persons who include
Directors;

(i) concerning the giving of indemnities in favour of Directors;
(i) concerning the funding of expenditure by any Director or Directors on:

(i) defending criminal, civil or regulatory proceedings or actions against him or
them;

(i) in cannection with an application to the court for relief; or
(iii) defending him or them in any regulatory investigations;

{k) concerning the doing of anything to enable any Director or Directors to avoid
incurring expenditure as described in paragraph (j); and

{H in respect of which his interest, or the interest of Directors generally, has been
authorised by Ordinary Resolution.

Where proposals are under consideration concerning the appoiniment (including fixing or
varying the terms of appointment) of two or more Directors to offices or employments with
the Company (or any body corporate in which the Company is interested), the proposals
may be divided and considered in relation to each Director separately. In such case, each
of the Directors concerned (if not debarred from voting under paragraph (f) of Article 95.3)
shall be entitled to vote, and be counted in the quorum, in respect of each resolution
except that concerning his own appointment or the fixing or variation of the terms thereof.

If a question arises at any time as to whether any interest of a Director prevents him from
voting, or being counted in the quorum, under this Aricle, and such question is not
resolved by his voluntarily agreeing to abstain from voting, such question shall be referred
to the chairman of the meeting and his ruling in relation to any Director other than himself
shall be final and conclusive, except in a case where the nature or extent of the interest of
such Director has not been fairly disclosed. If any such question shall arise in respect of
the chairman of the meeting, the question shall be decided by resolution of the Directors
and the resolution shall be conclusive except in a case where the nature or extent of the
interest of the chairman of the meeting (so far as it is known to him) has not been fairly
disclosed to the Directors.

A09045029/0,2/26 Feb 2008

-43-



96
96.1

96.2

96.3

97
97.1

97.2

97.3

Confidential information

Subject to Article 96.2, if a Director, otherwise than by virtue of his position as Director,
receives information in respect of which he owes a duty of confidentiality to a person other
than the Company, he shall not be required:

(a) to disclose such information to the Company or to the Directors, or to any Director,
officer or employee of the Company; or

{b) otherwise use or apply such confidential information for the purpose of or in
connection with the performance of his duties as a Director.

Where such duty of confidentiality arises out of a situation in which the Director has, or ¢an
have, a direct or indirect interest that conflicts, or possibly may conflict, with the interests of
the Company, Article 96.1 shall apply only if the conflict arises out of a matter which has
been authorised under Article 93 above or falls within Article 94 above.

This Article is without prejudice to any equitable principle or rule of law which may excuse
or release the Director from disclosing information, in circumstances where disclosure may
otherwise he required under this Article.

Directors’ interests - general

For the purposes of Articles 93 to 97:

(a) an interest of a person who is connected with a Director shall be treated as an
interest of the Director; and

(b) Section 252 of the Companies Act 2006 shall determine whether a person is
connected with a Director.

Where a Director has an interest which can reasonably be regarded as likely to give rise to
a conflict of interest, the Director may, and shall if so requested by the Directors take such
additional steps as may be necessary or desirable for the purpose of managing such
conflict of interest, including compliance with any procedures laid down from time to time
by the Directors for the purpose of managing conflicts of interest generally and/or any
specific procedures approved by the Directors for the purpose of or in connection with the
situation or matter in question, including without limitation:

(a) absenting himself from any meetings of the Directors at which the relevant situation
or matter falls to be considered; and ‘

(b) not reviewing documents or information made available to the Directors generally
in relation to such situation or matter and/or arranging for such documents or
information to be reviewed by a professional adviser to ascertain the extent to
which it might be appropriate for him to have access to such documents or
information.

The Company may by Ordinary Resolution ratify any contract, transaction or arrangement,
or other proposal, not properly authorised by reason of a contravention of any provisions of
Articles 93 to 97.
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Powers of Directors

Borrowing Powers

Subject as hereinafter provided and to the provisions of the Statutes, the Directors may
exercise all the powers of the Company to borrow money and to mortgage or charge all or
any part of its undertaking, property and uncalled capital and to issue debentures and other
securities whether outright or as collateral security for any debt, liability or obligation of the
Company or of any third party.

The Directors shall restrict the borrowings of the Company and exercise all voting and
other rights or powers of control exercisable by the Company in relation to its subsidiaries
(if any) so as to secure (but as regards its subsidiaries only in so far as by the exercise of
such rights or powers of control the Directors can secure) that the aggregate of the
amounts for the time being remaining undischarged of all moneys borrowed by the Group
and for the time being owing to persons outside the Group shall not without the previcus
sanction of an Ordinary Resolution of the Company at any time exceed an amount equal to
twice the Adjusted Capital and Reserves.

No person dealing with the Company or any of its subsidiaries shall by reason of the
foregoing provision be concerned to see or enquire whether the limit is observed and no
debt incurred or security given in excess of such limit shall be invalid or ineffectual unless
the lender or the recipient of the security had at the time when the debt was incurred or the
security given express notice that the limit hereby imposed had been or would thereby be
exceeded.

When the aggregate amount of borrowings required to be taken into account for the
purposes of this Article on any particular day is fo be ascertained, any such borrowings
denominated or repayable in a currency other than sterling shall be converted for the
purposes of calculating the sterling equivalent at the rate of exchange prevailing on that
day in London. Provided that any of such borrowings shall be converted at the rate of
exchange prevailing in London six months before such day if thereby such aggregate
amount would be less (and so that for this purpose the rate of exchange shall be taken as
the middle market rate at the close of business as quoted to the Company by such London
clearing bank as it may choose).

If immediately after and as a result only of the acquisition by the Company or any
subsidiary of immovable property subject fo a mortgage or charge, or of a subsidiary with
borrowings outstanding at the date of acquisition, the aggregate principal amount to be
taken into account above exceeds the limit imposed by this Article, such acquisition shall
not constitute a breach thereof if within 12 months of the acquisition the aggregate nominal
or principal amount to be taken into account as aforesaid is reduced to an amount not
exceeding such limit,

A certificate or report by the Auditors as to the amount of the Adjusted Capital and
Reserves or the amount of any borrowings or to the effect that the limit imposed by this
Article has not been or will not be exceeded at any particular time or times shall be
conclusive evidence of such amount or fact for the purposes of this Article.
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98.7 For the purposes of this Article 98:

(a) the “Adjusted Capital and Reserves” means at any material time the amount as
certified by the Auditors of the Company (the “Auditors™) paid up or credited as
paid up on the share capital of the Company plus the aggregate of the amounts
standing to the credit of the capital and revenue reserves including share premium
account and capital redemption reserve and plus or minus the amount standing to
the credit or debit (as the case may be) of the profit and loss accounts of the
Company and its subsidiaries, all as shown in the then latest audited consolidated
balance sheets of the Company and its subsidiaries but:

(i adjusted as may be appropriate to take account of:

(@) any increase in or reduction of the paid-up share capital and any
variation in such capital and revenue reserves (other than profit and
loss accounts) since the date of the relevant audited balance sheets
and any distribution declared, recommended or made by the
Company or its subsidiaries (to the extent not attributable directly or
indirectly to the Company) out of profits earned up to and including
the date of the relevant balance sheet to the extent that such
distribution is not provided for in such balance sheet; and

{b) any companies which since such date have ceased to be or have
become subsidiaries and any companies which will become or will
cease to be subsidiaries as a result of the transaction in relation to
which the caiculation falls to be made;

(i} excluding any sums set aside for taxation (including deferred taxation);

(i) excluding any amounts attributable to minority interests in subsidiaries or
associates; and

{iv) after making such other adjustments (if any) as the Auditors may consider
appropriate.

(b) “borrowings” shall be deemed to include the following except in sc far as
otherwise taken into account:

{i) the principal amount for the ttme being owing in respect of any debenture
within the meaning of Section 738 of the Companies Act 2006;

(i) the principal amount raised by the Company or a subsidiary by
acceptances under any acceptance credit opened on its behalf by any
bank or accepting house, not being acceptances in relation to the purchase
or sale of goods in the ordinary course of trading;

(i) the nominal amount of any issued share capital and the principal amount of
any moneys borrowed, the redemption or repayment of which is
guaranteed or secured by the Company or a subsidiary and the beneficial
interest in which is not owned by the Company or a subsidiary;

(iv) the nominal amount of any issued share capital (not being equity share
capital}) of a subsidiary owned otherwise than by the Company or a
subsidiary; and
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(c)
(d)

(e)

(v) any fixed or minimum premium payable on final repayment of any
borrowing or deemed borrowing;

but shall not include:

(i) the proportion of the total moneys borrowed by a partly-owned subsidiary
(otherwise than from the Company or anocther subsidiary) which
corresponds to the proportion of its equity share capital not atiributable
directly or indirectly to the Company but only to the extent that such
proportion exceeds any moneys borrowed from such partly-owned
subsidiary by the Company or another subsidiary; or

(i) amounts borrowed for the purpose of repaying the whole or any part of any
moneys borrowed by the Company or a subsidiary (other than from a
subsidiary or the Company and other than moneys falling within Article
98.5) and for the time being outstanding (including any fixed or minimum
premium payable on final repayment) and intended to be applied for that
purpose within six months of the borrowing thereof (pending their being so
applied); or

i) moneys borrowed from bankers or others for the purpose of financing any
contract in respect of which any part of the price receivable is guaranteed
or insured by the Export Credits Guarantee Department of the Department
of Trade, or any institution in the opinion of the Directors carrying on simitar
business, to an amount not exceeding that part of the price receivable
thereunder which is so guaranteed or insured; or

(iv) amounts borrowed or raised which are for the time being deposited with
HM Customs and Excise or any other body designated by any relevant
legislation or order in connection with import deposits or any similar
governmental scheme to the extent that the Company or any of its
subsidiaries retains its interest therein.

Non-recourse debt that is secured solely on the assets of a Project Special
Purpose Company shall not fall to be included as borrowings of the Group by virtue
of its being borrowings of either a member of the Group or of an associate of the
Company.

“Group” means and includes the Company and its subsidiaries for the time being;

“Non-recourse debt” means any debt owed by a Project Special Purpose
Company and in respect of which no member of the Group or associate of the
Group, other than a Project Special Purpose Company, has any direct liability for
repayment thereof; and

“Project Special Purpose Company” means a special purpose undertaking
operating solely for the purpose of carrying out and/or financing a Private Finance
Initiative (“PFI"), Public/Private Partnership (*PPP”) or similar project.

99 General Powers
The business and affairs of the Company shall be managed by the Directors, who may
exercise all such powers of the Company as are not by the Statutes or by these Articles
required to be exercised by the Company in General Meeting subject nevertheless to any
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regulations of these Articles, to the provisions of the Statutes and to such regulations,
whether or not consistent with these Articles, as may be prescribed by Special Resolution
of the Company, but no regulation so made by the Company shall invalidate any prior act
of the Directors which would have been valid if such regulation had not been made. The
general powers given by this Article shall not be limited or restricted by any special
autherity or power given to the Directors by any other Article.

The Directors may by resolution exercise any power conferred by the Statutes to make
provision for the benefit of persons employed or formally employed by the Company or any
of its subsidiaries in connection with the cessation or transfer to any person of the whole or
any part of the undertaking of the Company or that subsidiary.

100 Local boards

100.1 The Directors may establish any local boards or agencies for managing any of the affairs
of the Company and may appoint any persons to be members of such local boards, or any
managers or agents, and may fix their remuneration, and may delegate to any local board,
manager or agent any of the powers, authorities and discretions vested in the Directors,
with power to sub-delegate, and may authorise the members of any local boards, or any of
them, to fill any vacancies therein, and to act notwithstanding vacancies, and any such
appointment or delegation may be made upon such terms and subject to such conditions
as the Directors may think fit, and the Directors may remove any person so appointed, and
may annul or vary any such delegation, but no person dealing in good faith and without
notice of any such annulment or variation shall be affected thereby.

101  Appointment of attorney

The Directors may from time to time and at any time by power of attorney or otherwise
appoint any company, firm or person or any fluctuating body of persons, whether
nominated directly or indirectly by the Directors, to be the attorney or attorneys of the
Company for such purposes and with such powers, authorities and discretions (not
exceeding those vested in or exercisable by the Directors under these Articles) and for
such period and subject to such conditions as they may think fit, and any such appointment
may contain such provisions for the protection and convenience of persons dealing with
any such attorney as the Directors may think fit, and may also authorise any such attorney
to sub-delegate all or any of the powers, authorities and discretions vested in him.

102 Signatures on cheques etc.

All cheques, promissory notes, drafts, bills of exchange, and other negotiable or
transferable instruments, and all receipts for moneys paid to the Company, shall be signed,
drawn, accepted, endorsed, or otherwise executed, as the case may be, in such manner
as the Directors, or any committee appointed by the Directors and authorised in this
regard, shall from time to time by resolution determine.
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104.2

104.3

104.4

104.5

105

Secretary

Secretary

The Secretary shall be appointed by the Directors on such terms and for such period as
they may think fit. Any Secretary so appointed may at any time be removed from office by
the Directors, but without prejudice to any claim for damages for breach of any contract of
service between him and the Company. If thought fit two or more persons may be
appointed as Joint Secretaries. The Directors may also appoint from time to time on such
terms as they may think fit one or more Assistant Secretaries.

The Seal

The Seal

The Directors shall provide for the safe custody of the Seal and any Securities Seal and
neither shall be used without the authority of the Directors or of a committee authorised by
the Directors in that behalf.

Every instrument to which the Seal shall be affixed shall be signed autographically by one
Director and shall be countersigned by the Secretary or by a second Director or by some
other person appointed by the Directors for the purpose save that as regards any
certificates for shares or debentures or other securities of the Company the Directors may
by resolution determine that such signatures or either of them shall be dispensed with or
affixed by some method or system of mechanical signature.

Where the Statutes so permit, any instrument signed by:
{a) one Director and the Secretary; or
{b) by two Directors,

and expressed to be executed by the Company shall have the same effect as if executed
under the Seal, provided that no instrument shall be so signed which makes it clear on its
face that it is intended to have effect as a deed without the authority of the Directors or of a
committee authorised by the Directors in that behalf.

The Securities Seal shall be used only for sealing securities issued by the Company and
documents creating or evidencing securities so issued. Any such securities or documents
sealed with the Securities Seal shall not require to be signed.

The Company may exercise the powers conferred by the Statutes with regard to having an
official seal for use abroad and such powers shall be vested in the Directors.

Authentication of Documents

Authentication of documents

Any Director or the Secretary or any person appointed by the Directors for the purpose
shall have power to authenticate any documents affecting the constitution of the Company
and any resolutions passed by the Company or the Directors or any committee, and any
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books, records, documents and accounts relating to the business of the Company, and to
certify copies thereof or extracts therefrom as true copies or extracts; and where any
books, records, documents or accounts are elsewhere than at the Office, the local
manager or other officer of the Company having the custody thereof shall be deemed to be
a person appointed by the Directors as aforesaid. A document purporting to be a copy of a
resolution, or an extract from the minutes of a meeting, of the Company or of the Directors
or any committee which is certified as aforesaid shall be conclusive evidence in favour of
all persons dealing with the Company upon the faith thereof that such resolution has been
duly passed or, as the case may be, that any minute so extracted is a true and accurate
record of proceedings at a duly constituted meeting.

Reserves

Establishment of reserves

The Directors may from time to time set aside out of the profits of the Company and carry
to reserve such sums as they think proper which, at the discretion of the Directors, shall be
applicable for any purpose to which the profits of the Company may properly be applied
and pending such application may either be employed in the business of the Company or
be invested. The Directors may divide the reserve into such special funds as they think fit
and may consolidate into one fund any special funds or any parts of any special funds into
which the reserve may have been divided. The Directors may also without placing the
same to reserve carry forward any profits. In carrying sums to reserve and in applying the
same the Directors shall comply with the provisions of the Statutes.

Dividends

Final dividends

The Company may by Ordinary Resolution declare dividends but no such dividend shall
exceed the amount recommended by the Directors.

Fixed and Interim dividends

If and so far as in the opinion of the Directors the profits of the Company justify such
payments, the Directors may pay the fixed dividends on any class of shares carrying a
fixed dividend expressed to be payable on fixed dates on the half-yearly or other dates
prescribed for the payment thereof and may also from time to time pay interim dividends
on shares of any class of such amounts and on such dates and in respect of such periods
as they may think fit.

Scrip Dividends

With the prior approval of an Ordinary Resolution of the Company passed at any General
Meeting the Directors may, in respect of:

(i any dividend proposed to be declared at that or any other General Meeting; or

(i) any interim dividend to be paid by the Directors pursuant to Article 108, or
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(iii) the fixed dividends on any class of shares to be paid by the Directors pursuant to
Article 108,

offer to holders of a particular class of shares the right to elect to receive in lieu of such
dividend (or part thereof) an allotment of additional ordinary shares credited as fully paid.
In any such case the following provisions shall apply:

(a) the basis of allotment shall be determined by the Directors so that, as nearly as
may be considered convenient, the value (calculated by reference to the average
quotation) of the additional ordinary shares to be allotted in lieu of any amount of
dividend shall equal such amount. For such purposes the “average quotation” of
an ordinary share shall be an average of the middle market quotation of the
ordinary shares on The Stock Exchange, as derived from the Daily Official List
maintained by the UK Listing Authority, on each of the first five business days on
which the relevant class of shares are quoted “ex” the relevant dividend;

{b) if the Directors determine to aflow such right of election on any occasion they shall
give notice in writing to the holders of the relevant class of share of the right of
election offered to them and shall issue forms of election and shall specify the
procedure to be followed, and the place at which, and the latest date and time by
which, duly completed forms of election must be lodged in order to be effective;

(c) the Directors may also issue forms under which holders of the relevant class of
share may elect to receive ordinary shares instead of cash both in respect of the
relevant dividend and in respect of future dividends not yet declared or resolved
(and accordingly in respect of which the basis of allotment shall not have been
determined);

(d) the dividend {or that part of the dividend in respect of which a right of election has
been accorded) shall not be payable on shares in respect whereof the share
election has been duly exercised (the “Elected Shares”), and in lieu thereof
additional ordinary shares shall be allotted to the holders of the Elected Shares on
the basis of allotment determined as aforesaid. For such purpose the Directors
shall capitalise, out of such of the sums standing to the credit of reserves (including
any share premium account or capital redemption reserve) or profit and loss
account as the Directors may determine a sum equal to the aggregate nominal
amount of additional ordinary shares to be allotted on such basis and apply the
same in paying up in full the appropriate number of unissued ordinary shares for
allotment and distribution to and amongst the holders of the Elected Shares on
such basis;

(e} additional ordinary shares allotted pursuant to an election in respect of any
dividend proposed to be declared at any General Meeting or any interim dividend
to be paid by the Directors pursuant to Article 108 shall rank equally in all respects
with the fully paid ordinary shares in issue on the record date for the relevant
dividend save only as regards participation in the relevant dividend;

H additional ordinary shares allotted pursuant to an election, in respect of the fixed
dividends on any class of shares to be paid by the Directors pursuant to Article
119.2 shall rank equally in all respects with the fully paid ordinary shares then in
issue;
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(g) no holder of any class of shares may be allotted a fraction of a share. The Directors
may make such provision as they think fit for any fractional entitlements including
provisions whereby, in whole or in part, the benefit thereof accrues to the
Company;

(h) the Directors may on any occasion determine that rights of election shall not be
made available to any members with registered addresses in any territory where
the absence of a registration statement or other special formalities circulation of an
offer of rights of election would or might be unlawful, and in such event the
provisions aforesaid shall be read and construed subject to such determination;

(i) in relation to any particular proposed dividend the Directors may in their absolute
discretion withdraw the offer previously made to the holders of the relevant class of
shares to elect to receive additional ordinary shares in lieu of the cash dividends
{or part thereof) at any time prior to the allotment of the additional ordinary shares.

Dividends on part-paid shares

Unless and to the extent that the rights attached to any shares or the terms of issue thereof
otherwise provide, all dividends shall (as regards any shares not fully paid throughout the
period in respect of which the dividend is paid) be apportioned and paid pro rata according
to the amounts paid on the shares during any portion or portions of the period in respect of
which the dividend is paid. For the purposes of this Article no amount paid on a share in
advance of calls shall be treated as paid on the share.

No dividend except out of profits

No dividend shall be paid otherwise than out of profits available for distribution under the
provisions of the Statutes. The Company or the Directors may determine any date as the
Record Date for any dividend, distribution, allotment or issue whether it is before or after
the date upon which the same is declared, made or paid.

Business bought as from past date

Subject to the provisions of the Statutes, where any asset, business or property is bought
by the Company as from a past date the profits and losses thereof as from such date may
at the discretion of the Directors in whole or in part be carried to revenue account and
treated for all purposes as profits or losses of the Company. Subject as aforesaid, if any
shares or securities are purchased cum dividend or interest, such dividend or interest may
at the discretion of the Directors be treated as revenue, and it shall not be obligatory to
capitalise the same or any part thereof.

No interest on dividends

No dividend or other moneys payable on or in respect of a share shall bear interest as
against the Company.
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Deduction of sums payable on account

The Directors may deduct from any dividend or other moneys payable to any Member on
or in respect of a share all sums of money (if any) presently payable by him to the
Company on account of calls or otherwise in relation to shares of the Company.

Retention of dividends

The Directors may retain any dividend or other moneys payable on or in respect of a share
on which the Company has a lien and may apply the same in or towards satisfaction of the
moneys payable to the Company in respect of that share.

The Directors may retain the dividends payable upon shares in respect of which any
person is under the provisions as to the transmission of shares contained in these Articles
entitied to become a member, or which any person is under those provisions entitled to
transfer, until such person shall become a member in respect of such shares or shall
transfer the same.

Waiver of dividend

The waiver in whole or in part of any dividend on any share by any document (whether or
nat executed as a Deed) shall be effective only if such decument is signed or authenticated
in accordance with Article 132 by the member {or the person entitled to the share in
consequence of the death or bankruptcy of the member or otherwise by operation of law)
and delivered to the Company and if or to the extent that the same is accepted as such or
acted upon by the Company.

Unclaimed dividend

The payment by the Directors of any unclaimed dividend or other moneys payable on or in
respect of a share into a separate account shall not constitute the Company a trustee in
respect thereof and any dividend unclaimed after a period of 12 years from the date of
declaration of such dividend shall be forfeited and shall revert to the Company.

Distribution in specie

The Company may upon the recommendation of the Directors by Ordinary Resolution
direct payment of a dividend in whole or in part by the distribution of specific assets (and in
particular of paid-up shares or debentures of any other company) and the Directors shall
give effect to such resolution. Where any difficulty arises in regard to such distribution, the
Directors may settle the same as they think expedient and in particular may issue fractional
certificates, may fix the value for distribution of such specific assets or any part thereof,
may determine that cash payments shall be made to any members upon the footing of the
value so fixed in order to adjust the rights of all parties and may vest any such specific
assets in trustees as may seem expedient to the Directors.

Manner of payment of dividends

Any dividend or other moneys payable on or in respect of a share may be paid to the
member or person entitled thereto (or, if two or more persons are registered as joint
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members or are entitlted thereto in consequence of the death or bankruptcy of the member
or otherwise by operation of law, to any one of such persons) or to such person as such
member or person or persons may by writing direct. Such dividend or other moneys may
be paid:

(i) by cheque sent by post to the registered address of the payee or, where there is
more than one payee, to any one of them; or

(i) by inter-bank transfer to such account as the payee or payees shall in writing
direct; or

(iii) (if so authorised by the holder of shares in uncertificated form) using the facilities of
a relevant system (subject to the facilities and requirements of the relevant
system); or

(iv) by such other method of payment as the member (or, in the case of joint members
or persons entitted to the share in consequence of the death or bankruptcy of the
member or otherwise by operation of law, all of them) may agree to.

Payment of the cheque or warrant by the banker upon whom it is drawn shall be a good
discharge to the Company. Every such cheque or warrant shall be sent at the risk of the
person entitled to the money represented thereby.

Subject to the provisions of these Articles and to the rights attaching to any shares, any
dividend or other moneys payable on or in respect of a share may be paid in such currency
as the Directors may determine, using such exchange rate for currency conversions as the
Directors may select.

Joint Members

If two or more persons are registered as joint members, or are entitled jointly to a share in
consequence of the death or bankruptcy of the member or otherwise by operation of law,
any one of them may give effectual receipts for any dividend or other moneys payable or
property distributable on or in respect of the share.

Record date for dividends

Any resolution for the declaration or payment of a dividend on shares of any class, whether
a resolution of the Company in General Meeting or a resolution of the Directors, may
specify that the same shall be payable to the persons registered as the holders of such
shares at the close of business on a particular date, notwithstanding that it may be a date
prior to that on which the resolution is passed, and thereupon the dividend shall be payable
to them in accordance with their respective holdings so registered, but without prejudice to
the rights inter se in respect of such dividend of transferors and transferees of any such
shares.
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Capitalisation of Profits and Reserves

122 Capitalisation of profits and reserves

122.1 The Directors may, with the sanction of an Ordinary Resolution of the Company, capitalise
any sum standing to the credit of any of the Company's reserve accounts (including any
share premium account, capital redemption reserve or other undistributable reserve} or
any sum standing to the credit of profit and loss account.

122.2 Such capitalisation shall be effected by appropriating such sum to the holders of ordinary
shares on the Register at the close of business on the date of the resolution (or such other
date as may be specified therein or determined as therein provided) in proportion to their
then holdings of ordinary shares and applying such sum on their behalf in paying up in full
unissued ordinary shares (or, subject to any special rights previously conferred on any
shares or class of shares for the time being issued, unissued shares of any other class) for
allotment and distribution credited as fully paid up to and amongst them as bonus shares in
the proportion aforesaid.

122.3 The Directors may do all acts and things considered necessary or expedient to give effect
to any such capitalisation, with full power to the Directors to make such provisions as they
think fit for any fractional entitlements which would arise on the basis aforesaid (including
provisions whereby fractional entitlements are disregarded or the benefit thereof accrues to
the Company rather than to the members concerned). The Directors may authorise any
person to enter on behalf of all the members interested into an agreement with the
Company providing for any such capitalisation and matters incidental thereto and any
agreement made under such authority shall be effective and binding on all concerned.

Accounts

123  Accounting records

Accounting records sufficient to show and explain the Company's transactions and
otherwise complying with the Statutes shall be kept at the Office, or at such other place as
the Directors think fit, and shall always be open to Inspection by the officers of the
Company. Subject as aforesaid no member of the Company or other person shall have any
right of inspecting any account or book or document of the Company except as conferred
by statute or ordered by a court of competent jurisdiction or authorised by the Directors.

124 Copies of accounts for members

124.1 Subject as provided in Article 124.2, a copy of the Company’s annual accounts and report
which are to be laid before a General Meeting of the Company (including every document
required by law to be comprised therein or attached or annexed thereto) shall not less than
21 days before the date of the meeting be sent to every member of, and every holder of
debentures of, the Company and to every other person who is entitled to receive notices of
meetings from the Company under the provisions of the Statutes or of these Articles.

124.2 Article 124.1 shall not require a copy of these documents to be sent to any member to
whom a summary financial statement is sent in accordance with the Statutes and provided
further that this Article shall not require a copy of these documents to be sent to more than
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one of joint members or to any person of whose address the Company is not aware, but
any member or holder of debentures to whom a copy of these documents has been sent
shall be entitled to receive a copy free of charge on application at the Office.

Validity of Auditor's acts

Subject to the provisions of the Statutes, all acts done by any person acting as an Auditor
shall, as regards all persons dealing in good faith with the Company, be valid,
notwithstanding that there was some defect in his appointment or that he was at the time of
his appointment not qualified for appointment or subsequently become disqualified.

Auditor’s right to attend General Meetings

An Auditor shall be entitled to attend any General Meeting and to receive all notices of and
other communications relating to any General Meeting which any member is entitled to
receive and to be heard at any General Meeting on any part of the business of the meeting
which concerns him as Auditor.

Communications with Members

Service of notices etc.

The Company may, subject to and in accordance with the Companies Acts and these
Articles, send or supply all types of notices, documents or information to members by
electronic means, including by making such notices, documents or information available on
a website.

The Company Communications Provisions have effect for the purposes of any provision of
the Companies Acts or these Articles that authorises or requires notices, documents or
information to be sent or supplied by or to the Company.

Any notice, document or information (including a share certificate) which is sent or supplied
by the Company in hard copy form, or in electronic form but to be delivered other than by
electronic means, and which is sent by pre-paid post and properly addressed shall be
deemed to have been received by the intended recipient at the expiration of 24 hours (or,
where second class mail is employed, 48 hours) after the time it was posted, and in
proving such receipt it shall be sufficient to show that such notice, document or information
was properly addressed, pre-paid and posted.

Any notice, document or information which is sent or supplied by the Company by
electronic means shall be deemed to have been received by the intended recipient at 9
a.m. on the day following that on which it was transmitted, and in proving such receipt it
shall be sufficient to show that such notice, document or information was properly
addressed.

Any notice, document or information which is sent or supplied by the Company means of a
website shall be deemed to have been received when the material was first made available
on the website or, if later, when the recipient received (or is deemed to have received)
notice of the fact that the material was available on the website.
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The accidental failure to send, or the non-receipt by any person entitled to, any notice of or
other document or information relating to any meeting or other proceeding shall not
invalidate the relevant meeting or preceeding.

The provisions of this Article shall have effect in place of the Company Communications
Provisions relating to deemed delivery of notices, documents or information.

Joint members

Anything which needs to be agreed or specified by joint members shall for all purposes be
taken to be agreed or specified by all the joint members where it has been agreed or
specified by the joint member whose name stands first in the Register in respect of the
share.

Any notice, document or information which is authorised or required to be sent or supplied
to joint members may be sent or supplied to the joint member whose name stands first in
the Register in respect of the share, to the exclusion of the other joint members. For such
purpose, a joint member having no registered address in the United Kingdom and not
having supplied an address within the United Kingdom for the service of notices may,
subject to the Statutes, be disregarded.

The provisions of this Article shall have effect, subject to the Statutes, in place of the
Company Communications Provisions regarding joint members.

Deceased and Bankrupt Members

A person who claims to be entitled to a share in consequence of the death or bankruptcy of
a member or otherwise by operation of law shall supply to the Company:

(a) such evidence as the Directors may reasonably require to show his title to the
share,

(b) an address within the United Kingdom for the service of notices,

whereupon he shall be entitted to have sent or supplied to him at such address any notice,
document or information to which the said member would have been entitled. Any notice,
document or information so sent or supplied shall for all purposes be deemed to be duly
sent or supplied to all persons interested (whether jointly with or as claiming through or
under him) in the share.

Save as provided by Article 129.1, any notice, document ar information delivered or sent
or supplied to the address of any member in pursuance of these Articles shall,
notwithstanding that such member be then dead or bankrupt or in liquidation, and whether
or not the Company has notice of his death or bankruptcy or liquidation, be deemed to
have been duly sent or supplied in respect of any share registered in the name of such
member as sole or first-named joint member.

The provisions of this Article shall have effect, subject to any mandatory provision of the
Statutes, in place of the Company Communications Provisions regarding the death or
bankruptcy of a holder of shares in the Company.
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130 Overseas Members

Subject to the Statutes, the Company shall not be required to send notices, documents or
information to a member who (having no registered address within the United Kingdom)
has not supplied to the Company an address within the United Kingdom for the service of
notices.

131  Suspension of Postal Services

If at any time by reason of the suspension or curtaiiment of postal services within the
United Kingdom the Company is unable to give notice by post in hard copy form of a
General Meeting of the Company or a meeting of the holders of a class of shares of the
Company, such notice shall be deemed to have been given to all members entitled to
receive such notice in hard copy form if such notice is advertised on the same date in at
least one national newspaper and such notice shall be deemed to have been given on the
day when the advertisement appears. In any such case, the Company shall:

{i) make such notice available on its website from the date of such advertisement until
the conclusion of the meeting or any adjournment thereof; and

(i) send confirmatory copies of the notice by post to such members if at least seven
days prior to the meeting the posting of notices again becomes practicable.

132 Signature or authentication of documents sent by electronic means

Where these Articles require a notice or other document to be signed or authenticated by a
member or other person then any notice or other document sent or supplied in electronic
form is sufficiently authenticated in any manner authcorised by the Company
Communications Provisions or in such other manner approved by the Directors. The
Directors may designate mechanisms for validating any such notice or other document,
and any such document not so validated by use of such mechanisms shall be deemed not
to have been received by the Company.

133  Statutory provisions as to notices

Nothing in any of the preceding seven Articles shall affect any provision of the Statutes that
requires or permits any particular notice, document or information to be sent or supplied in
any particular manner.

Winding Up

134 Directors’ power to petition

The Directors shall have power in the name and on behalf of the Company to present a
petition to the Court for the Company to be wound up.

135 Distribution of assets in specie

If the Company shall be wound up (whether the liquidation is voluntary, under supervision,
or by the Court) the Liquidator may, with the authority of a Special Resolution, divide
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among the members in specie or kind the whole or any part of the assets of the Company
and whether or not the assets shall consist of property of cne kind or shall consist of
properties of different kinds, and may for such purpose set such value as he deems fair
upon any one or more class or classes of property and may determine how such division
shall be carried out as between the members or different classes of members. The
Liquidator may, with the like authority, vest any part of the assets in trustees upon such
trusts for the benefit of members as the Liquidator with the like authority shall think fit, and
the liquidation of the Company may be closed and the Company dissolved, but so that no
contributory shall be compelled to accept any shares or other property in respect of which
there is a liability.

Directors’ Liabilities

136 Indemnity

136.1 Subject to the provisions of, and so far as may be permitted by and consistent with the
Statutes and rules made by the UK Listing Authority, the Company may indemnify any
Director, former Director, Secretary or other officer of the Company and each of the
Associated Companies of the Company out of the assets of the Company against:

(a) any liability incurred by or attaching to him in connection with any negligence,
default, breach of duty or breach of trust by him in relation to the Company or any
Associated Company of the Company other than:

(i) any liability to the Company or any Associated Company; and

(i) any liability of the kind referred to in Section 234(3) of the Companies Act
2006; and

{b) any olher liability incurred by or attaching to him in the actual or purported
execution and/or discharge of his duties and/or the exercise or purported exercise
of his powers and/or otherwise in relation to or in connection with his duties,
powers or office.

136.2 Subject to the Companies Acts and rules made by the UK Listing Authority the Company
shall indemnify a Director of the Company and any Associated Company of the Company if
it is the trustee of an occupational pension scheme (within the meaning of Section 235(6)
of the Companies Act 2006).

136.3 Where a Director, former Director, Secretary or other officer is indemnified against any
liahility in accordance with this Ardicle 136, such indemnity may extend to all costs,
charges, losses, expenses and liabilities incurred by him in relation thereto.

136.4 In this Article “Associated Company” shall have the meaning given thereto by Section 256
of the Companies Act 2006.

137 Insurance

’

137.1 Without prejudice to Article 136, the Directors shall have the power to purchase and
maintain insurance for or for the benefit of:
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{(a) any person who is or was at any time a Director, officer or employee of any
Relevant Company (as defined in Article 137.2 below); or

(b) any person who is or was at any time a trustee of any pension fund or employees’
share scheme in which employees of any Relevant Company are interested,

including (without prejudice to the generality of the foregoing) insurance against any
liability incurred by or attaching to him in respect of any act or omission in the actual or
purported execution andfor discharge of his duties andfor in the exercise or purported
exercise of his powers and/or otherwise in relation to his duties, powers or offices in
relation to any Relevant Company, or any such pension fund or employees’ share scheme
(and all costs, charges, losses, expenses and liabilities incurred by him in relation thereto).

For the purpose of Article 137.1 above, “Relevant Company” shall mean:
(a) the Company;
(b) any holding company of the Company;

(c) any other body, whether or not incorporated, in which the Company or such holding
company or any of the predecessors of the Company or of such holding company
has or had any interest whether direct or indirect or which is in any way allied to or
associated with the Company; or

(d) any subsidiary undertaking of the Company or of such other body.

Defence expenditure

Subject to the provisions of and so far as may be permitted by the Statutes and rules made
by the UK Listing Authority, the Company:

(a) may provide a Director, former Director, Secretary or other officer of the Company
or any Associated Company with funds to meet expenditure incurred or to be
incurred by him in defending himself in any criminal or civil proceedings in
connection with any negligence, default, breach of duty or breach of trust by him in
relation to the Company or an Associated Company of the Company or in
connection with any application for relief under the provisions menticned in Section
205(5) of the Companies Act 2006; and

(b) may do anything to enable any such Director, Secretary or other officer to avoid
incurring such expenditure.

The terms set out in Section 205(2) of the Companies Act 2006; shall apply to any
provision of funds or other things done under Article 138.1.

Subject to the provisions of and so far as may be permitted by the Statutes and rules made
by the UK Listing Authority, the Company:

(a) may provide a Director, former Director, Secretary or other officer of the Company
or any Associated Company of the Company with funds to meet expenditure
incurred or to be incurred by him in defending himself in an investigation by a
regulatory authority or against action proposed to be taken by a regulatory authority
in connection with any alleged negligence, default, breach of duty or breach of trust
by him in relation to the Company or any Associated Company of the Company;
and
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(b) may do anything to enable any such Director, former Director, Secretary or other
officer to avoid incurring such expenditure.

138.4 In this Article "Associated Company” shall have the meaning given thereto by Section 256
of the Companies Act 20086.

138.5 Where the board of Directors considers it appropriate, the Company may grant a
documentary indemnity in any form in favour of any Director, former Director, Secretary or
other officer of the Company.
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